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WHO WE ARE 01 

Plaza Centers is a leading emerging 
markets developer of western-style 
shopping and entertainment centers 
The Plnza Centers Group is a leading emerging markets developer 
of shopping and emenainment centers, focusing on constructing 
f-eiy centers and, where there is signilicant redevelopment 
potential, redevelopfng existing centers, in both capilal cities and 
important regional centers. The Group has been present in the 
Central and Eastern Europe region ("CEE"! since 1996 and was 
the first to develop western-style shopping and entertainment 
canters in Hungary. The Group has pioneered this concept 
throughout the CEE whilst building a strong tracU record of 
successfully developing, letting and selling shopping and 
entertainment centers. Starting 2006. the Group has extended 
its area ot operations beyond the CEE into India and is considering 
development and investmem opportunities In other countries, 
such as Russia. Ukraine and the United Slates. 

Tlie Company is an indirect subsidiary of Elbit Imaging Ltd. ("El"), 
an Israeli public company whose shares are traded on both the 
Tel Aviv Stock Exchange in Israel and tlie NASDAQ Global Market 
in the United States. £1 is a subsidiary o! Europe Israel (M.M.S.) 
Ud, El's activiues are divided into ihe following principal fields: i) 
Initiation, construction. opciatlOR. rnanageinent and sale of 
shopping and cntfiitaininent centers in Israel, Central and 
Eastern Europe and India: u) Hotels ownership, primarily in major 
European cities, as well as operation, management and sate of 
same through ils subsidiary, Elscint Ltd.; iii) Investmenls in the 
research and development, production and marketing of magnetic 
resonance imaging guided focused ultrasound treatment 
equipment. Ihrough its subsidiary. InSightec Ltd.; and Iv) Other 

activities consisting of the distribution and inarKetlng of women's 
foahion and accessories through wholly-owned Israeli subsidiary. 
Elbit Trade & Retail Ltd.. and venture-capital invcstiTients. 

The Group has been present in nial estate development in 
emerging markets for over 13 years, initially pursuing shopping 
and entertainment center development projects in Hungary and 
subsequently expanding inlo Poland, Uie Czech Republic. 
Romania. Latvia. Greece. Serbia. Bulgana and India. To date, the 
Group has developed and let 28 shopping and entertainment 
centers In the CEE region, of which 26 were sold. Twemy^one of 
these centers were acquired by Klépierre, the second largest 
shopping cemer owner/operator in Eurcpe, which owns more 
than 230 shopping centers In ten countries. Four additional 
shopping and entertainment centers were sold to the Dawnay 
Day Group, one ot the leading UK institutional property investors. 
One shopping center was sold in 2007 to active Asset Investment 
Management ("aAIWl, a UK commercial property investment 
gruup. The transaction had a compleiion value totaling 
approximately £387 million, representing circa 20"* of all real 
estate transactions completed in Hungary In 2007. 

Star ing November 1 . 2008. Plaza Centers N.V.'s shares are 
traded on the main board of the London Stock Ejichange under 
the ticker "PLAZ". Starting Oclober 19, 2007, Plaza Centers 
N.V.'s shares are also traded on the main list of Ihe Warsaw 
Stock Exchange under the ticker "PIZ" maMiig it the first property 
company to achieve such a dual listing. 

Utilize 
Where the opportunity exists in CEE, draw 
upon skills of the Europe Israel Group to 
participate in residential, hotel, offices and 
other development schemes 

Dividend policy 

:J*W-"&!*-'* ' ' £ ? _ 
of realijed developnicni profits up to 30 million, and 20-25% of 
tfie excess thereafter, as decided by the directors. Payable annually 
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS O 2006 m 2007 I 2008 OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS 

Gross revenuos 

Cross revenues and gains from sale and operations ol properties 
of G99 million (2007. KS1.0 million;, '.vith no revaluation gains, as 
per the Group's policy. 

•i lOin 

Total assets 

Total assets ol €958.6 million (Oecember 3 1 , 2007: 
€761.2 million). 

958.6m 
761 2 n 

474.9m 

Profit after tax 

Profit after tax of 668 "iillion (2007; €227 million) owing to the 
disposal of Plzen Plaza in the Czech Republic, price adjustments 
lollowing the sale of Arena Plaza and gains (rom financing activity. 

227in 

15m 

> Net Asset Value down 35% tu CO,7 billion (December 3 1 . 
2007: e i . 0 6 billion), mainly due to increase in exit cap rates 
and reduction ot expected renral levels, 

I Net Asset Value per share £2.26 (December 31 ,2007 : £2.52 
post dividond), a decline of 10.3% (decline lower than euro 
NAV due to the weakening ol sterling. 

i Conservative gearir.tj position mainiained with minor debt 
comprising only '17-% nf equity iDccrfinber 3 1 . 2007: 10%). 

) Current cash position of circa G170 million: €178 million at 
the year end (December 3 1 . 2007: 093 million! wilh working 
capital of 6698 imilion (December 3 1 . 2007; £625 miliioni. 

> Gross proceeds raised of approximately G153 million from a 
debenture issue to Israeli institutional investors between 
Krbruary ;iiid May 20C£. providing significanl additional 
'mwicial ficv.Uiiitv. 

i The Board bas '.aken the piMdenl decision not to recommend 
a dividend for 2008 in order to preserve the capilal liquidity 
within the Company. 

) Share buyback piofiram ii-.ittaied with Plaza acquiring 
14.5 million shares at an average pnce of £0.53, purchased 
up lo January 15. 2009 (9.2.1 million shares at December 3 1 . 
2008). Elbit liriaging Ltd. CEIb i f l . Plaza's ultimate parent 
company also purchased 4.79 mi l ion shares, bringing its 
effective shaietiolding lo 7'i,69X. 

> Good progress on current developments undei conKlruutiun. 
Development activities limited to eiglit projects located in 
areas with the highest market demand and with favourable 
financing upporlunities, namely Casa Radio and Miercurea 
Clue in Romania, Dream island in Hungary, Suwalki and 
Zgorzelec in Poland, Liberec in Czech Republic, Koregaon Park 
In India and Riga in Latvia. 

> Successful handover of Plzen Plaza in tho Czech Republic to 
Kiépierre. The asset value on handover was €61.4 million, an 
increase of 43% compared to valuation al IPO. 

) Completed the acquisition cf four development proiects, 
located in Romania and Poland; 
- Two developments in Hunedoara and Targu Mures, Romania 

with an anticipated gross lettable area (•'GLA') of 13.000m' 
and SO.OOOir^, respectively; ana 

- Two projects in Poland in tfie cities of Kielce (GLA 33.000m') 
and in Leszno (GLA 16.000m>). 

> A company owned by the consortiuni membeis of Dream 
lsla«d (in which Plaza now holds a 43.-r)>'> stawe). vion the first 
ever major casino license to be awarded ih Budapest. Hungary 
tor its planned entertainment and mixed-use development, 

) Joint venture signed with Elbit to develop three major mixed-
use projects in India, located in the cities of Bangalore. 
Chennai and Kochi. 

> Acquisilion of the entire 50% interest of Plaza's joint venture 
partner in the Koregaon Pork development in Pune, India, for a 
lotal consideration of approximately US.'520 miUion. 

> Signed and secured bank loan agreemenLs (or the construction 
of projects In Suwalki, Poland (642.2 million), Zgorzelec. 
Poland (€35.1 million) and Miercurea Ciuc. Rumania (€19.9 
million). 

) Significant progress marie cn two shopping centers to be 
opened in Q l 2009 - Liberec Plaza, Czech Republic, and Riga 
Plaza, Latvia. 

KEY HIGHLIGHTS SINCE THE PERIOD END 

) Plaza acquired a 5 1 * . stake (with an option to increase to up 
to 75%) from a local developer in a new 75.000m' gross buil! 
area development of retail and office space in Sr.fia, Rulgana. 
tor a total consideration ol €7,14 million. The development 
project has a credit facility in place. 

i In March 2009, Plaza and MKB Bank (a leading Huiigaimn 
cominerclal bank which ir, a subsidiaiy of the German 
Bayerische Landosbonk) purchased a 2 7 * imeiesl in Dream 
Island from CP Holdings Ltd. ia company conl/olled by Sir 
Bernard Schreier) for a consideration ol C21.4 million, 
incorporating a cash payment and the assumption of deln. 
Plaza and MKB. as a 50;50 joint veimire. nov/ hold an 87% 
interest in the projecl. 

) Liberec Plozn shopping center opened to the public on 
March 26, 2009. 

) Riga Plaza shopping center opened to the public on March 3 1 . 

2009. 
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OUR MARKETS 

EXISTING MARKETS 

• 1 Romania 
• 2 Poland 

• 3 India 
4 Czech Republic 

• S Hungary 
• 6 Serbia 
4', 7 Buigara 
• 8 Latvia 
• 9 Greece 

fUTUHE INTEREST 

H 10 Croatia 
R U Russia 
E 12 Slovakia 

• 13 Turkey 
• 14 Ukraine 
• 15 United States 
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EMERGING MARKETS DEVELOPMENT CRITERIA 

Plaza Centers has a strong track recoul in developing real estate 
projects such as shoppnig and entertainment centers in emerging 
maikets. The Group has been piesent in lhe Central and Eastern 
European ("CEE") region since 3995. and was a pioneer in 
bringing westein style shopping malls to Hungary. The concept 
was continued throughout UIR CEE, nnd is now being exported to 
India, whilst other development and investment opportunities in 
Asia, other European countries and in the United States are 
being explored furthei. 

The Company has had great success in capitalizing on the 
fantastic oppoitunities that its emerging markets have offered. 
We caiefully iiivestigatH the henefits and challenges inherent in 
every proposed project, adhering in our development criteria. 

fhe gioss domestic product ("GDP'i growth in CEE is likely to 
continue to outpeifonn that uf Western Europe, and we plan to 
continue to capitalize on the opponunities inherent in the region, 
whilst investigating new areas ot opportunity such as India and 
•,he United States. 

Select ion of ta rget countr ies 
We focus upon countries in emerging maikets, and are currently 
present in Eastern Europe arid Asia. In order to detetmine a 
favorable investment climate, we take into account country risk, 
GDP per capita and economic growth, ratio ol retail soles per 
capita, political stability, sophistication of banking systems, land 
ownership restrictions, ease ot obtaining building ancl operating 
permits, business risks, existing competition nnd market 
saturation levels. 

S i te evaluat ion 
We look to develop our first project in a new country in the capital, 
and thereafter in regional cities with a minimum catchment of 
50.000 residents. Site evaluation includes site area, catchment 
area, local zoning and town planning schemes, proximity to 
transportation and vehicular routes and legal issues. A carefully 
structured, internally developed evaluation process is in place 
involving each of the relevant disciplines iuconomies. engineering, 
marketing, etc.). 

Project development 
Once we have approved a site we manage its development from 
inception to completion, incorporating engineering, marketing, 
financial and legal stages, to encompass designs, architects, 
market forecasts and feasiöilitc studies. 

M -PJ-l M A Z A ^f1^ 
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COMPETITIVE STRENGTHS 06 

Strength in challenging times 
Despite the testing conditions in real estate markets worldwide, we continue to deliver high-class 
western-style developments. 

We are, however, mindful of the impact of these extraordinary markets on investor demand in the 
regions in which we operate. We are therefore taking a cautious view on the projects on which we 
have not yet started construction and will keep the timing of the commencement of these under 
regular scrutiny in order to identify the optimal time to deliver these projects Into a recovering 
market. We are also fortunate in being well positioned to prosper thanks to our conservative 
gearing levels, significant cash resources and very good relationships with our financing banks, 
who appreciate Plaza's strong track record. We believe the current situation in the real estate 
market will enable Plaza to improve its portfolio at favorable terms. 

PROVEN TRACK RECORD 

> 13-year track record of developing shopping and entertainment 
cemers in CEE - Plaza Centers has been active in the region 
since 1996 and was the first to develop western-styie shopping 
centers in Hungary. 

> Developed and let 28 shopping and entertainment centers in 
lhe CEE region, cf which 2S weie sold with an aggregate gross 
vaiue of €1,168 million. 

> Creating an attractive tenants mix. Including fashion, 
Hypermaikets, tood courts, electronics, sports and other 
retailers, with a special focus on entertainment. Most centers 
include a cinema multiplex, as well as a Fantasy Park, a state 
of the art entertainment and amusament facility operated by 
Plaza's suhsidisry, which includes bowling alleys, billiard 
tables, video arcades, internet cafés, children's playgrounds, 
bars and discos. 

> Flexibility and ability to anticipate and adapt to market trends 
- Plaza is well posiboned to satisfy the significant retail 
demand resulting from rapidly growing Incomes as well a» 
increasingly westernized tastes and habits of emerging market 
populations. Decisions to dispose of portfolio properties are 
based on an in-depth analysis ot market situation. 

> During Ihe years 1996-2004, when exit yields were high, the 
Group retained and operated shopping centers on completion 
and gained rental incoine. Once prnperty yields decreased, 
starting 2004, the Group started selling its shopping centers 
In line with the Groups commercial decision co focus its 
business more on development and sale rather than operating. 
Should yields be high, the group has the management skills lo 
operate the assets, as done In Uie past, until the next low 
yields cycle. 

MAZARS PAARDEKOOPER HOFFMAN i 
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STRONG CASH POSITION 

) Tiie Gmup is WSÏII diversified «'id acili/n in nine countries while 
additional countries are examined for further expansion. 

) Plaza sees strong iraportanco In ils invesiment in India, which 
has been less affected by the cuirem global crisis and will 
offer Plaza development prospects for at least 15 years. 

> With current cash position of circa C170 million. Plaza is ideally 
placed to survive the cunent crisis and to take advantage- of 
new acquisitions at favourable terms. 

FOCUS ON EIGHT PROJECTS 

> In light ot market conditions. Plaza look the strategic decision 
In the second half ol 2008 to scale back on project starts and 
acquisitions though Plnza decided to continue with the 
development ol the eight projects that were already In the 
construction stage (Casa Radio and Miercurea Ciuc In 
Romania. Dream Island in Hungary, Uberec in Czech Republic, 
Koregaon Park in India, Riga in Latvia and Suwalki and Zgorzelec 
In Poland;. Mosi of the other projects are either in the design 
phase or awaiting permits and the commencement of these 
projects will depend on the availability of external financing. 

> the Group continues to pursue a conservative financing policy 
to decrease its exposure to the liquidity crisis, with the current 
level of gearing being only 47% (debt to equity). The vas; 
majority of the debt is long term, maturing mainly between 
20.1110 2017. 

MAZARS PAARDEKOOPER HOFFMAN/fiCOUNTANTeTN; 

Initialled for identification purposes only 



MAZARS PAARDEKOOPER HOFFMAN/CCOUNTANTS N.\i 

Initialled for identification purposes only 



MAZARS PAARDEKOOPER HQfFMA.HlKCCCX^rHH'!S i 

Initialled tor identification purposes only 



M v - M A Z A R S 

?;"iAZAflS PAARDEKOOPER 

Initialled for identification purposes only 



MAZARS PAARDEKOOPER HOFFMAN^écOUNTANTS I 

initialled for identification purposes only 



PLAZA e i N T t n M.V. AMHUM RFPORI .IXIS 

CURRENT DEVELOPMENTS 12 

Romania 
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While operations only started in November 2006 with the acquisition ofthe landmark Casa Radio scheme in Bucharest. Plaza already 
has seven sites for shopping and entertainment centers and mixed-use schemes in vanous stages of production and holds one office 
building which operates as its head office for the country. With a population ot over 22 million and currently limited commercial space, 
Romania is the most signilicant CEE country in Plaza's portfolio. 

CASA RADIO 

> Plaza acquired a 75% inteiest in a company which has entered 
into a public-privale partnership agreement with the 
Government of Ror-iatua to develop the Casa Radio (Oambovltai 
scheme in Bucharest, the largest develunmem plol available 
in central Bucharest. 

) The Romanian govemment will remain a 15% partner In the 
scheme, as well as another developer holding 10%. 

> The development ot Casa Radio comprises approximately 
BOO.OOOrn' of GBA (Including parking], including 170,000m, 

shopping mall and leisure center (one or the largest in Europe), 
ferns wheel, offices, hotel, casino, hypermarket and a 
convention and conference hall. The project Is the Group's 
biggest project currently under construction and has obtained 
the approval of the urban technical commission of Bucharest, 
Romania. 

Project status: under construction. 

IASI PLAZA 

> The Group purchased a 46.500mT plot of land in lasl 
(population of 350,000 and catchment area of approximately 
820,000), a city in the north-east of Romania, which will be 
developed as a shopping and enrenainmem center and 
office space. 

) The shopping center will comprise approximately 40,000m:' of 
GLA and will include an anchor supermarket, a cinema, fashion 
retailers, a fantasy park, a food court and restaurants. 

) Theie wil! be office sp»* with GLA of 22,OOOm-. 

Project status: under planning. 

TIMISQAR* PLAZA 

) In Tlmisoara, the Group has a 32,000m, plot of land situated 
on a three-way Junction with excellent visibility. 

> Timisoara Plaza is situated to the norttneast of Tlmisoara, a 
city in western Romania, close to the Hungarian border 
(population of 350,000, catchment atea of approximately 
700,000). 

> Tlie planned shopping center will have GLA of approximately 
43,000ni' and will include a supermarket, a cinema complex, 
fashion netallefs, a fantasy park, a cinema, a food court 
and restaurants. 

Project status: under planning. 

SIATINA PLAZA 

> Ptaza plans to build a shopping and entertainment center 
with approximately 44,C00m' of built area including 750 
parking spaces. 

) Siatina is a vibrant city with around 80.000 inhabitants and Is 
considered a major city in the county ol Oit which has a 
population of 520,000. it has a strong industrial base, with 
companies such as Pirelli lyres located there. 

) The Siatina site will total approximately 17.000m'' of GLA and 
is located in tlie north-western part of Siatina. 

Project status; under planning. 
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CSIKI PLAZA (MIERCUREA CIUC) TARGU MURES PLAZA 

The Group purchased a plot of iand with an area or SS.OOOm' 
in Miercurea Ciuc. on which It Iniends io develop a shopping 
and entertainment center. 

> Csiki Plaza is situated in the center of Miercurea Clue, a city In 
Romania, with a population of 50.000 inhabitants and a 
catchment area ot approximately 300.000 inhabitants. Ttie 
site is situated 400m from the city hall. 

> The planned shopping center will have a GLA of approximately 
14,000111^ and will include a supermarket, fashion retailers. 
a food court and restaurants. 

Project status; under construction. 

HUNEDOARA PLAZA 

I The Group purchased 41,0O0nV plot, near to Hunedoara 
city center. 

> The site wiil be developed into a modem, western-style 
shopping and entertainment center, with a built area of 
32,00OmJ (Including parking) and 13,000i i f of lettable space. 

> It is ideally located alongside tlie main road to the city center, 
and has a lai^e catchment area ol 500.000 people in 
the region. 

Project status; under planning. 

> Tho Group has acquired a Sl.OOOirr site in Targu Mures. 
Romania, to develop a significant shopping and enterlainment 
center. 

) The modem, western-style center will have SO.OOOm"' of 
lettable retail space, comprising more than 140 units. 

) The proposed dovelopmont is ideally locaied near the city 
center, close to the main road that links to the neighboring 
towns of Cluj Napoca and Alba lulia. 

Project status: under planning. 

PALAZZO DUCALE 

> Plaza Centers has acquired a prestigious French-style villa 
converted into an affice building. The building Is locaied in Uie 
center of Bucharest and was completely renovated in 2005. 

) The total offlce area is approximately 700in : ' , built on a plol of 
around 600iin : and consists of three (loots, a basement and 
a garage. 

) The building has become the headquarters of Plaza Centers 
in Romania. 
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CURRENT DEVELOPMENTS 14 

Poland 

Suwalki Plaza 
Torun Plaza 
Zgorzelec Plazs 
kMce Plaza 
Lsszno Plaza 
Lodz Plaza 
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Plaza has already completed sever, shopping and entertainment centers in Poland, Including three which were completed and (ully let in 
2007. The Group has (Ivs sites m Piiland for the development of shopping and entertainment centers. 

SUWALKI PLAZA 

> Suwalki Plaza is located in Suwalki. a city crossed by 
expressway £67(8), which links Augustow with the Lithuanian 
border. The expressway is to be part ot a larger road network 
called "Via Baltica'. 

> "Pie creation of the Suwalki Special L'conomk; Zone offers new 
opportunities for trade and cummerce. Suwalki is also 
becoming a tourist destination. 

> The site is located In the main commercial and residential 
district of the city and is frometl by an important arterial route 
to the east. The site is also iocoteri on the junction of a stieet 
which linns directly into ihe city center. The PKS bus terminal 
and main railway station are located approxiniately 1km from 
the site. 

> Suwalki Plijza will be a tv.-n-flon igmunri and first floor) 
shopping and entertarmienl centei with approximately GLA of 
20,000m' (anchored by a sopurmarket, a department store as 
well as a bowling and umertainment area). 

TORUN PLAZA 

> Torun Plazs is located in Torun, an almost 800-year-old city ot 
200.000 inhabitants, 

) Torun is one of the most beautiful cities ot Poland located at 
the Intersection of ancient trade routes. Gothic buildings of 
Torun's Old Town won the designation of the WOrkl Heritage 
Site from UNESCO in 1997. 

> Torun Plaza will be a three-floor shopping center widi 
approximately 44,000m- of GLA (anchored by a supermarket, 
a department store, a multiscreen cinema as well as a bowling 
and entertainment area). 

Project status: planning and permits stage. 

Project status: under construction. 
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ZGORZELEC PLAZA 

> Zgorzelec Plaza ts located in Zgorzelec in south-west Poland, 
near lhe German border. 

) Thanks to two road border crossings (Including one of the 
largest in Poland), a railway border crossing and the restored 
Old Town Bridge which connects the old towns of Zgorzelec 
and Goerlltz (58,000 citizens on the German side), Zgorzelec 
is called the 'gate' between Germany and Poland. 

> In tho vicinity ol Zgorzelec ".he;e is a spedition terminal, road 
and a railway (freight) border crossing with the Czech Republic 
and a freight border crossing wilh Germany. 

> The site is situated less than five minutes walking from the, 
railway station. 

) The planned shopping and enterlainment center will comprise 
appioximately I3.00ümr of GLA and 400 parking spaces. 

Project status: under construction. 

KIELCE PLAZA 

> Kiolce Plaza is located in Kielce. a city of 200.000 inhabiiants 
and catchment area of 350.000 inhabitants. 

I The center will be located on a 30.000mv plot alongside a 
major noad and two kilometres (rom the heart of Kielce, 

> Kielce Plaza will have a GRA of 46.000iiv' with 33.000iir of 
GLA, and approximately 1.000 car-parking spaces. 

Project status: planning and permits stage. 

LESZNO PLAZA 

> Leszno Plaza Is ideally locaied In the center of Leszno. a city 
wilh 64.000 inhabitants. 

) Leszno is situated in Western Poland between the two big 
economic centers of Poznan and Wroclaw, and is close to the 
central railway and bus station. 

) The planned shopping and enlercair.ment center will comprise 
approximately le.QOOirr of GLA provkllng more than 70 units, 
and 450 car parking spaces. 

Pioject status: under planning. 

LODZ PLAZA 

> The Group owns part of a development site and has a usufruct 
over the remaining part of the site, located in the center ot 
Lodz, which Is suitable lor use as a residential area. 

) The site is located in the central university district of Lodz, the 
second laigest city in Poland with 774,000 inhabitants, within 
500m of the popular Plotrkowska pedestrian street, at the 
Inlerseclion of two of the main arteries into the city. 

Project status: under planning. 

Mk:A M A Z A R_S 

MAZARS PAARDEKOOPER HOFFMA/ACCOUNTANTS1 

Initialled for identification purposes only 



PLAZA CtMTOM N.V. AKNUA-, RPPORI X m 

CURRENT DEVELOPMENTS 16 

Koregaon Park 
Kharadi 
Trivandium 
Bangalore 
cnennal 
Kocni Island 

Pune 
Pune 
Trivandrum 
Bangalcra 
Chennai 
KocW 

100 
50 
50 

23iTS 

38 

23.75 

i l l , 0 0 0 
2Ö5.000 
198.000 

2.100.000 
AIOQ.000 

STSiOOO 

70;2 

56.3 
*7 

468.9 

269.6 
105.2 

25.6 

13.8 

9.3 
57.9 

18.9 

3 

2011 

2012 

-
2012-2017 

2012-2015 

_ 

Value Di, per KvnR Sr. lig» ̂ iluot .Ml Î JTOT* ZÏ ,Tt Pr.r«moer J l . Z008. 

With a population ot ovei une bi-ilon, Inciuding over 250 million middle class population with Increasing purchasing power. Plsza has 
determined India to be o re ot its key areas fnr future expansion. The Group currently develops three large-scale, mlxe<Hise schemes, 
which combine shopping and entertainment centers with office/hotel development. 

In addition. In August 2008. Plaza Centers signed a joint venture agreement with Elbit Imaging Ltd. of which Plaza is an Indirect subsidiary, 
for the development of nega mixed-use projects in India. Under this agreement Plaza has acquired a 47.5% stake In Elbit Plaza India 
Real Estate Holding Ltd (" IV ' l . which already owns stakes of between 50% and 80% In three mixed-use projects in India, located in the 
cities of Bangalore, Chennai and Kochi, In conjunction with local Indian Partners, 

KOREGAON PARK TRIVANDRUM 

> Plaza Centers acquired a 100% stake trom Elbit Imaging in a 
subsidiary that holds 50% in another Indian private limited 
liabilily company. 

> In November 2008, Plaza bought ihe remaining 50% inteiest 
in the project trom its joint venture partner. 

) Plaza owns a plot of land of approximately six acres (24,000m') 
m Koregaon Park, an up marker are» of Pune, Moharashtra 
State, India. 

> Plaza plans to construct a mixed-use scheme with a total GBA 
of approximately 111 .000m' including parking, shopping 
center 83,500m' . offices ?7.5ÜCm (all inclusive underground 
parking). 

Project status: under coi'i&liuctiun. 

KHARADI 

> Plaza Canters is party to » 50:50 joint venture with a local 
Indian developer which holds 14 acres of land (Se.OOOm') in 
the Kharadi area in Pune, southern India. 

» The Company intends lo develop its plots of iand Shrough the 
constmction of a proiecl comprising approximslely 205,000m-
G0A which will include a shopping center with a total area ot 
apprOMmatr.ly 150,000m- and an olfice complex with an area 
of approximately 5ö,000>ii '. 

Project status: under plonrang. 

> The Group haa a site in the city of Trivandrum (with direct 
linkage to the bypass road which Is adjacent to the project 
premises) on which it intends to develop 195,000nv' GBA of a 
shopping and entertainment centei together with office 
premises and a serviced aparmcnt facility. 

> Trivandrum is a major city in me south of India, The city is the 
State of Kerala capital and houses many central and stale 
government, offices, organizations and IT companies. Apart 
from being the political center of Kerala, it is also a major 
academic hub and is hume to several educadonai institutions. 
It has a population of 3,000.000 inhabiiants. 

Project status: under planning. 

BANOALOM PROJECT 

> The JV has 50% stake in a company which holds a 440 acie 
plot in Bangalore. 

) Tfie Site is located on the eastern slue ot Bangalore. India s 
Wth largest city, with a population of over seven ni llion iwuplc, 

> The JV intends to develop the site into a mega mixed-use pioiect 
wilh a total built area of over 2.1 million si iuart meters. 

> The project will comprise luxury residential units (villas and 
multi levels), office complexes, a major retail facility, hotel 
complex, hospital, golf course, club houses and ancillary 
amenity facilities. 

Project status: under planning. 
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CHENNAI PROJECT KOCHI ISLAND 

> The JV has an 80% stake in a company wltich holds 135 acres 
plot in Chennai. 

> Chennai is India's fourth largest city with a populaUon of over 
len iniilion people. 

* The site will be developed into on integrated mixed-use 
projec'; consisling ol hig|-i ouality residential units (in both high-
rise buildings and villas), nncillnry amenities such as club 
houses, swimmins pools and sport facilities, a local retail 
(acilily and an office complex with a total built area of 
1.1 million square meiers. 

> The JV has a 50% stake in a company which holds a 41 acre 
plol in Kochi. 

> The site Is located on a backwater island adjacent to the 
admlnlstraUve, commercial and retail hub of the city of Kochi. 
In the state of Kerala, with a local population of more than 
three million people. 

> The mixed-use project will comprise over STS.OOOm-' of high-
end residential apartment buildings, office complexes, a holel 
and serviced apartment complex, retail area and marina. 

Project status: under planning. 
Project status: under planning. 
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In June 7008. Plaza completed Die successful handover of Its second shopping and entertainment center in the Czech Republic, m the 
city of Plzen. 

On March 26. 2009 Liberec Plaza was ooeneu to the public. 

Plaza is currently busy in developing one additional shopping and entertainment center end one residential project. 

Plaza continues io own ar. mccune generating office and warehouse building in Prague which is designated to be re-zoned for a scheme 
ol 61.6ü0nv of res.dential units. 

> Liberec Plaza is located in the center of l iberec.,- city in the 
north of the Czech Republic, close lo lhe border wilh Gennany 
and Poland, with a population of 98,000 and a saxiunent area 
ot approxiinatsly 350.000. 

> Tlie site is situated 20m from the main square. 

> Tlie shopping and entertainment center which was completed 
in March 2009 compiises 17X'0Om' of GLA including an 
anchor supermarket, fashion retaile's, a food court and 
restaurants. 

> Rie center also includes 850in of resideiitirtl apartments and 
800m of office snacp. 

Project status: eompleled. opened to the nubile. 

) Opava Plaza is located in Opava. a city ir the- nor:h-east of the 
Czech Republ.c, close to Ostrava, with a oopulatran of 55,000 
and a catchrnam area of 150.000. 

> Iht; sue ot 8 700m' is lociited 50m (rom '.he city center. 

) The planned shopping and entertainiTiein canter will comprise 
approximately 13,000ni ' of GLA and will Include an anchor 
supermarket, a cinema complex, fashion retailers, a food 
court and restaurants. 

) Praha Plaza s.r.o., Company's wholly owned subsidiary, owns a 
logistics and commercial center m the Prague III district. 

) The buildings are located on a site of approximately 46,500m' 
with a current total GLA of appraximatKly 44.300iiv (44.300m' 
for the current warehouse buildings and potentially 61.600m•' 
for future apartmenls). 

> The Prague III district has a number of major domestic and 
multinational companies such as Vbdafone, Cesky Telecom 
and others. The area also has on extensive range of public 
services. 

) Due lo planning difficulties, it is not possible to develop a 
shopping and entertainment center. Due to its strategic 
location and good public transport connections, the Group is 
currently examining the possibilities of onveloping a residential 
complex on :he site with a three-phase construction program 
comprising 61,600m : ' of built area. 

Project status; currently operating as an office building, 
re-zoning tor future residential use is In progress and is 
expecled to be obtained in H2 2009. 

Project status: under planning. 
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) Tlie Group owns 39 .000m' of land fn Roztoky, a town located 
north-east to Prague on lhe way to the airport (6.500 
inhabitants). The site is locatod on tha west side of the town, 
on a hill and attached to a park. 

> The Company intends to develop a residential compound 
which will include 15 row houses ami t34 semi-detached units 
of 15O-20Cii r' each. 

I The plot includes a van ! planning permit fur 81 units ot family 
houses. 

Project status; planning and permits stage. 
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During 2007. Plaza completed Ihe davelopment of Arena Plaza, its landmark shopping center scheme In central Budapest, comprising 
approximately 66,000nr GLA which makes it one of tlie largest in CEE. The center was sold to aAIM in November 2007 tor circa €387m. 
Plaza continues to work on the extension to Arena Plaza, where construction is planned to commence in 2010-2011. 

Plaza is cuirentiy holding one orltlcc building and developing three sites in Hungary, including the Dream Island mega scheme which is 
intended to be developed as a majot resort area Including hotels, recreation facilities, a casino and a business and leisure complex. 

In 2008. Die consoijum formed by the owners of Dream Island project won a concession license forthe 20-year operation of a large-
scale casino (the first one In Budapest) with an option to extend for an additional ten yeais. Tne project is intended to be completed in 
2012-2014. 

DREAM ISLAND UJ UDVAR 

> Plaza holds a 43.5% slake in Dream Island, a prestigious 
devetopment on the Obuda island In centra! Budapest, with a 
land area of 320.000m', which Is intended to be developed as 
a major resor area including hotels, recreation facilities, a 
casino and a business and leisure complex comprising 
350.000m' GBA. 

Project status: Initial excavation and archaeological works 
commenced, casino license for 2Q years (+ len years option; 
granted In May 2008. 

ARENA PLAZA EXTEHSIOK 

) Arena Plaza extension is a planned office addition to tlie Arena 
Plaza that will compnse GLA ot approximately 40.000m'. 

> Tio development will offer A-class offices in central location 
in Budapest. 

> The Arena Plaza extension will occupy pait of the former 
historic Kerepesi trotting inacx. 

Project status: under planning. 

) In September 2007, the Company bought a stake in a company 
holding Uj Udvar shopping center in Budapest. Subsequently, 
Plaza's interest tn llie asset is 35%. 

> UJ Udvar Is located in the center of the third district of 
Budapest, next to the Kolosy square on the Bêcsi street, 
surrounded by housing estates, office buildings and 
family houses. 

> Tho shopping center Is currently active and has approximately 
16.000m of GLA and approximately 11,600m- ot parking 
areas. 

) Uj Udvar shopping center shows significant redevelopment 
potential lor refurbishment and subsequent sale. 

Proleet statu*: operating, currently working on 
refurbishment plans. 
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DAVID HOUSE 

> The Company owns an offict building located or. Andróssy 
Boiilevnid. a prestigious location and one of the most sought-
after streets in the center of Budapest with several foreign 
embassies situated nearby. 

> The facades of all buildings on the Andrdssy Boulevard, 
including David House, are listed in the "World Heritage' list. 

> The building was reconstructed/ieturbished by the Group 
during 2000/2001 in co-operation with the local monument 
pieservatioii authority. Many of the original (eatures have been 
retained, including the inner courtyard, staircases, stucco, 
ornate rnstalwork and fine wood carvings. 

> The building Is located on a 796nT" plot and consists of four 
floors, an atrium and n basement, with a total constructed 
area of approximately 2.000m'. 

Project status: active office building, mainly serves as Plaza 
Centers headquarers in Hungary. 
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With penetration and acquisition ol its («st development site in July 2007. Plaza is currently developing three sites tor mixed-use. retail-
led developments. With a population uf circa ten million and very limited western-stylo retail areas, Plaza sees a stiong demand (or its 
high-class, western-style developments. 

BELGRADE PLAZA SPORT STAR PLAZA 

> The new complex will be located on the prominent site of the 
former Federal Ministry of Internal Affairs, situated on the 
main street which runs through the center of Belgrade. The 
area is home to foreign embassies. Scrt>ian Government and 
the Ministry of Finance. Belgrade chamber of commerce and 
Belgrade's largest public hospital are also nearby as well as 
the city fair and the future railway station. 

) Serbia is one of the south-eastern European nations where 
Plaza sees strong potential foi (uture investment oppoitunities. 
Plaza also believes that the Belgrade market offers particular 
potential, with its laige pojjulated catchment area of 
approximately 2.5 million people. 

) Belgrade has not. to date, benefited from "Institutional grade-
Investment In retail or comn lercial real estate. This development 
will have particular significance in terms pf proyidlng a new 
commercial and cultural destination (or both domestic and 
international visitors 

> Belgrade Plaza will bo developed into an office space 
together with hotel and retail gallery. The development will 
comprise a total of 70.000m- of built area as well as 650 car 
parking spaces. 

Profeet status: under planning. 

> The Group has purchased a 30,00cm' plot of land In Belgrade, 
tha capital city of Serbia. 

) Plaza plans to build on the land a new shopping and 
entertainment center, with a total gross lettable area 
of 44.000m'. 

Project status: under planning. 

KRAQUJEVAC PUZA 

> Tiie Group has purchased a 24,5(X)nr plot of land in 
Kragujevac (population of 180.000 and catchment area ot 
approximately 220,000), the largest city in the Sumadlja 
region and the administrative center of Sumadlja district. 

> Plaza plans to build on the land a new shopping and 
entertainment center, with a total grass lettable area 
of24.500ni'. 

> Tlie shopping cemer will include a cinema, fashion mlsiler, a 
food court, restaurants and parking spaces for appioximately 
600 cars. 

Project status: Initial constiuction. 
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In QJ 2009 Plaza eompleled the devo'opnient of Riga Plaza shopping and entertainment center, (Is first development in the Baltic Stales. The 
center is currently aooroximatuly 85% loi. Plaza is currently developing one shopping and entertaininent center and one mixed-used project 
in Bulgaria. 

RICA PLA2A - I Jin/IA 

«..-I. 'SCM f lAZf> ..<.•, >..r.'1-'v 

) The Group has purchased a 17,000nv plot ot land in Shumen. 
the largest city in Shumen County, which is situated in the 
northeast of Bulgaria. SOkm Irom Varna. The City of Shumen 
has a population of over VOO.ÜCO and is locaied within a 
larger catchment area of 205.000 people. 

I Plaza plans to build on ;he land a new shopping and 
entertainment cenier. with M lotal gross lettable area of 
20,000m' and 23,(!0üm-' ol parking, providing 650 spaces. 

> The shopping center will inemde supermarkei, digital cinema 
with (uur halls. 70 shops offering diversity of fashion and 
services, entertainment complex with bowling, billiards and 
video games, food court, restauisims and coffee houses. 

Project status: under planning. 

•nf.'-.t-.-'u**;- • i >. m r t . •AHIA 

) In February 2009. ihe Group actmired a controlling stake in a 
75,000m:' groiucl in ScSd. ihe cjipital city of Bulgaria. 

) Plaza will retain the ugh; to (ictiuiie a furthei 24% stake in the 
projecl for six months following .rie star! of construction, 
based on the current value ot thtj project. 

> The site is ideally located at a main junction, 2.7kni from the 
city center. 

> Plaza intends to develop ttie plot into a 44,000m' GLA of retail 
and affice complex. 

Project status: undei pl.nnlng. 

) In March 2004, the Group entered inlo a 50:50 JV with an 
American capital fund with extensive experience in Latvia for 
this project. 

) Riga Plaza is located on lhe west coast of Ihe Daugava River, 
SiMrtfHvest of Riga's city center fpopulalion of appraxiinately 
740.000, the largest city in the Baltic states) with excellent 
transportation connections to the city center and primary 
catchment of 350,000 inhabitants. 

) Riga Plaza is a three-floor shopping and entertainment center 
with a GLA of approximately 49,000m', anchored by a 
hypermarket, an eight-screen multiplex cinema and 2,0ü0m' 
bowling and entertainment area. 

Project status: completed, opened to -.he public. 

) The Group oirrentlyowns a plot oflandnieasunngapproximalely 
15,000m'' located adjacent to lhe National Highway (Piraeus 
Avenue) in a highly visible and commercial position at the 
jjnetion of two major avenues In the heart of Athens. The site 
is conveniently located in front of the ISAP melro line, which 
runs from Piraeus to the northern subuitis. Tlie flyover is a 
major new road ilnk that was completed on t;me tor Ihe 2004 
Olympics. 

) The sits is a dat, cleared area irregular in shape with frontage 
to Piraeus Avenue of 109m and a itiaiimum depth of 120m. 

) Helios Plaza will have a GBA of 35.000m-' with 25,000nf 
of GLA and approximately 80U parking spaces. 

Project status: under planning. 
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To: The shareholders of Plaza Centers N.V. 

AUDITOR'S REPORT 

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ' ' 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements 2008 of Plaza Centers N.V., Amsterdam. The financial ;. 
statements consist of the consolidated financial statements and the company financial statements. The consóli- . ,.c' .. 
dated financial statements comprise the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December, 2008, the consolidated.^; . 
profit and loss account, statement of changes in equity and cash flow statement for the year then ended, and a 
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes. The company financial statements com- . 
prise the company balance sheet as at 31 December, 2008, the company profit and loss account for the year-
then ended and the notes. 

MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance 
with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union and with Part 9 of Book 2 of 
the Netherlands Civil Code, and for the preparation of the management board report in accordance with Part 9 of 
Book 2 of the Netherlands Civil Code. This responsibility includes: designing, implementing and maintaining 
internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements that are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and 
making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances. 

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITY 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our 
audit in accordance with Dutch law. This law requires that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and 
perform our audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free from material mis­
statement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the fi­
nancial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the 
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In nhaking those risk 
assessments, the auditor considers intemal control relevant to the company's preparation and fair presentation 
of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not, 
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the company's intemal control. An audit also 
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting esti­
mates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion. 

OPINION WITH RESPECT TO THE CONSOUDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of Plaza 
Centers N.V. as at 31 December, 2008, and of its result and its cash flow for the year then ended in accordance 
with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union and with Part 9 of Book 2 of 
the Netherlands Civil Code. 

OPINION WITH RESPECT TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
In our opinion, the company financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of Plaza Cen­
ters N.V. as at 31 December, 2008, and of its resull for the year then ended in accordance with Part 9 of Book 2 • 
of the Netherlands Civil Code. 

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS 
Pursuant to the legal requirement under 2:393 sub 5 part f of the Netherlands Civil Code, we report, to the extent 
of our competence, that the management board report is consistent with the financial statements as required by 
2:391 sub 4 of the Netherlands Civil Code. 

Amsterdam, 30 April 2009 

MAZARS PAARDEKOOPER HOFFMAN ACCOUNTANTS N.V. 

was signed drs. R.C.H.M. Horsmans RA RV 
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Key events 
Over lhe past year and since lhe period end. Plaza has mode (our 
projecl acquisitions, entered Into three new joint venture 
partnerships and completed one handover. 

Givon the limited number of buyers in the market with the 
financial strength of Plaza, the Company has been able to make 
a number of development acquisitions at attractive prices. It has 
invested a total of C22 million across four projects, adding a 
further 92,000m' GLA to die Company's development pipeline. 

In addition, Plaza has also signed a joint venture agreement with 
Elbit Imaging Ltd., for the development ol three major mixed-use 
projects in India. Under this agreemenl. Plaza has acquired a 
47.5% stake In Elbit Plaza India Real Estate Holding Limited, 
which already owns stakes of between 50% and 80% In three 
mixed-use projects In India, in the cities of Bangalore, Chennai 
and Kochi. in conjunction with local Indian partners. The three 
projects will have a lotal combined development budget of 
approximately USS3.4 billion (of which the JV partners will 
responsible tor circa US$1.9 billion) and a built aiea in excess of 
3.8 million square meters (excluding parking spaces). 

We also completed Plzen Plaza in the Czech Republic in December 
2007 and. In July 2008, handed it over to Klépierre, 100% let on 
opening. The disposal price of the property was 661,4 million, 
compared to a value oi €42.8 iniilion at IPO in November 2006. 
representing a 43% rise. 

Plaza raised gross proceeds of approximately €153 million from 
a dnbenture issue to Isiaclt institutional investors between 
Februaiy and May 200S, which followed tfie inilial issuance of 
€53 million in July 2007. This was an exceptional achievement, 
given debt market conditions, with significant support shown by 
debenture investors for the highly rated debentures at interesl 
rates which were favorable to the Company. 

In addition, in the fourth quarter of lhe year. Plaza was able to 
secure additional develonment (inance fcr tiie conslruction of 
proiects In Suwalki. Poland (€42.2 million), Zgorzelec, Poland 
1.635.1. million) and Miercurea Ciuc, Romania (G19.9 million). 

Results 
Despite the challenging market conditions, It is pleasing to report 
ending 2008 with a gross profit of £43 million and a net profit ot 
Ë68 million (2007: €510 iniilion and £227 million respeclively). 
resulting mainly from the sate of Plzen Plaza in the Czecti 
Republic, the price adjustment for Arena Plaza. Hungary and 
financing activities. Basic and diluted EPS was down 70% to 
£0.23. 

A considerable portion of the nbovc stated profit resulting from 
operations Is derived irom pure cash gains and is not impacted 
by properly revaluations, as the Company has maintained its 
accounting policy of not revaluing its inventory of real estate 
under construction. 

Following our continued investment in existing assets under 
construction, as well as the opportunistic acquisitions lhat the 
Company has made over tlie year, our total investment in real 
estate inventories under constmction ("trading properties') 
increased lo €575 million. 

The Company continues io have a stiong cash position of 
approximately €178 million at the period end (and circa 
€170 million as at today's date), ensuring the Company remains 
on a solid financial footing to continue ils developmeni program, 
make opportunistic acquisitions '«here there is clear potential to 
create shareholder value and that lhe Company is able to negoliate 
project finarice, despite the dillicult ctedit environment. 

NAV 
The Company's portfolio was valued by King Sturge LLP as at 
December 31 ,2008 and their summary valuation is shown below. 

The main impact on the reduction in NAV came from trie decrease 
in the value of most of the Company's assets, especially in CEE. 
driven principally by a decline in rental levels as well as yield 
expansion, a reflection of overall market conditions in the CEE 
region. This reduction was partially offset by the Arena Plaza 
price adjustment and tha Plzen Plaza value uplift, totaling 
approximately €23 million. In total, the NAV decreased by 35% 
compared to Decembei 3 1 . 2007. 

Ttie Company's NAV was calculated as follows: 

Market value ot land and projects 
by King Sturge LLP-
Assets minus liabilities as at December 3 1 . 2008^••', 

Total 

697.055 
(3.976! 

693,079 

1 Por vnlulticn ott/iche.J iMlm.. 
7 ücludinii twok value (jl atttotr, -Aliidi *,tni vnluutl Dy King S W Ê H LLP 

The resulting NAV per issued share is £2.26 (December 3 1 , 
2007: £2.52. post dividend), a 10.3% deciease compared to 
December 3 1 , 2 0 0 7 . This relatively small decrease is mainly due 
to the devaluFition of sterling against fhe euro. 

Strategic d i rec t ion 
The financial turbulence over past 12 months has had a 
significanl impact on activity in real estate markets across the 
world, with the lack of availability of financing doing a key factor 
behind the dramatic slowdown in the investment market and the 
deterioration in consumer confidence having n particular impact 
on retail tenants. 

Despite this, whilst our existing and potential tenam base cannot 
be entirely immune from current pressures on retailers, the 
nature of our assets continue to attract strong letting and 
customer interest. 
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in Bgnr of market oondl'.jons. however, we took the strategic 
decision in the second half of the yftsr fo scale back on project 
starts and acquisitions though wc wiil continue with (he 
development oi the eight projects tha: arc in the conslruction 
stage (Casa Radio and Miercurea Ciuc in Romania, Dream Island 
in Hungary Liberec in Czech Republic, Koregaon Park in India, 
Riga in Latvia and Suwalki and Zgorzelec in Poland). Most of the 
other projects are either in the design phase oi awaiting 
permitting, and the commencement of these projects will depend 
on the availability of external fiiiancing. 

Given (he (i-iancial stienglh of the Company, llie (united number 
of development projects in progress, combined with the ability of 
lhe Group lo adapi to the maiket tonditions, Plaza is strongly 
placed and does not have !<J execute forced sales of projects. 
If yields continue to be high once projects currently undei 
construction aie completed, Plaza will capitalize upon Its 
extensive experience gained over eight years of managing and 
running shoppng malls efficiently to hold and manage these as 
income-generating Investments in om porUullo, to the benefit cf 
our shareholders, until market conditions improve. 

Plaza has been active in CEF. since 1996. We pioneered the 
concept of western-style shopping and entertainment centers in 
the region, targeting a growing middle class and an increasingly 
affluent consumer base. We look forward lo buildlr'!' upon this 
proven and successful business model, whits: looking for 
oppoitunities to expand the Company's aclrvitles both within its 
existing rnai kets and into new territories. 

As demonstrated by the new ;oint venture signed wilh Elbil. Plaza 
is now (evoraglng this experience and proven business model, 
which we believe can be successfully applied across India. The 
JV is involved in a number of selected projects in India, a markel 
which it believes lias a number of attractive characterisdes, 
which Include: 

> the signlflcant economic gtowth the country has experienced 
over the past five years, which is expected to continue in lhe 
coming decade; 

> the rapid growth in household income, which is a similar trend 
to one that. Ihe Group experienced in Ccc when it commenced 
operations; 

> the Group's experience in enierglng markets with similar 
complex legal and regulatory environments to India; 

> the interest from major retailers in the areas being considered 
by the Group: and 

> the undeveloped retail industry in India, which is expected to 
enlei a period of exponential growth: nnd lack of local expeilise 
and, theretoie. competiiiün ui the development of shopping 
and entenainr-.ent centers. 

FurthBrrnore. lhe Group wiil examine oiner countries in CEE and 
Asia that meet the Group's development criteria with a view to 
Identifying further opportunities in this sector. Tho Group will 
also examine other countries or continents with a view to 
acauiring yielding assets at compelling pnces. 

Portfolio progreu 
The Company is currently engaged in 33 projects and assets 
under developmeni located across the CEE region and in India. 
The locations of the projects and assets under development am 
summarised as follows: 

Number of assets 
Localion 

Romania 
Poland 
India 
Czech Republic 
Serbia 
Hungary 
Bulgaria 
Latvia 
Greece 

Total 

llmler dewtopiiwnl 

7 
6 
6 
4'" 
3 
3 
2 
V'-i 

1 

33 

OHctt* 

1 

~ 
-
1 
-
1 

-
_ 
.. 
3 

1 InctutUrg one ocllv« slmpfkng .wo eri*»t-ilinricnl t a w r . 

The Company has Invested a total of €40 million in five 
acquisitions during the year to date, namely: two retail 
development schemes in Poland (Kielce and Leszno): two retail 
development schemes in Romania at Hunedoara and Targu 
Mures; one project in Sofia. Bulgaria and a (under 27-)<, stake tn 
Its Dream Island project in Budapest with its 50:50 joint venture 
partner, fhis is in addition to the €85 million invested In tlie new 
joint venture with Elbil in India. 

Plaza has also undertaken a number ot otiier significant 
transactions during the year. The most Important of those was 
the closing of the sale of Plzen Plaza in the cily of Plzen (Czech 
Republic). This transaction was the last under the second 
agreement with Klépiene. The center was 100% let prior to its 
handover, increasing the sales value to €61.4 million, compared 
to the €42.8 million valuation published in the Company's IPO 
Admission document. 

In May 2008, a consortium of Investors In which Plaza then 
owned a 30* indirecl stake was announced as the winner of a 
large-scale casino licanse to be operated on Obuda Island. 
Budapest. Following lhe period end, as announced to shareholders 
on 19 March 2009. Plaza and its 50:50 joint venture partner. 
MKB Bank (a leading Hungarian commercial bank which is a 
subsidiary of the German Bayerische Landesbank) purchased a 
turther 21% interest in Dream Island from Obuda Investment Ltd. 
(a company controlled by Sir Bernard Schreier) for a consideration 
of €21.4 million (compnsing a €12 million cash payment ond the 
rest by debt sssumptlon) and now holds a 87* interest in 
the pioject. 

The granting of tlie casino license /vlll enable Piazn io commence 
constmction of mis major mixed-use project, named 'Oream 
Island". Totaling over 350,000in: of GBA, tlie scheme will Include 
approximately 3,000 hotel rooms in several hotels of different 
categories as well as appioximately 1,000 leisure apartments, a 
convention center accommodating 3.500 delegates, a 1,500-
seat opera house, a 3,500-seat multi-purpose theatre, a marina 
with an anchorage for 300 vessels, a shopping and entertainment 
center including a prestigious "Designer Avenue" a Roman 
cultural museum, and parking facilities tor approximately 5.500 
vehicles, as well as the casino of do.ooom*. The scheme is 
located on the southern end ot Obuda Island in the Danube River 
in central Budapest. 
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The exclusive license has been granted to a company held by the 
consortium member, of Dneam Island lor 20 years from the date 
o( tlie casino's opening, with a ten-year extension option. During 
this lime, no further major casino licenses will be granted by the 
Hungarian government in the same aiea o( Budapest. The casino 
will have more than 200 gnmlng lohlcs and over 4,000 slot 
machines, and Is expected to be the laigest and most prestigious 
destination of its kind in Eunipo, where cuirentiy no other resort 
and leisure facility of this magnüude exists. 

Given market condilions over the past 12 monlhs, and as a 
material part of annual profits art; (mm finance .ictiviiies rather 
than leahsation of real estate assets, the Board has taken the 
prudent step not to recommend the paymenl of a dividend for the 
year ended December 3 1 . 2008, in order to preserve capital 
liquidity wilhin lhe Company. Tho Board will continue to monitor 
overall market condilions. ongoing commitled capital 
requirements of the Company, as well as expected future cash 
(low, before considering any (uture dividend payments. 

Liquidity and f inancing 
We cmlod 2008 with a stiong liquidity position, holding circa 
€178 million of cash and cash equivalents imcluding E32 injllion 
restricted cash). This was mainly due to the disposal of Arena 
Plaza and receipt ofgross proceeds of approximately €153 million 
raised from a debenture issue to Israeli institutional investois 
between February and May 2008 and provides the Company wilh 
significant additional financial flexibility. Our strong liquidity 
enabled us, together with our ultimate parent company, lo 
commence a share buyback program of up to 5.61% of the 
shares cunenlly in issue. As a l the balance sheet date, 3 .21% of 
cuirentiy issued shares had been purchased. 

Tho real estate market relies on a combination of longterm and 
short-term financing souices. As a result ol the the credit crunch. 
•,h« global economic situaaon has continued to deteriorate 
sharply and the availability of raising lunds from tne public and 
arranging bank loans havo become increasingly difficult 
challenges. However, during the period, it is pleasing to report 
that Plaza has concluded seveial new loan agreements despite 
the iimived ovaiiability of credit 

fiiiancing was secured on lhe (oilowing projects; 

) Suwalki and Zgorzelec located in Poland. The loan facility is for 
80% ot the project budget (and can be increased to 100% 
based on the leasing progress) for each projecl at €42.2 million 
and £35.1 million, respectively. We are delighted to have 
already made strong letting progress on these projects. They 
are already 5 1 % and 63% let in lemis of GLA. 

) Miercurea Ciuc in Romania for 75% of the project budget, 
a loan of €19.9 million. 

The Group conlmue.s to pursue a ronservativt., financing policy lo 
decrease its exposure to the liquidity crisis, with llie level of 
gearing being 47% (debt, ro equity;. 

People 
Over the las;, decade, the Company experienced impressive 
growth especially alter its IPO in Ortober 2006. As a result, the 
number of employees increased in line with the number of 
projects as well as additional staff hired to enable the Company 
to penetrate new markets such as India. However, in light of 
current market conditions and the resulting realignment of our 
strategy, wo have taken steps to reduce the Company's 
headcount, mainly In tne CEF region. 

Dividend policy 
The basis of the Cmnpany's stated dividend policy at the time of 
its IPO was lo reflect the long-lerm earnings and cash flow 
potentialoftheGrcup.takirigiinoaccounl its capital requirements, 
while at the same time maintaining an appropriate level of 
dividend cover. 

Outlook 
Given the extraordinary economic and linaneial maiket cnridilions 
worldwide. Plaza has undertaken a number of measures to 
ensure that the Company piotects Ihe interests of shareholders. 
This has included adopting a strategy and financing structure 
appropriate to the prevailing market conditions, which takes into 
account its ongoing capital requirements, as well as being able 
to maUo oppurlunisiic acquisitions as appropriate. 

We are particularly mindful of tho impact of market conditions on 
investor demand in the regions In which we operate. We are, 
therefore, taking a cautious view on pipeline projects, which are 
expected lo be delivered (rom 2010 and will keep the timing ol 
tlie commencement of these schemes under regular scrutiny. 

Given our strong financing position we are able to take a flexible 
position with regaid to future development completions. Plaza is 
not in a position where it will have to execute forced sales of 
assets on completion. Until such a time when the investment 
market improves, wc will use our experience gained ovei eighl 
years of managing and running shopping malls effectively and 
efficiently to hold developed projects as income ge"cratir!g 
investments In our portfolio. 

The cunent exceptional market condilions serve as the ultimate 
tesl for measuring a strong and well-managed company. 
Companies sucn as Plaza that want to take advantage of 
opportunities in the current market as the basis for Iheir future 
growth must show their ability to adapt their strategies, readjust 
and reoiganize existing projects and maximize liquidity and cash 
flow. 

With this in mind. Plaza vvill not Until itself only to its trodiiional 
development business mode! and maikets and lo managing iis 
existing holdings as investment assets, but will seek to acquire 
high yielding mature asseis or invest in interesting new markets, 
such asthe United States, where clear and sometimes exceptional 
opportunities may arise to enhance capilal and income. 

We therefore remain well placed to manage the business through 
this market downturn and romain confident in the Company's 
excellent long-term growth piospects, 

Mordechay Zisser 
Chairman 

April 30. 2009 
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To date. Plaza has been involved in the development ol 33 schemes in nine countries, of which seven are locfrted in Romania, six in 
Poland, sl>. in India, four in the Czech Republic, three in Hungary, three in Serbia, two In Bulgaria one in Latvia and one in Greece. 
In addition. Plaza owns three adijiliunnl office buildings in Budapest. Prague and Bucharest. 

The projects are s'. various stages of the development cycle, from the purchase of land through lo the planning and completion 

of construclion. 

The Company's currem assets and pipeline projects are summarized in the table below: 

Arena Pima Extension 

Oream island [Obütfai 

Uj Udvar 

Oavid House 

Suwalki Plaza 

Lodi 

Zgorzelec Plaza 

Torun Oijiza 

Kielce P'a?d 

Leszno Pioj:a 

Prague 3 

Opava Plazo 

LiberRc Pln/a 

Roztoky 

Casa Radio 

Tini'SOafri Pió/a 

WiDfCurea Cluo P!az?j 

lasi Pi^^a 

Ourtapflst. Hungafy 

Hiidrinest. Kunüa^' 

Budapest. Hungary 

SucfciDCSt. Hunftjry 

Suwt'ïki. Ptïtatïd 

Lod/. Poland 

Xgoizelec, Poland 

Tonin, Poianfl 

Kielce. Pciand 

U;s-/nu, Poiano 

Praeuo. Czech Rep. 

Opava, C/osii Rep. 

uor ruc . C-ech Rep. 

Praeue. Czccn R fp 

Bucliarosl, Romania 

Ttnii'WJi-j-a. Rooi j iv ; ! 

MierciJivo Ciuc. 
Röt-ania 

lasi , Rom:ini«: 

Oflice scliema 

Major business 
nnd leisuro resort 

Retail and 
enlertainmem scheme 

Headquarters/ office 

Rclai! and 
entertainment scfieme 

Reside nUaf scneme 

Retail and 
cntortaihmenl scneme 

Retail and 
entcrtainmem scfteme 

Retail and 
enïeriatnment scheme 

lletall nnd 
entertainnieri» scheme 

Office, for future 
residential use 

Rela-l and 

entertainment scneme 

Reisli and 
eniGnainmer.f scheme 

Rosidentia! units 

Mixed-use retail 

and leisure plus 

office scheme 

Retail and 
cnterainp'-ent scheme 

Retai! and 
enie' la inment S"ïheme 

Retail, entertainment 

and office scheme 

40 .000 

3S0.0Ü0 
(GBAj 

(for rent 
and sale) 

16.000 

2.000 

20 .000 

80 .000 (GBAl 

13.000 

44 .000 

33 .000 

-16 .000 

61 .600 
(rGsidontial 

for sale) 

13 .000 

1.7.000 

-,4,000 

600 .000 

I.GBA 

Including 
parklnfi) 

43 .000 

.14,000 

62 ,000 

100 Under planning. Construction will 
commence in 20.10-20'.l.: 
completion scheduled for 2012 

43.0 mftinl e<cavatfcn and archneologtcst 
worKa cominenced; sïnged 
completion schtxiuled for 20.12-201*. 
Exc'usivc casino Hcense ohtained 

35 Opereting, currently working on 
reftjibishmenl olans 

100 Out'raiioi-ul tifiic^. 

100 Consl/uctioft commencert in 2009; 
completion scheduled for 2010 

100 Under planning 

100 Conslruction commenced in 2009; 
completion scheduled for 2010 

.100 Construction witl commence in 
201,0: compieMcn scheduled 
fm 2011 

100 Consuuetion wiil commence in 
late 2010: completion 
scheduled for 2012 

100 Cüiisliuction wiH commence m 
2 0 l i : cumptetic-n scheduled 
for 2012 

100 Currently operational as an offlcc-
buiiding, re-ronïng for future 
rtsidcntisl use is in progress, 
expected to be cbtatnod m H2 2009 

100 Constfuction wi'j commtnoc it-
2011: compietioi* schoiiuicd 
tor 2012 

1.Q0 Construclion stirtod in 2C07: 
opened to ouOfic in March 2009 

100 Conslruction vnü commence in 
2011: completion sc*ieaiiied 
for 2013 

75 Co'istujction commenced in 200'?, 
completion scheduled during 2013; 
approval of the 'Jraitn technical 
commissiOM nas been obtoincc 

1.00 Const'ticiion wU commence in 
2010; comnletion schcouied 
(or 2012 

100 Construction oommonced 
m late 3008; conipieilon 
scheduled for 2010 

100 Construction will commence m 
2010; completion scheduled 
for 2012 

Mk:-
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Slatine Plaza 

Hiocdonr i i Plaza 

largu Mi res Plaza 

Palazzo Ducale-

Be^raac Plaza 

Sport Star Pla/a 

Kropijevac Plaza 

Sh jmen Plaze 

Rsza Solia 

Business Cunte-

Rigo Pioza 

Helios Pla;:a 

iNuieKnon p^rk 

Kiwraai 

Trivandrum 

Bangalore 

Chennai 

Kochi Isona 

Slatma. Romania 

Huiv-Uoa-ti. Roti'ania 

Retail, entertairment 

and residential 

Retail and 
enieriziinfTienl scheme: 

t t i rg j Mures. Romania Retail and 

entortainment scheme 

Biicnaresl. Romania 

Belgrade. Sertjia 

BnlKiadr-. Seró-»! 

Kniguievac, Sernia 

S h u n c n . BülRana 

S.'fls. Bulgaria 

Rige. Latvia 

A i tens , Greece 

Pi.ne, India 

Pune. India 

t-ivandmr-i. India 

Bangaloie, India 

Cnennai, ind'a 

nochi. India 

Oftwa 

Hotel and business 
center with a 
shopping gallery 

R«a l l ar<l 

entoitaminont scnemo 

ReUnl and 

entertainment scheme 

Retail and 

entertainment scheme 

Retoil, entertainment 

and olfifie scheme 

Retail ano 

entenamnient scheme 

RelaH and 

entertainment scheme 

Retail, entertainment 
Sn,l officii schetnft 

Retail, entertainmem. 
and oWce scheme 

Retail, enleitaiomcnt. 
office and «pan hotel 
ttcheme 

Wixed-use reskJenlial, 

offices, retail, hotel, 

hcsoi lal and otner 

infrastructure 

Mixed-use resöenl iai , 
comniümial offico 
a r d reran 

Mixea-use residential. 

sdence park, mtal l , 

hospitality, infrastructure 

and manna 

17,000 

13.000 

30,000 

700 

70,000 

(GBA) 

i5 ,000 

24.500 

20.000 

44,000 

49,000 

25 000 

.111,000 

(GBA) 

205,000 

IGBA) 

195.000 

(GBA) 

2.100.000 

IGBA) 

1.100.000 

(GBA) 

875 .000 

!GBA1 

100 Construction wHI commence in 

2010 : completion scheduled 

fo r20U 

100 Constructioii will convnence in 

2010, compieUon scneduted 

lor 20 I t 

100 Conslruction will commence in 

2010: completion ichedu'ed 

for 2012 

100 Operalional 

100 Construction will commence in 

2011; completion scheduled 

toi 2013 

100 Construction wll commence in 

2010; comptelion scheduled 

for 201.2 

100 Construction started In late 2008; 

completion sciicduletl (or 2011 

.100 Construction will commeneo In 

2010: completlan scheduled 

fcr 20.1.1 

S l Construction w-H commence In 

2010; completion scheduled 

tor 2012 

50 Conslruction commentied In 2007: 

opened to Ihc public March 2009 

100 Construclion w:ll comrence in 

2010; completion scheduled 

lor 2012 

100 Construction commonced in late 
2007: exnentert completion in 2011 

SO Construction will commence ir 
201,0; expected completion 
in 2012 

SO Under plannirg 

23 .75 Under planninif: conslruction will 

commonce in lam 2010 ; completion 

scnoduletl (or 2 0 1 2 2017 

3 8 Under plaiminu. conuruc l ion w i l 
commence in late 2010 ; compet ion 
sclwrtulesl lor 2012 20.15 

23.7S Undei planning 

Allciï.ir*MionilM!¥K.y ih.-. pfojtci4ai^t>tici«ti w seruring trt'.fiiitl ilnancina. 
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Deuills ot these activities by countiy are as (allows: 

Hungary 
During 2007. Plaza completed the development of Arena Plaza, 
its landmark shopping center scheme in central Budapest. 
coiiipiisini5 approximately GG.OOOin- GLA which makes il one of 
the largesi in CEE. Tne center was sold to aAIM in November 
2007. Plaza continues to '.vorK on tlie extension to Arena Plaza, 
where construction is planned to commence in 2010 -2011 . The 
extei'Sion will comprise an office cmnplex with 40.000m-' 
of GLA. 

Following the year end. Plaza increased its stake in Dream Island 
from 30% lo 43.5'it through buying the shareholding of CP 
Holdings Ltd., !a company conlrolled by Sir Bernard Schreier). 
Plaza and MKB Bank, -a leading Hungarian commercial bank 
which is a subsidiary of die Gorman Bayerische Landesbank), 
which together held 60-4 of lhe project prior to this transaction, 
hava acquired CP Holdings Ltd.'s 27% stake fur circa £21.4 million. 
Tlie consideration will consist ol a cash payment of £12 million 
and the assumption of €3.4 million of debt, representing 27% of 
the project's net debt liability, The consortium now comprises lhe 
87% holding interest or' \hii 50:50 juint venture partnership 
between Plaza end MKQ Bank, a compnny contiolled by the 
Managing Director of the consortiuni (10% interest) and a furtiier 
3% owned by another pany and small minorities. 

The Dream Island project is n prestigious development on lhe 
Obuda Island m central Budapest, with a land area of 320.000m7. 
and is intended to be developed as a major resort including 
hotels, recreation facililies. a casino and a business and leisure 
complex with a deveiopmenl budge! of circa 61.5 billion and 
350.000m : ' of GBA. Preliminaiy design, excavation and 
archaeological works are already under way. As stated above, in 
2008 the consortium formed by the owners of Dream Island 
project won a concession license for the 20year operation of a 
large-scale casino ithe lirst one m Budapest) w,th an option to 
extend for an aoditional ten years. The project is intended to be 
completed in 2012-2014. 

In accordance with ils strategy lo acquire operating shopping 
cenleis that show significant ledevelopment potential for 
relurbishment and subsequent sale, in September 2007, the 
Company bought a 35% stake in the UJ Udvar shopping center in 
Budapest. Hungary. The shopping center Is operational and the 
shareholders are working on a new design to be implemented. 

Tne Group enntmues to own its offlcr liiiikling In Budapest, David 
House on Andrassy Boulevard. 

Poland 
During 2008, Plaza acquired TWO furtiier projects tn Poland, in 
Kiecle and Leszno. Leszno will have a GBA ot 23,OÜOm~ as well 
as a 450 space car park providing space for over 70 shops, widi 
a total lettable area of le.QOOnr. Kielce was acquired via a 
competitive tender and will have a GBA of 4.5,000ni ï and GLA of 
SS.OOOm' and the construction is planned to commence 
in 2010. 

Since the year end. Plaza has commenced the construction of 
two developments in Suwalki and Zgorzelec. with the completion 
of both schemes anticipated tn occur in H I 20.10. The 
developments will comprise 20.000m" and 13.000iiv' of GLA 
lespectively. 

In addition. Plaza continued the feasibility and planning studies 
tor two development schemes in Lodz (designaied (or residential 
use! and in Torun (comprising appraximalely 44.000m' of GLA). 

Czech Republic 
On June 30, 2008. Plaza completed the successful handover of 
its shopping and entertainment center in Plzen (approximately 
20,0OQm' GLA) to Klépierre. ll was sold lor a lotal consideration 
of 66.1.4 niillion, compared to a value of €42.8 million at IPO in 
November 2006, representing a 43% rise. The center was 100% 
let on opening. 

Conslruction ot the Uberec Plaza shopping and entertainment 
center (approximately IT.OOOm' GLA) commenced in 2007 and 
was opened on March 26, 2009. 

During 2008, Plaza continued the feasibility and plannine of its 
development schemes in Opava (13.000m"). and ils residential 
developments at Roztoky (14.000m') and Prague iS l^OOm') . 

The Company continues to own an income-generating office and 
warehouse building in Prague which is designated to be re-zoned 
for a scheme of ei .SOOm' of residential units. Re-zonlng is 
expected to be received in the second halt of 3009. 

Romania 
In November 2006. Plaza acquired a 75% interest in a company 
In parinership with the Government of Romania to develop Casa 
Radio (Damboviia), the largest development plot available in 
cential Bucharest. It will comprise approximately 600.000m2 of 
GQA, including a 170 ,000m' GDA shopping mall and leisure 
center (one of the largest in Europe), offices, hotel, casino, 
hypermarket and convention and conference hall. The project is 
the Group's biggest projecl currently under conslrucilon anrj has 
obtained the approval of the urban technical commission of 
Bucharest, Romania, and completion is scheduled foi 2013. 

In the second half of 2008, tho Croup commenced the 
construction of its development in Miercuiea Ciuc (.1.4,000 Sffm 
GLA) which ia expected to be eompleled in late 2010. 

The Company continues the feasibility and planning phases of its 
development schemes in Timisoara, lasi and Siatina. Timisoara 
is in the final stages of design and planning. In lasi. the Company 
expects to start demolition works in 2010 snd. in Siatina. the 
detailed design has been agreed, the majority of permits secured 
and construction is due to commence subject to finance, lasi 
and Tlmisoara are expected lo be completed in 2012 and Siatina 
in 2011 . 

During 2008. the Group continued its expansion in Romania, 
with the purchase ol two sites located in Hunedoara and Targu 
Mures. In Hunedoara. Plaza is set to build a shopping center with 
IS.OOOm' of lettable space. It is located alongside the main 
road into the city center, and has a large catchment area with 
500,000 people in the region. In Targu Mures, the Company is 
set to deliver 30 ,000m' of lettable retail space, comprising more 
lhan 120 units and 800 car parking spaces. Tlie proposed 
development is ideally located near to the city center. 
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In addition, Plaza has a 50 .1% stake in the Plaza-BAS Joint venture. Currently the joint venture company holds seven proiects ki 
Bucharest. Brasov and Ploicst: 

Location 

Plaza-Bas 
share 

Nature 

Size (m-") 

ro im- i i . - i 

Bucharest 

25% 

Resident al 

18.000 

AcOfjl l 
»nrk 

Ploiest 

5G% 

Residential 

32,000 

PrilTKAItllit 

1 » « r 

Ploieas: 

50% 

Offices 

10,000 

Green 

l a n d 

Ploieast 

50% 

Residential 

37.000 

P^ j t na 

Bras iw 

Brasov 

50'K, 

Residential 

140.000 

Prinvlvera 

T'nwir 

Brasov 

50% 

Offices 

12,000 

P IWllMf 

e^I l l> , 

Brasov 

50% 

Residential 

50.000 

Thtcii 

... 

-
299,000 

Any additional value above book value ct the Plaza-BAS venture 
assets has not been Included in the year end NAV and was not 
valued by King Sturge. In light ot this, and as stated in our report 
to shareholders in May 2008. we believe they offer a future 
potential uplift in value for shareholders. 

Latvia 
Construction works started in March 2007 on the Riga Plaza 
project, which comprises approximately 49.00001* of GLA in 
Riga, Latvia. Plaza owns a 50% holding In this project. The 
scheme Is located on the western bank of the River Daugava, by 
the Sala Bridge. The opening was held in March 3 1 . 2009 and 
the center is currently approximately 8 5 * pre-iel. 

Serbia 

Plaza believes ttiat the Belgrade mari\ei offers particular 
potential, with a catchment area ot approximately 2.5 million 
people. Plaza successfully established its presence in Serbia In 
2007 with the acquisition o i three plots. 

The (irst of these was a state-owned plot and building in Belgrade, 
which Plaza secured in a competitive tender. The building was 
formerly occupied by the federal ministry of intemal sflairs of the 
ionner Yugoslavia and is located tn lhe cenier of Belgrade In a 
neighbourhood of government oftices and foreign embassies. On 
completion, the scheme. Belgrade Plaza, will comprise a hotel, 
offices and shopping gallery tolaling circa 70.000r!7 of GBA. 
Construction is planned to commence in 2011 ami completion is 
scheduled for 2013, The pioject is now m the local planning 
process. 

In Oecember 20O7. tlie Conipany won a second competitive 
public auction announced by the Government oi Serbia for the 
development of a new shopping and entertainment cemer called 
Sport Star Plaza with a total GLA of approximately 45,000m' in 
Belgrade Concept design was submitted and Ute building permit 
is expected to be granted in 2010 

An additional development In Serbia is 'ocated in Kragujevac, a 
city ot 180.000 inhabitants. The planned shopping and 
entertainment center will comprise approximately 24.50Om' of 
G U . Construction commenced in QS 2008 and the opening is 
planned In 2011 . The center is already 555t let. 

Greaoo 
Plaza owns a IS.OOOm1 plot of land centrally locaied In Piraeus 
Avenue, Athens. Plaza Is currently working on securing buPding 
permits for the construction of a shopping center, totalling 
approximately 25 .000m' of GLA. 

Construction Is planned to start In 20.1.0 and completion is 
scheduled for 2012. 

Bulgaria 
The Group owns a 20 ,000m' plot of land in Shumen. tho largest 
city in Shumen County, which It intends to develop into a new 
shopping and entertainment center with a total CLA of 20,000m : ' . 
The Company is currently finalizing the design, and consti uction 
is expected to commence later in 2010. 

After the year end. Plaza acquired an additional plot in Sofia by 
purchasing a 5 1 % stake (with an option to increase this lo 75%) 
In a development project from a local developer fbr a total 
consideration of €7.14 million. 

The consideration consists of a cash paymenl ot €2.78 million 
and the assumption of €4.36 million of debt financed by a foreign 
bank, roprcsentlng 5 1 % ofthe project's debt liability. The planned 
scheme will comprise 44,000m'' GLA of retail, entertainment 
and offices. 

India 
Plaza has identified strong potential in India and during 2 0 0 * 
acquired Its first development proiect in the city of Puno in a 
50:50 joinl venture wilh a loca) partner. In November 2008, the 
Group bought the remaining 50% stake held by its JV partner 
which enables the Conipany to have full contiol over the 
devetopment. The mixed-use scheme has a total area of 
l l l .OCiOm* which will comprise a shopping center and office 
space. Construction is already under way and completion is 
expected In 2011 . 

During 2007, Plaza acquired two addilional development projects 
In a 50:50 joint venture. The lirst Is located In the Kharadi district 
of Pune and totals approximately 205.000ni ' of GBA. The second 
is in Trivandrum, the capital city of the State of Kerala and totals 
approximately 195.000m'' GBA. Both projects ars tor mixed-use 
developments. 
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riiiiing lhe last finuncml year, Plaza Itiriiied a Joint venture with 
Elbit Imaging to develop ttiree mega mixed-use projects in India 
wilh an appioximatü end value of US$3.4 billion (of which the JV 
will be responsible foi circa L'SS1.9 billion), located in the cities 
of fiamtalcre. Chennai and Kochi. Under this agreement Plaza 
acquired a 47.5% stake in Eiöi: India Real Estate Holding Limiled, 
which already owned stakes ui between 50% and 8054 in three 
mixeouse projects in India, in conjunction with local Indian 
partners. Tins joint venture's voting rights will be split 50;50 
between Elbit and Plsza. Plaza has paid an Initial US$126 million 
(circa £85 million), reflecting lhe share of lhe land purchase and 
related expenses. The acquisition of the locations is completed 
in parts, with an appióximate expected enn cos; ol US$410 million 
for lhe three locations (lhe IV's share). 

These ihrec project;- are as foiicws: 

Bangalore - This mixed-use pioject, 5 0 * owned 'fy the JV and 
50% owned by a prominent iocal developer, is located on the 
eastern sue of Bangalore. India's liith iargesl city with a 
population of more than seven mlllian people. Wuh a total built 
area of over 2.1 million square meters, it -.vill compiise luxury 
residential units (Villas and high and rne.dium-rise apartment 
buildings), office complexes, a rnajor retail facility, hotel complex, 
serviced apartments, hospital, club houses, retirement homes 
and ancillary amenity fa.-ilUies. 

Chennai -• A mixed-use developmeni. SO}; owned by the JV and 
2{)*f. owned by a proniinein local developer, will be developed inlo 
an integrated mixed-use project consisling of residential units (in 
both high-rise. tnecliuiTir'se buildings, onrt villas), ancillary 
amenities such a.s club Houses, swimming pools and spoils 
'acilities. a local retail facility and an office complex, with a total 
built area of 1.1 million square meters excluding parking. 
Chennai is India's fourth largest ciry with n population of more 
'.han ten million. 

Kochi Island - A 50:50 paitnership with a piominenr local 
developer, this mixed-use project will coniprise more than 
575,000m• , of hign-end residential aparlmeiit buildings, office 
complexes, a hotel ano serviced apartments complex, retail area 
and a marina, li is located on a backwatei island adjacent to the 
administrative, commercial and retai! hub of the city ot Kochi. In 
the state of Keiala, with a local population of more than three 
million people. 

Ai; three proiects arc in the planning ancl design stages. 
Construction al Bangalore and Chennai is expecled to start in 
20.1.0 and at Kochi Island in 20.11. The commercial elements are 
expected to be cpinplstecl within three to five years while tho 
residential elements win be completed in phases ovei an average 
term of live veins. 

Prospects 
Given the currenl uncertain economic enviionrneni. we have 
limited our ongoing (jevelopment programme :o eight projects, 
focusing on areas wilh the high market domnnd and where 
financing lerms aro more favourable. 

With letting activity progressing well across our devclopinents, 
we expect to see continued interest from potential occupiers, as 
we use our stiong contacts with key international and local 
tenants, who know and tiust the Plaza brand, In addition to this, 
as many intemational retailers aiB only looking at the very best 
opportunities for iiuernalional expansion, we are seeing a "liighl 
to quality", which we believe will leave Plaza's shopping centers 
ideally positioned to meet such demands. 

We are fortunate in being well positioned to prosper thanks lo 
our conservative gearing levels, with minor deb! cnnipnsing on'y 
47% of equily. significant cash lesomces and vf iy good 
relationships with our financing banks, who recognize Plazas 
strong track record and standing. This means that Plnza is well 
placed to make opportunistic acquisitions at compelling prices 
and take a flexible appioach to Its development pipeline, as we|l 
aa continuing to progress our large-scale projects, such as our 
Joint venture projects in India. 

Furthermore, we also expect to benefit, from revenues generated 
from mature, income producing assets, which Plazn may elect ro 
hold on its balance sheet until the investment market iir.pcoves. 
Plaza has a strong history of managing such assets, having 
owned and managed retail investment properties in die past for 
over eigln years. 

Our further diversification into markets such as India also creates 
the oppoi tunity fbr Plaza to continue to expanu as we look to 
ensure tiiat the business '.vill grow significantly over tbe long 
term. With that in mmd. we will continue to examine other future 
emerging and mature market opportunities, which we consider to 
offer the highest returns with inini inun risks. Therefore, we will 
seek to utilize our cash position to find attraciive now 
opportunities including purchasing existing shopping mails In 
markets other than our traditional areas ol operation. 

Ran Shtarkman 
President and CEO 

April 30. 2009 

The |0int venture wiil alsu look for further large-scale mixed-use 
development opportuiiitieB in Inula, predominantly led by either 
residential, ofticu or fitfldl sdicmes. In addition. Plaza will 
Independently continue to deveiori. manage aro look for new 
opportunities fnr shopping center led projects in India. This 
activity has no impact upon Plaza's existing three shopping 
center dt-velopmen'.s in -.nu region. 
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Roy Linden 

Results 
The 200S (inancial year reflects the 
hendciver of on», shopping and 
entertaininen: center, as well a» 
i-lgnificanl investment in currenl 
projects, in four additional schemes 
acauired during the year and 
substantial gains from financing 
activities. 

In Ime with the Group's commereial 
decision to focus its business more 
on the development and sale of 

shopping and enter tainment centers rather than operating them, 
die Group is classifying ils cutreni projects undei development 
as trading properties rathei than Investment properties. 
Accordingly, revenues from the sale of nadlng properties are 
presented as gross amounts As me Group does not revalue its 
trading propetties and piofi'.s these assets, therefore, represent 
aciual cash-based profils due to realizations. 

Revenues foi tlie year ended Docenibur 3.1. 2008 oecreased to 
698 million (2007: €510 million). These revenues are attributable 
mainly to the sale ot Plzen Plaza in the Czech Republic and the 
posiiive price adjustment lesuiting from the disposal of Arena 
plaza eartier in 2007, 

NO gains or lasses were recorded in connecrion to Investment 
property (2007: €2.1 iniilion - riel result from the sale of Duna 
Plaza Offices). 

The majority ol the cost of operations :s attribuiable to the cost 
ol the sale of Plzen Plaza mentioned above. 

The level of administiative expenses was €24.5 million (2007: 
€23.1 million). Tlie cos: cf non-cash share-based payments 
decrease slightly mainly due to tho graded vesting method of the 
employee share option plan (ESOP) resulting in a non-cash 
payment in 2008 of €6.3 million (2007: €7.6 million). Tlie 
options am amornzed in the pror'it nrf loss statement using the 
conservative graded vesting method as required by IFRS. Using 
tliis method, the majoriiy of rhe expense (approximately 60%) Is 
recognized during die first ye*- (out of ihree) cf vesting, i.e. most 
of the expenses for the oplions gi anied at IPO were reflected in 
the 2007 financial statements. 

In addition, in the second halt oi 2008. the Company Initiated a 
thorough cost-cutting plan undor which headcount has been 
reduced, payroll to currem employees was decreased and 
agreements with constructen suppliers, land sellers and service 
providers were re-negotiated and reduced. Due to these measures 
It is anticipated lhat the level of adminisirative expenses will be 
niatenally reduced in 2009, 

Depreciation and amortizaticn .-is well as tho ""est ot office reins, 
has increased as local headquarters were opened in the course 
of 2007. which were not present tor the whole year of thai year, 
but were In place throughout 2008. 

Net (inance significanlly increased in 2008 lo €58 million (2007: 
€9 million), mainly due to (wo components; the first being Ihe 
changes in the tair value of the debentures issued in 2007 and 
2008 and presented in the balance sheet at fair value 
(€30 million), as well as tbe gnln derived irom the increase In 
value ot a cross currency swap transaction (€18 niillion), which 
is hedging the NIS (New Israeli Shekel) denominated debentures 
to the euro. Other factors whkth contributed to lhe increase are 
highet cash balances in the Croup during the course of 2008. 
compaied to 2007. which resoheo in high inteiesl income, net. 

Cunent tax expenses conlinue lo remain wry (ow at €143,000 
(2007: €90.0001. letieclihg less Iian 1% nf profits before tax 
and lesuiting from the Group's favouiable tax structure. Tha total 
increase In lhe tax expenae is attributable to the deferred tax 
liability increase which Is mainly due co gams from change In fail 
values of debentures and the swap transaction mentioned 
above. 

Net profit tor the period amounted lo €63 million in 2008. 
compared to €227 million in 2007. 

Basic and diluted earnings per share for 2008 were both €0.23 
12007: €0.78 and 60.77 respectively). 

Balance sheet and cash (low 
The balance sheet as at December 31, 2008 showed current 
assets ot €824 million compaied to current assets of 
€721 million al llie end of 2007. Tliis rise results from Plaza's 
realization of the Plzen project and investinem in oui subsiantml 
piceline of development projects through bank financing and 
long-ierm debentures raised. 

The Company's cash and restricted cash deposits position 
increased to €178 millkm (2007; £91 niillion), mainly due to die 
sale of Plzen Plaza, the payment received on Arena Plaza and IHe 
debemures issuance effected between Febiuary and May 2008. 
The Company has also Invested in its projects under development, 
lhe acquisition of four projects and a new join» venture in India. 
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Trade receivaoles ,llivl•,, decreasec signirlcantly fiom €263 million 
to €0.8 niillion ns a resu1: of funds reoeiveri In connection with 
the sale of Arena Plaza. 

There was no change in the value of the investment pioperties 
both in 2007 and 2008 as the fair value of Uie Prague 3 logistics 
building (which is the only investnient property; has not changed 
based on management's estinialion. 

Long-term deposits and b-ilances have increased significantly as 
a result ot secured deposits used as collateral in respect of Uie 
cross currency inteiest rate swap, as well as investment in long-
term financ al instrunients. 

Total bank bonowings (long and short te im! incieased to 
€111 million (2007,' €6 rnilliuni due io (he drawdown of 
conslruction loans and loans relaled to inveslmenl in long-term 
financial inslruinenls. 

Apait from bank (iriancing. Plaza has on its balance sheet a 
liabilily with fair value of €175 iniilion (and face value of circa 
C206 million) from issuing debentures on the Tel Aviv Slock 
Exchange. These debentures are presenied at their fair value. 
Plaza lias hedged the future expected payments in New Israeli 
Shekels (principal and interest linked to the Israeli CPI index) 
to correlate with the euro currency and the Euribor interest rate, 
using o cross currency interest rate swap. 

Trade poyahles increased to 1:23 million (2007: CIS million), due 
to Ihe increase in the volume of construction activities (al yeai 
end 2008, eighl projccls were under consuuetion). 

Other liabilities and provisions represent lhe amount payable in 
respect of new acquisitions. The balance has decreased from 
€53 rnillion In 2007 to €31 million as most of the land purchase 
transactions were linolizsd by the end ol the year. 

Related Party balances are presented gross (both in the assets 
and in tho liabilities sections of the balance sheet) as tlie 
balances are with different Plaza Group subsidiaries and 
tlierefore netting was not possible undor IFRS. That created a 
material asset and liability at year end 2007. However, a netting 
settlement agreement was concluded during 2008 'iiat resulted 
in a significant decrease in both the liability and assel side of the 
balance slieet wilh regard to die Related Party balances. At Uie 
2008 year end, the net balance ot the Plaza Group with Its 
contiolling shareholders is a liabilily of approximately €2.3 million 
of which €1 .1 million Is due to a provision in respect of liability 
to Elbit Irnaging's ( "Er i Vice Chairman through an option granted 
in connection with Indian operations and GO.9 million is due to a 
provision in respect ot project management fees charged by the 
Control Centers group. These fees relate !o the project 
supervision services granted in respect ofthe extensive schemes 
within the Group. The remaining net balance includes a net 
liability regarding charges and loans to and from Elbil Imaging 
group companies to the Company as well as loans to Group 
subsidiaries in Poland. 

In conclusion, Plaza's balance sheet reflects significant sL'ength. 
Our increasing balance of inventories under construction should 
result in successful returns in tlie future and the generation of 
substantial revenues in lhe coining years. Plaza has a proven 
ability lo be able to generate substantial profits, which arise from 
the actual realization of cash from assets and not from 
revaluations. Our high level ot liquid balances and low gearing, 
with the majority of the Groups debt maturing only between 
2011 and 2017, will enable us to bring the current porrfolio to 
fruition. High cash balances und substantial (non-revalued) 
shareholders equity of more than €600 million will enable the 
Company to make opportunistic purchases of new projects In the 
best-performing morKets under currRiit econninic conditions. 

Roy Linden 
Chief Financial Officer 

April 30, 2009 
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS 

Mordechay zisser Ran Shtarkman 

Shimon Yitzhaki Edward Paap 

Marius ven Eibergen 
Sairthagens 

Marco Wichers 

Mordechay Zisser, Chairman (male, 53, Israeli) 
Mordechay Zissei Is Uie foundet and Chairman of the Europe 
Israel Group of companies, of which Plaza Centers is a member. 
During more than 25 years' active involvement in some of the 
world's most prestigious real estate developments, he has led 
successful projects in Israel. Western Europe, CenUal and 
Eastern Europe (CEE), South Africa and India. Mr Zisser was 
appointed as Executive Directoi and Chairman of the Board of 
Direclors ot Plaza Centers on August 17.2006. 

Ran Shtarkman, President and CEO (male, 41, Israeli) 
Ran Shtarkman (CPA, MBA) joined Plaza Centers in 2002. 
becoming Chief Financial Officer in 2004 and CEO In September 
2006. He was additionally appointed as Executive Director on 
October 1.2, 2006 and as President in 2007. Previous roles 
include CTO of SPL Software Ltd.. Finance and Administraiion 
Managei for Continental Airlines' Israeli operalions and Controller 
of Natour Ltd.. 

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS 

Shimon Yitzhaki (male, S3, Israeli) 
Shimon Yitzhaki (CPA), President of Elbit Imaging Ltd. (the 
Company's indirect controlling shareholder) since 1999. 
Mr Yitzhaki has been with the Europe Israel Group since 1985 
and has held several positions within the Group, among which, 
he served as Executive Director of Plaza Centers for Uie period 
commencing on March 3,2000 and ending on October 12.2006. 
and thereafter he was appointed as Non-executive Director o( 
Plaza Centers. 

Edward Paap (male, 45, Dutch) 
Edward Paap is an expert in international tax, having gained a 
masters degree as a tax lawyer from the University of Leiden. 
Following seven years as a tax adviser in a medium sized 
accountancy practice, working principally in the intemational tax 
field, since 1997 he has been acting as Managing Director of an 
Amsterdam-based Trust Office with many uiiernational clients. 
Mr Paap served as Executive Director of Plaza Centers (nr the 
period commencing on March 3, 2000 and ending on October 
12, 2006, and thereafter tie was appointed as Non-execuilve 
Director of Plaza Centers. 

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS 

Marius van Eibergen Santhagens (male, 57, Duteh) 
Marius van Eibergen Sanihagcns has over 25 years' experience 
at the forefront of corporate finance anri change management, 
with a specialist focus on leisure since 2000. Today, he is the 
General Manager and ownei ot Leisure Investments & Finance 
B.V. prior to which he was a consultant at Beauchamp Leasing 
and Metro B.V, and held a number of positions at Generale Bank 
Nederland B.V.. Mr van Eibergen Santhagens was appointed as 
Non-executive Director of Plaza Centers on November 1. 2006. 

Marco Wichers (male, 49, Dutch) 
Marco Wichers is the CEO and owner of AMGEA Holding B.V. and 
the CEO of real estate consultancy AMGEA Vastgoed Adviseurs 
B.V.. Previously, he was the CEO of two New York-based 
manufactunng companies - Branch International Inc. (1988-
1995) and Cravat Club Inc. (1983-1995), which he also owned. 
Mr Wichers was appointed as Non executive Director of Plaza 
Centers on November 1, 2006. 
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Roy Linden, (32), BBA, CPA (USA, Israel), Chief Flnancial 
Officer 
Roy Linden Joined Plaza Centers in November 2006 and acts as 
ihe Group's CFO. Prior to Joining lhe Conipany, he spent nearly 
four years st KPMG in Hungary, acting as Manager in the real 
estate desk, specializing in auditing, business advisory, local 
and imernational taxation for companies operating throughout 
the CEE region. He also spent three yeais at Emst and Young 
in Israel, as a senior member of an audit feam specialized in hi-
tech companies. 

Ami Hayirt, (43), BSc, Chief Engineer 
Ami Hayut joined Plaza Centers In November 2008 and acts as 
the Group's Chief Engineer and Head of Construction. Prior fo 
joining the Company he acted as a management momber in a 
project management firm "Nizan Inbar Ltd.'. and for the lasl 
15 years acted as the head of managemeni. teams of various 
multidiscipline, complex projects and as a member of the 
Ben Gurion Airpoil management in Israel (1995-1997). 

Url Shstrtt, (57), B Arch a TP, MAUD, Chief Architect 
Url Shetrit is Uie Chief Architect of Plaza Centers and Is in chaige 
of the whole Group's arcnilectuial design and urban pianning 
activities in Europe and Asia Before becoming the Chief Architect 
for the Group, he was the Diiector of urban planning, uitan 
design and architectural administration for the City af Jerusalem, 
Israel, from 2000 until 2005. He is also the Pnncipal and owner 
of Uri Shetrit Architects Ltd.. a private conipany established io 
1393. Prior to this, he collaborated with Moshe Safdie and 
Associates from 1982, foi over 12 years, al which time he held 
the positions of Associate and Pimtfpal, boih in Boston and in 
Jerusalem. Since 2003. he is also the Chaimian of the Israel 
National Council of Engineering and Aichitecture. He Is a graduate 
of Harvard University's Graduate School of Design (1982, MAUD), 
and a graduate of the Israel Instilute of Technology - "Technion" 
(1980, 8 Arch and TP). 

Uzl Ell, (33), U-B, Attornay at Law (laraai], MBA, Ganmal 
Counsel and Complianca Officer 
Uzi Eli joined Plaza Centers as the Group's General Counsel and 
Compliance Officer In 2007. Prioi to joining the Company, he 
practiced law in two cf ttie leading commercial legal (imis in 
Israel. His main practice was concentrated in commercial and 
corporate law, providing ongoing legal services to corporate 
clients (mainly hi tech and bio-tech companies, and venture 
capital funds; in ai; aspects of corporata governance, aod 
representation in various tiansactinns. such as financing and 
M&A transactions and other wide varieties of licensing and 
technology transactions. 

Tal Ban Yehuda, (40), MSc in Buslnaaa Management and 
Accounting, Czech Republic, Slovakia and Baltic States 
Country Director 
Tal Ben Yehuda acts ss Country Manager (or the Czech Republic, 
Slovakia and the Baltic States, having Joined the Group in 2002. 
Prior thereto, he held a series of managerial positions with 
companies active In Europe and Israel. 

Eli Mazor, (84), Rational Markating Director (Europa) and 
Poland Country Director 
Eli Mazor. who acted as a Regional Marketing Manager m Poland 
since joining the Group In 2005 was appointed Poland Country 
Manager and Regional Marketing Director in 2007. Prior thereto, 
he acted as the CEO of a shopping center in Israel. 

Yo««l Ofir, (52), RapoMie of India Country Otraetor 
Yossi Ofir joined Plaza Centers in 200S as a Country Director for 
the Republic of India. Prior to Joining the Conipany, he acted ns a 
Head of Commereial Department In 'Pele-phone Communication 
Ltd." (a leading company in the Israeli tciocoinmumcation sector). 
Prior to this position he acted as Uie Head of National MarKeling 
Department In an Israeli credit card company. 

Roetlslav Lavinzon, (44), Master of Engineering, Ukraine 
and Rmsia Country Director 
Rostislav Lcvinzon joined Uie Company in 2007 and acts as 
Country Director (or the Ukraine and Russia. Prior to joining the 
Company, he provided advisory and business supporting services 
to investment, engineering and development companies dealing 
with property, industry anu «nance projects in the Ukraine, 
particularly hiternational (inancial institutions involved in large-
scale projects with governmental enterprises. Pnoi to that, he 
served for four years as Deputy General Manager for the 
Ukrainian conglomerate with its core competence in the airspace 
Industry, with responsibility fw the overall management and 
strategic business development. Prior to this, he worked In Israel 
as Deputy General Manager forthe Israeli branch of a Japanese 
company, the loading manufacturor of meriical hMech equipmenl 
and materials worldwide. 

Sagiv Mager, (31), Republic of Serbia and Balkan State* 
Country Director 
Sagiv Meger joined the Plaza leam In late 2007 as tlie Country 
Director of Plaza Centers Serbia. Poor to joining Plaza Centers he 
was the COO of a company based in Angola. Afnca, for four years, 
supporting over 50 various projects, ranging from 
telecommunications, real estate, agriculture to military 
intelligence. He gained an extensive range of first-hand experience 
in previous management positions. 

Luc Ronmman», (SS), MBA, Notharlands, Romania and 
Oreaca Country Dlractor 
Luc Ronsrnans Joined ihe Eurooe Israel Graop In 1999. Located 
in Amsterdam and Bucharest, he acts as Manager (or European 
Operations for both the Company und its Group afliliates. Prior to 
joining the Europe Israel Group, he was active in the banking 
sector, holding managerial positions with Manufaclurers Hanover 
Bank. Continental Bank (Chicago), AnHyp Bank and Bank 
Naggelmacheis in Belgium. 

Daniel Ballu n, (39), LL.B and BA in Economics and 
Buainaas Administration, Republic of Bulgaria Country 
Dlractor 
Daniel Beihassen joined the Plaza team In the beginning of 
2008, as the Country Director for Plaza Centers Bulgana. Prior to 
joining Plaza Centers, Mr Beihassen was acting for two years as 
a business development managei in a real estate development 
conipany based In Israel, supporting several retail projects in 
Hungary, Poland. Germany, and the Czech Republic. Mr Beihassen 
lias gained vast experience in the purchasing, financing, 
development ond management of retail projects In the 
CEE region. 
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Principal act iv i t ies and review of business 
Plaza Centeis N.V. is a lending develspei cf shopping and 
entertainmnnt center», -with a (ocus on the enierglng markets ol 
Central and Eastern Europe CCEE' i. where it has operated since 
1996 when ll Ijcco-ie '.hr; first (.ornpany to develop western-style 
sfiopplng and enleriainment centers in Hungary, This followed ila 
early recognition of the growing middle class and increasingly 
affluent consumer bast -n such markcls. 

Since then, it has expanded its CEE operations Into Poland. 
Czech Republic, Latvia. Romania, Bulgaria. Greece. Serbia 
and India. 

The Group has been present in real estate oevelopniem in 
emerging mnrkets for wer 13 years, initially pursuing shopping 
and entertainment center development projects in Hungary and 
subsequently expanding uno Poland, the Czech Republic. 
Romania. Latvia, Greece. Scrtna, Bulgaria anc India. To dote, the 
Group has developed and let 28 shopping and enleriainment 
centers In the CFE region. o( which 26 were sold. Twenty-one of 
these centers were acqjucd by Klépieire, ttie second laigest 
shopping center owner/iipeiaior in Euiope, wiiich owns more 
thnn 330 shopping centers in ten counlries, Fom additional 
shopping and entcrtennment ceriters weie sold to the Dawnay 
Day Group, one of the leading UK institutional propeily investors. 
One shopping center was sold in 2007 to active Asset Invesiment 
Mnnagenent CaAIM"). a UK coiTinierciai propeiiy investment 
group. The transaciion had a completion volue totaling 
approximately 63S7 million, representing ciica 20% of all real 
estate transactions completed 'n Mui>£arv in 2.007. 

For a more detailed slatus of curreiil aetivilics ond projects, the 
dnectors refer to the Chairman's statement and the Chief 
Executive's review cn pages 24 to 33.. 

Pipel ine projects 
The Cornpany is active in seeking new sites and development 
oppoitunities and is actively involved in securing the necessary 
contracts to undertake further projecrs in countries in which the 
Company is currently operating. The Company is also analyzing 
and contemplating to invest In furthei countries that meel lis 
duvelopnerl parameters and '.nvestmonl criteria. 

Going concem 
The directois' review ot the 2003 budget and longer term plans 
for the CompHiiy has satisfied them that, at the time of approving 
the financial STatenients, it is aopropiiarn io adopt the 'going 
concern" basis in preparing the financial stntements of the 
Company. 

Dividends 
According lo ihe Company's Dividend Policy, dividends are 
expected lo be pain ut f i e ratn nf 7B% nn th t first €30 million of 
such annual ne; inuiits. find l i i t iesfter at the rate ol between 
20% and 2S%, as detennined by the Company's Board of 
Directors, on any addilional annual ncl profits which exceed 
€30 niillion. In accordance with the said policy, the Company 
distributed a dividend following the year ended December 3 1 , ' 
2007 of approximately 1357 million, which vwis paid in June 2008. 

Given market conditions over the last 12 months, and as a 
material pait ol annual crofiis resulting from linance activities 
rather than realization oi teal estote assets, on March 26,2009, 
the Company's Board of "lirectors has laken the prudent step not 
to recommend the payment til ü dividend tor the year ended 
December 3 1 , 2008. in ordei to preserve capiwl liquidity within 

the Company. The Company's Soaid of Directors will continue to 
monitor overall market conditions, ongoing conimilted capital 
requirements of the Company, as well as expected future cash 
flow, befnrc; considering any future dividend payments. 

Directors ' in terests 
Tho directors have no inteiests in tne shares of the Company. 
Details of the directors' share options are given on page 49 
Of Ihis report. 

Directors and appointments 
The following served as diiectors of Uie Company at Decembei 
3 1 , 2008: 

Mordechay Zisser, Chciirrnan 
Ran Shtarkman. President and CEO 
Shimon Yitzhaki. Non-execntlve Director 
Edward Paap. Non-executive Director 
Marius van Eibergen Santhagens, Independent 
Non-execudve Director 
Marco Wichers. Independent Non-executive Director 

Financial r isk management 
The Company (aces a number of risks in the areas of credit, 
interest rates and currency. The Company has a credir policy in 
place and the exposure lo credil risk is monitored on an ongoing 
basis. Credit evaluations are performed on all customors 
requiring ciedit over a ceitain amount. The Group requires 
collateral in the fonn of a hank guarantee or deposit equal lo 
three months of root from tenants of shopping centers. 
Transactions involving deposits, investment in marketable 
securities and derivatives financial inslruments are enlered into 
wilh counterparties, that have high credit rating. Given their high 
credit ratings (at least inveslmenl grade ralings. nanagement 
does not expect any counterparty to fail to r iee l its obligations. 
The Company holds the majority of its financial instruments with 
variable rale, end thus eliminating the interest, rate risk. In 
respect of currency risk, and in connection wuh NIS linked debt 
securities issued in July 2007 and in the course of 2008. and as 
the Company's functional cunency is the euro, the Company is 
liedging lhe majoriiy of its future expected paymenLs in N1S 
(principal and interesl) to correlate wilh the euro, and by lhat 
eliminating the main currency risk il faces. 

Substant ial shareholdings 
Except as disclosed under "directors' inieresis" above, the 
Company is not awaie of any interests amounting to 3% or more 
in the Company's shaies besides that of its parent company. 

Buyback 
On October 16. 2008. the Board of Directors of the Company 
resolved to approve a share repurchase program, in the 
frainewori* ol which tile Company will puichase upto 19,323,536 
shaies, representing 6.6.1 % of the Company's share capital. The 
shares will be purchased on-market on the London Stock 
Exchange in accordance wilh shareholder approval obtained at 
the Company's Annual General Meeting on May 27, 2008. 

The buyback program was fully utilized in three months and the 
purchased shares are held in treasury. The Company lias also 
been informed by its majority shareholder, Elbit Imaging Lto. 
('Elbi',"), which held indireclly B8.4% of the Company's share 
capital that Elbil intends to purchase the Companys shares 
through a series of on-market purrhases. Elblt's purchase of the 
Company's shares shall be within the above meniioned iiinit of 
the Company's repurchasing program. As at balance sheet date. 
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the Company has purchased 9.209.443 of its own shares and 
Elbit has purchased 200.000 ot tbe Company's shares. Following 
these purchases, Elbit (as of the balance sheet date) indirectly 
owns 70.6'>i ot the Company. 

In the course of Januar)- 2009, boih the Company and Elbit 
continued with the share buyback program. In ttie course of 
January 2009 tlie Company pureliased 5.3 million shares in an 
average price of 60 pence per share, while El purchased 
4.6 million shares in an average price ot 62 pence per share. 

Following the above mentioned purchase and the conclusion of 
the share buyback program, the ettective holding percentage of 
Elbit In the Company is 73 69%, In tolal, and up to Januaiy 15. 
2009. the Cornoany acquired 14.5 million shares at an average 
price ol 53 pence. 

Repricing 
Cn November 25, 2008 the Company's general shareholders 
meeung and Boaid of Directors approved lo amend the exercise 
price of all options granted prior to October 25, 2008 ("Record 
Date') to the average closing price of the Shares on the London 
Stock Exchange during the SOday period ending on November 
25. 2008 (I.e. X.0.52 per option). In addition, die amendment 
plan detamiined that all Oortons ihat were not vested on the 
Record Date shall vest over a new three-year period commencing 
on the Record Date, in such way ihat each year following that 
date one-third of such Options shall be vested. Furthermore, tlie 
Option Tonn was extended in additional two years to a toial 
period of seven years, whth starts al ttie date ot grant by the 
Company's Board of Directors, in addition, the 180% limit on the 
potential bei'efit from each Option was changed to a cap of 324 
pence per Option. The maximum number of shares issuable 
upon exercise of all outstanding options as of the balance sheet 
date is 24.773,405 shares. 

Employee kivolvCHnant 
The Company's employees are vital to Its ongoing success. It is 
therefore imponant that all levels of staff are Involved in its 
decision-making processes. To this end, lhe Company has ao 
open culture and flexible structure, sno staff are encouraged 
tormaliy and informally to become involved in discussions on the 
Company's future suategy and developments. An employee share 
option scheme was adopted on October 26,2006 which enables 
employees -o shaie directly in tlie success of Ihe Company. 

Annual Qaneral Meeting (AOM) 
The Annual General Meeting of shareholders was held at Park 
Plazn Victoria Hoiel Amsteröani, Damrak 1-5, 1012 LG 
Amsterdam, Tlie Netherlands on May 27, 2008 at 1pm (CET). 

In this AGM, inter alia, the following resolutions «ere taken by Hie 
shareholders: (0 to approve the Companys Dutch statutoiy 
annual accounls anri annual report being drawn un in the English 
language; (iii to consider the Company's Dutch statutory annual 
accounls and the annual report for the year ended December 31, 
2007; (ill) lo adopt tha Company's Dutch statutory annual 
accounts for the year ended Decetnber 31.2007; (iv) to dischaige 
the directors of the Company from their liability for the conduct 
ot business for the year ended December 31,2007: (v) to resolve 
to distribute a dividend of €0.1949 per share, being a total 
amount of €57 million in respect of the year ended December 
31, 2007: (vi) to authorize the Board of managing directors of 
thn Company generally and unconditionally to exercise all powers 
of die Company to allot equity securities in the Conipany up to an 
aggregate, nominal value ot €965,024, being 33% of the 

Company's issued Ordinary Share capital, provided that such 
authority shall expire on the conclusion of the Annual General 
Meeting to be held in 2009 unless previously renewed, vailed or 
revoked by the Company in a general meeting, save that lhe 
Company may. before such expiry, make an offer or agreeinent 
which would or might require equily securities to be allotted afler 
such expiry and the Board may allot equily securities in pursuance 
of such an offer or agreement as ifthe authority conferred hereby 
had not expired; (vii) to give a special Instruction to the Board 
authorising It lo disapply the pre/emption rights set oui in Article 
6 of the Company's Articles of Association, such power to expire 
at tbe conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting to be held 
in 2009, and the Board may allot equity securities following an 
offer or agreement made before the expiry of the authority and 
provided that the auUiority is limited to the ailotmeru of ihe 
equity securities up to a maximum aggregato nominal amounl ol 
€292.431: (vlli) To reelect as a director Mr Mordechay Zisser. 
who is retiring by rotation under Article 15.3 of (he Company's 
Articles ol Association; (Ix) To re-elect as a director Mr Ran 
Shtarkman, who is retiring by rotation under Article 15.3 of the 
Company's Artides of Association: and (x) to authorize the 
Conipany, generally and unconditionally, tor the purpose of Article 
8 of the Articles of Association of the Company, to make market 
purchases of Ordinary Shares in the capilal of the Company on 
such terms and in such manner as the directors may from time 
to time determine, subject to certain conditions. 

Extraordinary General Meetings (EQM) 
On January 7.2008, in on extraonlinary meeting ot shareholders 
of the Conipany, it was inter alia resolved; (i) to approve the 
proposed issue and offering to the public in Israel of Series B 
Noles with an aggregate nominal value In NIS. which will be Uie 
equivalent of an amount up to US$327,965,911 (in accordance 
with the exchange rate on the date ot issue); (ii) to ratify the 
issue and offering in Israel of Series A Notes witii an aggregate 
nominal value of NIS 305,136,400 and (iii) lo approve the 
admission to listing on the TASE o( tha Notes in issue and to 
be issued. 

By a shaieholdeis' resolution adopted in an extroondlnary 
meeting of shareholders held on February 18,2008. it was inter 
alia resolved: (i) to consider the Company's Dutch statutory 
annual accounts and the annual report for the year ended 
Deceniber 31. 2006; (II) lo adopt the Company's Dutch statutory 
annual accounts for the year ended December 31. 2006; (iii) (o 
discharge ihe diiectors of the Company from their liability for the 
conduct of business for the year ended December 31,2006; (w) 
to resolve tiiat no dividends be distributed in respect of the year 
ended Oecember 31, 2006; and (v) to amend the Articles of 
Association of the Company. 

By a shareholders' rosolotlon adopted in an extraordinary 
meeting of sharehoklers held on November 25, 2008. It was 
Inter alia resolved: (i) to approve and to the extent necessary 
ratify the issue and offering to the public in Israel by the Company 
of unsecured Series B Notes ol the Company (Series B Notes) in 
the aggregate nominal amount of NIS 84.419.196 (eighty-four 
million tour hundred and nineteen thousand one hundred and 
ninety-six New Israeli Shekels) and tne subsequent admission of 
those Series B Notes to listing on tha Hal Aviv Stock Exchange: 
(ill to appiove the proposed amendment by the Board of Diiectors 
ofthe Plara Centers N.V. IrcemivB Plan; (lli) to honorably dismiss 
KPMG Accountants N.V. as the Company's statutory accountant 
with immediate effect; (iv) to appoint Mazars Paardekooper 
Hoffman Accountants N.V. as statutory accountants of the 
Company with immediate effect. 
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The Company was incorporated in the Nelherlands on May 17. 
1993 ns a private limited liabllityuompany ibesloten vennootschap 
mel beperkte aanspra.itlijkhcidi. The Company was converted 
into a public limited liab-ilty cornpany Irtaamloze vennootschap) 
on Oclober 12. 2006. w i l l the name "Plaza Centeis N.V.". The 
principal applicable legislation and the tegislmion under which the 
Company and the Oidinary Shares in the Company have been 
created is book two of the Dulch Civil Code tBuigerlijk Wetboek). 

Compliance 
The Boaid is committed to high standards of Corporate 
Govemance. in order to maintain the liust of the Company's 
shaieholdeis and other stakeholders. It complies with the 
Combined Code and the Dutch Corporate Govemance Code, with 
the exception of a limited number of best practice provisions 
from the Dutch Coipoiaie Governarico Code which it does not 
consioei to be In the imerests ol the Comogny and Hs 
stakeholders. 

These exceptions are listed below. 

The Best Practice Provisions not applied by the Company in the 
year 2008 are: 

> Best PniClice Piovlsion 11.1.3 stipulates inter alia that the 
Company should have on internal risk managemenl and contiol 
system which should In any event employ as instruments of 
the internal risk msragemenl and coiMrol system a code of 
conduct which should be published on die Company's website. 
Sucii code of conduct is not available at the date of publication 
ol this document. 

I Best Practice Provision 11.2.1 stipulates that options to acquire 
shares should be a conditional remuneration component. The 
Company grants unconduional options, thereby deviating from 
this Best Practice Provision. The reason for Ihis is that tlie 
Conipany wishes to nave tne same system of granting of 
options as is currently used by '.he Europe Israel Group." 

> Best Practice Provision II .2.2 stipulates lhal if, notwithstanding 
Best Practice Provision 11.2.1 (see above), a company grants 
unconditional options to board members, it shall apply 
performance crileria '.vhc-n doing su and the options should, in 
any event, not be exmciseo in the first llirne years after they 
have been granted. The Company deviates (rom this Best 
Practice Provision in respect of both the requirement for 
performance criteria and fiom '.lie requirements for a vesting 
period oi three years. Untie' the Cmnpany's Shaie Option 
Incentive Plan, unconditional options may be granted to 
executive directors and non-executive directois without 
peifoimance criteria. Ttie Conipany considers this to be 
aopinpilate given (he extensive experience of the directors who 
will be granted options and the fact thai they have made special 
efforts In die growth cf die Company pnor to the Admission. 

Funhermore. opnons {iur.iuriing those of Board niembers) will 
vest annually in three equal parts, whereby une-third of the 
options gianted vesl upon the lapse of one year from the date 
of grant, another third of the options granted vest the lapse of 
two years from the dale of grant and the last third vest upon 
the lapse of three years from the date of grant. The deviation 
from this Corporate Govemance rule is due to the fact that 
similar vesting schedules are common in incentive plans 
adopted by the Europe Israel Croup. Tht Company, as part of 
ihe Europe Israel Group, wished to adopt a similar vesting 

schedule to avoid material changes to the incentives gianted 
to its employees and officers. 

> Best Practice Piovision 11.2.5 stipulates that, neither tlie 
exercise price nor the other conditions regarding the granted 
optinns shall tip modified dunng the term ol lhe cplions. 
except in so far as prompted by siiuctuial changes relating to 
die shares of die Conipany in accordance with established 
market practice. The Company has on November 25. 2008 
adjusted the exercise price of Uie granted options. This has 
been done since tho Board of Direclors was of the view that 
the current Share Option Scheme should serve as an effective 
incentive foi the employees of the group ot companies, headed 
by the Company, to encourage them to remain in employment 
and work to achieve the best possible results for the Company 
and its shareholders. Maiket conditions, however, led to a 
strong decline in the Company's share pi ice at both the London 
Stock Exchange and the Warsaw Stock Exchange (WSE) 
resulting in practically all options being out of the money 
without the favorable outlooks (or a quick recovery. In order to 
maintain the incentive for all employees, the Board has 
submitted lo the extraordinary meeting of shareholders that 
was held on November 25. 2008, a proposal to amend the 
Share Option Scheme and to detennine the exercise price of 
all options granted on or prior to October 23, 2008. to 1.0.52. 
In an attempt to insure that the options are and remain an 
ellective incentive and to assist in the retention of employees, 
the revised Share Option Scheme includes an extension ot tho 
vesting term lor options granted less than one yeai prior io 
October 25.2008. The shareliolders approved the amendment 
of the Share Option Scheme and the adjustment of the 
exercise price, 

> Best Practice Provision 11.3.2 and Best Practice. Piovision 
111.6.1 stipulate that bodi executive directors and non-executive 
directors shall immediately report any conflict of interest or 
potential conllict of interest tiiat is of material significance to 
the Company and/or to him, to the Chairman and to the other 
Board members and shall provide all relevani information, 
including inlormation concerning his wife, regislered partner 
or other life companion, foster child and relatives by blood or 
marriage up to the second degree. Section .17.3 of the Ai ticles 
now, inter alia, provides that a Board member sliall inform '.tie 
Board o' any possible direct and/nr indirect conflicting interest 
as soon as practically possible atter becoming aware of such 
possible conflict. It is, however, envisaged that Board members 
Shall comply wilh the contents of Best Praclice Piovision 11.3.2 
and Best Piactlce Provision 111.6.1 in respecl of providing Hie 
additional information as required undor l l ie Dutch Corporate 
Governance Code. Best Practice Provision 11,3.3 and Best 
Practice Provision 111.6.2 stipulate that both executive directors 
and non-executive diiectors shall not lake part in any 
discussion or decision making that involves a subjecl or 
transaction in relation to which they have a conflict of interesl 
with Uie Company. Section 17.2 of the Articles stipulates that 
e rnember of the Board shall neither be counted in the quorum 
nor vote upon a resolution aoiiroving a transaction with the 
Company in which he has a material personal interest. 
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Thus the Company does not apply Best Piaciice Provision 
11.3.3 and Best Practice Provision 111.6.2 to the extent it relates 
to non-material personal interests or material non-personal 
Interests. However, die Company does Intend to adopt 
procedures to ensure that die non-independent directors shall 
not vote on matters In which they have an interest as a result 
of dieir ties with the controlling shareholder. Furthermore, 
Best Practice Provision 11.3.4 ond Best Practice Provision 
111.6.3 stipulate, Inter alia, that decisions to enter into 
transactions in which there a-e conflicts or inlerest with 
management Board inunbeis that are of mater.a! significance 
to lhe Company and/or ta the relevant Board members require 
the approval o( the non-executive direclors. Such provision 
has not been Inserted imo the Articles. 

i Best Practice Provision III. 1.7. stipulates tiiat the supervisory 
board shall discuss, a: least once a yeat on its own. both its 
own functioning and that of Its individual members, and the 
conclusions that must be drawn on the basis thereof. The 
desired profile, composition and competence ofthe supervisory 
board shell also tie discussed. Moreover, the supervisory 
board shall discuss a: least, once a year without the 
management board being present, the functioning of the 
itianageinent board as an organ of llie Comoany and the 
performance of Its Individual members, and the conclusions 
that must be drawn on the basis thereof. In 2008 the non­
executive oirectors have not specifically discussed the items 
that appear in this best practice provision on separate 
occasions, predominantly since the crisis that appeared in 
2008 and which affects the real estate business has forced 
the Board lo first focus on the Company's core business and 
tlie position of lhe Company in changing markets. The Board 
feels, however, diat li is important to noiify the shareholders 
that as a rule, every Board meeting includes and assessment 
by all Board members of their own functioning and that of their 
fellow Board membeis. The Board is ot the view thai, given tlie 
fact dial Ihe Company has a one-tier board rather than a 
separate management board and supervisory board, this 
course of action appropriately meets the requirements as laid 
down in this best practice provision. 

> Best Practice Provision 111.1.8. stipulates that the supervisory 
board shall discuss, at least once a year, the corpoiate 
strategy and the risks of the business, and the results of 
assessment by the management boaid ot the stmcture and 
operation of the internal risk management and control 
systems, as well as any significant changes thereto. In 2008, 
there have not been separate meetings ol the non-executive 
directors to discuss the «ems mentioned in this Best Practice 
Provisicn. This is because risk management at Plaza Centers 
ia. pursuant to lhe internally applicable Corporate Govemance 
regulations, a matter specifically reserved for the full Board. 
Board meetings in 2008 have included discussion in respect 
of corporate strategy nnd risk management and periodically 
throughout the year, the mtemal system of risk management 
has been assessed by the fud Board. 

> Best Practice Provision III.3 5 stipulates tiiat a nonexecutive 
director (in tenns of the Dulch Coroorate Governance Code a 
supervisory director (commissaris) nuay be appointed to the 
Board for a maximum of three four-year tenns. Section 15 of 
ttie Articles provides for a retirement schedule whereby 
directors who have been in office (or not less than three 
consecutive annual genetal meetings shall rehre (rom office. 
Pursuant to section 15.6 of the Articles, sucli a director may 
be reappointed, which could result in a term of office which is 
longer than three four-year terms. 

> Best Piactlce Provision 111.4.1 stipulates that the chairman of 
the supervisory board shall ensure that: (a) the supervisory 
board members follow their induction and education or training 
program; (b) the supervisory board members receive in good 
lime all infonnation which Is necessary for the proper 
fierformance of their duties: ic) there is sufficient lime for 
consultation and decision making by the supervisory board: 
(d) the committees of the supervisory hoard function properly; 
(ej the performance of the management board members and 
supervisory board niembers is assessad at least once a year; 
(f) the supervisory board elects a vice-chairman; and (g) the 
supervisory board lias proper contact with the managemt-nl 
boaid and the works council (or central works council) Since 
the Company has a one-tier boaid without a separale 
supervisory board, this provision has not been complied with 
in such manner that the tasks as mentioned in this Best 
Practice Provisions are carried out by the non-executive 
directors acbng jointly. 

> Best Praclice Provision 111.4.2 states that ttie Chairman of the 
supervisory board shall not be a former member of the 
managemen: board of ttie Company. Mr Mordechay Zisser 
functions as Chairman of the Board while being an executive 
directoi'. For an explanation of the deviation from this Best 
Practice Provision, see the remark made for Best Practice 
Provision 111.8.1. 

> Best Practice provision (11.5.5 stipulates that the Audit 
Committee must not be chaired by me Chairman of the Board 
or by a foimer executive director of the Company. The 
Company's Audit Committee is chaired by Mr Shimon Yitzhaki. 
who has been an executive director of the Company and thus 
the Company deviates from this Best Practice Provision. The 
Company, however, believes that given Mr Yitzhaki's extensive 
financial expenence. cnairnianship of the Audit Committee 
Is appropriate. 

) Best Practice Provision 111,5.1 provides that tlic committee 
rules stipulate that a maximum of one membei of each 
commillee need not be independent widiin the meaning of 
Best Practice Provision 111.2.2 The Company's Nomination 
Committee is comprised of three members, two ot whom, 
Messrs Yitzhaki and Paap, are considered to be non-
independent. The Company believes that me composition of 
the nomination committae as currently envisaged is in the 
best interests of the Company, given the skills ami experience 
of the Committee members. 

MAZARS PAARDEKOOPER HOFMAN ACCOUNTANTS N.V. 

Initialled for identification purposes only 



MANAGEMENT AND GOVERNANCE PLAZA CENTERS M.V. ANMWL REPORT 300» 

43 

> Best Practice Provision III.5.11 inter alia provides that the 
Remuneration Commirteo shall net bu chaired by a non-
execulive director who is either a former executive director or 
a membei of lhe management board of another listed company. 
Since tho Remuneration Comniittee is chaired by Mr Shimon 
Yilzhaki, who is a lurmei' executive directoi and serves as 
President ot Elbit Imaging Ltd.. the Company deviates from 
this requireiMent. Ttie Company is convinced that the 
experience of Mr Yitzhaki in this respect should be considered 
more important than die fiict tlial Mr Yitzhaki is a Board 
member of another listed company. 

> Best Practice Provision III.7.1 stipulates mat non-executive 
directors should not be granted any shares and/or rights to 
shares by way of remurieration. Under the Share Option 
Scheme, prior lo Adintssion. options were granted to 
Mr Yitzhaki. a nonexeouiivc director. Furthorniore, lhe Share 
Option Scheme dues not exclude the possibility of making 
furthei grants of oplions to non-executive directois. In 
particular, the Company believes that lhe granting of options 
to Mr Yitzhaki is appropriate, given his extensive involvement 
in the Company to elate and his special efforts made in respect 
ofthe preparation ofthe Company lor Admission. Funhermore. 
the Conipany has relained ihe right to grant options to non­
executive directors as it believes that granting such options is 
appropriate in order lo offer (uture nonexecutive diiectors a 
competitive reniuncaiion package. 

> Best Practice Provision III.S.l states that The Chairman of die 
Board shall not also be or have been an executive director. 
Mr Zisser is Executive Chairman and the Company considers, 
given Mr Zisser's extensive business experience, that mis Is in 
Uie best inteiests ot the Company, 

) Pursuant to Best Practice Provision 111.8.4 of the Dutch 
Corporate Governance Code, the majoiity of the members of 
me Boaid shall he independent non-execulives wiihin the 
meaning of Best Practice Provision III.2.2. The Company 
currently has two executive directors (who are considered lo 
be non-independenlsj and (our non-executive directors out ot 
whom two non-executive directors are considered to be 
independent, applying the crileria of Best Practice Provision 
111.2.2. The non-executive directors who are considered to be 
non-independent are Messrs Shimon Yitzhaki and Edward 
Paap. The Independent non-execulive direclors arc; Messrs 
Mark Wichers nnd Marius Van Eibergen Santhagens. See also 
page 37 - Additional Information for an overview of Uie 
directors' former and cut rent functions. Consequently, two out 
of the six directors are considered to be independent. The 
Company believes (hat the experience oi the non-independent 
directors is ol great importance to Ihe Company. 

) Best Praclice Piovision V.3 stipulates inter alia lhat the 
Company shculd have an internal auditor. Tne Company, 
however, believes that it has no need to have an internal audit 
function, since as par. of the Euiooe Israel Group, the Conipany 
has a Quality Control Regulator, which practically functions as 
an internal auditor. 

On July 4 , 2007, the WSE Supervisory Board adopted lhe 
Corporate Governance rules of the WSE contained in the Code ol 
Best Practice for WSEListed Companies (the "WSE Corpotate 
Govemance Rules"), The WSE Corporale Governance Rules 
apply lo companies listed on the WSE. Irrespective of whether 
such companies are incorporated in Poland cr outside ol Poland. 
The WSE Coiporate Governance Rules consist ol general 
reconimendations relating to best praclice (or listed companies 
(Part I) and best practice provisions relating to managemeni 
boards, supervisory board members and shareholders (Parts ll 
to IV). The WSE Corporate Govemance Rules impose upon lhe 
companies listed on the WSE an obligation to disclose in their 
current reports continuous or incidental noncompliance wilh 
best practice provisions (wiih the exception of the rules set forth 
in Part I, in respect of which and based on a resolution of the 
Management Board of Die WSE daied Deceniber J 1 . 2007. WSE-
listed companies ate not required lo publish a current report). 
Moreover, every yeai each WSE-Ilsted company Is required to 
publish a detailed statement on any noii-coriipliance wilh the 
WSE Corporate Governance Rules (Including me rules set forth 
in Part i) by way of a statoinent submitted with tlie Company's 
annual report. Companies listed on me WSE are required to 
justify non-compliance or partial compliance with any WSE 
Corporate Govemance Rule and to show the ways oi eliminating 
the possible consequences of such non-compliance or the steps 
such conipany intends to ta^e to mitigate the risk ol non­
compliance with such idle in future. The Issuer iniends. to the 
extent practicable, to comply with all principles of the WSE 
Corpoiate Covernance Rules, However, certain principles will 
apply to the Cnmpnny only to the extent permitlod by Dutch law. 
Detailed infcnnation regarding non-compliance, as well as 
additional explanations regarding partial compliance with certain 
Corpoiate Governance Rules of tho WSE due to Incompatibilities 
with Dutch law, will be included in the atorementioned reports, 
which will be available on the Company's websile and published 
by way of a current report. 

Role o f the Board 
The Board sets, inter alia, the Company's strategic alms, policy 
and standards of conduct. It nionitors performance against 
business plan and budget, ensuring that ihe necessary human 
and 'inancial resources are in place lo meet its objectives and 
that the Board and all employees ac; ethically and in Ihe best 
Interests of all stakeholders. It has decision-making authority 
over a formal schedule of matters such as important business 
matters, policies and budgets. It delegates authority to various 
cotnmiltees that are described herein. 

Board pract ices 
Dutch statutory law does no! provide (or a one-tier governance 
suueture, in which a board is made up of executive and non­
executive directors. Instead, it provides for a two-tier structure 
comprising separale management and supervisory boards. It is. 
however, well-established practice to have a structure for the 
management board that resembles a one-tier structure. Under 
this organization, all members are formally managing directors 
wim the Articles of Association allocating to certain niembers 
tasks and obligations similar to those of executive directors, and 
to otiiers tasks and obligations that are similar to those of 
nonexecutive diiectors. 
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This is the stmcture the Company operates, providing that some 
directors are responsible for day today management and others (br 
supervising day-to-day nianagement cf the Company, All statutory 
provisions relating to members of die Company's Management 
Board apply in principle to all rnen-bers o( a one-tier board. 

All responsibilities are subject to the overall responsibility of the 
Management Board. 

The Board is accountable to the General Meeting of Shareholders. 

Composition and operation of tha Board 
The Company has six diiectors two execuiive directors 
(Chairman and CEO/President) and four non-exeaitive directors, 
of whom two are independeiit. 

The Boaid meets regularly throughout the year, when each 
directoi has full access to all relevant infoimation. Non-executive 
directors may if necessaiy take Independent professional advice 
at the Company's expense. Tlie Company has established three 
committees, in line with the Combined Code and Uie Dutch 
Corporate Governance Code. These are the Audi! Committee, die 
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee, and a 
brief description of each may be Hound below. 

In addition, the Board has established an Executive Committee, 
comprising die tour non independeni directors and any relevant 
senior managers, that meets aacli month to discuss such 
mnttere as contract status, oudgets, conlkigencies and risk-
management issues. 

Audit Committae 
Comprising three non-executive diiectors, the Audil Committee 
meets a, least three times eacn financial year. The Audit 
Committee has me general task of evaluating and advising the 
Board on matters concerning the financial administrative control, 
the financial reporting and the miernal and external auditing. 
Among other matters, it must consider the integrily of the 
Company's (inancial statements, tlie effectiveness of its intemal 
contiols and risk management systems, auditors reports and 
the tenns of appointment and remuneration of me auditor. 

Composition: Mr yiiziiaki, Mr Widiers and Mr van Eibergen 
Santhagens. Chairman: Mr Yitzhaki. 

Remuneration Committee 
The Remuneration Committee, comprising three nonexecutive 
dirnctnrs. mnnts at least twice eacn financial year to prepare the 
Board's decisions on the remuneration of directors and the 
Company's share incentive plans (Under Dutch law and me 
Articles, the principal guidelines for directors' remuneration and 
approval for directors options and share incentive schemes 
must be determined by a General Meeting of Shareholders). Tlie 
Committee also prepares an Annual Report on the Company's 
remuneration policy. The remuneration report may be found on 
pages 46 and 47 of this document 

Composition: Mr Yitzhaki. Mr Wichers and Mr van Eibergen 
Santhagens. Chairman: Mr Yitzhaki. 

Nomination Committae 
Meeting at least twice a year, the Nomination Committee 
comprises thiee noivexecutiwe directors, its main roles are to 
prepare selection criteria and appointment procedures for Board 
members and to review the Boards structure, size and 
composition. Whereas all senior management of the Company 
was already nominated and since mere wasn't any other 
necessity, the Nomination Committee didn't meet In 2008 as 
frequently as required. 

Composition: Mr Yitzhaki, Mr van Eibeigen Santhagens and 
Mr Paap. Chairman: Mr Paap. 

Intemal control/risk i agwi nt 
The Company (ully compiles with the Intemal control provisions 
of Uie Combined Code and the Dutch Coiporaie Governance 
Code. The Board has established a continuous process for 
identifying and managing the risks faced by the Company, and 
confirms that any appropriate actions have been or are being 
taken lo address any weaknesses. 

It is tlie responsibility of th» Audit Committee to consider the 
effectiveness of the Company's intemal controls and risk 
management piocedures, and the risks associated with Individual 
development projects are addressed each month by the Executive 
Commillee. 

Shara-daallngcode 
The Company operates a share-dealing code, particularly relating 
to dealing during close periods, for all Board members and 
certain employees, as is appropnate for a listed compnny. The 
Company takes all reasonable steps to ensure compliance by 
those parties affected. 

The share-dealing code meets the requiremenis of both Ihe 
Model Code set out in the Listing Rules and Uie Market Abuse 
chapter of the Wte 1995, 

Controlling shareholder and conflicts of interest 
The Company has a controlling shareholder who owns 
approximately 73.65% of the Enlarged Share Capilal and 
therefore has effective control of the Company. TTie Board is 
satisfied that me Company is capable of carrying on its business 
independently ol the Contiolling Shareholder, with whom It has a 
relationship agreement to ensure that all transactions and 
relationships he lias with the Group are conducied at arm's 
ler^th and on a normal commercial basis. 

The Articles of .Association of the Company Include provisions on 
conflicts of Inleresl between the Compaiiy nnd holders of control. 
If a conf ict of interest arises between the controlling shareholoer 
and the Company, die non-independent directors will take no part 
in the Board's decisions on the matter, 

Bharaholdar communication 
The Company's managenent meets with sharnhoiders eacii year 
at me Annual General Meeting (AGM; to discuss natters relating 
to the business. 

Details of this year's AGM can be found on page 40. 
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The Board is commuted to maintaining sn open, honest and 
positive dialogue with shareholders. 

To ensure that all lis communications arc (actually correct, it is 
furnished with full information before every meeting on the state 
and perfonnance of the business. It also has uitiinnle lesponsibiliiy 
lor reviewing nnd approving all informalion contained in its 
annual, interim and other reports, ensuring that diey present a 
balanced assessment ot the Company's position. 

The main channels ot coimnunlcatlon with shareholdeis are the 
Chaimian, CEO, CFO and our tinancial PR advisers, although all 
directors are open to dialogue with shareholdeis as appropriate. 
The Board encourages communication with all shareholders at 
any time oUier than during close periods, and is willing to enter 
dialogue wilh both institutional and private shareholders. 

It also actively encourages participation at the AGM, which is the 
principal forum (or dialogue with private shareholders. As well as 
presentations outlining tne progress nf the business, it includes 
an open question and answer session in which Individual 
inteiests and concerns may be addressed. Resolutions put to 
vote and their results will be published following the meeting. 

The Company's website (www. plazaceiuers.com) contains 
comprehensive inicimalion about the business, and there is a 
cedicated investor relations section where cetailed financial 
infoimation on me Company may be found. 

Corporate, social and eth ica l pol ic ies 
Tho Company is responsible not only to its shareholders, but 
also to a range of other stakeholders including employees, 
customers, suppliers arm Uie communities upon whom Its 
operations have an impact. 

It is therefore the responsibility of the Boaid 10 ensure mat the 
Company, its diiectors and its employees act at all rime In an 
ethical mannei. As a result, the Conipany seeks to be honest and 
fair in ils relations with al! stakeholders and to respect me laws 
end sensitiviiies of ail the countries in which it operates. 

Environment 
The Conipany regards compliance with environmental legislation 
in every country wheie it operates as its minimum standard, and 
significant levels nf managenipiit cttcntinn are focused on 
ensuring that all employees and contractors achieve and surpass 
both regulatoiy and Internal environmental standards. 

The Company undertakes a detailed environmental impact study 
of every project it. undertakes. Including an audit of its waste 
management, water and eneigy usage, emissions to air ond 
water, ozone depletion and more. 

Health and safety 
The Company is committed lo promoting the health, safety and 
welfare ol its employees, and is supported in achieving its "zero 
harm" goal through an active health and safely educational 
program involving all employees across the organization. 
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Remuneration Comaiittaa 
As slated in the Coiporaie Gowrnance report on pages 41 to 45 
of this document, the Remuneration Committee meets at least 
twice ejeh financial year to prepare, among other matters, tlie 
decision of the Board relating to the remuneration of directors 
and any share incentive plans It is also responsible for preparing 
an annual repoit on lhe Company's remuneration policies and for 
giving full consideration in ali ils dellbeiailons lo me principles 
sel out in the Cornbined Code. 

The committee comprtscs throe noivoxecutive direclors - it is 
chaired by Shimon YitznaW and the othei members are Marius 
van Eibergen Santhagens and Marco Wichers. 

Under Dutch corporate tow and the Articles of the Company, a 
General Meeting of Shareholders must determine the principal 
guidelines governing the remuneration both of execubve and 
non-executive directors. In addiiion, such a meeting also has to 
approve the granting to •.hem of options and share incentive 
plans. 

The Board may only deleimine llie remuneralion of direclors 
within such guidelines, and no directoi or manager may be 
iovolvod m any decisions relating lo his or her own remuneration. 

Chairman and exacutiva directors 
Non-perfomiance related lemuneration 
Mr Mordechay Zisser 
Mr Ran ShlarKinan 

Ra iratlon policy 

Total 

Non-axacutive diractors 
Non-perfomiance related remuneration 
Mr Shimon Yitzhaki 
Mr Manus van Eibergen Santhagens 
Mr Edward Paap 
Mr Marco Wichers 

Total 

Total - all directors 

Plaza Centers' remuneration policy is designed to ottraci. 
motivate and retain the high-calibre individuals who will enable 
the Company to serve tha best interests of shareholders over 
the long term, through delivering a high level ol corporate 
perfonnance. Remuncrarion packages ate aimed at balancing 
both short term and long-term rewanrls. as well as performance 
and non-performance relaled pay. 

The Remuneration Committee reviews base salaries annunity. 
Increases (or all employees are recommended by reference to 
cost of living, responsibililies and market rates, and are 
performed at me same time of year. 

The Remuneration Committee believes that any director's total 
remuneration should aim io recognize his or her worth on the 
open market and to this end pays base salaries in line with lhe 
market median supplemented by a performance-related element 
with the capacity to provide more man 50* of total potential 
remuneration. 

Snlnrj 
and leu 

t'000 

214 
396 

610 

50 
50 
50 

ISO 

760 

Shar . 
incmt lw 

Phn i i 
cooo 

1,370 
2,840 

4,210 

31S 

315 

4,525 

Tola! „on-

ralatall 

tooo 

1.584 
3.236 

4,820 

315 
SO 
50 
50 

465 

5,285 

T»M 

' •Min i 
rtmuiwnrtliin 

C'000 

796"1 

796 

-

-
796 

1 Accountrfte noncash exoana«s rtcordt-c :•! *he C r-siponj'S iRtttnii stalenwnt in connection *=th i t» sli.--.rB tajifon gmo 
2 Pw ffa^ajftniwM agffcenwm. ttfOvisis.' vas :»in*«*!rt as O.TW- 3f nttl (««-ta* prmis tif up \c €10 miaiqn, and w.i«ïfTtr l.?S% nl --nv titu prc-tfl* orrtits «rtuch v rvca 

t l O iThf'On. 

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec 

vii-Ci M A Z A R S 

•V/ARS PAARDEKOOPER H O F F ^ N ACCOUNTANTS N.V. 

.siiiea foi identification purposes only 

http://sli.--.rB


MANAQEMENT AND GOVERNANCE PLAZA CENTERS N.V. AWiUAL RrPORr .-iXlü 

47 

Service arrangements 
Tlie executive directors have rolling service contracts wim the 
Company, which may be iciminated on 12 months' and three 
months' notice In lire cases of the Chairman ond the CEC/ 
President respeclively, 

The npn-execulivc directors have specific terms of reference. 
Their letters of appointment state an initial 12-month peiiod, 
terminable by eithei parly on lliree months' written notice. Save 
for payment during respective notice periods, thoso agreements 
do not provide for payment on tenninalion. 

Bonuses 
The Company has a perfcniiancellnked bonus policy for senior 
executives and employees, under wiiich up to 3% of net annual 
profits are set aside foi allocation hy the direclors to employees 
on on evaluation of their individual contributions to the Company's 

perfonnance. In addition, the Boaid can owaid ad hoc bonuses 
to project managers, area managers and olher employues on the 
successful completion and/or opening o l each pn»cci. The 
directors also have me authority to award discretionary bonuses 
lo outstanding employees which are not linked to the Company's 
(inancial results. 

Share opt ions 
Tlie Company adopted its Share Option Scheme on October 26, 
2006 which was emended on November 25. 2008 (refer to page 
40). The terms and conditions o! which (excepl for the exereisc 
price) are regulated by the Share Option Scheme. Options will 
vest in three equal annual portions and have contractual lite of 
seven years following gram. 

In me course of 2008. 3,625,000 options were granted. For the 
exercise and (orfeii of options refer to the table below. 

Mr Mordechay Zisser 
Mr Ran Shtarkman 
Mr Shimon Yitzhaki 
Mr Marius van Eibergen Santhagens 
Mi Edward Paap 
Mr Marco Wichers 

Numbei 
ot options 

3,907,895 
10,130,376 

1,116,541 

Numbet 
vested BS at 

Docembor 31 . 
2008 

1,302,632 
3,383.459 

372,180 

Exercise 
price of 
options 

I 

0.52 
0.52 
0.52 
N/A 
N/A 
N/A 

Total pool 
Granted 
Exercised 
Forfeited 
Left tor future grant 

Numbor ol 
options AS sl 

Decembei 31 . 
2000 

33.834.586 
33,827,174 

(435,182) 
(3,276,784) 
3.284,196 

Amsterdam, April 30. 2009 

The Board of Directors 

Mordechay Zisser Ran Shtarkman Shimon Yitzhaki 

Marius van Eibergen Santhagens Marco Wichers Edward Psap 
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The responsibilities of the directors are determined by applicable 
lav» and International Financial Reporting Slandaitls (IFRSs) as 
adopted by the European Union. 

The diiectors are responsible for preparing me Annua; report and 
ttie annual finanaal statements in accordsrce with anplicaole 
law and regulations. 

Netiierlands law requires ihe direclors io prepare llnancial 
slatemenls tor each financial year that give, according lo 
generally acceptable standards, a true and fair view of the 
asseis, liabilities, financial position and profit oi loss of ttie 
company and the companies lhat are included in its consolidated 
accounts for that penod. 

Nedierlands law requires the directors to prepare the Annual 
repoit that gives a true and fair view of the position as per the 
balance sheet date, the course of business during the past 
financial year oi the conipany and its affiliated companies 
included in the anm.al financial statements, and that me annual 
report contains a proper descripfion of tftc principal risks the 
company faces. 

Directors are required to abide by certain guidelines in undertaking 
these tasks. 

The directois need lo select appropriate accounting policies and 
apply them consistently in their repons. They must, state whether 
ihey have followed applicable accounting standards, disclosing and 
explaining any material departures ir the financial statements. 

Any judgments and estimates that directors make must bo both 
reasonable and piudent. Tlie directors must also prepare financial 
statements on a "going concern" basis, unless it is inappropriate 
to presume that the Company will continue in business. 

The directors confiim mat thay have complied with the above 
requirements in preparing the financial statements. 

Throughout tbe firancial year, the directors are responsible for 
keeping proper accounting records which disclose at any time 
and with reasonaole accuracy thft financial position of tlie 
Company. They are also responsible for ensuring tiiat Uiese 
statements comply wim applicable company law. 

In addition, they are responsible for internal control systems that 
help Identify and address the commereial risks ol being in 
business, and so safeguard the assets of the Company. They are 
also responsible for taking reasonable steps to enable me 
detection and prevention ot fiaud and other iiTogulailties. 

The Company's websile may be accessed in many countries, which 
have differem legal requirements. The directors are responsible 
for maintaining the accuracy ef corporale and (inancial information 
on Uie website, where a failure to update or amend infonnation 
may cause inaoprapriate decision making. 

On the basis ol the above and in accordance with Best Practice 
Provision 11.1.4. of the Netherlands Corporate Govemance Code 
ot December 2003, taking into account the recommendation of 
me Corporate Govemance Monitoring Commiltee on the 
application thereof, the directors confirm that i'-ieirwl contiols 
over financial reporting withm the company provide a reasonable 
lewei of assurance that (he financial reporting does noi conlain 
any material inaccuiaoies, and confirm that these controls 
functioned property in me year under review and that there are no 
indications that they will not continue to do so. 

The financidl statements fairly represent the Company's financial 
condition and the results of the Company's operations and 
provide the required disclosures. 

tt should be noted that -Jie above does not imply ttiat these 
systems and procedures provide absolute assurance as to tlie 
lealizalion of operational and strategic business objectives, or 
that they can prevent all misstatements, inaccuracies, errors, 
fraud and non-compliance with legislation, rules and regulations. 

In view ot all of the above, hereby following the requiremenis of 
article 5:25c paragraph 2 under c. of the Netherlands Act on tlie 
financial supervision (Wet cp hel financieel toezicht), ttie directors 
hereby confirm mat (I) the annual financial statements 2008 as 
included herein, give a Hue and fair view of the assets, liabilities, 
financial position and profit or toss of me company and its 
affiliated companies that are included in the consolidated 
financial statements; and li) tlie annual report includes a fan 
review of tlie position at the balance sheet date and (he 
development and pertormance of the business of the company 
and its affiliated companies Uiat are included in the consolidaled 
annual financial statements and that the principal risks and 
uncertainties mat the Conipany faces are described. 

The board ot managing directors 

Mordechay Zisser 
Executive dlractor and Chairman 

Ran Shtarkman 
Executive director. President and CEO 

Shimon Yitzhaki 
Nonexecutive director 

Edward Paap 
Non-executive director 

Marius van Eibergen Santhagens 
Non-executive director 

Marco Wichers 
Nonexecutive director 

April 30, 2008 

:MK> M A Z A R S 

m. 
MAZARS PAARDEKOOPER HOFFM^fACCOUNTANT^V. 

initialled for identification purposes only 



FINANCIAL ÏTA1ÏME NT» PtAZA CENTERS N.V. ANNUAL RfKlRV .tCO» 

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET 
ku mo f w .«ivied Owwrnwif 'J.L :!W£ 

50 

i 
1 
1 

1 
1 

1 ^^. 9 

•i] 

,( 
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N,',^-

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 5 

Restricted bank deposits c 
Short-ierni deposits and investinents 
Available-'or-salo (inancial asseis r 
Trade receivables, net a 
Other receivables and prepayments s 
Related parties ;» 
Trading properlies io 

Total current assets 

Long-terrri deposits and other investnents i x 
Equity accounted investees is 
Derivatives 16 
Property and equipment 12 
Inveslmenl property 13 
Restricted bank deposits c 
Other noncurrent asseis 

Total non-current assets 

Tolal assets 

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 
Interest bearing loans from banks 17 
Trade payables i s 
Amounls due lo related parties i9 
Provisions JO 
Other short-term liabilities v i 

Total current l iab i l i t ies 

Interest bearing loans rrcm banks 17 
Long-term debentures at fair value through profit or loss 22 
Amounts due to related parties ia 
Other long-term liabilities 21 
Deferred tax liabilities ;3 

Total non-current l iab i l i t ies 

Share capital 2.1 
Translation reserve 2-1 
Other reserves 2.1 
Share premium 24 
Treasury shares 24 
Retained earnings 

Total equi ty a t t r ibu tab le t o equi ty holders o f the Company 
Minority interest 

Total equi ty 

Total equi ty and l iabi l i t ies 

Tlie notes on pag'-ïs 55 tn 107 (orm an integral part of Ihose consolidated financial statements. 

Dccoinbci 31, 
ZOOS 

146,026 
32,233 

_ 
8,608 

838 
60,550 

4 8 1 
575,334 

824,090 

50,385 
188 

20.323 
15,793 
12,970 
34,497 

310 

134,466 

958,556 

69,415 
23,197 

2,748 
16,985 
13,673 

126,018 

41,273 
175,144 

-
399 

6 ,191 

223.007 

2.924 
(12,175) 
21.778 

248,860 
(5,469) 

350,605 

606.523 
3.008 

609,531 

958,556 

ÖW'TlllCI T l . 
201'i' 

66.381 
25.155 

1,033 

.. 
262.595 

48,: i02 
19,525 

298,339 

721,130 

1,987 
1.129 
2,223 

16.465 
12.970 

5.302 

-
40.081 

751.211 

409 
19.-132 
23.103 
17,536 
35.200 

95.680 

5.461 
53.821 

1.871 
355 
552 

62,000 

2,924 
(1,727) 
13,498 

248.860 

... 
339,916 

603.471 

-
603,471 

761,211 

TIIB financial slolemenls were noprnved by lhe Board of directors on March 26. 2009 and were signed on its beliall by: 

Ran Shtmkman 
Director, President and Chief Executive Officer 

Shimon Yitzhaki 
Diiector and Chairman of the Audit Committee 
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Revenues 
Gam from lhe sale of investnieni property, net 

Cost of operations 

Gross profit 
Administrative expenses' 
Oilier income 
Ottier expenses 

Rasulta from oparatlng activities 
Finance inconie 
Finance expenses 
Finance income, ncl 

Share in loss ot associate 
Profit before incoine tax 
Income tax expenses 

Profit for ihe year 

Mole 

27 

28 

29 

.w 
•Kl 

.11 

.11 

I n 

32 

2'i 

25 

For Hn yoai «ided 
0 . c « m b e t 3 1 , 

ZOM 

98,613 

96,613 
55,934 

42,679 
24,540 

(193) 
2,882 

15,450 
67,356 
(9,268) 
58,088 

(941) 
72,597 

4,913 

67,684 

0.23 
0.23 

mr iiv* 'jTOii eixiMi 
DwrnAw 31 . 

200V 

507,843 
2.071 

509,914 
268,730 

241.184 
23,117 

(85) 
423 

217.729 
12,407 
(3.0601 
9,347 

119) 
227.057 

90 

226.967 

0.78 
0.77 

Basic earnings par share (in euros) 
Diluted earnings per share (in euros) 

' indudinu w-n^nsli («pcrws Jun i i t i * staro -ipftMi plan ir the airount ul SS 3 millioo !2007; *7 .s milHonl. 

The notes on pages 55 lo 107 funn an integral pait of these consolidated financial statements. 
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES 
IN SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 
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Foi m.i vnn' «mlod DK^mbcr .i 1. SL** 

Attributable to the equity hoklers of the Company 

Balance at 
Docembor 3 1 , 2006 
Changes in translation 
reserve' 
Share option enercisod 
Share based payment 
P'olil (01 the year 

Balance at 
Docembor 3 1 , 2007 
Changes In translation 
reserve' 
Changes in financial 
assets available for sale 
Share-based payment 
Own shares acquired 
Effect of acquisition 
of subsidiaries 
Dividend paid 
Profil for the year 

Balanco at 
Docembor 3 1 , 2008 

SI.MI-

r^irav 

2.923 

-
1 

-
-

2.S24 

-

-
-
-

. 
-

2,924 

Sliim; 
t l iWl i l i ' 

248.860 

-
-
-
-

348,860 

-

-
-
-

-
-
-

248,860 

Ol-vir 
capiini 

ifl-Miives 

1,840 

-
11,658 

• 

13,498 

-

-
9,400 

-

-
-
-

22,898 

Tmns-oiicm 
tHSMVft 

(1.895) 

168 

-
-
-

(1.727) 

(10,448) 

-
-. 
-. 

-
-
-

( 1 2 4 7 5 ) 

Re.\ervo 
lor 

own «Iwtes 

-

-
_ 
-
-

-

-

-
-

(5,469) 

-
-
-

(5,469) 

Financial 
aSWii 

avnilohle 
ro,- Mle 
niswvi? 

-

-
„ 

-

-
(1,120) 

-
-

-
-
-

(1,120) 

RClP'flKtl 
esrnriGJ. 

112.949 

-
-
-

226,967 

339,916 

-

-
-
-

-
(56,995) 
67,684 

350,605 

HiUil 

354.677 

158 
1 

11.658 
226,967 

603,471 

(10.448) 

(1,120) 
9,400 

(5,469) 

-
(56.995) 
67.684 

606,523 

Miii-jriiv 
• «BinSl 

_. 

-
-
-
-

-
(170) 

-
-
-

3,178 

-
-

3,008 

tew: 

364,67? 

168 
1 

11,658 
226,967 

603,471 

(10,618! 

(1,120) 
9.400 

(5,469) 

3,178 
(56.995) 
57,684 

609 ,531 

• Mairiiy Ir wnrts&un wiUi tr.tiiu JJiWiawn. 

The notes on pages 55 to 107 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. 
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For the year ended n>r tiw >f,r,r enfli^ri 
December 3 1 . >r9inti6f '11. 

2008 2iK. 7 

Cash flows from operating activities 
Profil tor the yea' 
Adjustments necessary tn refftct cash flows used in operating activities: 
Oepreciatlon and impainiiunt un pioperty and equipment 
Advance payment on accounts of irading properties 
Finarice incorno, net 
Interest received m cash 
Loss on sale of propeity and equioment 
Shaie in loss of associate 
Gain on sale of investment property 
Gain on sale ot trading property 
Income tax expenses 
Tax repaid in cash 

Decrease (increase) in trade accounts receivable 
Decrease (increase) in other accounts receivable 
Change in restricted cash for projects to be acquired 
Increase in trading properties 
Puichase or trading property companies (see appendix A) 
Increase (decrease) in trade accounts payable 
Increase (decrease) in other liabilities and provisions 
Net proceeds from selling ot trading property (see appendix B) 
Share basea payment 

Interest paid 
Income tax paid 

Nat cash usad In opsiatlng activities 

Cash from Investing acthrKlaa 
Purchases of fixed assets and oilier assets 
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment 
Decrease (increase) of sriorl-leirn deposits, net 
Purchase of available-for-sale mdiketable securities 
Long tenn deposits, net 
Net proceeds from disposal of other subsidiaries (see appendix 8) 
Long-term structured deposit 

Nat cash usad In mvastlng aetivitlaa 

Cash from financing activities 
Proceeds from loans from banks ard financial institutions 
Dividend paul 
Treasury shores purchased 
Proceeds from issuance of long-term debentures 
Long-term loans repaid to banks 
Loans repaid ;o related parties 
Loans received from related parties 

Net cash provided by (inanciag activities 

Effect ef axetiange rats fluctuations on cash haid 
Increase (decrease) In cash and cash equivalents during U M year 
Cash and cash aqulvalents at the beginning of tha year 

Cash and cash equivalonts at tha end of tha year 

12.30 

J i 

36 

S 

10 

.» 

M 

7 

11 

17 

2<l 

2;' 

67,684 

3,295 
(38,567) 
(58.088) 
14,713 

497 
941 

-
(41,6441 

4,913 
235 

(46,521) 

277,761 
9,105 

(56,035) 
(192,949) 

(78,238) 
(13,386) 
(20,055) 
60,189 

6,988 

(3,620) 
(2,591) 

(202) 

(52,934) 

(2,071) 
3,182 
1,025 

(10,011) 
(162) 

(51.30S) 

(59,342) 

105,586 
(56,995) 

(5,469) 
151,627 

(768) 
(1.260) 

-
192,721 

(800) 
79.645 
66,381 

226,967 

907 
(52.358; 

(9.347) 
6,732 

40 
19 

(2.071) 
(235,499) 

90 

-
(64,520) 

(5.80 7i 
(18,8151 
124.5401 

(302,996) 
(16.244! 
38.822 
20.423 
63.718 

7.644 

(237,796) 
(368) 

(7) 

(302,691; 

(9,8801 
19 

(5.121! 

-
(5,430) 
11.526 

-
(8.886) 

124.747 

-
-

53.003 
(7,1151 
(5,735) 

386 

165,286 

(111 
(146,302) 
212.683 

/ -
t - i 

1 ? \ 

a' 
i 

i . 

W 
-.,-!>-

146,026 66,381 

The notes on pages 55 to 107 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. 
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Appendix A - Acquis i t ion of subsidiaries 
Cash and cash equivalents of subsidianes acquired 
Shorlteim deposits 
Trade receivables and other leceiviibles 
Long-term deposil 
Fixed assets 
Trading property 
Olher assets 
Trade payables 
Relaled parties 
Minorily interest 
Other accounts payable-
Less - cash and cash equivaiams of subsidiaries acquired 

Acquisitions of subsidianes. net of cash held 

Appendix B - Disposal o f subsidiar ies 
Cash and cash equivalents of subsidiaries disposed 
Short-term deposits 
Trade receivables' 
Othei receivables 
Trading properties 
Investment properties 
Long-term balances and deposits 
Interest bearing loan from hanks 
Trade payables 
Olher accounts payables 
Related parties 
Deferred taxes and long-ten-i balances 
Foreign currency translation adjustment 

For tho year ended 
December 3 1 , 

2006 

5.526 

-
15.622 

104 
4,675 

58,531 

59 

(20) 

(3,182) 

(551) 
(5.526) 

75.238 

1.388 

-
800 

80 
40,822 

-
-
-

(5,248) 

(1,105) 

-
-
-

For llw vd-li üMtrf 
Uwiiwitlwi J l , 

2007 

14 

(12,021! 
. 98 

-
-

53,848 

(176) 

_ 
(25,505) 

I.].4i 

16,244 

28.693 
3.130 
2.937 

51.005 

257,292 
13.684 

748 

(168.838) 
(54,700) 
(11.942; 

2.251 
(4.167) 

637 

Net identitiable asseis .ind liabilities disposed 

Cash from sole of subsidiaries 
Loss - cash and cash equivalents of subsidiaries disposed 

Non-cash transactions 
Suppliers and creditors for trading properties 
Share-based payment capitalized to trading properties 

36,737 

61,577 
(1.388) 

60,189 

20,378 
2,905 

120,730 

103.937 
(28,693) 

75.244 

34,020 
4,806 

' ?00T -le&tatcdio&nciudt-deUttr fitun «'liop.-jï i icno Pbua sfrOdwig center. 

The notes nn pages 55 to 107 tarni nn. imegral port of these consolidated financial statements. 
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NOTES TO THE CONSOUDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

NOTE1 - PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND OWNERSHIP 
Plaza Centers N.V. ("the Company") was incorporated and registered in the Netherlands in May 1993 as a private 
company by the name of Shaka B.V. In September 2006 the Company changed its name to its present name, as pari 
of the London IPO reorganization. The Company's registered office is at Keizersgracht 241. Amsterdam, the 
Netherlands. The Company conducts its activities in the field of establishing, operating and selling of shopping and 
entertainment centers, as well as other mixed-use projects (retail, office, residential) in Central and Eastem Europe, 
and, starting 2006, India. The consolidated financial statements for each of the periods presented comprise the 
Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the "Group") and the Group's interest in associates and jointly 
controlled entities. 

In line with the Group's commercial decision to focus its business more on development and sale of shopping and 
entertainment centers rather than operating them, the Group has classified Its current projects under development as 
trading properties rather than investment properties. 

The Company's shares are traded on the Offidal List ofthe London Stock Exchange ("LSE") and starting October 19, 
2007, the Compan/s shares are also listed in the Warsaw Stock Exchange ("WSE"). 

The Company's immediate parent company is Elbit Ultrasound B.V. ("EUL"), which holds 70.6% ofthe Company's 
shares, as of balance sheet date. The ultimate parent company is Elbil Imaging Limited ("El"), which is indirectly 
controlled by Mr Mordechay Zisser. El itself holds as of balance sheet date 0.1% ofthe Company's shares. Regarding 
share purchase ofthe Company by El and treasury shares purchase refer to note 36. Forthe list ofthe Company's 
subsidiaries, joint ventures and affiliates, refer to note 41. 

NOTE 2 - BASIS OF PREPARATION 

A Statement of compliance 
The consolidated finanaal statements have been prepared in accordance with Intemational Financial Reporting 
Standards ("IFRS"), as adopted by the EU. 

The Company is required to file consolidated financial statements prepared in accordance with the Netherlands Civil 
Code. At the date of approving these financial statements the Company had not yet prepared consolidated financial 
statements for the year ended December 31.2008 in accordance with the Netherlands Civil Code. 

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on March 26.2009. 

B Basis of measurement 
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except for the 
following: 

> Investment property is measured at fair value; 

> Liabilities for cash-settled share-based payment arrangements are measured at iair value; 

> Available for sale financial assets are measured at fair value; 

> Derivative financial instruments are measured at fair value; and 

> Financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair value. 

C Functional and presentation currency 
These consolidated financial statements are presented in euros, which is the Company's functional currency. All 
financial information presented in euros has been rounded to the nearest thousand, unless otherwise indicated. 

D Use of estimates and judgments 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires management to make judgments, estimates 
and assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and 
expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that 
are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results ofwhich form the basis of making the judgments 
about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ 
from these estimates. 
Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are 
recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period or in the period of the 
revision and future periods ifthe revision affects both current and future periods. 
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 56 

NOTE 2 - BASIS OF PREPARATION 

Judgments made bv managcniei-l n ihe aoplication ot IFRS that have significant effect on the finencial statements and eslimales wilh 
a signiticaiit -isk of inaiennl adjustmenls in ihe next year are discussed in the following Notes: 

) Note 10 - valuation of trading propenios 

) Note 13 -valuation oi inves-ment property 

> Notes 20, 35 - provisions and conimgcncics 

) Note 26 ••• measurement of share based payments 

) Note 32 - utilization of lax losses 

> Note 34 - valuation of financial instruments. (Bonds, Swaps, structure; 

NOTE 3 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

The accounting policies sel o j i beloi'.' have heen applied consistently to all periods presented in these consolidated financial statements, 
and have been applied consistently by Gioup entities. 

A Basis of consol idat ion 
1 Subsidiaries 
The consolidated financial statemenls iricorporale the financial statements of me Company and entities contiolled by the Company (its 
subsidiaries). Contiol is achieved vdiere the Company has the power, directly or indirectly, to govern me financia!and operating policies 
of an investee entity su as to obl Jin benefits from its activities, in assessing control, potential voting rights mat presently are exercisable 
or convertible are taKen imo account. The financial statements of subsidiaries are included in mc- consolidated financial statements 
from the date that conlrol commences unlil the date that control ceases. 

Under IFRS 3. when acauiring subsidiaries and operations that do not constitute a business as defined in IFRS 3. lhe consideration for 
die acquisition is only allocated between the identifiable assets and liabilities of tne acquiree, according to me proportion of Uieir fair 
value at the acquisition date and without attributing any amount to goodwill oi deferred taxes, with the participation of the minority, if 
any, according to its share in the net fair value of these recognized assets a l the acquisiuon date. 

When non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are acquired, the difference between the amount paid and the amounl of the acquired 
share in the iion-conlrolllng inleres". al the acquisition date is attributed to assets and liabilities as aforesaid. Where necessary. 

- ' adjustments aie made lo the financial stateT.ents of subsidiaries to bring the accounting policies used into line with those used by the 
. Ji Group in the consolidated finaitnal statemenls. 

! ' s M 2 Associates 
i !# j ï A n associate is an entity over which the Group is in a position to exercise significant influence, but not control or joint control, through 

participation in me (inancial and operating policy decisions of the associate. Significant influence is piesmned to exist when the Croup 
holds between 20% and 50% of the voting power of anottier entity. 

^ i , § The consolidated financial statements include lhe Group's share of the total recognized income and expense and equity movements of 
W f associates afte? adiuslments to alifin the accounting policies with those of me Group, from, the date mat significant induenco commences 
-' ^ until the date lhat significant iiifliif.nci! ceases. 

Invesbnenls m associates are carried in the balance sheet at cost as adjus-.ed by post-acquisition changes in the Group's share ol me 
net assets of the associate, less any iinpainnent in the value of individual investments- Losses of the associate in excess of the Group's 
interest in thoso associates are reduced until the investment is brought to nil. and men furmer losses are only recognized if the Group 
lias incurred a legal/constructive obligation to fund such losses. 

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group's share of the fair values of the net identifable assets of lhe associate at the date 
of acquisition is recognized as goodwill. In respect of associates, the carrying amount of goodwill is included in the carrying amount of 
the investmem In the associate. When the cost ot acquisition is below the Group's share al the fair values of lhe net identidable assets 
ot the associate at the date of acquisition (I.e. aiscount on acquisition), the difference is recognized in the Income statement in the 
period of acquisition. 
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3 Jointly controlled enlKlos 
Joint ventures (-JV; are those entities over whose activities the Group has joint control, established by contractual agreemenf and 
requiring unanimous coitseni for strategic financial and operating decisions. JVs are accounted for using the proportional corisolidahpn 
method ol accounting 

The fjnancial slaleinents of (Oiril ventures are included in the consolidated (inancial statements from the dato lhat joinl conlrol 
comirences until ihc dale ihai Joint control ceases. Where necessary, adjustments are made lo tlie financial statements of joint 
venlures lo bring She accounting policies used into line witii those used by the Group in the consolidated financial slatemenls. 

4 Acquisitions from entities under common control 
Transactions arising from :mnsfcis of interests in entities that are under the control of the sliarehokler thai controls me Group are 
accounted for as if the acquisilion had occurred at me beginning of tlie earliest comparative period presented or, if later, at the dato that 
comnion control was established: for mis purpose comparatives are restated. Tlie assets and liabilities acquired are recognized at their 
fair value at tlie date of the acouisition. Any excess of the cost of acquisition over Uie Group's interest in tlie fair values of ihe net 
identifiable assets acquired s lecognized as goodwill. When the excess is negative (negat.ve goodwill), it is recognized diiectly in profit 
or loss in lhe period of acquisition. 

5 Itansactions alimtnated on consolidation 
Matenal mtra-gioup batances and transactions, and any unrealized Incoine and expenses arising from intra-group transactions, are 
eliminated in orsoaiing the consolidated financial statements. Unrealized gains arising from transactions with joint venlures and 
associates are elimiiiated to ths extent of the Group's interest In tha entity. Unrealized losses are eliminated in the same way as 
urirealized gains, but only to the extent that mere is no evidence of impairment. 

B Foraiga carrancy 
1 Foreign carrancy transactions 
Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to me respective functional currencies of Group entities at exchange rates at the dates 
of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabililies denominated in foreign currencies at the reporting date are retranslated to the 
functional cunency at the exchange rate at th»-. date. The foreign currency gain or loss on monetary items is the difference between 
amortized cost in the (unctioiial currency at the beginning of me period, adjusted for effective interest and payments during the period, 
and the amortized cost in foreign currency translated at the exchange rate at me end of tlie period. Non-monetary assets and liabilities 
denonlnated in foreign currencies that are measured at fair value are retranslated to tho functional currency at the exchange rate at the 
date that the fair vslue was determined. Foreign currency differences arising on retranslation are recognized in profit or loss, except (or 
differences arising on me rstranslalion of available-for-sale equity instruments, a financial liability designated as a hedge of the net 
investment in a foreign operation, or qualifying cash flow hedges, which are recognized directly in equity. 

2 Financlai statements of foreign operations 
The assets and liabilities of foreign operations, including goodwill and tair value adjustments arising on acquisition, are translated to 
euros at exchange rates a: the reporting date. The income and expenses of foreign operations are translated to euros at exchange rates " 
at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange differences arising on retranslation are recognized directly in the foreign currency 
translation reserve (FCR). , :; 

The euro (EUR) is me functional currency for Croup companies (with the exception of Indian companies - in which die functional cunency 
is tbe Indian Rupee - INR) since it best reflects the business and results of operations of the Group companies. This Is based upon the ^ '. 
fact that the euro (and in India - the INR) is me currency in which management determines its budgets, transactions with tenants. j j f e 
potential buyers and suppliers, and its financing activities and assesses Its currency exposures. • 

Foreign exchange gains and losses arising from a monetary item receivable from or payable to a foreign operation, the settlement of ^- • ' 
which is neither planned noi llKely in die foreseeable futuie, are considered to (orm part of a net investment in » foreign opeiation ond j . -ï 
are recognized directly in equity in the FCTR, ' i ' ' 

sir 
3 Net investment in foreign operations axchanga 
Differences arising (rom translation of the net Investment in foreign operations am taken to translation reserve. They are released into 
me income stutemerii upon disposal. 

C Financial Instruments 
1 Non-derivative financial inatrumonts 
NoiKlerivalive financial in&buments con-prise investments in equity and debt securities, trade and othei i'eceivables. cash and cash 
equivalents, loans and borrowings, and trade and omer payables. 

Non-derivative financial nstiuments are recognized initially at fair value plus, for instruments not at fair value through profit or loss. 
any directly attributable tiansaction costs. Subsequent lo initial recognition noivderivative financial instruments are measured as 
described below. 
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NOTE 3 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

C Financial instruments 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances and short-term investments with original maturities ot tiiree months or less from 
the acquisition date. 

Restricted deposits and cash in escrow 

HRStiicted deposits consist ol deiiosils in banks and other financial instltulions Uiat me Group has pledged to secure banking facilities 
and other linaneial insirijir.tsils mi the Group and cannot be used Ireely for operations. 

Cash in escrow represents cash paid into an escrow accounl held by a third party as payment for purchases of properly by the Group 
until such purchase transaciions are fiiializiKl and legal lille is passed to Üie Group. 

Trade receivables 
Trade receivables are measured at amortized cost using lhe effective interest method, less any impairment losses. 

Avallable-for-salo financial assets 
The Groups investments in certain debt and equity securilies are classified as available-tor-sale financial asseis. Subsequent to initial 
recognition, they are pieasuied at fair value and changes therein, other than impairment iosses (see note 7) arc lecognized directly in 
equity. When an tnvestinenl is derecocni/ed, the cumulative gain or loss in equity is transferred to profit or loss. 

Held-to-maturity investments 
If the Group ha ; me positive intent and ability to hold debt securities to maturity, Uien they are classilied as held-tomalurity. Held-to-
maturity investments are measured at amortized cost using the effective Interest method, less any impairment losses. Held to malurily 
investinent comprise of structure A isee note 11(1)). 

Interest-bearing bonowings 

Interest-bearing bormwlngs are recognized initially at tair value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequeni lo initial lecognition. 
inteiest-beaiing borrowings are stated at amortized cost with any difference between cost and redemption value being recognized In the 
income statemeni over the pennd oi the borrowings on an ettective interest basis unless those costs are capitalized. 

Financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 
Financial asseis and liabililies at rair value tlirough profit or loss includes structured deposit '3 isee note 11(1)) and unsecured 
non-convertible Debentures series A and series 8 (see note 22). 

Upon IniUal recognition a financial asset or a financial liability may be designated by me Company as at (air value through prolit oi loss. 
Financial instmnients are designated at fair value tlirough profit or loss if die Group manages such investments and makes purchase 

' . ^ y and sale decisions based cn theii fair value In accordance with the Group's documented risk management or investment sL-alegy, or it 
*>-' ' ' ; eliminates or sigiiificanUy reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency. Upon initial recognition attributable transaction costs 
..-••Sr are recogn ized in proti t or l o s s w h e n i ncu r red . F inanc ia l l iab i l i t ies a l fa i r va lue th rough prot i t or l o s s a re m e a s u r e d a t fa i r va lue , a n d 

-" ' •?* changes the re in are recogn ized in p ro f i l or l o s s . 

*r Other 

Olher non-denvative (inancial insbuments air: nnsasiired at amortized cost using the effective interest method, less any impairment losses. 

, f-.] 2 Derivat ive f inancial ins t ruments 
y^f ' i The Group holds derivative (Inancial inslruments to hedge its foreign currency and interest rate risk exposures. Derivatives are recognized 
' i , . - T initially at fair value; attributable iransaction costs are recognized in profit or loss when incurred. Subsequent to initial recognition, 

derivatives are measured at fair value, and changes therein are accounted for as described below. 

i Embedded derivatives are sepaiated from me host contract and accounted for separately if me economic charaoieristics and nsks of 
,-«..., the host contiact and the omboaded oerlvatlva are not closely related, a separate instrument with the same temis as the embedded 
»'"."_ derivaiive would meet me detmiuon ol a derivalive. and the combined instrtimcnt is not measured at fair value through profil or loss. 

If an entity is required to separate an embedded derivative from its host contract, but is unable to measure the embedded derivative 
seiiaratoly. Iha Company shall designate (he entire (inancial instrumem at tair value through profil or loss. 

Swap transactions 
The Group measures Cross Cunency Interest Rate Swaps transactions as hedging transactions not recognized for accounting purposes, 
at (air value through piuiil and loss (see note 16). 
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3 De-recognition of financial assets and liabilities 
Financial assets 
A (inancial assel (or, where applicable a 'XW uf financial asset or part of a group of similar financial asseis) is derecognized when: 

> The rights lu receive casb flows from mc assel have expired 

) The Group relaini the right to receive cash (lows (rom the asset, but has assumed an ubfigation to pay them in full wilhriut material 
delay to a third party under a "pass Ihrough' arrangement: or 

) The Group has liunsfened ils rights to receive cash flows from the asset and either (a) has bansfeired substanUally all lhe risks arid 
rewards of the asset. or in) has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred 
control oi me assel. 

Wheie the Compciny has tiansfei'r>»d ils nghts lo receive cash flows from an asset and has neither transfened riot re'-amed subslanlially 
all the risks and rewards of che asset nor transferred control of the asset, the asset is recognized to me extent of me Group's continuing 
involvement in the asset. Continuing involvement mat takes me form of a guarantee over trie transferred asset is measured at the lower 
of the original carrying amounl of the asse'. and the maximum amount of consideration that the Group could be required to repay. 

Financial liabilities 
A financial liability is derecognized when the obl.gatlon under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. 

Where an existing liabiHty is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different tenns, or the lerms ol an existing 
liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liabilily and the 
recognition ol a new liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the income statement. If the 
exchange or modification 's immaterial, it is treated in the term of the original commitment and no gain or loss Is recognized from 
the exchange. 

4 Share capital - Ordinary Shares 
Incremental costs directly attnbutable to issue of Ordinary Shares and share options are neeognlzed as a deduction from equity, net of 
any tax effect. Costs attributable to listing existing shares are expensed as incurred. 

5 Repurehasa of share capital (treasury shares) 
When share capital recognizee as equity is repuichased. the amount of the consideration paid which Includes directly altributable costs, 
is net of any tax effects, and is recognized as a deduction from equity. Repurchased shares are classified as treasury shares and are 
presented as a deduction from total equity. Wlien treasury shares are sold or reissued subsequently, the amount received is recognized 
as an increase in equity, and the resulting surplus or deficit on me transaction is transferred to/from retained eamings. 

D Trading properties 
Properties that are being constiucted or developed for future use as trading properties (inventory) are classified as trading properties 
and ineasured at the lower ot cost and net realizable value. 

Nel realizable value is the estimated selling price in Hie ordinary course of business less the estimated costs to complete construction . v „ 
and selling expenses. p-ij*. 

Lands which are designated foi development of trading properties projects are not written down below costs if the completed projects 
are expecled lo be sold at or above cost. 

Costs comprise all costs of purchase, direct materials, direct labour costs, subcontracting costs and omer direct overhead costs 
incurred in bnnging the properties to their present condition. 

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition or construction of a qualifying asset are capitalized as part ol (he costs of the 
asset. A qualifying assei is sr. asset thai necessarily takes a substantial period of time to gel ready for its intended use or sale. Other 
borrowing costs are recognized as an expense in the period in which ihey Incurred. Capitalization of borrowing costs commences when 
the activities to prepare the asset are in progress and expenditures and borrowing costs are being incurred. Capitalization of borrowing 
costs may conlinue until the assets are substantially ready for their Intended use. 

Non-specific borrowing costs are capitalized la such qualifying asset, by applying a capitalization rale lo mc- expenditures on that assel. 
The capitalization rate is the vveii£ited average of me borrowing costs applicable to the borrowing ot Uie Group mat are outstanding 
during me period, omer man bonowing made specifically for me purpose of obtaining a qLalifying asset, Tiie amount of borrowing costs 
capitalized duiing the period does not exceed Sie amount of borrowing costs Incurred during that period. 
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NOTE 3 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTINQ POLICIES 

E Operating cycle 
The Group is involved in projects some of which may lake up lo five years to complete. Tne cost of imenlurv and loans which financed 
the developmeni piojecls is presented as current assets and liabililies isee note 10). 

F Investmsnt property 
Inveslmenl properliGs are properties which are held either to earn rental income or for capital appreciation or for both. Investment 
properties are stated at fair value at the balance street date. For measuring fair value of Investment property please refer to note A. 

Any gain or loss arising fru.n a change in fan value is lecognized in the inconie statement in me period in which i l arises. Rental income 
irom investnient properly is acitounlcd for as described In accounting policy 3'J). 

G Property and equipment 
Items o( property and equipment aie staled at cost less accumulated depreciation (see below) ond accumulaled impairment losses 
(see accounting policy Sji)). Cosi includes expondiiuio mat is directly attributable to me acquisition ofthe asset. 

Where parts of on item of property end equipment havo different useful lives, they are accounted (or as separate items of property and 
equipment. 

Gains nnd losses on disposal of an item of property and equipment are determined by comparing the proceeds from disposal with the 
carrying amount of property ano equipmenl and are recognized net wilhin other income or other expenses in the income statemeni. 

Depreciation of items of property and equipment Is charged to the income statenenl over their estimated useful lives, using the 
straight-line melhod. on tho following rates: 

Land - owned 
Shopping centers - building 
Mechanical systems in the buildings 
Aircraft 
Other' 

0 
2-4 

7-10 
3.7-5 
8-33 

• Cwi.jitr. irjinlv ul uiiuot viHui tes ijiw:- l j-füüi'»! rVi'i «iM-puiciiL compirers, psfiiihpraf «qiuptncnt. ^ c . 

Depieciotion methods, useful lives nnd residual values are reviewed at each reporting date. 

iSs.i*. 

If; 

m 

H Other non-current assets 
1 In i t iat ion costs o f shopping centers 
Expenditure on assessmem and researcn aclivilies, undeitaKen with 'Jie prospect of developing new shopping centers, are recognized 
in Ihe income statoment as an expense as incurred. 

Costs which are direcily relaling to initiation activities (prior to the conclusion of the land acquisition, etc.), are capitalized as they arise, 
when a property acquisition transaction is foreseen and probable, and are charged to the cost of constructing o( die real estate projecl 
upon execution ol the tiansaclion. When there is no longer a probable expectation of completing the transaction, me above mentioned 
costs are written-off lo Uie siatenieni o( income. 

2 Cost o f obtain ing long-term loaso agreements 
Direct incremental costs related tn obtaining long-term lease agreements with tenants are capitalized when they arise and charged to 
the stoternent of income over ihe weighted average term ofthe lease period. 

I Impairment 
1 Financial assets 
A financial asset is asscssin) at o/ich reporting diite to delermine whether there is any objective evidence ttiat it is impaired. A linaneial 
asset is considered to be impaired if objective evidence indicates that one or more events have had a negative effect on the estimaujd 
(uture cash Hows of lhal asscL 

An iiiiiMirment loss in respect ol a financial asset measured at iimorlizc-d cost is calculated as the diflercnce between its carrying 
amount, and Uio presenl value of the estimaled future cash flows discounted at the original effective interest rate (i.e. the elfecUvu 
inlerest rale computed al initial lecognition). The carrying amount of tho asset is reduced through use of an allowance account. 

Individually signilicant (inancial assets are tested (or iiripaimienl on an individual basis. The remaining financial assets aie assessed 
collectively in groups thai share similar credir risk characteristics. 
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All impairmeni losses am renognizc-d ir, profit or loss. Aiiy cumulative loss in respect of an available-fc-sale financial asset recognizori 
previously in equity is tiansferrcd to piofii or loss. 

An irnpairmont loss is reversed if me reversal can be related objectively to an evem occurring atter Uie impainnent loss was recognized. 
For (inancial asseis measured ;u amortized cost and available-for-sale financial asseis tlial are debi securities, lhe reversal is recognized 
in profil ui loss. For available-fci'-sdle financial assets that are equity securities, the reversal is recognized directly in equity. 

2 Nonfinancial assata 
The carrying amounts of me Group's assets, other than investment property, trading properties and deferred tax assets are reviewed at 
each balance sheet date to determine whetlier there Is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, the asset's recoverable 
amount is estimated. 

The recoverable amrum of othw assets is the greater of their fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, 
the estimated future cath flows aie discounted to meir present value using a pre-lax discount rate that reflects current market 
assessments of the time voriue cf money and the risks specified to fhe assel. 

An impairment loss is recogni-ted if the carrying amount of an assel or its cash-generating unii exceeds its recoverable amount. 
Impairment losses are recognized in the incoine statement. 

3 Ravaraal o l impairment 
An impainnent loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed. 

In respect ot other essers, an 'n-npai-'ment loss is reversed when there Is an indication that the impairment loss may no longer exist and 
there has oeen a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. 

An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset's carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount mat would have 
been detennined, net of depreciation or amortization. If no impairment loss had been recognized. 

J Provisions 
A provision is recognized when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event, it is probable thai an 
outflow of resources will be required to settle me obligation, and a reliable estimate ol me amount can be made. Provisions are 
determined by discounting tlie swpected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects cunent maiket assessments of me time value 
of money and. where appropriate, me risas specific to the liability. 

Where the Group expects a provisicn to be reimbursed, the reimbursement is recognized as a separate asset but only when the 
reimbursement is virtually certain. 

Provision In raspact to sold proiects # * • 
Tlie Group's financial statements include provisions tor expenses for furmer works to be provided on real estate assets already delivered fK : ; 
to the buyer. y". „1 

•4.-'! 
Warranties # 
Provision lor wairanr/ costs is recognized at the date on which me shopping centers are sold, at the Company's best estimate of the T l . , 
expentllture required So settle tbe Group's obligation. Such estimates take into consideration warranties given to the Group by -v sJi" 
subcontractors. f ' f 

# - * • 

Provisions for construction costs in regareis to agreements wim governmental instilutions are recognized at me sign off dale, at the -' ; j 
Company's best estimate ol the expenditure required to settle the Group's obligation. Jag 

ei'. 
K Ravanuo racognition , ' 
1 Rental income from tenants, management faaa and operation of shopping centers and investmsnt propwtlas 
Revenues from the leasing of property and nianagement fees, as well as other revenue relating lo the operations of shopping nnd .,; ; 
entertainment centers, are lecognized on » stialghl-line basis over the term of the lease and/or lhe service. ;ƒ•' 

V-: 
2 Ravanuaa from sailing of trading proparties and invastmant propeitia* 
Revenues Irom selling of trading properties and investment properties arc measurea at the fair value of tlie consioeration received 
or receivable. Revenues aie recognized when all me following conditions are met: 

a the Group hos tmnsiferred to me buyer the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods; 

b tne Group retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree usually associated with ownership nor effective control 
over the goods sold; 
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NOTE 3 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES C-

K Revenue recognit ion 
c lhe amount of ievenue can be mcDSured leiiabiy. 

d it Is probable Shal lhe economic benoiils associaied with the transaction will flow to the Group lincluding the lad Uial Uie buyer's initial 
and continuing investnient is adequate to demonstrate commitment to pay): 

o the costs incurred or to be incuned in respect ofthe transaction can be measured reliably; and 

f there are no signilicant acts ihat the Gioup is obliged to complete according to the sala agreemenl. 

Cinterniination wheiliBi Uicse critena have Leen met for each sale transacUon, requites a signlticanl judgment by the Group manageinent. 

Signilicant judgment is made in deteimination wheiher, as of the balance sheet date, the Group m s transfeired to the buyer tlie 
sisnilicanl risks and rewairis associated to the real estate assets sold. Such oeteriiiination is based on an analysis of the terms 
included in the sale agreement executed wilh 'he buyer as well as an analysis of other commercial understandings with the buyer in 
respocl ol the real estate sold. Gent-iaily. the sale agreement, with tne buyer is signed during the constiuction period and the consunirnalion 
of the tiansaction is subject lo certain conditions precedents which have to be fulfilled prior to delivery. Revenues are, theiefoie. 
recognized when all Ihe significant condirions precedent included in me agreemenl have been fulfilled by the Group and/or waived by 
the buyer prior to the balance sheet dale. 

The delivery o( the shopping center to the buyei is generally executed close to the end of constiuction and to the opening of the shopping 
center to the public. As a result, the Group has to use estimates in order to determine the costs and expenses required to compleie me 
construction works which, ns of (he delivery dale, has not been completed and/or been paid in full. 

Generally, the Group is prov.dcd with a bank guarantee from me buyer tor the toiai estimated proceeds in order to secure lhe payment 
by the buyer at delivery. Therefore, ttte Group is not exposed to any significant risks in respect ot payment of die proceeds by the buyer. 

In circumstances where the terms ot the transaction provide for the Group to receive additional consideration which is contingent upon 
(ultillment of certain condilions wittioul risk o* loss, and me transacüoit otherwise qualifies for profit recognition, the contingeni futuie 
profits are recognized wnen the contitigency is resolved. 

L Oporational loase payments 
Pnyments made under operating leases aie recognized in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the tenn of the lease but are 
immediately capitalized as long as -he project is undor construction period. 

M Finance Income and expanses 
5j,',S» Finance income comprises inlerest receivable on funds invested (including available-(or-sale-(liiancial debi and equity securities), 

changes in the fair value of linaneial instruments at fair value through profit or loss, gains on hedging instruments mat are recognized 
in profit oi loss, inteiest on late payments ficm receivables and foreign exchange gains. 

Finance expenses wiiich are not ainitalizud compiise interest expense on borrowings, changes in the (air value of financial insmiments 
at fair value thiough prodt 01 loss, :inpaimi.".nt losses recognized on financial assets, and losses on hedging ipstrumerts that are 
recognized in profil or loss. For capiwlization tif borrowing costs please refer to note 10. 

Interest income and expensn which are nut capitalized arc recognized in the income statement as they accrue, using the effecUve 
interesl method. 

!*& 
• $ $ 

• M A Foreign currency gains and losses are reported on a nei basis. 

•fr ' j For the Company's policy regarding capitalizalion of borrowing costs refer to note 3(dl. 

. N Taxation 

' Income lux expese on mn prold or loss (01 Lhe year comprises current and defcrrsri tax. 

Tlie lax currently payable Ls bused on loxable piont tor Uie year, and any adjustment lo tax payatile in respect oi previots years. The Group's 
liability for current lax is cnlculaied using tax rates thai have been enacted or substantively enacted by ttie balance sheel date. 
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Deferred tax is recognized using ihe balance sheel method, providing for temporary dilferences between the canying amounts of assets 
and liabilities (or Nnancial reporuiig purposes and the amounts used far tsxaiion purposes. Deferred tax is not recagnized for the 
(oilowing temporary differences: tt» initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction thai is not a business combination and mat 
affects neither accouiting nor laxable profit or loss, and differences relating to investments In subsidiaries and jointly conlrolled erilllles 
to the extent that it is probable that they wiil not reverse in the foreseeable future. In addiiion. deferred tax is not. recognized for laxable 
temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of goodwill. Deferred tax is measured at the Utx rates that are expected to be 
applied to temporary differences when they reverse, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting 
date. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforeeable right to offset current lax liabilities and assets, and 
they relate to income taxes levied by ihe same tax authority on Hie same taxable entity, or on different tax entities, but they intend to 
settle currenl tax liabililies and assets on a net basis or their tax assets and Sabilitios will be realized simultaneously. 

A deterred lax assel 15 itcogpi/ed lo the extent lhat it is probable lhal (uture taxable profits will be available against wiiich Uie temporary 
difference can be utilized Dereried tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer 
probable that Uie related tax benefit will be realized. 

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution of dividends are recognized at the same time that the liability to pay the related 
divklend Is recognized. 

0 Segment reporting 
A segment is a distinguishable component of the Group that is engaged eithei in providing related products or services (business 
segment), or in piovidirig producLs or services within a particular economic environment (geographical segment), which is subject to risks 
and retums that ore differert from those ot other segments. Segment information is presented in respect of tlie Group's business and 
geographica! segments. 

The Group's primary format for segment reporting Is based on geographical segments. The business segments are determined based 
on me Group's management and internal reporting structure, 

Intei-aegment pricing is deteimined on an arm's length basis. 

Segment results, assets and 'laWities include Items directly attributable to a segment as well as those lhat can be allocated on a 
reasonable basis. Unallocated items comprise mainly investments (other than investment property) and related revenue, loans and 
borrowings and related exoenses. cnrporate assets (primarily the Company's headquarters) and head oflice expenses, and income tax 
assets and liabilities. 

Segment capital expendituie is lhe tolal cost incurred during me period to acquire property and equipment, and intangible assets other 
than goodwill. 

P Employee benefits 
1 Bonusas i 
Tlie Group recognizes a liabilitv and an expense for bonuses, which are based on agreements with employees or according to management , 
decisions based on Group perfon -nince goals and on individual employee performance. The Group recognizes a liability where contractually 
obliged or where past practice has created a constructive obligation. *•" 

2 Share-based payment transactions *•*-
The fair value of options granted to employees to acquire shares of the Company is recognized as an employee expense or capitalized * 
if directly associated with development of trading property, with a corresponding increase in equity. The fair value is ineasured at grant J ^ j 
date and spread over the peiiod during which the employees become unconditionally entitled to the options. The tair value of the options ^ 
granted is measured using a binomial model, inking into account me terms and conditions upon whicti the options were granted. Tlie ' -
amount recognized as an expense is adjusted to reflect tiie actua) number of share options that vest excepl where forfeiture is only due ' 
to share pnces not achieving the threshold for vesting. 

Where the terms ot ar equity-settled award are modified, me minimum expense recognized is the expense as If tne terms had not been "•' 
modified. An additional expense is recognized for aiiy modification, which increases the total fair value of the share-oased payment 
anangement. or is oUierwise beneficial to the employees a» measured at me date of modification. 

The fair value of the amount payable to employees in respect of sharebased payments, which may be settled In cash, at the option of 
me holder. Is recognized as an expense, with a corresponding increase in liability, over the period In which the employees become 
unconditionally entitled to payment. The fair value Is re measured at each reporting date and at settlement date. Any changes in the fair 
value of the liability «ire lecognired as an additional cost in personnel expenses in the income statement. As at balance sheet date 
share-based payments which may be settled in cash are options granted to only one person and can I» cash settled at the option of 
me holder. See also note 26. 
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NOTE 3 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Q Earning per share 
Tho Group presents basic ancl diluted eamings per share (EPS) data for its Ordinary Shares. Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the prolit 
or loss attributable to ordinary shareliolders of the Company by the weighted average number of Ordinary Shares outstanding during the 
period. Diluted EPS is doterniiiied by acjuslmg tho profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareliolders and tin; weighted average number 
of Ordinary shores outstanding tor the effects of all dilutive potential Ordinary Shares, which cemprise share options granted to 
employees. 

R New standards and Interpretations not yet adopted 
A number of new standards, amendmenis to standards and interpretations are not yet effective for the year ended Decemoer 31,2008, 
and have nol been dpplied in preparing these consolidated llnancial statements: 

> Amendment to IFRS 2 Share-l.-ascd Payment (eltective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1. 2009) 

The amendments lo the Slandara ctirify the detiniticn of vesting condi'Jons and Inlioduce the concept of non-vesting conditions. 
Non-vesting conditions are to be isiieclcd in grant-date laii value and failure to meet non-vesling conditions will generally result in 
ireatmem as a cancellation. Tiie Gioup has not yet completed its analysis of die impact uf the amended Standard. 

> Revised IFRS 3 Business Combinations (ellective (or annual periods beginning on or atter July l . 2009) 

Revised IFRS 3 is not lelevanl to lhe Grouo's financial statements as the Group does not have any interests m subsidiaries that will be 
affected by the revisions io the Slandaid. 

) IFRS 8 Operating Segments (ettective tor annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 20C9I 

Tlie Standard introduces the "managoment appruach" to segment reporting and requires segment disclosure based on the componenls 
of the enlity mat managemeni monitors in making decisions about operating matters. Operating segments are components of an entily 
about which separate linaneial infomiation is available mat is evaluated regularly by the Group's Chist Operating Decision Maker in 
deciding now to allocate resouices and in assessing performance. 

Currenlly lhe Group presents segment intormation in respect of its geographic and business segments (see note 38). The Group has 
not yet eompleled its analysis of the impact of the revised Standard. The Siandard will have no effeci nn the profit c loss or equily. 

) Revised IAS 1 Piesontalion ot Financial Slattnients (effective for annual periods beginning on or aftei January 1 , 2009) 

The revised Standard requires information in financial statements to be aggregated on me basis of shared characteristics and introduces 
_.. ft a statement ot coniprehensive incoine. Items of income and expense and components of other comprehensive income may be presented 

§ ']?- either in a single slalement of comprehensive income teffectively combining the income statemeni and all non-owner changes in equity 

" _; in a single statemeni). or in two separato statements (a separate Income staiement followed by n statemen; ot comprehensive 
# | i'1COmel" 
i..I4 The Group is currently evaluating whether to present a single statemonl of comprehensive income, or two separate staiements. 

' ^ ) Revised IAS 23 Borrowing Ctsts (etfective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1.2009; 
,.JSr • 
' j llie revised Standard veinoves the option to expense borrowing costs and requires the capitalization of borrowing costs that relate to 
j l *v ' quolilying assets (those thai take a substantial penod of time to get ready for use or sale). 
BI~- ":, 
"• ' • ' • $ The revised standard does noi have any impact Ihe Group financial staiements since the option in IAS 23 was nol adopied hy Ihe Group 
e.f0i in previous periods. 

l i - ' i i > Amendments to IAS 27. Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements (effective for annual periods beginning on or aftei 
;' ;'« January 1, 2009) 

The aniendinents reinuve Uie deliiiKion of "cüst nuilnod" currently sel out in IAS 27. and instead requtiu ail dividends from a subsid'ary, 
jointly controlled entity oi associate to be recognized as income in the separate financial statements uf the Investor when the right tu 
receive the dividend Is esiablished. 

In addition, the amendmenis provide guidance when the receipt of dividend income Is deemed to be an indicator of impairment. 

Amendments lo IAS 27 are nut relevani as Ihese are the consolidated (inancial statemenls of the Group. 

) Revised IAS 27 Consolidated ana Separate Financial Statements (effective (or annual periods beginning on or after July 1. 2009). 
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In the revised Standard the term minority inleresl has been replaced hy non-contrclling interest, ami is dclincd as "the equ-ty in a 
subsidiaiy not attributable, directly or mdirecUy. to a parent". The revised Standard also amends ihe accounting for non-controlling 
interest, the loss of control J ! a subsidiary, and lhe allocaUon of profit cr loss and other comprshensivc incoiTic hetwet-n Uie ccnttolling 
and non-coritrolllng Interest. 

The Group has not yet completed ils analysis of the impact of the revised Standard. 

> Amendments :o IAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation, and IAS 1, Presentation of Financial Statements (effective for annual 
periods beginning on or after January 1,2009) 

The amendments introduce ar exemption to me pfintiple ollieiviise applied 'n IAS 32 for Uie classification of instruments as equily; the 
amendments allow certain puttable inslruments issued by an entily that would normally be classified as liabilities lo be classified as 
equity if, and only if. mey meet certain conditions. 

The Bmendnients ate not relevant to the Gi uup's financial statements as none of the Gioup entities have issued puttable instruinerits 
that would be affected by the amendments. 

> Amendment to IAS 39. Financitu Instrunients; Recognition and Measurement (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 
July 1. 20091 

The amended Standard clarifies the application of existing principles that determine whether specific risks or portions of cash flows are 
eligible for designation in a hedging relationship. In designating a hedging relationship the risks or portions must be separately identifiable 
and reliably measurable; however, inflation cannot be designated, except in limited circumstances. 

The amendments to (A3 39 are not relevant to the Group's (inancial statements as the Group does not apply hedge accounting. 

> IFRIC 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes (affective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 200S; 

The kiterpretatiori expla ns hew entities that gmnl loyalty award credits io customers who buy goods oi services should account for iheir 
obligations to provide free or discounted goods or services i-awaros") to customers who redeem those award credits. Such entities are 
required to allocate some of the proceeds of the initial sale to the award credits and recognize these proceeds as revenue only when 
they have fulfilled their obligations. 

The Group does not expect the interpretation to have any impact on the consolidated financial statements. 

> IFRIC 15 Agreements for Uie Construction of Real Estate (effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1.20091 

IFRIC 15 clarifies that revenue arising from agreements for the construction of real estate is recognized by reference to the stage of 
completion of the contract aclivity in rhe following cases: 

1 The agreement meeis me definition of a construction contract in accoidance witii IAS 11.3; ?l, 

2 The agreement is only for die rendering of services in accordance wim IAS 18 (e.g. the entity is not required to supply constmction £ ^ . 
materials): and i f '» 

3 The agreement i» for the sale of goods but iha revenue recognition criteria of IAS 18.14 are met continuously as construction ; 
progresses. f t 

In all other cases, revenue is recognized when all of tlie revenue recoBnibon criteria of IAS 18.14 are salislied (e,g.. upon completion of 
construction or upon delivervi. 

The Group does nol expect the Inierpretstion lo have any impact on me consolidated financial statements. 

) IFRIC 16 Hedges ot a Net Investment in a Foreign Operation (effective for annual periods beginning on or after October 1. 2008) 

The (nterpretaiion explains me type of exposure that may be hedged, where In the group the hedged item may be held, whether the 
method of consolidation affects hedge effectiveness, the form the hedged Instrument may take and which amounts are reclassified from 
eouily to profit or loss on disposal of me foreign operation. 
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NOTE 3 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

R New standards and in terpreta t ions not yet adopted . 
IFRIC l l i is not relevant to lhe Ciioup's tinnnoial statements as the Group has nut designated any hedges o( a net investment in a 
foreign ooeraliun, 

) IFRIC 17 Distributions of Noncash Assets to Owners (effective prospectively (or annual penods beginning on or aftei July 15, 2009i 

The interpretation applies to non-reciprocal distributions of noncash assets to owners acting In Uieir capacity as owners. In accordance 
with the Interpretation a liability to pay a dividend shall be recognized when the dividend is approprialely authorized and is no longer at 
the discretion of the entity ancl shall be measured at the (air value of the assets to be distributed. The canying amount of the dividend 
payable shall be icmcasured at each reporting date, with any changes in the carrying amount recognized in equity as adjustments iu the 
amount of the distribution. When me dividend payable is settled me difference, il any, between the carrying amount of the asseis 
distributed and the carrying amounl of l'ie tiivideiid payable shall be recognized in profil or loss. 

As the Interpretation is applicable only from the date ol application. It will have no Impact on the financial statements fnr periods prior 
to the date uf adoption of me interpretation. Further, since it relates to future dividends that will be at the discreiion of the Board of 
direnors/shareholders it is not possible to deleimine the effects ot application In advance. 

NOTE 4 - DETERMINATION OF FAIR VALUES 

A numbei of the Group's accounting policies and disclosures require the determination of fair value, for both financial and non-financial 
assets and liabilities. Fair values hove been determined for measuienent and/or disclosure purpoaes based on the following mulhods. 
Where applicable, further infoimabcn about me assumptions made in determining (air values is disclosed in the notes specific to that 
asset or liability, 

Available-for-sale f inancia l assets 
The fairvalue of available for sale securities Is detennined with reference to an active market price quotation. 

Structured deposi t B a t fa i r value through prof i t or toss (see no le 11) 
The (air value of Slruclure 13 Is ueiennined using a valuation technique based on discounted expected cash flow, taking inlo consideration 
ractois such as the credit rating of the issuer, the prevailing and the expecled relevant interest rates. 

Investment property 
The fair value of investiiieni propetties is determined using an internal valuation technique. The method of the valua-Jons is based on 
discounted cash (lows and lakes into consideration tiie aciual rental income and the relevant markel yield. 

:f£-:^ Swap t ransact ions 
An external, independent valuation company, having appropriate recognized qualifications and recent experience in the field of the 
financial instruments being valued, values the Group's cross currency interest rate swaps every three months. 

.v ' 'V 
In deteiminfng Uie fair values of the cross currency inlerest rate swaps Hie external valuator estimates the expected future cash flow 

: ' / • ' based on the terms and matunty of each contmct using market interest rates (or a slmilai instrument prevailing at the measuremenl date. 

' . . , : . Long-term debentures at fa i r value through prof i t or loss 
The feir value of long-term debentures is principally determined with reference fo an active market price quotation, as the debentures 
art- traded in the Tel Aviv Stock Exchange CTASE"). However, due to the decrease in the volume of trading in the debentures, the increase 
in the spread between the BID and the ASK prices for the Company's debentures and lhe significanl increase in Uie risk premium 
attributable to the Company's debentures as of December 3 1 , 2008. the Company's management believes, based on professional 
advice received, lhat the quoied maiket prices of me debentures in the TASE ore not. considered to be the best, estimates for me fair 
value of the debentures as ol (he balance sheet dale, since mere are significant' indicabons mat the L-ade in the debentures as of the 
end of 2008 point lo lhe existence of an inefficient maiket and mat the niaiKet for the Company's debentures is no longer active as of 
December 3 1 . 2003. Accordingly, ihc Company determined the fair value of tho debentures using a valuation technique done by three 
different external valuation companies having appropriate recognized qualifications and recent experience in the held of the financial 
instruments being valued. TWo uf the valuators used the discounted cash flow metnod taking into consideration me terms and maiurity 
of the debentures as well as market interest rales and the credit risk ot the Company. Tlie third valuator used the Merton model, taking 
into consideration the Company assel value, risk free interest, siandard deviation of assets and exercise price. The debentures are 
measured as an average of these three valuations. The quoted market prices as of December 3 1 , 2008 of Series A Debenluies was 
0,563 NIS as opposed to 0.812 N1S using the valuation tedmique. The quoted market prices of Series D Debentures was 0.852 as 
opposed to 0.679 using the valuation technique. 

Share-based payments t ransact ions 
The fair value of employee share options is measured using a binomial lattice model. The (aii value of share appreciation lights Is 
measured using the Black Scholes formula. Measurement inputs Include share price on measurement date, exercise price of me 
Instrumem, expected volatiluy (based on weighted average historic volatility adjusted for changes expected due lo publicly available 
infoimation). weighted average expected life of the Instrumenls (based on historical experience and general option holder behavior). 

r. 
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expected dividends, and tnt riak free interest rate (based on government bonds). Service and non-market performance condirions 
sttttched to the liansbcliuns are not taken into account in determining tair value 

NOTE 5 - CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

Bank deposits 
Bank deposits 
Sank deposits 
Bank deposits 
SaiiK deposits 
Bank deposits 
Bank deposits 
Bank deposits 
Bank deposits 
Bank deposits 

Total 

- In euros 
- in Hungarian forints (HUF; 
- in Polish zlotys (PLN) 
- in Czech crowns (CZK) 
- in Indian rupee {INR! 
- in Latvian iats (LVLi 
- in USS 

in Romanian lei jRON'i 
- in Serbian dinar (RSD) 
• in other currencies 

IntwNt rat* M of 
DMMlbar 3 1 , 2008 

Mix of fixed and 
floating interest rates 

between 2.29X-3.94K -
sea (1) below 

3-4* 
1.8%-3.7K 

OV-1.5% 
Mainly 0% 

Mainly O/N RIGIOBOR-0.4X 
Mainly O/N U80R-0.4X 

Mainly 11V-15% 
13.25X-16.23X 

OX 

D w n n l n r t t . 
asm 
•ooo 

136,S7» 
156 

1.670 
196 

1,983 
441 

2,913 
1,461 

599 
32 

Dttt ivocr t i . 
•XXII 

" X » 

61,917 
143 

1.586 
1.174 

663 
350 
2S3 
16 5 

15 
105 

146,026 66,381 

1 Ae a' tMioncr fita«l tf&K,. c iM. in sn-tkr. U M tooosiHttl fo. perials ijctwenn wgmitfrt depocxs ami Oma moron' 'tooosili the Componr IV» dffoosil» m w w / i l commflreirv 
«Mif-ji. FiMif il^»>^ts ÏMUI nitgrol rMi^ s-oryr^ iwlntNt» 2.2^^ atid 3.9A\, «i.il« Hofltir^ tteiiosils tew nMHist rstnS l^u^eon 'ONIA -0.02*1 antl H U M innmns' EURIBOR - 0 3 J \ . 

Tlie Grouo's exrxjsure tti interest rate risk and a sensitivity analysis for financial asseis and liabililies are disclosed in note 34. 

NOTE 6 - RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSITS 

Short-tarm ractrictsd bank deposits 
In EUR 
In NIS 
In RON 
in USD 
In PLN 

Total short tarm 

M a r a n a M M O f 
D K M i h w 3 1 , 2 a 0 8 

See (1) below 
1.35* 

Ses (2) below 
USD LIBOR -0.2SX 

See (3) below 

D e c m l » . 1 1 , 
iOO» 

•ooo 

28.037 
488 

1.855 
431 

1.442 

Otceribw ' i i . 
2007 

X ' J 

22,364 

-
-

650 
2,141 

32,253 25,155 

Long-term rastrleiad bank deposits 

In euros 
In euros 

Total long term 

Mix of fixed and 
floating interest rates 

between 2.61X-4.79X -
ses (4) below 

OX 
34,218 

279 

34,497 

5.302 

-
5,302 

\ k 

The Group pledged the above testrictud bank deposits to secure banking facilities received, or to secure acquisition and conütruciion 
activities to be perforrrwd by the Group. Regarding the release of long-term restricted cash after balance sheet date, refer to note 39. 

J AR of OmwiKW J l , "JOUS. tins :mc*.nr. itifftKhs iM i * in wficrpw rfi ttapfld of l lw CdMnidm projtW-t lrt Buöisrast. flonv»rtn ror a titint «imuuM \:i. l .7 niilinn. Htii anciunt •«."!'• 
alWci*i*ii*Mili«if!':*ï ' u l c ^ - ï . W , >it ivW'ï.O'itü t l \ . i ' imflign is röSUfïleO ir. respecl trf Iwnk luci'rty ^ t t i i n i n t a^'-ed to fiiwntc UK Pfurert n üöerif:. Ceecn Raoutik: fhm 
arncurn coriibs 'in JAPVÏII ''t*btihA n w of ü^-o ftwiiil'5' EURIBOR +1.65>..Ttiu renicwMig amount vl £1.6 m'l-im i t zait' m wicrow in msfjea lo the purchMt ol one <jl ttK* 
Comoiiny's onf ict* m Boman-ti. tn* . anouni tjenrs an BUWÖW of E0MA -l-ÖFA. 

2 A s a l l « a m u o r 3 1 , -0138 «« nmomtt .^ RON 7.:'. «i:Hwni€.1.9rtrionHscoWi In «scrow in reaptci lo the mtrinm» of one of ihn Comoany» piojbCM m ftooMM.iw.fhf* ïimotini 
Intoift a H»*fl i f i t cw i yf l int-

3 As or üe t rwba J i . ^003 <K. .KIWUIU o.' Pt.^ 5.y tnt'on {£1.4 nmior}U cotti fn esoow * fe*ip*xt to the ourdww ol on* o' uw Coripany's dnjjociï m PiArniJtha mrouiti )w<*rt 
a f«w1 uriercst >;r s.sr.. 

-1 t » of Oaurittber ' i l . ."Otó -m «linouitt ^ t l ö e -.ri-Um is 'fl*imjw1 ki rospect & lhe »A>ip trnnsacrmn? [s«« nolo t t i ) The aewsiis MT» M<rry:i>g .'uaJ imeruüiT in »ii<><i f<*n&'« 
tiWv«*r J.7-?<:-<.Vt,"\. In •d'Jii.fcr.. (to amounl of f H.G ii-rt;*'; fs »ettrl«»J (n r«»sp*rt or tong Won fJeptMRi. fr.M»cf*H ^natrumants rstruchefl-s-i. rfv» amflunt t« mrryintf an 
inivvsl r^to or one month ÜÜOT [soe ^ J I » 1X|. 

The Group's exposure to interest rate risk and a sensitivity analysis for financial assets and liabilities are disclosed in no:e 34. 
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NOTE 7 - AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS 

Avallablelor-sale linaneial assets with a carrying amount of €10.3 rnillion are outstanding as of December 31, 2008 (2007; nil). The 
available-loi-sale linaneial iissids have stated interest rates of 4.4% to 8.8% and mature in a iange of one year to perpetual. 

As al Deccinbsi 3.1.21108, Uie Company rctiordod a capital reserve due to decrease in fair value of avaitablo-fnr-saie financial assets in 
a lotal omount ol Cl .-'I miliion, ano reallocated out of Ihis amount G0.3 million as an expense, due to noiMempoiary decrease In fair 
value in one of its markelablc securities. 

NOTE 8 - TRADE RECEIVABLES, NET 

Receivable aAIM - selling of Arena Plaza'1' 
Receivable Klepieire": 

Other receivables'" 
Less - Provision for doubtful debts 

Dacember 3 1 , 
2006 

C'OOO 

-
933 
(95) 

838 

bftf-miiliiw '11 
31J07 

.rooo 

254.363 
6.419 
1,925 

(112) 

262,595 

1. Cpiiwiud tfi /mtuon 2(i03 For tht'tóiiJnü oi Ari-na f^un rftfei-to rofft 3G. 
2 Co'taXttd in -'uly 200tJ, Thiï any.vni m .innnfy rwm thu tirico ad^Btnieni irom the uHe of NWO PlMd In C;och Ropubiic. 
? Tbf buii-nco-s (c:»'jvc"l aniama -etMiv.iftlh u-.jn laasss i-l spacs In.stwppine f-BWaw oiirt offices less nr^ Imjimtnuini hv doabtfiil clwöw. 

NOTE 9 - OTHER RECEIVABLES AND PREPAYMENTS 

'• • " ' > • * " 

:.:%f 

n 

Advances for plot purchase'-
Advance to suppliers"' 
Prepaid expenses 
VAT receivable"1' 
Partners in jointly controlled entities 
Accrued interest receivable 
Others 

Doeoml». 3 1 . 
1008 
€-000 

28,140 
12.910 

SIS 
15,706 

1,474 
1.203 

602 

Ocr'-inr*!! 3.1. 
2007 

C O M 

36.340 
4.984 

230 
5.848 

.117 
199 
384 

60.550 48,102 

1. As f,! DetttMbftr 3:,, ZiXiti. ulp udjig iiMiniy u.tv»fii:e uwiminliv"., Uie ninoiinl. r/ G22.9 ini.I.on loi l l » piax-liiKe ut piors 'n Itvlia, as iwn o: tha Ltinl vpi.iu/e with cl Irelei .«so 'u 
nolo 3S|. Oul DI liiid ni.i'.Hiiit. rvt nmouiit nf IM 3 fnll XIII i^ guarai,lec-d b>- EI. 
An adamoivji €5.^, niijlmr. .iro .nlviiih' e pn/inems In rosooci o' jiiots i i Poland. Rcmania ond the Cïech Rcp«l>rc 

2 4,, ul Ot.-.-ninncf :r.. 2U1JS inclitt! tv. iinrniy i)i1vii:ii.-c rij-.TTisrus in .immim ol C.7.9 irillion mninly to GenMrnl Conlraclnr!; In Ronuinia. Ul tn l . C^ern He,-nihl'c and ln.-£>i-
T .A.-Ï yl D«ceil*-i 3.:, 2003. VA' r.v.* îv:ib!e is .'.min:? tin» lo piojedï n Floiiiani'a IH7.5 niililonl. C,-Bf,h HenuOllc .^3.3 Miiliorij. Latvia (t ' . i . i rnillion) anri Pu&im] .«1.2 p-llio-ii. 

NOTE 10 - TRADING PROPERTIES 

Balance at January 1 
Acquisition and construclion costs 
Capitaliied interest 
Addiiion due to acquisitions oi subsidiaiy 
Change of translation reserve 
Trading properties disposed (see note 36) 

Balance al December 31 

Oecembe. 31 , 
2008 

COOO 

298,339 
254,965 

14,600 
58,531 
(8,932) 

(42,169) 

Cecuncor 3 1 . 
2007 

COO.; 

159,961 
336,588 

5.693 
53,848 

1450) 
(257,292; 

575,334 298,339 
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As of December 31.2008, the Cornpany has trading properties in Poland, Czech Republic, Latvia, India. Romania. Serbia, Bulgana. Hungary 
and Greece. Tne properties .ire m various stages of development as shopping and eniertairmient ceiners, residential uniis. offices or 
combination tliereof. Regaiding segment reporting, referto note 38. Tlie Company decided to discontinue the development of Ouna Plnza 
Entensiori projects m Budapest, Hungary. This disconlinudlion did nol have any affect on the (Inancial results ot the Company: 

Reganding the changes in glohü! markets and their effect on the development of trading properties under construction refer to note 36. 

A lotal canying amount of €.106 milion (2007: ml) of the above mentioned tradir^ property is secured against bank loans granted lo 
the Company by banks. 

As of December 31,2008. trading property Indude capitalization of share-based payments in the amount of €7.8 million (December 31, 
2007; €4.7 miliionj. 

Below is a summary table foi pioject status; 

Praitcl 

SuwalM Pla/a 

Zgorzelec Plaza 

Torun Plaza 

lodz 

Kielce Plaza 

Leszno Plaza 

Liberec Plaza 

Opava Plaza 

Roztony 

Riga Plaza 

Bangalore 

Chennai 

Koregaon Park 

Kharadi 

Trivandrum 

Casa Radio 

Tlmisoara Plara 

uoO'i:.cu> 

Pols.-id 

Poland 

Poland 

Poland 

Poland 

Poland 

Czech 

Republic 

Czech 
Republic 

Czech 

RepuhMc 

Latvia 

inoia 

India 

India 

India 

Inoia 

Romania 

Romania 

0 M . M > I I « ' ; I 

P-jirf-USU,' 
lniiif.n.t'.',n dale 

. l i in-06 

Dcc-06 

FBb-07 

S e p ^ i 

Jan-OS 

lun 08 

Jun-oe 

Jun-06 

MayOT 

Ffib-04 

Aug 08 

Aug-OS 

Oct-06 

Feb-07 

JUIV07 

Feb07 

Mar-07 

ZOO» 

Sh 

Rile IK 

100 

100 

100 

IOO 

100 

100 

100 

100 

LOO 

50 

23.75 
38 

100 

50 

50 

75 

100 

Aid iKiMing 

Nature or rfeMa 

Ownership 

Leasing For 25 years 

Perpetual leasehold 

Ownership/ 

Perpetual usufruct 

Perpetual leasehold 

Perpetual leasehold 

Construction lease 

period wtth subsequent 

ownership 
Construction lease 

period with subsequent 

ownership 

Ownership 

Ownership 

Ownership 

Ownership 

Ownership 

Ownership 

Ownership 

Leasing (or 49 years 

Ownership 

Gan«rAl nIfwm..i;on 

s:.rfiM oi 
rcgisiraUon 
ol and 

Completed 

Completed 

In process 

Completed 

Completed 

Completed 

Completed 

Completed 

Completed 

Completed 

In process 

In process 

Completed 

Completed 

Completed 

Completed 

Walts ol 
fti-nv. Ktalufc 

Building permit pending 

Building permit pending 

Building permit pending 

Building permit valid 

Planning pennit pending 

Planning penult pending 

Building permit valid 

Planning permit pending 

Planning permit valid 

Building permit valid 

GLAlni'l 

20,000 

13.000 

45,000 

80.000 

33.000 

16,000 

17.000 

13,000 

14.000 

49,000 
Under negotiations 2,100.000' 

Under negotiations 1,100.000 

Building permit valid 

Excavation permit valid 

Under negotiations 

111,000 

225.000 
195.000 

Planning permit pending 600.000 

Planning peimit pending 43,000 

t ; 

# 
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NOTE 1 0 - TRADING PROPERTIES 

PïïTt Kl»*!/ 
iiiJiröitf.'n 'tyie ^ ï c r s . : Natwn of rigti»s 

Genenii iVifcr-TutJcn 

Sumis i\' 
itigiAtroUoft SI rltuï iif 
ofWfHl rt.-f.-.vt auii'js 

Miercurea 

Ciuc Plaza 

lasi Plaza 

Siatina Plaza 

TBigu Mines Piazn 

Hunedoara Plaza 

Belgrade Plaza'' 

Kragujevac Plaza'' 

Spon Star Plaza'' 

Shumen Plaza 

Arena Plaza 

extension 

Uj Udvor 

Helios Plaza 

Romania 

Romania 

Romania 

RoiTI'lllIll 

RoriKiinii 

Serbia 

Sertna 

Serbia 

Bulgaria 

Hl.riiTary 

Hungary 

Greece 

Jul-07 

Jul-07 

Aug-07 

\1ar-08 

rev-08 

AujjO"' 

Oct 07 

DeC'07 

Nov-07 

iNovOS 

SepC7 

May 02 

100 

100 

100 

100 

100 

100 

100 

100 

100 

100 

35 

100 

Ov/nership 

Ownership 

Owtiaisiilp 

Ownership 

Ownersnip 

Leasing for 99 years 

Leasing for 99 years 

Leasing for 99 years 

Ownership 

Land use rights 

Ownership 

Ownership 

Completed 

In process 

Completed 

Completed 

Completed 

In process 

In process 

In process 

In piocess 

Completed 

Completed 

Completed 

Planning permit valid 

Planning permit 

to be submitted 

Planning pennit valid 

Under negouations 

Planning permit penoing 

Under negotiations 

Building permit valid 

Under negotintlons 

Planning pennit 

to be submitted 

Under negotiations 

Peimit under progress 

Building permri expired 

14,000 

02.000 

17.000 

30,000 

13,000 

70,000 

26.000 

45,000 

20,000 

40.000 

16.000 

25,000 

CBA tii. : I 
' i t rfticca df II'I the proiwitr. -»• rVtjit' no f nroum ir* •Btafrung :J:E-: I C O i roiUing in thesö irojscts after JI tipcïïori to discwitnuo üw iwjjoi wiioi:s -viUi n ^x-rjiflil 'Jc-.trlop^v; 

Thu Oonipdir.* *v f i . an c<* iii'j iMinnrt v - i H üp.z. iin rKiiC-unt oi Cl 7 miSitm its Bart cr r. ftcittoinem agrev^mtm •s.R'Wfi witn thfl ScrO-nr' dftviic»!^'. 

NOTE 11 - LONG-TERM DEPOSITS AND OTHER INVESTMENTS 

V4 
• fB 

( • . - • * , 

• ^ 

v. - '. 

Financial structure A ;' 
Fiiiiindal structure 8'" 
Long-term loan to associated Companies-
Chaiges to associated company 
Long-lerm deposits-'* 

Imaroct rate - Docambo. 31 ,2008 

0-11.5% 
6.2Sy»-12.S% 

6.76% 
0% 

2008 
COOO 

38.000 
9,864 
2.094 

351 
76 

Dfctoniaer.31. 
'^007 
ciion 

_ 
-

1.545 
367 

75 

50,385 1.987 

AmiKlut»* A Oii Kioniify 7B. :'00B tf* 'J'-TUI tiii-—(i h m b fi'ioriciel tf^ntaciion v-iih 3 nwjor US ixirtn ï i ippwwd Oy Üw US Bwcfrifnéf.f. ^roi-JIng to f,hW. ïïie tiniup imeateo 
,3*1 Hiiic'xjni of t37 W mi^iOii fü' ?i xxu':^ KÜ IE yt&rs !n d .loiü Wi'cii fJCGrs mtciesl of 11.5^ per .annum, fiayaote 10 Uif cxieir. trisJ Uw rionjln öotwecn uw rjC ^t-ars tuf* CMS 
tCanoMm Matudij' SwOpi anJ !ltt ten vM(-:. ftuco C MS i.-Tm^uKod f«i n ^aitv iinsn»i is w^ier ttwft the accniül harnet vih'K\-*ar. set at 0 Of: A. For tlnvs '.o ic+.icN 'Jw n w ^ ' \ 6 -CWI-Ï 
tlii.n Uw boiT-M -w inlprvi't.« -fci* Thft M" WitJi iJirt.our.l i«; 633 iVulr on JIKJ tho Iniftrrêsi is opynlile qua-ie.'ijr ^.«rnrtocMy Way 1J3. 2008. Tim fiiiatiam tint*, has 0 c*M opü"-! ïo 
rstlftiün :t;e ?:oit! «l p.r m wiMlf o-' f i«c.. i i r ?«. "•'.X l̂ er<i on ••at^ qtwrtef thertüfwr byEivrnfi at lease fiva ïjiisiieüï tla '̂a p'inr 'UtiCR.ïht> FVIncipiii ;•- lO'JW pi^erlttd yl MM&.''ttv 
Stmctiiifr iiqiirÊ!if.iilR£|ii:,J>(,i!i.in''Mi •siii'inir.Ht AT- -ICH to rn.>uiri'y Find-iciai insuumentr. ,)• fliT)on*ze'j cxtst.lhp fnirvAh-e c-t Uir s^n(^iirf;,t).ist;'l IK: the hanh ronflmMticn.aj 
o' üPLMHber . ï l . .:C«)S M M 0 7 . infirm 

Stntf.ti«c fï - On rohrii«ry 3ti. ;cj.':a tntï ilnnm ^nyirr. i iro a ii'-oiKial i'3=i«wrtroi* with Uw -jomt' b*ow. accouling 10 rf-idi m i Crosm - ivf^pi i .01 aovimn ;rf Si . i » itfwt 1" ,1 Met© 
wltich oyya « voiuirnó int^rcat lüihfcü !;i lhe ILT- /«xrri euro CMS v ie subject to «) minimurn interest oi 3J!3% r).a und 3 inavtimin'. jitJerwvi cl 12.^0% o.a. fhe Pmviftrf :s .UWii 
pRHcct&d .11 V.iturttv. Tfi" .iVffcEt •* uiyiiitfe niifHiyWly. «"inpiootnfl ni Fooruary 19. 2009 LinJ up to «nd iir.IijiJlng February 19. '201S inmluritv '.Ir-iiej. Struciure 3 is |Jn.*™rrtFö in 
thi: fliijrvJ.ll S'iltvnioit nt U t «tlui- IHt'iu^! profit r.nc l^ss, ffl. rlrtcnnining tnr i j ir values o( tlift avucturcit dRnosrta ffifcr to 'WtP •'. As of fV.*-tiWOcr >t - ' ^ W Uw Cf.r.'tiw.v 
h'̂ piUHd 0 ".:« vuiiifl I tw ftt t-J "i nur on •» .-«•spv:! lo -srniciü't.' 9. 

Thr rcniinnv is •ntiui'i.H) to •w.a.iM "riiajn .mioim; -jï rnsti up-rt ^eu^esi (rrnn the issidrig b^riii as i:a]l;iierBi (o' '.Xv a«Jl i (ocüitics lakt;- to firiürax twirl nl ihr-jc .\t»,jciiin,5. 
thu ainouni Dt ihti CDiialcr;"» ,s ccrnr-nwa t o j w l cn th" iair \0lw0 of lt\ö smictures ca&ulattxl t« Uw iifiuirig tisnU. As 0} biilanca shetl '.ht, Conipniiy steüred touit atroyrrt 

. Of Cl'l.S rniUuin in mywri. :•• noK J.:I;-.;!*-JI*» iMrw («Is''» la-K; lï'-f. ^ ^ « 1 ( 1 ^ tf«* P'^dil feftjliiy taUcr. tn ÜTÜIW.O I « ^ r.f thi'.si.. «u^cTunis. rc^:f ?'i nrj:rj 1 / . 
Tii-:lo.*r. :P,-JIII' ut lin: ttfEJf4;i!>;fH:M-HM*i':,s la'.rf.» .^•'•VMini'.Kïiüit rirti'-.a C^t i l i pwanniim as .•;! (l«t;oo)6irf 31 , SOH*. «mü 21M)'.*. "ff* iritcrt,*!,;. hfüfj, oiüt VMS i^i-ftni-iTi'"*:»! 
tr».- botl". puriioiv 10 theitvn! venruro Trur toon hiA naflKii»^ iii&tijri()r dale: liowwor, ir.f; Cuiiipiiiycdliniati'alttc naturiiy LJJKÖ to ho not «Ari.er trwtn JOia. 
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NOTE 12 - PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT 

G<wt 
Balance at Decembei 3 1 . 3006 
Additions 
Disposals 
Rec.ldssiiisat on 
Balanco a l December 3 1 , 3007 
Additions 
Disposals 

Reclasslitcauor. 
Exchange rate effec. 
Balance at December 3 1 , 2006 

Balance at Oecember 31 .2006 
Additions 
Disposals 
Reclassification 
Balance at December 3 1 . 2007 
Additions and inipa.rrnents 
Disposals 

Reclassification 
Balance at December 3 1 . 2008 

Carrying amounts 
A: December 31 .2007 

At Deceniber 31 ,2008 

Lmd are) buildings 

3.356 
4,429 

-
-

7,785 

-
(530) 

(198) 

-
7,057 

334 
367 

-
-

701 
1.622 

-
(34) 

2.289 

7,084 
4.768 

Fqu.pment 

2,742 
714 

(455) 
(478) 

2,523 
1.874 

-
198 
(23) 

4.572 

1.889 
332 

(396) 
(491) 

1,334 
534 
(29) 
34 

1,873 

1.189 
2,699 

t i w r i i S i M M l S U H ^ 

694 

-
-

478 
1.172 

86 

-
-
-

1,258 

414 

-
-

491 
905 

23 

-
. 

928 

267 
330 

-Vroiano 

3.921 
4,734 

-
-

8,655 
4,581 

(3,921) 

-
(216) 

9,099 

526 
204 

-
-

730 
1,116 

(743) 

-
1,103 

7.925 
7.996 

Tmni 

10,713 
9.877 

(455) 

-
20,1.35 

6.541 
(4,451) 

-
(239) 

21.986 

3,153 
903 

(396) 

3,670 
3.29S 

(772) 

-
6,193 

16.465 
15,793 

Major aciiuisitions. disposals, anc impainnent of fixed assets throughout lhe year ended December 31. 2008: 

) In June 2008 the Company sold its airpiane 'or a tolal consideration of €2.5 million, and recorded a loss of €0.7 mlHion from tne 
iransaction. An impainnent of €0.7 million was recorded in respect of one ofthe Company's airplanes. 

) In August 2008, and as pait of the joint venture with El, the Company also purchased 50% of an airplane. 

> Tli» Company nas iinprfireil lis headquarters otlce building in Bucharest, Romania in a total amount of €1.5 milion in view of an 
updated vnluabon. 

NOTE 13 - INVESTMENT PROPERTY 

0«MnilMr 3 1 , O a w n w 3 1 . 
M 0 8 .IOT 

fOOO COOO 

Balance at January 1 
Disposals 
Balance at December 31 

12,970 

12,970 

26,654 
(13,6841 
12.970 

Investment property at December 31. 2008 and 2007 includes one logistic building in Prague that is leased to third parties. Generally, 
teases contain an initial pertod of 1 to 10 years. Subsequent renewals are negotiated with the lessee. The contracts aro denominated 
In. or linked, to the euro Por tbe Company s policy lo determine the feir value of the investment property see note 4. The yield used for 
die valuation was 8 1% and 7.7% for 200S and 2007, respeclively. 
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NOTE 14 - PROPORTIONATE CONSOLIDATION 

Tlie followiii[i tiiiicunts arc included in Ihc. liroup's financial statements as a resull of proporlionate coiiscliaation of coniiwuies. 

sooa .'oo? 
cooo c'non 

Current assets 
Noncurrent assets 
Cunenl liabilities 
Noivcuircnt liabilities 
Minority interest 

160,609 
4,016 

34,614 
67 

3,008 

For tfio year ended 

2008 

1,116 
2,828 

(1.712) 

40,230 

3.795 

Tar thi; veot ir^Jtni 

21X17 

37,207 
30,734 

6,473 

Income 
Expenses 
iLossj/gain alter tax 

Regarding lis: of jointly controlled entities and percentage of ownership and control, see note 4 1 . 

NOTE I S - EQUITY ACCOUNTED INVESTEES 

'̂M 

Is 

. I * " " ' : 

•I; 

i 

The Comparv osvns 50% ot the sbnre capital of Ercorner Kit. ("Ercomer"). The additional 50% Is held By a laige commercial bank. 
Ercorner, through its 60% owned subsidiaiy Alom Sziget 2004 Kft. ("Alom Szigef), owns a plot of land on lhe Hajogyad Island located 
in Budapest. Ercunier is a holding company wilh no aclivity ot its own, and in addition, decisions in Alom Sdget are required to be taken 
wilh a 75% majority, thus Ercorner doos not hold control over Alom Sziget. In view of the above, the investment in Mom Sziget is 
presented according lo tlm equity method. Fm the progress in the project refer to note 36. In respect o l comini-ments connected with 
Ercorner refer to note 35. 

TTIR Company Is also holding, tlirough the Holding Comiiany ofthe BAS Group ('Plaza BAS B.V."), a 25% ownership in Malibu invest s.r.l 
("Malibu'"). Malibu is engaged .n 'lie development ol residential project in Bucharest, Romania. 

The composition ol investment in bom Ercomer nnd Malibu are shown in the table below: 

Coinposillon; 
Cost of Investment' 
Cumulative Share of profits (losses) 

Total 

Olher Information on equity-held subsidiaries (not adjusted tor tho percentage ownership beld by the Company!: 

Assets 
Llobiiities 

Net assets 

Revenues 
LOSS 

2008 
< 0 0 0 

740 
(552) 

188 

by the Company!: 
Decombei 3 1 . 

2008 
« 0 0 0 

21,522 
21,210 

312 

26 
(1,947) 

tlsr^iiiiiftr^l. 
30Ü7 

« 0 0 0 

740 
389 

1,129 

OfiCumtierTl. 

•Mi 1 

«•ooo 

19,496 
1.7.238 

2.258 

27 
(38 
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NOTE 16 - DERIVATIVES 

Cross correney interest rate swap tramaeilon aeries A Debentures. 
On July 9.2007, subsequent "0 the issuance ol debentures for pioceeds of N1S 305.14 million (approximately €53.3 million) (see nole 
22). die Group entered, ccnsistant with its nsk management policies, into cross currency interest rale swap with por vaiue of NIS 305,2 
million, Tlie Conipany wii1 pay si> month EURIBOR + 2.19% and receive 4.5% (S% until Februaiy 2008, reduced atter (isimg of tnose 
debentures in die fel-Aviv Stoc* L"«change ("TASE')) interest on the MIS par value linked to fhe Israeli CPI with the same amortization 
schedule as lhe debentures. At sach payment date of the annual instalments of the debentures the Coinpany will icceive the pnncipal 
ainount in NIS and «III pay fhe prncipal amount in euros (subject to the amortization schedule). 

As at tht date of these financial slatemenls, the Company has pledged a security deposit in the amoun: of €5.3 million. 

The derivalive is measured mt fair value al each balance sheet date with changes in the fair value ais charged lo Ihe imjii» oi loss. The 
fair value of the swap, relating to series A Debentures, based on a valuation technique done by an external valuation company, was 
€10.1 million. For tlie input used io the waluaüon technique refer to note 34. Regaiding the SBitlement of the abovementioned cross 
currency transaciion refer tn note 39. 

Crow currency IntarMt rate swap transaction «ariea B Dabanturas. 
Cn March 31.2008. subsequent to the issuance of series B Debentures for proceeds of NIS 713.5 million (approximately €137 million), 
tiie Group entered, consistent with its risiv management policies, into a cross currency interest rate swap with par value of NIS 100 
million with an Israeli Inancial instltulions. The Conipany will pay six-month EURIBOR - 3.62% anri receive 5.4% interest linked to 
the Israeli CPI with the same amortization schedule as the series B Debentures. A: each payment dale ol the annual instalments 
of the debentures lhe Company will receive the principal amounl In NIS and will pay the principal sinount in euros (subied io llie 
amortization schedule). 

As atthe date of these nnancial statements, the Company has pledged a security deposit in tne amounl ot €1.8 million. 

In addiuon and on tlie some date, ihe Croup entered, consistent with its risk managemont policies, into cross currency inteiest rate 
swap with par value ot NIS 200 n illion with another Israeli financial institution. Tlie Company will pay six month EURIBOR * 3.52% and 
receive 5.4% interest linked to tne isroeti CPI with the same amortization schedule as the Series 8 Debentures. At eaoh payment dote 
of the annual instaliiients of the debcrtures me Company will receive principal amount in NIS and will pay the principal amount In euros 
(subject to the amoriizaiion schetiuie). 

As ul iiie date of these financial statemems, the Company has pledged a security deposit in lhe amount ol €3.6 million. 

On April 2, 2008. ihe Group entered, consistent with Its risk management policies, into two cross currency Interest rate swaps with par 
value of NIB 278.8 million and NiS 134.7 rnillion, with anottier Israeli flnancial institution. The Conipany will pay between six month 
EURIBOR + 3.59% and 3.66*. respectively and will receive 5.4% interest linked to the Israeli CPI with the same amortization schedule 
as the Series B Debentures. At each payment dale of lhe annual instalments of the oebentures tlie Company will receive the principal 
amount in NIS and vvill pay ihe pnncipal amount in euros (subject to the amortization sehadule). 

As al the oale of these nnancial statements, the Company has pledged a security deposit In the amount of €7.4 m.ilion. 

On July 21.2008, the Company enloreo, consistent with its risk management policies, into a cross cunency inlerest rate swap iransaction 
with par value ol NIS 85 million with an Israeli fmanc 31 insbtution. The Conipany will pay six-month EURIBOR + 3.52% and will receive 
5.4% imerest linked lo the Israeli CPI with the same amortization schedule as the additional series B Oebentures. At each payment date 
ot the annual instalments of the debenlures the Conipany will receive the principal amount In NIS and will pay the principal amoont in euros 
(subject to (he amortization schedule). 

As at rhe riats of these finaiirini stntements, the Company lias pledged a security deposit in tlie amount of €.1.55 inilliQii in regard of ^ 
the above mentioned cross currency transaction. II -

Tlie denvatives aro measured at fail value ai each balance sheet date with changes in the fair value ore charged to ine pioltt or loss. « 
The aggregate fair value ol the swaps, reiahng lo series B debentures, based on a valuation technique done by an external valuation r ' 
company, was €10.2 million. For the input used in the valuation technique refer to note 34. 
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NOTE 17 - INTEREST-BEARING LOANS FROM BANKS 

This note provides Infonnation about the comractuol tonus ot the Groups interest-bearing loans and borrowings, which are measured 
at amortized cosr. "or more inlormation about the Group's exposure to interest rate, foreign currency and liquidity risk, see note 34. 
All interest bearing loans fiom haul's aie of balances of secured bank loans and are all denominated in euros. Terms and coiidlliuns 
of outstanding loans wero as follows: 

Secured 
Secured 
Secured 
Secured 
Secured 
Secured 
Secured 
Secured 
Secured 

bank loan 
bonk loan'1 

bank loan 
bank loan 
bank loan 
bank loan 
bank loaiv-' 
bonk loan''1 

bank loan'1-' 

Total inteiest bearing liabilities 

Nominoi ml-jrei'. raw 

3M EURIB0R+1.8% 
3M EURIB0Rt2.7% 
3M EURIBOR-i-0.5% 
3M EURIBOR+4,5% 

SM EURIBOR-r4.75% 
3M EURIB0Rt2.5% 
SM EURIB0R+0.4« 

12M EURIBOR+0.4% 
3M EURIB0R+1.75% 

Vea ol iiiótuiily 

2014 
2014 
2009 
2009 
2009 
20ÜS 
2023 
2018 
2016 

December 31 . 
2008 

€000 

20,189 
38,640 

5.095 
3,633 

700 
750 

26,225 
10,000 

5,456 

t.M.'.iiitir-r ?3 
.••(107 

Cuiiyi/ifr 4iv,ot.:rn!. 
«'OO'." 

_ 
_ 
-
„ 

_ 
-. 

_ 
5,870 

110,688 5.870 

I Rfltwr ;<! ivy» .(5 {iii 'o; .ial.. •'!. vr. ,1 a i&r t i o' i:irtr.;ri cc>vr;isncr. rög.nrdinjl this lain. 
7 Attairad iWiif» Miwir. '.nk-.r.';»r»Sj-w( rf .•.rni.'.:iin;<--
3 ifttvuü.n/, £0.4 r-A ii.11 r.timMt j;-n. • c ui .!iig ten it iMtülliifri. 

NOTE 18 - TRADE PAYABLES 

Ci.'i;c-!K,>' 

Constiuction related suppliers 

Oilier trade payables 

Mainly in EUR, 
CZK, RON, PLN 

December 3 1 . 
2008 

«'000 

22,482 
715 

23,197 

mm 
COOO 

18.324 
1,108 

19.4.32 

NOTE 19 - AMOUNTS DUE TO RELATED PARTIES 

w 

Short te rm 
El Group - ullimate parent Company - charges 
El Gruup - ultimate parent Company - l oan -
Other related parties'* 
Vice chairman of El 
EUL (parent Companyf-

Currcncr 

EUR, USO 
EUR 
EUR 
INR 

EUR, USO 

December 31 . 
2008 

t '000 

2,804 
(16,750) 

874 
1,106 

14,714 

Ct'lCftiuer : i l . 
5007 
eooo 

5.309 

-
1.985 

762 
15,047 

Long te rm 
EUL. - parent Company'"' 
El Group - ultimate parent Company - loan-' 

EUR, USD 
EUR 

2,748 

3,837 
(3,837) 

23,103 

1.871 

1.871 

.1 ACLOid.iiji trt niyf-eiiwii,! f-ihK:I 'V:i-Ar;r-n liir- CoiTio-mv onrl >.s co!llii.iirtig shDmhoWere {aoo aiif. note 35), the Ccmciny <* ilfsetting 15 uDst-from t-an 10 Fl w-ll, ill, -iuti'iilifls 
iindydum iolwi:! 03 -.il o^rt ui irv: CIHHJKit-.'i: .si;i);j.ij,.'ir.^; «. r-ol.ir.dl. The iip&iniam loar. hen's intsrfisl ratR of uiroe nmiulii' PJWDOK r l.r»2bS*. Pou of tho ollse! :a nfimnii 
iliön-v.1.»!. lidl^lilics. iriO timl is ^Ir-^BlMl l>,« i i?^ i u m featVn^ 'jl I'm r-oi>K3iiy •.sr*/.(d.s ils ülipnl aril innrftn v.-onii.-illi.'g al.ürèliiiltlRi. l-i 'iOO.' liriöiicii.1 suitciivji.i s the- uuii.'.-ti,-, 
nsii 'AW. ivüiiontüd na uun t i ' ill»; m-icri ns^oiii ol me Conipiiny. 

2 The otine rt!cc-;-.oc 'iom Cl3,t U!tr,ir,ci.rirl (l.v. Itr-e ilium sliörc-TiOidor) ("tui. ' I. ficar interest Ql mrao montlis' USD ÜBÜP to. tliroc ^lonihs' l JRIEtir.) iilua .i intirftin r,I l:fti<.-etri 1.5V 
nml 2.0?* («Korwri ifnuft-M MI . , oa •.' Der-éri;-,. 11,2t"jilS. r-'V-i Decwiiiier 31. 20O7 is 4.S% ,1.0 and e a l ' p..i ip.iocctivr,lyl. U^uis j 'X r'iiuir.'iiic Iwul.T, IJIOIA-IIIIH . I I Uio i l t tov. 

':1 Oltl^i ••.•Ib'UIil 1 ^ '.'us ;?li?'..l llüt^Hly '& UK; C>.Mj'.il Ccnlbrs gioup. a M>Mll uf tl'Jinuvn-.es -AlilUl oiuvtllen inuli;t.i. UltUltlg^lli&Iit U*!v^Ha. Ujlitrulled 17,' lilt, ulliiriatiii '^Dtfllt C'JI!:pni r.'o 
ajntiDlliiig nh.-w.'.ht.liloi. 
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NOTE 20 - PROVISIONS 

Hrrw^'.in in ProM^^r. -n 
antBtA ai toaucn uf liotvi-ly 
liflBiM'f !0 * « • ic «««"« 

i>3vKiir>ient=ii ul irjtl. if i and 
iiKIII-.llor prondr'y 

Current provis ions 
Balance at Innuary 1.2008 
Provision used during the penod 

Balance at Decembar 31 ,2008 

16,750 
(332) 

16,418 

786 
(219) 

967 

17,536 
(55.1) 

16,986 

The Group .nrovision in respect ol liabilily ;o the Romanian government is due lo the Company's comntitment to consti ucl an office 
building for the Bucharest municipality as par: ol the public-private partnership agreement In respect to the Casaradio Project in 
Bucharest. The provision is expecled to be sealed tiy 2012. 

NOTE 2 1 - OTHER SHORT-TERM UABIUTIES 

Short t e r m 
Obligaiion in respect of plot purchase"1 

Advance payment received - sho r tenn 
Accrued expenses and cormiissicns'1 ' 
Accrued bank interesl 
Government institutions and fees 
Salanes and related expenses' ' 
Partner in joint controlled company and subsidiaries , ! 

Other 

Total 

Mainly EUR 
EUR 
EUR 
EUR 

HUF. PLN, CZK 
EUR. HUF, PLN. CZK. USD 

HUF. PLN. CZK 

Oecember 3 1 , 
201» 

C000 

7,553 
593 
SIS 
539 
333 

2.156 
1,779 
205 

13,673 

bcc.Hriljer .1.1. 
awr 

vooo 

21.413 
1.914 
6.923 

44 
508 

3,123 
1.170 

105 

35,200 

1 TOOd Ircliirlns ji.lO:i,l«:. * mype ^ or I ie C r o Redo orojecl in Bucliaast Rnmuiin - «S.4 nui-'ion. Tta feilirif, Irun .-007 m rhK* lo t l * pa/mdin of iioriihlM* óvt. io tbc i iurr laM 
.,f u i r t i .-n Rm.HHtm anü 3uia.-.tfi. 

.': jrt07 - Included iiuevy MCUU-II a i»i»r..ir.; o' 3At :fig ihe Aienu Piiua shopin'nficeme. - £5.7 million *l\k.li w » rmid in Jarwdry 2008. 
3 ZOO? - lncNjd.id UKK^on I M nuu-^enirm oonusc^ - C2.S iniilion. out ol wMct. £1.9 vws Held n tho couree ol 20OS 
1 200(i - .-cniiles -rvwiv ütólir.-:-. rvsoect M aartner 'n S*S orojeci 

Long t e n i 
Advance paymenl received 
Tiade payables 

long ierm' EUR 
EUR 

D«c«mlMr31, 
ZOOS 

«'000 

332 
67 

399 

>«nuw' 31. 
aoor 

COOB 

355 

355 

1 Advonrc o,Mnont racer.-Mf r.i.-iKiiy I-oti. Iht, Prague ï iRgistiCöjildingrtCïecïi Repuollc. 

NOTE 22 - LONG-TERM DEBENTURES AT FAIR VALUE THROUOH PROFIT OR LOSS 

On July 5, 2007, the Company agreed with Israeli institutional investors to Issue en aggregate principal amount of NIS 305 million 
(approximalely €53 niillion) par value of series one of unsecured non-convertible debentures to institutional investors In Israel. The 
debentures are repayable in eight equal annual instalments, on December 3 1 of each of the years 2010 to 2017, inclusive. 

The debentures bear an annual interest rate of 4.5%. Inlerest Is payable semi-annually in arrears on Denember 3 1 and July 1 of each of 
tiit- years 2 0 0 7 to 2017 (the lirst instalment to bo effected on Oecember 3 1 , 2007 and the last instalment to be effected on Qecemoer 
3 1 . 2017). The debentures are linked to the increase in the Israeli Consumer Price. Index. 

As the Company's functional currency is the euro, the Company has hedged the future expected payments in NIS (principal and interest) 
to conelate wiih the euro using a cross currency interest rate swap (see note 16). 

The debentures will be repaid by the Company, inter alia, at the option of the trustee or the holdcis of tlie debentures It t l ie Company 
delays the publication of its financial reports for more than 60 days from the dates provided by applicable law or if the debentures cease 
to be rated tor a period of more than 60 days. 

l i . . 

Ji 
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NOTE 22 - LONG-TERM DEBENTURES AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS 

On Febniary 13, 2008. the Conipany completed an offering to tbe public in Israel of unsecured nonconvertablt Series B Debentures 
('Series B Debentures") in ;nc aggregate pnncipal amount of NIS 713.5 million (€137 million) and Iheir listing in TASE. Tlie debenlures 
are reoayabfc in five equal annual iiistalrnents, on July 1 ot each of the years 2011 to 2015. inclusive. The debentures bear an annual 
interest rate of 5.4%. Inteiest is payable seni-annuolly in arrears on July 1 and December 31 of each ol the yeais 2008 lo 2014 ard 
July 2015. The debentures are linked lo he increase in lhe Israeli Consumer Price Index. 

In April 2008 the Company agreed witl; Isiaeii Investors to issue an additional approximately NIS 85 million (approximately CIS miilion) 
in principal nmounl af Series 3 Debentures (the "Additional Debentures') for an aggregate consioeralion of approximately NIS 85 million 
(approximately £16 iniilion). Vhe turn is óf the Additional Debentures are Identical to the ternis of the Series B Debentures issued lo the 
public under Plaza's prospectus dated February 2008. 

As of the balance sheet dale. Series A Debentures and the Series B Debentures are rated Aa3/ negative hy Midroog Ltd. (an aftlliale of 
Moodys Investor services), on a local scale, and the Series A Debentures are rated ilA-VPositive hy S&P Maalot Ltd. on a local scale. 

The fair valua of Debentures A nnd Debenture B was evaluated by management, using three external independent valuators using the 
discounted cash flow model, of which one valualür usee the Merton model. 

The main assumplions used arc- described as follows; 
Di-tiflmut! A Docent-jfe n 

Discount rate 
Standard deviation of assets iyeariy basis! 
Risk-free interes; rate 
Remaining contractual life 
Exercise price (e'OOO) 

7.7*-l.?.73% 7..1%-13.2.3% 
42% 42% 

3.45% 3.17% 
9 6.5 

116,961 246.247 

Company's asset value: (COOO) 342.325 

Regaiding the changes in latings subsequent to the balance sheet date refer to note 39. For aetermining the fair value of the debentures 
refer to note 4, 

NOTE 23 - DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES 

' • W 

'mi 
.;••• , , i s 

Recognized deferred tax assets and liabilities 
Deferred taxes recognized at o attributable to the following: 

Liabilities 
Invesiment pioperty 
Property and equipment snd other asseis 
Debentures and structures at fan value ihrough profit or loss 
Derivatives 
Impaired receivables and others, net 
Tax value of losses carr^forwanis recognized 
Deferred tax assets not provided 

Net deferred ta» liability 

Decamber 31, 
2008 
«'000 

726 
382 

4,614 
5,182 

32 
(8,4431 
3,698 

OftCufnLwicSl, 
S-'X;.' 

C'OOO 

646 
217 

-
-

(1.51 
(5,5221 
5,226 

6,191 

Unrecognized deferred tax assets 
Deferred lax assets have not been recognized in respect of the following item: 

Tax losses 

December 31. 
2008 
e'ooo 

3,698 

552 

December 31, 
?oor 

(•'OOO 

5,757 

The dtKluctihle temporary diffeiencos do not expire under current tax legislation. Deferred tax assets have not been recognized in 
respect ol these items because it .i not probable lhat futuie taxable profit will be available against which tne broup can utilize the 
bentrtits Uiere Irom. 
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The deciease in the ;ax asse; not incoginzed between 2007 ana 2008 is attributable to Iwo major items: 

1 Utilization of losses in the Nc-iiedands - ut 2008 lhe one «seal lax unit of lhe Company and its Dutch subsidiaries are expecled lo 
utilize losses in an approximate ainount of €14 million (€3.7 million in tax value). Tlie Company a eslnrabiig. due lo significant 
finance expenses winch are to be incurred from 2009 onwards, that It will continue to incur losses for tax purposes. 

2 Tlic above is mainly offsoi by generating new losses with a total tax value of approximately €1.4 million. 

t i i ft !.,* '..*«.;. ''a'..*.! '.lf,»«r; 

40,087 

(piry oate status oi i 

2i i"q 

146 

ax losses to c 

3010 

848 

e cam» >a rorwara 

2011 

1.747 

is as io lows: 

jorz 

692 

-•01.1 

1.979 

Atl« 2 0 1 -

34,675 

Tax losses are mainly generated by operations in Hungary, Romania and the Netherlands. 

NOTE 2 4 - E Q U I T Y 

Ordinary Shares of par volue C0.01 each 

Issued and fully paid: 
Al the beginning of the year 
OpUons exercised to shares 

At the end of the year 

0oeen*er31. 
2008 

Rbmariis Number « f e t a m 

1,000,000,000 1.000,000.000 

Oecenvxir 31, 
3007 

NijoAer r l *lv*red 

292,403,787 
See (a) below 27,594 

292.346.087 
57.700 

292,431,381 292.403.787 

,1 ll idw-:Airiba'il lei.j l>iaui,rter*:?r.O'.:503.*7|,v?5trdorrt'OiKww«x»rcte^ 

Capital reserve due to share option plan 
Capilal reserve is In respect of Employee Share Option Plan ("ESOP") in the total amount of €24,955 as of December 31. 2008 (2007: 
€13.679), Regaiding tne aniendmerit of ESOP and ils effect on the capital reserve refer to note 36. 

Translation reserve 
The translation reserve compnses all foreign exchange dilferences ansing from the translation of balance sheet items of the Company's 
subsidiaries in India. 

Dividend policy 
The payment of dividends is dependent on the financial performance and condition of the Group, the Company's financial position and 
the capital and anticiuated working capital requirements of the Group. The distribution of dividend is based upon tne statutory report's 
distributable results and retained earnings of the Company Itself. 

Subiect to mandatory ptovisions of Dutch laws, the dividend policy will reflect the long-term earnings and cash flow potential of the 
Qoup. taking into account the Group's capital requirements, while at the same time maintaining an appropriate level of dividend cover. 

Subject to all of '.hese factors, and where it is otherwise appropriate to do so, the directors Intend to make distributions out ofthe annual 
net profits (after deduction nt all directly related costs) derived from transactions tor the sale of projects developed liy tlie Group during 
ary financial year, following the approval of the financlai statements as of December 31. 2007 and onwards. 

Dividends are expected to lie paid at the «ue of 25S on the first €30 million of sucn annual nm profits, and thereafter at the rats of 
between 20% und 2rW'. as determined by the directors, on any additional annual net profits which exceed €30 mMliiin. In accordance 
with the said policy, tne Coinpany diwibuted a dividend for the year ended December 31. 2007 in lhe amount of €57 million whicti was 
paid on June 2008. 

«;: 
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NOTE 24 - EQUITY 

Treasury shares 
On October 20, 2008 the Company announced its intention to commence a share repurchase program in the framework of which the 
Company will puichase- up to 19.323.536 shaies. representing 6 .61% of the Company's sliare capital. The shares will be purchased 
oiiniai.<el on the London Mock Exchange in accordance with shareholder approval obtained at the Company's Annual General Meeting 
on 27 May 2008. 

The buyback program wos fi^-'y utilised in tinee months and the purchased shares are held in treasuiv. Tlie Company has also been 
informed by its majority shaieholdei. f ib: ; Imnging Ltd. i'Elbit"), which held indirectly 68.4% of '.he Company's share capita! thai Elbit 
iniends to puichase the Comuiiny's shares through a series ot on-market purchases. Elbil's purchase of the Company's shares shali be 
within the above mentioned limii of t ;ie Companys repuichasing programme. 

As at balance sheet date, iho Company tins purchased 9,209,443 of its own shares, and Elbit had purchased 200.000 ot ' l ie Company s 
shares. Following these purchases Elbit holds (as of balance sheet date) indirectly owns 70.6% of the Company. Regarding the repurchase 
of shares after balance sheet date, refer to note 39. 

NOTE 2 5 - EARNINGS PER SHARE 

The calculation of basic earnings per sha'c at 31 December 2008 was based on the profit attributable to o'riinaiy snareholders of 
€67.68'! thousand 12007: €225.967 thousand'; nnd a weighted average number of Oidinary Shares outstanding of 291,188 thousand 
(2008: 292,355 tncusand). 

Weighted average number o t Ordinary Shares 

In tnov^uKls cl -dvirvis wilh a t.0.0'1 p.-.i vniue 

Issued Orriinaiy Shaies at Januaiy 1 
Effect oi own shares hold 
Share based payment - exeicisv of options 

Weignted average numberof Orciinary Shares at December 31 

December 3 1 . 
2008 
•ooo 

292,404 
(1.243) 

27 

291,188 

Oerenibei 31 . 
2007 
•ox 

292.346 

9 

292,355 

If 
•tó?-t 

m 

The calculation ot diluted earnings per share at Decembei 3 1 . 20C8 was based on protit attributable to ordinary shareholders of 
€67.685 ihousand and a weighted average number of Ordinary Shares outstanding atter adjustment for the effects of all dilutive 
potential Ordinary Shares of €2,735 thousand, calculated as follows: 

Weighted average number o f Ordinary Shares (di luted] 

In ll<itisai.,b. ol snanm Wir, J rO 0.1 pai vi-Xw 
2008 

000 

Weighted average numbei of Ordinury Shares (basic) 
Effect of share options on issue 

Weighted average number of Oidinary Shares (dliuledl at December 31 

291,188 
2,735 

293,923 

3007 
0110 

292.355 
1,129 

293.484 

Ttia average market, value of the Company's shares for purposes of calculating the dilutive effect of shaie oplions was based on quoted 
market prices (or ihe period that, the options were outstanding. 

NOTE 26 - EMPLOYEE SHARE OPTION PLAN 

On October 26, 2006 tho Company's Board of Direclors approved the giant of up to 33.834.586 non-nego'.lablH options ovei the 
Company's Ordinary Shores lo '.he Company's board members, employees in the Company and other persons wiio provide services lo 
the Company including employees of lhe Group (-Offerees'"). The options were granted to the Offerees for no consideration. Ttie exercise 
price of each option shall be the average price of the Company's shares in the LSE during the live-day period befoie Uie date of grant. 
NotwiihsLinding the furegoiivj the exercise price of the options granted on October 2 6 , 2 0 0 6 was £1.8 per option ("Exercise Pnce"). 

Exercise of the options is subject'to the following mechanism: on exercise date the Company shall allot, in respect of each option so 
exiercised. shares equal lo the difference between (A) the opening price of the Company's sliaies on fhe LSE on the exercise dale, 
provided that i f the opening price exceeds ISO'Ü; of the Exercise Price the opening price shail be set at 180% of the Exercise Price; less 
(B) the Exercise Price of the Options; and sudi difference (A minus B) will be divided by die opening price ot the Company's Shares in 
the LSE on Sie exercise dale. The terms and condilions of the grants are as follows, whereby all oplions are settled by physical delivery 
ot shares: 

MR!>| M A Z A R S 
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CiaiK lUKu/anli ' ! * x * a o-J of o f i t am 

Option giant :o key niiindgemem 

at 27 October 2006 18.824.812 

Option grant to employees at. Oclober 27. 2006 5,234.324 

Total granted m 2006' 24,059,136 

Total granted in 2007 3.081.072 

Total granted in 2008 2,975.000 

Total share options gramed 30,115,208 

«»llr«l 
COKMlWM 

Three years of service 
starting October 27. 2006 

Three years of service 
starting October 27, 2006 

Three years of service 
starting 2006 

Three years of seivice 
starting 2007 

Three years of service 
starting 2008 

rnt-rmrl tM. HV-
o.' o r * . , » * 

5 years 

5 years 

5 years 

5 years 
1.3 million options - 5 years 
Remaining options - 7 years 

I n d u d i i j S.J2J.J 58 n t a n i »Mci. *».-..' .uhprn I» in» m a n x n d( ttw Annual Genera' Mocting ol sl-nwholdcrj of Ei, i l » i w r a w J »n: . .«0.1111 un Nmfmiber l . X V I . 

Outsumding at the beginning of the year 
Forfeited during the year - back to pool 
Exercised during the year 
Granted during the year 

Outstanding at the end of Ihe year 

Exercisable a', the end of the year 

WeHMed « w a g e 
exerdse price 

2008 
I 

1.81 
1.80 
1.80 
1.67 

1.79 

Numbei o l 
epUene 

2008 

28,945,704 
(2,323,785) 

(131,711) 
3,625,000 

30,115,208 

9,031,603 

«e lMdnwim» 
e w i c w ori'-c 

3007 
£ 

1.81 

NitmUe. ol 
optionfi 

2007 

1.80 26,108,602 
1.81 (952,999) 
1.80 (303.471) 
1.88 4,093,572 

28,945,704 

8,195.777 

Following the modifications of the employee share option plan (as described below) the options outstanding at December 31.2008 have 
an exercise price In the range ot £0.52 to £1.64 (app. €0.55-€1.72 and a weighted average contractual life of 4.96 years. The weighted 
average sliare price at tht date of exercise (ur share options exercised in 2008 was £2.29 (2007; was £2.225). 

ModHicstion ef employee share option plan 
On November 25. 2008 me Company's general shareholders meeting and the Board ot Directors approved to amend the exercise price 
of all options granted more than one year prior to October 25, 2008 ("Recoro Date") to the average closing price of the Shaies on die 
London Stock Exchange duiing the 30<tay period ending on November 25.2008 (i.e. £0.52 per option). In addition, the atnendnenl plan 
determined (hat all Options that were not vested on the Record Date shall vest over a new year period commencing on the Recoid Date. 
In such way tnat each year following that date one-third ol such Options shall be vested. Furthermore, the Option Term was extended in 
additional two years to a total peiiod of seven years, which starts at the date of grant by the Company's Board of Directors. Tlie above 
mentioned iROX limit on ihe potential bene'it from each Option was changed lo a cap of 324 pence per option. The number of options 
which were modified undei the airiendment «is 28,182.589. The Incremental fair value granted (i.e: the increase in fair value of the 
share options ireasureri immediately before and sflei the inoditlcations! as a result of the above meniioned modifications was €6.4 
million which will be leoognized ovei the vesting period or immediately fbr vested options. Tlie .mmediate atfect of the modiiication on 
the profit or loss statemeni was an expense of €1.8 million. Following the modification ofthe employee share option plan, the contractual 
life of tlie options (7 years) is used for future grants and the assumed suboptimal exercise multiple is 3 for nianagement and 2.5 for 
employees due to the cap ol 324 pence. 

Following the modification ot the optinn plan, the maximum number of shares issuable upon exercise of all ouistanding options as of 
lhe balance sheet date Is 24.773.405. 

The estimated laii value of Ihe services received is measured based on a binomial lattice model using the following assumptions: 

. i r ' 
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NOTE 26 - EMPLOYEE SHARE OPTION PLAN 

Fair value o f share op l ions and assumpt ions 
Fair value al measureinent date (in üurr.s)' 

Weighted average exercise price 
Expected volalility 
Weighted average snare price 
Suboptimal exercise muitiplK 
Expecled dividends 
Risk-free imerest rate (based on the yield rates of She 
non indexed linked U« treasury tondsi 

Kay nianinjaniffiiit 

(wrsfinno1 

J M » ' 

c 

529,723 

1.38 
35%-51.1% 

1.38 
1.8-3 

Rr.:, ii^rk-.fir.iTient 
pfrfluiMKi; 

2007 

-: 

5,722,158" 

• 2.46 
25-30% 

2.94 
1.8 

t.inr)lo,,ri» 
2 1 / » 

f. 

1,959.760 

1.87 
35«-51,l% 

1.88 
1.8-2.5 

IT" ,ll.i;WMi 
-* i ; ; ' 

2.735.563 

2.57 
30%-35% 

2.59 
1.8 

2.89%-^.82% 4 . 8 9 % - 5 . 0 1 * 2,89%—1.82% 4,62%-5.5S% 

' 200i> - no! !ii,;ludi'n» jiromial.rr. ,11 ie9rvci;,- ! mo .^nfttnleu üi Um otBion olm', 
* - Inr.ii-'inïCS.bd I (It;oirt,jiid''.,t «.'i ;'.li i -^v^r . të riw fiiu.u Jule fai' vAiitt i f 5.42d,il^6 irwrs 001:0111, Apprcr.-ei 07 me Annunf Geneni: .wmt.^ ol Fl. on Vove.ilfoi I : W / ' 

Dunng 2003 the total employee costs due to the share options granted (including the modifications) was €9.453 thousands 
(2007; €11,658 thousands!. 

Due to the changes in She global economics, the data regarding share prices and companies' volatilities do not reflect the future results. 
The slock prices data of the Company during lhe last quarter of 2008 presents a high volatility that is in irregular form, and iherefore 
could not be implementea f.s the expected volatility fcr the relevant leim of the options. Since the Company has been publicly traded 
for two years only, tfie current slate of Die financial markets affects the Company's volatility in a greal t ' manner and is nol reflecting the 
predicted volatility. In order lc estimate the Company's expected volatility, the calculation was based on the Company's share perfonnance 
during the last two years and a comparison to similai companies with histoiical shaie price of five-seven years. The difference in the 
volau'lity between two years snd five-seven years, -while neutralizing the fouidi quarter of 2008 for each company .s significant. Therefore, 
the implemented volatility 'or options granted in 2008 (including tne modification of the option plan) was set to 51.1,%. which takes into 
accojnt Die inltuence of tlie cunen: state oi the markets if the Company has been publicly traded for a longer period. (2007: The 
expected volatility was based on companies in comparable stages as well as companies in the industry and considering historic share 
price volatility of the Company'. 

NOTE 27 - REVENUES 

'^ -

ïi'^i 

ie 

Revenue fmm selling tiading properties'" 
Rental income from tenants-"' 
Management fees 
Operation of entertainment centers'"'; 

Other 

Total 

Fot the year ended 
Oecember 3 1 . 

2008 
« 0 0 0 

82,576 
4,939 

951 
9,531 

616 

rcr die vtiai endoa 
Dflr^fiibr,r31. 

2007 
C'OOO 

495.565 
2,153 
1,395 
6.608 
2,122 

98,613 507.843 

! ftovbnu» (mm MV i.nji; iiiuKr.p \4t>imn'*!s t;iir.»;<Ls tit assr! wtw,' t f slmpmng f;smors. as detorminso tjetv^tsn tikt Coaiparr/ and tho ouyür pf th i prorwiiy. 7(K>H mcittdes fxaiuW 
ÊGI.AJ inilltoiïrsvfnitósi.'rainseünpPwtKhaïpJ'tüctiritor mpi^KiC^echRcnuhiic,rm weü ns pnce AdjiJStnAWfrom thes^hr.gof AnsnuPia/<". 'fi hufTjjftry-€32.3 ntrfiien. hi 2C07 
i|« revenu» inrlatios ïtt» j^fciiu I C M I v*i!ur •>! ihc (o!'o»/ing fihspsnuj contbra: Aieiia RJHÜ Hunga'y - £306 irtiiir-ii, Ry-bitlk and Sr>S(iowioo PUiza n PcMrd - iSS million. Luo îil 
Pirca in Polnn-l -13,9 miWui'. uiiJ Wcvn r.'wpp ng .-;o«iW' n >n>gue, ihc Cajch I*t!)ubl:c (Gddilional pioceoösi - €1 7 niitiion. for mote ttoiri. s on the -wa nfi ol jh» y w j m g centflM 
rsftw to noti. 'Jfi. 

'.'. Hwitol inrwna ruiateft KIIIH.- in ntvenvvv uon-- invöAlmi-n! pioperlw im, C^npony tiekJ twtiirti VAowi in Iw.li 200fl ana J'X» é l imJuini, irf Syiii mo iiaüiriZ iirotwnies Itx; 
Coiiipuny hold l-i fro inioriiri ooiod doTween Uif cc!«p!«»n of ïhe ct«nstruciEon and (he suliintj of (lie Süid iradinö iiroaerly. 

3 Rovenw» from t-ixnit.-oo c) [.nit-Min-iiiÊfi" ccniijs .s attrtLutt-:i to sseciül subskSaril* o*̂  llw Co-npwiir whtch jim/de gnming ,irrt tmcut^nnvètr «e<vc*i rft .Ktr-t- rfiuppinR 
Cfliaefs. A:» pf OfcCfüTimT 31 , act's ww**» sunsiuWii;* n,T!'»"nn i i " nv MnppJiA coiai-rs. 

Gain on sale of invesimem properties 

Por thn year ended f>> t.-tó ibiti umlwi 
December 3 1 , O-JCCirrfier 3 i . 

2008 r o o ? 
rooo c*oc/C 

2,07.1 

2,07.1 

In 2007, the gam recorded wris mainly frem üm sale of Duna Plaza offices investment property. 
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NOTE 28 - COST OF OPERATIONS 

Diiect expenses; 
Cost of sold tiading proper! ies 
Salaries and related expenses 
Initiation costs 
Municipality taxes 
Property taxes 
Property operations and naintennnce 

Other operating expenses 

Depreciation and amortization 

Fee the yMf ended 
Decembe. 3 1 . 

2008 
COOO 

42,279 
2,034 
3,083 

5 
485 

5,566 

53,442 
2,282 

55,724 
210 

rot Ihü Vdiw wtvtoc 
Onr.niwe. 31 

j i - a r 

ccoo 

258.510 
1.216 

7813 
24 

206 
5.909 

206,651 
1.538 

268.189 
541 

85,934 268.730 

Costs of sold lidding pioperties include the cost of purchasing and developing the trading properties which were sold in 2008, consist 
almost entirely from the cost of selling of the Plzen Plsza shopping center in the Czech Republic - E42.2 million. 2007 consisls mainly 
or the cost of selling of tlie following Hading properties: Arena Plaza Hungary 6162 million Rybnlk and Sosnowiec Plaza in Poland 
- €66 million, Lublin Plaz;; in Piiland - «'30 million, otiiers - €0.5 million. The cost of operations of investment properties totalled ir both 
2008 and 2007 CO.4 million. 

Increase in iniliation cosis in 2008 is attributable to write olf of costs allocated to planned projects in which the Company decided to 
cease its invesbnent. 

NOTE 29 - ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES 

Selling and marketing anpantos 
Advertising and marketing 
Salaries and relating expenses 
Others 

General and admlnlatrativ* expenMs 
Salaries and related expenses" 
Depreciation and amonization 
Management fees 
Professional services 
Tfaveling and accommodation 
Offices nnd office rent'' •* 
Others' 

for the ye« ended 
Oecember XL, 

200e 
rooo 

2,465 
791 

27 

3.283 

12,273 
748 
395 

4,087 
1.364 
1,472 

918 

for ttie yew «.dec] 
0eco.vüer31. 

3007 
COOO 

2.649 
761 

23 

3,433 

12.167 
366 
500 

4,206 
1.071 

735 
639 

21,257 19,684 

Total 24,540 23.117 

" Z00i'-t:-t'HH.MIi«'l 
O m r d and ndrnMetut iv* 
S Indwriing iwr^si^li t.xsenM."o .!«.' io IN, vtvuv optdn aiïd. in Il>a amount ot G6.3 miUion .20.77: Cl'.ri nv Jionl nee a'.aa note 26 lor mort, tfatnii» on .sham órtóeil Ortrtiient» 
2 Mm'. "n,.etf*tji*^tM-oji^ült- lc ii"'»«lt^i.^l>iiKi'i:'yi>^üi:aue..e.s oliHiciin ItnJu, SerOiuend rtümtmia lritivc<?u.'jcol l-OLi. 
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NOTE 30 - OTHER INCOME AND OTHER EXPENSES 

For l lw year ended FM t-io v&H 4nJod 
December 3 1 , rw.nrtUic-, ?.1. 

2008 ï r w 
€'000 C H » 

A Other income 
Gam from selling ol propcrtv and equipmenl 
Gain Irom writing off ol old suppliers 
Other income 

Total other Income 

B Other expenses 
Write off o l old debit balances 
Loss from selling property and eriuipmcnt 
Impainnent of property and equipment 
Olher expenses 

Total other expenses 

Total 

167 

-
26 

193 

_ 
(664) 

(2,214) 

(4) 

(2,882) 

(2,689) 

34 

51 

-
as 

1238) 
174) 

-
(1.11) 

(423) 

(338! 

NOTE 3 1 - FINANCE INCOME (EXPENSES) 

"1 

: \ ' % - • 

Recognixed In prof i t or loss 
Interest income on bank deposits 
Interesl income on structured deposits 
Loans to •'elateO paities 
Changes in (a.r «ilue of derivative 
Changes in fair value of debentuies measured a l fair value througli profit or loss 
Foreign exchange gams - related parties 
Other interest income - due to receivables arising from sale of shopping centers 

Total f inance income 

Interes: expense on bank loans and debentures 
Interest paid on structure loan 
InïerBSt on loans from related parties 
Changes in lair value of sbuctuie 1200 ' : debentures measured at fair value tlirough profit or loss) 
Foreign exchange losses - related psaies 
Foreign exchange losses 
Olher finance expenses 

Less - Finance expenses capitalized to trading properties under developmeni 

Total f inance expenses 

Total net finance Income 

Recognized In equity 
Nel change in fail value ui available-for-sale financial asset 
Nel change in (air value of availabte-for-sale (inancial asset liansfened lo piofii or loss 
Foreign currency translation dilferences for foreign operations 

For die year endod 
Decembe. 3 1 . 

C'OOO 
3008 

13,477 
2,246 
1,277 

18,111 
30,261 

-
1,984 

67,356 

(16,040) 
(1,505) 

(547) 
(3.136) 

(427) 

(557) 
(1,656) 

(23,868) 

14,600 

(9,268) 

58,088 

For the year ended 
Oecember 3 1 . 

2008 
« '000 

(1,401) 

281 

(10,448) 

fct tl'6 ,.iiir cufeal 
bürvmtisi 3.1. 

tooo 
-•007 

5.468 

-
1.084 
2.228 

-
1.10.1 
1,52.6 

12.407 

(6.216) 

-
(642) 
(Ö18) 

-
ilOS) 
(972 

(8.7531 

5,693 

(3.060) 

9.347 

rrr me it-or «nded 
IVK-Hnof-i ? 1 . 

200? 
C'OOÜ 

_ 
-

168 

(11,568) 168 
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NOTE 32 - INCOME TAX EXPENSES 

Current ;ax 
Deferred lax 
Prior year's taxes"; 

Total 

Fer the y n r ended 
ttacenMiarai. 

2008 
C'OOO 

143 
5,626 
(866) 

For vie »o-v endod 
b u t - ' n w 31. 

.'•'Xl/ 
*:"i.x>r-

106 
(16) 

-
4.913 90 

i*i*<->.,nr u< **:« VB,litv..i...* n-.«..iv to n setU-iiwn nt^-ned '.vrtli C;«-h fleoinlk Tax (.ullxMltle., In rtWHWl ol ono o.' tne CrfiHio's aui,i,Kjtnnes, tof'cting '«hicn lih^ Cmtirtnv ilso 
•«;» vt-ll » c is l . n-.p.̂ inHn* 01 u' : . : -̂.'L -K,. n« ^w'l a i revciwi; 01 .WövHiUSly Itrcotrtod Isx firovieloil. 

Deferred tax «xpense 

Origination and reversal or temporary differences 
Recognition of previously unrecognized tax losses 

For uw yMt ended 
DeeemtatSl, 

FM 'He >*;* endeii 
Oei.-w'ioot i i . 

2008 M M 
POOO f OWJ 

(161 9,866 
(4^40) 

5,626 (16) 

Reconciliation of effectr.e tax late: 

Dutdi stalutory income tax inte 
Prodi before taxes 
Tax at the Dutch statuiory income tax rate 
Utilization ot prior-year losses for which deferred laxes had not been created in the past isee note 23) 
Changes in fax burden as a result of differences in statuiory tax rates of subsidiaries 
Deferred taxes noi pmvided for losses and other temporary differences, net 
Vansnces stemming fiom oifferem measurement rules applied for the financial statements and those 
applied tor Income tax purposes (including exchange rate dlflerences) 
Changes in future tax rate enacted at the balance sheet date 
Non laxable income' 
Prior year's taxes 
Other differences, net 

Incom* tax axpanMS 

FW the year ended 
Deoemtier l l . 

2008 
« '000 

25 JSK 
72,597 
18,513 
(4,195) 
1,864 
3,508 

(1,270) 

-
(12.651) 

(856) 

-
4,913 

Iur the vear erüoii 
OTOtmour ̂ 1 . 

2007 

«•ooo 

25.5* 
227.057 

57,810 
(1.593! 

317 
1.447 

164 
37 

(58.093) 

-
1 

90 

* tmn .raenl* IMrfit •* dr,iil:.ii.ilile w i n * r.artl.jp-joo.' «..femfltuir '.I»« d'e Cftitpwiy nui. m the tellisr-icdi. M*- a l * . tre \erlienoiidï. sccnon be-iiw. 

The main tax laws imposed on (he Group companies in their countries of residence: 

The Natherland* 
A Companies resident in the Netheilands are subject to corporate income lax at the general rate of 25.5%. Under the amended njles 

effective January l . 2007 tax losses may be earned forward and set of against income of the Immediately pieceding tax year and the 
nine subsequent tax years. Transitional mles apply for tax losses on accounl of tax years up through 2002 which may be carried 
toward and set of against income up through 2011. 

B Under the participation exempiion mles. incotnn including dividends and capital gains derived by Dutch companies ki respect of 
qualifying investments ,n the noininal paid up share capital of resident oi non resident Investee companies, are exempt from 
Netherlands corporale income lax p'ovided the conditions as set under these rules have been satisfied. Sucli conditions require, 
aniong others, a minimuin percentage ownership inlerest in the investeo company and require the investee company to satisly eitiifer 
of, or both -fie newly introduced "assets" - test and the amended "subject to lax" - test. The Company is in compliance wilh all 
paiticipation exemption requirements. 

I 
Ef 

-.1. 
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NOTE 32 - INCOME TAXES 

C Dividend distributions fiom a Dutch cumoany to qualifying Israeli corporate shareholders holding at leasl 25* cl the shares of such 
Nelhorlands coinpany is subiect lo withholding lax a; a rate of 5% provided certain compliance related formalities have been satislied. 
In other situations, dividend Oistributiuns from Dutch companies lo Israeli shareholders are subject to withholding tax al a rate 
o(15%. 

Romania 
Corporate income lax rate for resident companies and non-resident entitles with a permanent establishment in Romania is 16% 
(including capitnl gains). Dividends distributed by a resident entity to EU shareholders are not subject to withholding tax in Romania 
In line wilh Uie provisions o( the EU Parent-Subsidiary Directive. Fiscal losses incurred up to 2008 can be carried forward and 
relieved against lulure unable pnitils lora penod of five years. Such period has been extended to seven yeais for fiscal losses incurred 
slarting 200S. 

Hungary 
The corporate inconie tax rate impused on tne income of Ihe subsidiaries incorporated in Hungary is 16%. Capital gains are exempted 
from coipoiaie income tax provided lhal certain criteria are fulSllert. A special solidaiity tax is levied on companies being 4% of the 
modified accounting protit as deteimined by law. Dividends, interest, royally paid oul to companies aie not subjecl tc withholding tax. 
Losses in die lirst thi at; yt-ars uf opeiation can bs carried forward without limitation. Losses incurred until 2004 can be carried fonvard 
for the period ol five years, subiect to certain limitations. Losses incurred in 2005 and lliereafter. may be carried forward indelinitely, 
subject to certain limitations. 

Poland 
The corpomte tax applicable tu income of Polish subsidianes (including capital gains) is 19%. Dividends paid out of these profits are 
subject to an additional (final) lax rate of 19%, subject to the relevant double taxation treaty. Distribulion ol dividend oi Polish subsidiary 
to Dulch parent company, holding at least 15% icommencing 2009 - 10%) of shares for a period of at leasl two years, is exempt liom 
withholding tax. Losses may bo offset against taxable income over a tive-yeat period, subject to a niaxlmum annual utilization oi up to 
50% of ihe accumulated loss fron. sach particular tax year. 

Serbia 
Corporate inoome tax ('CIT') rate applicable to income of Serbian subsidiaries is 10%. Losses stated in the tax balance (i.e. losses 
adjusted according lu the CIT Law rules) may be carried forward forthe period of ten years and offset against taxable Income from the 
lax balance. Withliolding tax at the rate of 20% is due on the paymenl by resident companies to non-resident companies of dividends 
and share in the profit of a legal entity, and on royalties, interest, cajiilal gains and proceeds from leasing real estate. Withholding tax 
may be reduced if such possibility Is provided by the respective double taxation avoidance treaty. 

: . --ii 

1(1 

1 m 

India 
The corporate income tax applicable to the income of Indian subsidiaries is 33.99*. Minimum alternate tax (MAT) ot 11.33iSi is applying 
to the book profits (i.e. profits shown in tht; financial statements), if the company's corporate tax liability is less than 10S of its book 
profits. The paid ancunl will be credited il the company lias taxable piofits in (he following tive years. Capital gains on sale of fixed 
assets and real estate assets are taxed at tlie rate of 22.66% provided that they were held at least 36 montn immediaiely preceding 
the date of the linnsfer or 33.39% if they were held for not more dian 36 momhs. Dividends paid out of the profits are subject to 
Dividend Distribution Tax at the rate of 16.99S. There is no withholding tax on dividends distributed by Indian companies. Losses can 
be offset againsl taxable income for a oeriod of eight years from the incurrence yeat's end. 

Bulgaria 
Corporate Income lax rate (or resident üompanios and non-resident entitles with a permanent establishment in Bulgaria is lOSi (including 
capital gainsl. Dividends paid fo resident individuals and non-resident corporations and individuals aie subject to a final wllhhnltling tax 
ot 5%, iinlnss lower dmihle taxation treaty rates apply. Such final tax is not levied on dividends payable to EU tax residenl. Losses may 
be offset against taxable income for a period uf five years from lhe incurrence year-end. 

Cyprus 
'l ie taxation of compnnie'-! innorpciated in Cyprus is based on tax residence and all componies are taxed al the rata o( 10%. A special 
levy of 10% is imposed un mtarcsl lecoived.Dividend inconie and pioiits from lhe sale of shares and uthei lilies of companies arc tax 
exempt. There Is no withholding lax on payments nt dividends to non-resident shareholders or shareholders thai arn companies resident 
in Cyprus. Conipanies, whfji do not distribute 70% ol their profits afler tax. as defined by tfie lelevanl tax law wilhin two years aftei Ihu 
end ot the relevant tax year, will lie decmc-d to haw distributed as dividends 70% of these profits. A special levy al 15% will be payable 
on such deemed dividends to ;he exleni that die shaieholders (companies and indlvirlualsl are Cyprus tax residents. Tlie amount of 
deemed distnbution is reducid by any ai'.tual dividönds paid out of Uie profits of lhe relevani year Juring the following Iwo years. This 
special levy is payable for the account of the shareholders. 
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Czech Republic 
Corporate income tax rare imposed on the income of the subsidiaries incorporated in the Czech Republic (including capital gains) in 
2008 is 21% which will gradually decrease to 19% In 2010. Tax losses incurred in taxable periods commenced in 2004 or laler may be 
earned forward (or up to five years. Tax losses incurred earlier may be earned forward up to seven years. Dividends paid out of net 
income are subject to a withholding tax of 15%, subject to the relevant double taxation treaty. The Czech Republic exempts domestic 
dhrtóends paid to £U parent companies that hold a participation of 20>6 or more (dr at teas; two years. Tax losses Incurred earlier may 
be earned forward foi up to seven years. 

Latvia 
Corporate income tax rate imposed on tite income of the subsidiaries incorporated in Latvia (including capital gains) is 15*. Tax losses 
incurred prior ;o 2007 can be carried (orwa'd and be offset against taxable income of five years lollowing tlie accounting year in which 
they were incurred. Such penod ot five years was extended to six years for losses incurred in 2008, seven years for losses which will be 
incurred In 2009 and eight years for lasses which will be incurred In 2010 and thereafter. Dividends paid out of net income to ncn-
nesident are subject fo a withholding tax of 10%, subject to the relevant double taxation treaty oi 0% withholding tax could be applied if 
the recipient Is reskteot in another EU country or resident in countiy included in European Economic region. 

Greece 
Corporate income tax rate imposed on the inconie of the subsidiary incorporated In Greece (including capitnl gains) Is 25% which will 
gradually decrease from 24% in 201.0 to 20% in 2014. Dividends paid to resident and non-resident Coiporation are subject to a filial 
withholding tax of 10%. Olf. withholding tax «III apply in respect of dividend distribution if the recipient Is the parent company and an Qj 
residenl or in a country included hi tlie European Economic Region, provided certain criteria are met. Tax losses can be canied forward 
and offset against taxable income of lhe «vc years following the accounting year in which they were incurred. 

NOTE 33 - OPERATING LEASES 

The Company is a lessee of a number of plots of land and paid a total rent of €0.05 million in ihc year ended December 31. 2008 
(60.05 million (or year ended December 31, 2007) under operating leases in Poland. Tlie leases typically run for a period of 99 years. 
The leases in Poland whldi are held under perpetual usufruct are governed by the law of managemenl over real estate. Lease payments 
regarding perpetual use of land can be changed according to a new valuation of the plot. None of Ihe leases includes contingent rentals, 

Non-canceiiable operating (ease rentals are payable as follows: 
For the ynar ended ( V llw ieer nnde-i 

* 3 l . Oi**mtief 3J, 
2008 MOT 
cooo *;'0oo 

Less than one yeai 
Between one and five years 
More lhan five years 

42 
220 
785 

1,047 

52 
600 

3.516 

4.188 

NOTE 34 - RNANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 

Financial riak management 
Overview 
Tlie Group has exposure tn the following risks from its use of (inancial insmiments; 

iu 

> Credit risk: 

> Liquidity risk; and 

> Market ri.SK, 

This note presents, infoimation about the Group's exposure to each of the above nsks, the Group's objectives, policies «nd processes 
for measuring ana managing risK. and the Croup's management of capital. Further quantitative disclosures are Included throughout 
these consolidaled (inancial stalemenls. 

The Board has established a continuous ptocess for identifying and managing the risks faced by the Company, and confirms diat any 
appropriate actions have been or are being taken to address any weaknesses. 

Tlie Boaid has cauiMtsliuC Uit Inveslmenl commiltee. which is responsible for developing and monitonng the Groups (inancial risk 
management policies 
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NOTE 34 - FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 

•, V 

nnancial risk management 
The Gioup's risk managoment policies arc established to identity and analyse the risks faced by the Group, to set appropriate risk limits 
and controls, und lo mcniiur nsks und adherence lo limits. Risk management policies ond systems are reviewed regularly lo refleel 
changes in i niirkot conditions and the Group's activities. 

The Group Audit Committee oversees how management monitors compliance wilh the Group's risk management policies and procedures 
and reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework in relation to the risks faced by the Group. 

A Ciedit risk 
Credit risk is the risk ul financial loss lo lhe Croup if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument (ails to meet its contractual 
obligaiions. and ansey prnicitialiy t ro i i lh-;.- Grüup's financial insüumenls heid in banks and other financial instilutions. 

Managemenl has a ciedit ptiiicy' in j lace and ihe exposure to credit risk is monilored on an ongoing basis. Credii evaluations are 
pei formed on ail customers roquirlni; credit over a certain amount. The Group requires collateral in the fomi of a bank guarantee or 
deposil equal to three months of rent from tenants ot shopping centers. 

Cash and deposits, Including structured deposits and assets available for sale 
The Group limits its exposure ic ciedit risk in respect to cash and deposits, including structured deposits and assets available (or sale 
by investing only in deposits and othei financial insliuments with counterpal lies that have a ciedit rating of at least A frotti rating 
agencies. Given these credit ratings, management dees not expect any counterparty to fail to meet its obligaiions. 

B Liquidity risk 
Liquidliy risk is die risk ihat l-w». Group w.ll not be able lo meet ils fmancial obligations ns tliey fall du t . The Group's approach lo 
maiiagjng liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its obligaiions when due, undei both 
normal nnd stressed conoiiicns. withoui incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage lo the Group's reputation. 

The Group use frequent budget meetings with siinior management in order to assist nianagement in monitoring cash (low requirements 
for a period of 60 days. 

C Market risk 
Currency ond Inflation risk 
Currency risk is the nsk that lhe Conipany will meur significant flucfjations in its reports as a result of utilizing currencies ether than its 
functional currency, 

Tlie Group is exposed to cunency risk mainly on purchases (plots of land purchases in India) and borrowings (debentures issues in 
Israel) that aro denominated in a currency other than tlie respective functional currency oi the Group, wiiich is the euro. Tlie currencies 
In which these transactions pnmariiy are denominated are INR and NIS, respectively. As these cunencies are subject to fluctuations, the 
Company is holding a small amount af financial instruments denominated in these currencies, and hedging them, where appropriate. 
Regarding the hedging of the currency and inflation risk of the debenlures see also note 16. 

Interest rate risk 
The Group's Interest rate risk arises nwinly from short- and long-term borrowing (as well as debenlures). Borrowing issued al variable 
rate expose the Group In cash 'low interest risk. Sorrowing issued at fixed rate expose die Group to fair value interest risk. Except for 
the debentures, the Group does not currently engage in hedging or use of other financial arrnngpmenis to mlmniise the exposure to 
these risks. Regarding lhe hedging ol the interest rate risk of (he debentures see also note 16, 

D Capital management 
The Board's policy Is to niaintai" a strong cnpital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and markot coiiltdence and to sustain future 
development of :he business. The Boaid of Directors also monitors the level of dividends to ordinary shaieholders. as well as lhe 
percenlage of holdings of employees in Company's shares. 

Ai present employees hold OH of Ordinary Shares, hut with future potential ot about 6% assuming that all outstanding employee share 
options vest, and are exercised at maxlmurn pnce. 

There were no changes in ihe Gioup's approach to capilal management during the yoar. 
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CradKrisk 
Tlie carrying amnum of finanriai issets represeiils the maximum cretlit exposure. The maximum exposure to credit risk at die repurtlng 
date was: 

Cash and cash eciuivalents 
Restricted bank deposits 
Short term deposits and investments 
Available (or sale (inanaaS assets 
Trade receivables, net 
Other fecelvab.'ss and prepaynwnis 
Related parties 
Oerivalives 
Long-term deposits and other investnents 
Restricted bank deposits 

No» 

5 
6 

Ï 

a 
» 

19 

16 

11 

6 

C e r . , * * amount 
Decembe. 3 1 , 

2008 
C'OOO 

146.026 
32.253 

-
8,608 

838 
19,500 

481 
20,323 
50,385 
34,497 

Caf.y'nB .aiiK»"an 
Oocenrtwi 31 . 

. 7C0? 
ClfiO 

66.381 
25,155 

1,033 

262,595 
6,778 

19,525 
2.228 
1,987 
5,302 

312,911 390,984 

The raaximuin Bxposuie lo credit risk tor mc above mentioned table at the reporting date by type of customer was as follows: 

Banks and financial :iistiluticns 
Trade receivables 
Govemmental institutions 
Related parties and other 

DecemBer 3 1 , 

C'OOO 

290,774 
838 

15,706 
5,593 

312,911 

uocemi.Tr 3 1 . 
tC<H 

C-UIO 

100.298 
262.595 
5.848 

22.243 

390.984 

Liquidity rtak 
The following are «ie contractual maturities of financial liabilities, including estimated interest nsynients and excluding the impact 
of netting agreements: 

OocembeiJl.zoos 

NoiHferivaMve flnandal Hab l l l t lM 
Secured bank loans 
Unsecured bond issued " 
Tiade and otiier payables 
Related parties 

CarrylK 
ameunt 

C'OOO 

110,688 
175,144 

54,254 
2,748 

Contractual 
caahDewe 

C'OM 

(152,526) 
(244,592) 

(54,254) 
(2,748) 

emonltu 
arleda 
c'ooo 

(2,664) 
(5.111) 

(53,878) 

-

6-12 month. 
COOO 

(7,514) 
(5,111) 

-
(2,748) 

1-2 yean 
caoo 

(4,392) 
(16.849) 

(376) 

-

2-8y«ara 
COOO 

(18,880) 
(127.694) 

-
-

Men than 
tyeara 

C'OOO 

(119,076) 
(89.827) 

-
-

k 
iSJ-

342,834 (454,120) (61,653) (21,617) (146,574) (20S,903| 

O a o M l M M . a W » 

Non^ler ivat ive f inancial Habil i t ies 
Secured bank loans 
Unsecured bond Issued1 ' 
Trade and other payables 
Related parties 

5,870 
53,821 
72.523 
24,974 

157,188 

(7.970) 
(71,443) 
(72.523) 
(24,974) 

(176,910) 

(421) 
(1.244) 

(72.168) 
(23,103) 

(96,936) 

(411) 
(1.244) 

(1.655) 

(801) 
(2.487) 

1355) 
(1.871) 

(5.514) 

(2,227) 
(27.257) 

(29,484i 

(4,110) 
(39,211) 

(43,321) 

1 UnwnjWl t«fW riï.**a * f t ;r.-.;w»r.**;"i :it (l!»,r (.Tt W M . 
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NOTE 34 - RNANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 

Financial risk management 
Currency risk 
Exposure to currency risk 
The Group's exposure to foreign cunency nsk was as follows based on notional amounts: 

December 21 . 

Current 
assets 
Non-curren 
assets 

Total 

Current 
liabililies 
Non-cun'tm 
liabilities 

Total 

Net 
exposure 

OerefnDcr 11. 

2008 
EUR 

175,980 

84.882 

260,862 

109.768 

41,672 

151,440 

109,422 

:oo7 

Current assets 
Non curren 
assets 

Total 

Current 
liabillb'es 
Non-current 
liabilities 

Total 

Net exposure 

ms 

488 

208,158 

208.646 

-
208,158 

208,158 

488 

FUR 

365.081 

;<I5.732! 

319.349 

74,246 

6.344 

80.500 

238.759 

The following sienificant exchange 

Cuiit'iicy 

RSD 10 
USOl 
PLN 1 
HUF 100 
RON 1 
CZK 10 
INR 10 
NISI 

USD 

3,451 

-
3,451 

-

-
-

3,451 

MIS 

-

55,249 

55,249 

-

53,821 

53.S21 

1,426 

HUF 

774 

-
774 

501 

-
501 

273 

USD 

1,015 

-
1,0.15 

1.1.685 

988 

12.673 

(11,658; 

PLN 

5,054 

-
5,054 

2,730 

-
2,730 

2,324 

HUF 

609 

-
609 

385 

72 

457 

152 

'Sto Boolied duiiiiR the year: 

CZK 

3,799 

-
3,799 

8,379 

-
8,379 

(4,580) 

PLN 

5,122 

5.122 

901 

-
901 

4,221 

2WS 

0.123 
0.680 
0.285 
0.398 
0.272 
0.401 
0.157 
0.190 

RON 

11,201 

-
11,201 

2,019 

-
2,019 

3,182 

CZK 

5,297 

_. 
5,297 

2,451 

283 

2.734 

2.563 

INR 

2,524 

-
2,524 

2,036 

-
2,036 

488 

RON 

1,514 

-
1.514 

3.035 

-
3,035 

(1,521) 

Rouo. 

AvüIlnJV wtö 
2007 

0.130 
0.730 
0,265 
0.398 
0.300 
0.361 
0.177 
0.178 

un. 

2,788 

-
2.788 

180 

-
180 

2,608 

INR 

1,754 

-
1.754 

1.813 

-
1.812 

(58) 

::nr. tint.. 

3'.ioa 

0.113 
0.714 
0,240 
0.378 
0.251 
0.37.1 
0.147 
0.189 

RSD 

1,500 

-
1,500 

356 

-
356 

1,144 

iïi. 

899 

'-
899 

1,093 

1,093 

(194) 

Spct rati 

Other 

147 

-
147 

49 

-
49 

98 

Ollu.-. 

176 

176 

72 

-
72 

104 

Z007 

0.126 
0.679 
0.279 
0.395 
0,277 
0.376 
0.172 
0.177 

Sensitivity analysis 

The following table demonstiatei the post-tax impact of: 

> 15% strengthening of the euro against the US dollar, Serbian dinar, Hungarian «onnt. Polish zloty and Indian nipce; 

> 10% strengthening of the euro against the Czech crown, and Romanian lei: and 

> 20% slrenglhening of the euro aËtiuist the new Israeli shekel 

Mlv- MAXA-R-£ 
MAZARS PAARDEKOOPER H O F F ^ ACCOUNTANTS N.V. 
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With all other variables held curissanl (trie impact on the Group's equity is the same): 

EUR vs. USD. RSD. HUF. and PLN 
EUR vs. INR •' 
EUR vs. CZK. RON 
EUR vs. NIS 

Incrdixto .n 
ciifrnnr.. irlt-

15% 
15'X. 

10% 
20» 

2008 

«•ooo 

(1,079) 
(73) 

(460) 
(98) 

Fll.Ti .rf- JO»! u * i>n*it 
d . ttK. year «róv i DtKCllfcl'i ?1. 

5007 
€-lX)C 

1,101 

.;i04) 

Ï r iei ' t an fiflihiv 

A similar weakening of the euro against all currencies at December 31 would have had the equal but opposite effect on the post tax 
profit arid equity (o die aiitomit ci-own above on the basis that all other variables remain constant. 

DerivatlvM i •bentures 
Sensitivity analysis - changes In Exchange rates euro to new Israeli shekel 

Derivative A 
Derivative B 
Oebentures A 
Debentures B 

Total net 

Fnlr .'.Hup dUOTRA 
(MS «.eöMniin' 

c(aaiM Cum 
«000 

2 0 * 
(11.75«! 
(32.979) 

9,355 
25.674 

(9,708) 

f-w va:ue 
coo.) 

5.2973 
10,142 
10.181 

(46.773) 
(128.37.1) 

(154.821) 

tjir .an», ennngn 
,'N!S vvenglhMvng 

MWISI EUR; 
«'(•Oti 

•20* 
11,758 
32.979 
(9.355) 

(25,674) 

9.708 

Interest rat* rick 
Profile 
As of the teoorting date, tlie iiiteres! rate otoflle of the Grouo's imerest-beantig financial instrumenls was; 

CtneKy tate 

Fixed rat» Instrument» 
Financial assets 

2008 
C'OOO 

64,301 

Canyxij WTuium 
2007 

COW 

5,898 

Variable rate iiwtn nts 
Financial assets 
Financial liabüitics 

207,468 370,076 
(288.580) (70,0831 

(81,112) 299.993 

Cash flow sensitivity analysis (or variable rate instruments 
A change ot 30 basis poinls in EURIBOR interest rates at the reporttng date woukl have increased (decreased) piolit or loss by the 
amounts shown below. This analysis assumes diat all other variables, in particular foreign currency rates, remain constant. The analysis 
is performed on the sane basis for 2007. 

Variable Inietesl balances («xciuding debentures and structure A). 

Oeeemner M . 2008 

Vanable rate Insliuments 

PnMH o. to». 
30 bp 301» 

Increase 

54 (54) 

' * , ' . ' •• 

*:• . 

1 
».' * 
* » ( 

-.vt:-. 
• - ; - « 

»Sfe 

Deca.iaw .71.3007 

Variable rate Instruments 

ioo bp IOC 00 
h^reaett Oet-reiise 

(52) 52 

?jïfclAZA*-S Mk> 
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NOTE 34 - FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 

Financial risk management 
Fair value sensitivity analysis for structure B 
The Group accounts lui one suructvi.r al fair value Uvuugn profil or loss, and the Group does not designale denvatives (inleresl rale 
swaps) as hedging inslruinen-.s under a lair valut hedge accounting modei. The change in interest rates al the reporting date would 
resull in the following aflec! on the structure value: 

Senftltlvfty analysis - changes in Interost on structure 

Stmcture B (see note 11: 

f . i ï vaiLO cftsngc 
inaonso ."i bp 

(i-OOO 
ftjlr vrilw.1 

C-IVJO 

Fair wilue rJr.inij« 
'lew.3.ïtj 3 np 

e-0OÜ 

(29) 9,864 32 

Derivatives and debentures 
Sensitivity analysis - changes In Israeli CPI 

Derivatlve-A 
Derivalive-B 
Debenlures 
Debemure-B 

Total net 

Fin- -.guie anH^i. 
2s. 

COOO 

1.379 
3,501 

(648) 
(2,045) 

2.1S6 

rair Value ïlifln«p 
- ii^icastf 100 lip 

c n » 

(3,177) 
(6.775) 
1,103 
2.808 

(6.041) 

*lir VAIIJK 

i-or-.s 
coco 

10,142 
10.181 

(46,774) 
(128.370) 

(154,8211 

ri*'r Vtlli* 
f'OOO 

10.142 
.10,181 

(46,774) 
(123,370) 

(154,821) 

Fill, vai-ii, cnange 
211 

eooo 

(1.379) 
(3,5011 

648 
2,046 

i2.186) 

rtl'i \ïiMCi cliam-e 
- deciyaso 100 Iw 

«'OOO 

3,403 
7.164 

(1,164) 
(2,926) 

6/177 

Sensitivity analysis - changes in Interest on dobontuio 

Derive tive-A 
Dt-riva:ivc-B 
Oebemuie-A 
DebenturaB 

Total net 

: '••. i 
Fair values 
Fair values versus carrying amounts 
The carrying amounts of financial assets and liabilities shown in Uie balance sheet are a reasonable approximation of die fair value 
of such financial assets and liabililies. with the exception of Structure A (refer also to note 11). 

m 
Interest rates used lor dotormlnlng fair value 
The interest rates used lo discount estirnated cash flov.-s, where applicable, are based on the Is'aeli gnvernment Galil debentures yield 
cuive at the tepoiting date pius <.ri adequate ciodit spread, and were as foiiows: 

Decembe. 31 , OnMnlx l iSI . 
2008 200 :• 

Oerivalives - outllow' 
Derivatives - Inflow 
Loans and borrowings 

2.67«r-3.73% 
2.39%-3.86% 

4.30% 

irckiding J niniKir, 'it 1 .Kl'.i''* 

e.ss'it-e.eK 
•1.1^4.25% 

6.30*, 

?>1 ivU-Z-O^, Mfë 
IUNTANTS N.Vf 
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NOTE 35 - C0NT1NOENT UABIUTIES AND COMMITMENTS 

A CommltmenU m d contingent llabllitioe to related parties 
The Company and/or its subsidiaries are bound by the following agreements, with Control Centers Lid ("Control Centers"), a cnnipany 
controlled by the ullimate shaieholder of El and/oi companies controlled thereby 

1 A (ramt-woik agreemunt to pnwide cooidmalion. planning and supervision services over projects tor the construction ol shopping 
tei iters, the initiation of which began during me lerm of the agreemenl (through December 31. 2002i. in consideration of 5 * of the 
actual execution costs uf euch project (excluding land acquisition cosls, general and administraiive expenses and financing costs), 
payable according tt, rmlcslones stlimlaled in lhe specific agreement for each project. Additionally. Control Centers will be entitled lo 
reimbursement ol reasonable expenses directly incuned thereby for fees of external consultants required for the piovision of die 
services ond the like, r.t an amount not lo exceed USS50,000 per project. 

On October 27. 2006. tlic Company entered into an agreement with Controi Centers under which CoiKrol Centers will provide 
coordination, planning, ard execuiion and supervision services In respect ofthe Group's projects (the •AgiEemenf). Tills agreemenl 
is concluded within the (ramewoi k substantially the same as a similar agreement concluded belween El and Control Centers, wiiich 
was approved by the shareholders of El on May 31. 2006 under the applicable provisions of Israeli law. The Company wilt receive 
from Control Center.; (either diiectly or through its subsidiaries or afliliates, other than the Company and its subsidiaries! coordination, 
planning, execution and supervision services (the "Services') over Real Estate Projects (as delned below) of lhe Group and/oi its 
affiliates in rnnsiderau n for a lee equal to 5* of the actual execution costs ol each pioiect. plus value added ;ax. 'Real Estate 
Projects' shall mean any real estate pioject intended for one or more of the following: 

Shopping and enienaiinrienl centeis. oi any other shopping center. pennanenL temporaiy oi seasonal residential projects, offices, 
business enterprises, warehouses, congressional centers, lecture or convention centers, hotels, guest houses, apartment hotels, 
leisure apartmenls leisure, emertainnient. spoils or health centers and/or any other real estate projects decided upon for its 
development, construction or rcnovotion hy the Comoany, by itself or in participation with third parties. 

Coordination, planning and execution services Include the receipt of approvals and permits relating to construction and coordination, 
negotiations with consultants and planners, coordination with licensing authorities and supervision of the planning process. 
Supervision services include locating and negotiating with suitable contractore. supervising their work and coordinating the opeiating 
activities of the real estate project prior to its completion. 

The actual execuiion cosls are the aggregate costs incurred in connection with the Real Estate Project excluding the cost of the 
purchase of the land, financing cosls and the consideration for Control Centers undei the Agreement. Such fee will be paid in 
instalments upon the nteeting of specified targets (receipt ot planning approval or olher approval similar in its nature, receipt 
of a building Dermit and completion ofthe Real Estate Project). 

Tlie calculation of the actual execution costs and tlie final payment to Control Centers is subjected to an approval by an exlemal ,„ 
accountant. In addition, the Company will leimburse Control Centers (or all reasonable costs incurred In connection with the services | ; •-
rendered thereby not to exceed a total of 675.000 pei Real Estate Project. j r f 

If the iniended use of a Real Estate Project is changed for any reason prior to Uie completion of -.he Project, the payment to Control ' i | ) | 
Centers will be calculaled as a OBicentage of lhe budget for the Real Estate Project and provided that such percentage shall not jg; | 
exceed the percentage determined tor the next target had it continued as planned. The calculation of the paymants to Control ^ 

- Centers will bu subject to die approval ot an external accountant and the approval of the Audit Commiltee and the Board of the T^% 
Company and ol El. ~ *'• 

•*•; i . ^ ' 

At decembei 31. :>008 th». financial statements include a provision for engineering supervision sexless supplied hy a relaled party JJ-L 
in the Conttoi Centers Group In •he ainount of €1.8 million related to twelve projects under development in Romania, Serbia, Poland, | 
Czech Republic and Greece (for the total charges in 2008 and 2007 refer to note 37). 

fell 
2 On October 27. 2006. the Company signed an agroament with Jet Link Ltd. (a company owned by the ultimate shareholder ol the ;,;. 

Coiiipciiiy and which owns an airplane} under which the Group and/or its affiliates may use the airplane for their opemrional aclivilies %..iZ 
up to 275 (light hours per year. The Company will pay Jet Link Ltd. in accordance with its price list, reduced by a 5 * discount. The C , 
agieernent is in effeel for a hve-yeat term (see alsc i>ote 37). 

3 On Octohei 27.2006, the Company entered Into an agreement with tho Executive Vlce-Chairmsn of El ("VC") who has responsibility 
tor the Companys operations in India, under which lhe VC will be entitled to receive options ("the Options") lo acquire uo to 5 * of 
the holding company thiough which the Company will carry on its operations in India. Howevei, where considered appropriate and by 
agreement, lhe VC will be entitled to lake up a 5 * Interest in specific projects, in which case necessary adjustments will be made at 
lhe holding company level. The Company ami the VC will agree on the terms of die Option for each acquisition, taking into account 
taxation, securilies laws and regulations applicable lo either party or Uieir respective affiliates, and oltiei consklt-ralions or the 
respective parties. If the VC exercises all of his Options (5%) at the holding company level, his right to take up Interests on a project 
by project basis will lapse. The Options will be subject to vesting over a three-year period, with an initial vesting ot 2 * on award of 
the optiuns following conimencement of ihe relevant project with an additional 1% on the following dates: March 31. 2007. 

[MgERAZAJU 
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NOTE 35 - CONTINGENT UABIUTIES AND COMMITMENTS 

Financial risk management 
Maich 31, 2008 nnd March 31. 2009, If Ihe VC elects to lake up Options in a specific project whii.ii commences after any ol Hit 
vesting dales suttilied iibuve. ai immodiale vesting will be allowed in respect of Oplions which would have vested as ol the above 
dates. The vested options moy be exercised at any •.ime. at a pnce equal to the Company's nei equity investment made in the projects 
as a! the Opiion exercise date plus Imerest nt 'Jie rote of LIBOR plus 2% per annum from Ihe data of the investment unlil ihc Options 
exercise date ('Exercise price"). 

The VC has cash-in right In require the Company to purchase snares held by him following the exercise of the Options, at a price to 
be detennined by an independent valuator. In addition, lhe VC has the right to pay the Exercise Price on a partial exercise of Options 
by way of the surrender ic- the Conipany of Options valued at the Exercise Price of ihe exercised Options. The agreement includes 
tag-along righls and a nghl ut (iisl lelusal. 

The agreement was approved by El's shareholdeis on January 17, 2008. 

As of December 31, 200S, lhe liöbility recorded in these financial statements in respect of this agreement, is €1.1 million. 

4 On Januaiy 17. 2008. El's üiiarehoidcrs approved another agreemenl wilh the VC according to which El has undertaken to allot lhe 
VC 5% of the aggregate issued and outstanding shaie capital in the Company's jointly conlrolled subsitiiarv with El (see note 30), 
Elbit Plaza India Real Eslsie Holdings Llinited-CEPI"). 

The VC snares :n EPI shall mil ba entitled to receive any distributions (inciuding. Out not limited to, payment of dividends, interest. 
other expenses and pnncipal ropayments of shaielioldei loans, management fees or other payments made to the VC and any loans 
provided by the EPI to the VC) Irom EPI until the Group's investments (principal and interest calculated in accordance with a 
mechanism provided for in the agreement) in EPI have been repaid In full. 

Tho VC's right to receive We shares in EPI will be subject to vesting over a three year period, wheieby as of the balance sheet dale 
the right to receive 80* of the VC shares have already vested and the right to receive 20% of the VC shares will vest on March 31. 
2009. Tho VC's right to receive Ihe VC shaies shall continue to vest, according to the above vesting schedule, for so long as the 
VC devotes, in the aggregate, a substanual part of his time and attention to the sourcing activities. In the event ihe VC ceases for 
any reason to devote, in the aggregate, a substantial pan of his time and attention lo lhe sourcing notlvüi'es (die "Cut-Off Date';, 
then ihe VC's vcsiing rights ns discussed above shall cease as and from the Cut-Off Date, provided however, mat in such event, 
the VC shares lhat have not ye; <esteti shall vest pro rata from the last vesting date as aforeinentioned until tlm Cut Off Date. 
The agreement includes "tag along' and "drag along' rights. 

5 On Octobei 27, 2006. tho Company nnd the Chaimian of Its Boaid entered into a seivice agreement, pursuant to which the 
Chairman will be entitled lo a monthly salary of US.$2S ihousand (£17 thousand) which includes pension, retirement and similar 
benefits tor his services as the Company's Chairman. Tlie agreemenl was approved by Uie Annual General Meeting of El on 
November 1. 2007. 

6 In October 2006, the Conipany and £1 entered Into a transitional services agreement, pursuant to which El will provide the Company 
with legal and accounting services. The services are to be provided by El for a period of 24 months (from Oclober 2006). unless 
terminated earlier by the Company, al a cost to be agreed between the parties from time lo lime. 

^Sjg 7 In October 2006, the Company and El entered into an agreement, pursuant to which with effect from Januaiy 1, 2006 the Company 
u.3w will pay commissions to El In respect of all and any outstanding corporate and lirst demand guarantees which have been issued by 

El In favour ofthe Company up to 0.5* of the amount or value of the guarantee, per annum. As nf tlie balance sheet date the Group 
have no outstanding guarantees tram El and no consideration was paid in this respect. 

8 On October 13. 2006. El entered into an agreement (tiie "Agreement') with the Conipany. under which El is obliged lo offer lo the 
Company potential real estate deveiopmenl sites sourced liy it in India. Under the agreemenl. El is obliged to offer the Company the 
exclusive right to develop all of ihe shopping center projects which El acquires during the IS-year lerm of the agreement. The 
agreement was tenninated upon the signing of the joint venture in India (see also note 36), but both El and Ihe Company agieed that 
upon the termination of tne Inint. Venture agreeinent they will re-execuie the agreement. 

9 On November 1.2007. tlie Annual General Meeting of El approueri the Grant by the Company ot a deed of indemnity to the Executive 
Chairman of the board uf Jireciurs ol the Company - the maximum indemnification aiiiounl to be granted by Uie Compair,- lo tlie 
Chainnan shall not exceed 25% ol the shareholders' equity ot the Company based on the shareholders' equity set forth in the 
Cmnpany's last consolidaled (inain'idl stalemenls onor to such payiiicnt. No consideration was paid by the Company in this respect 
since the agrooment «as signed. 

1.0 On November 1. 2007, the- Armual General Meeting ot El approved the grant by the Company of a deed of indemnity to one of lhe 
Company's nonexecutive d;iociois. Mo consideration was paid by the Company in this respect since the agreement was signed. 

Mfgl MJO-A-B^ 
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B Commttments and contingent liabilities to others 
ITesco 
The Company is liablt tn Iiie buyar of Its previously owned shopping center in the Czech Republic ("NOVO") - sold in June 3006 - in 
respect to one of Its tenams I 'Tesco'). I'esco leased an area within the shopping cenier for a period of 30 years, with an option to extend 
the lease period for an additional 30 years, in consideration for €6.9 million. The entire amount of €6,9 million was paid in advance. 
Atcoidlrig to ihe lease agreement, the tenant has the righl io terminate ttie lease agreement subject lo fullilinent of cerlam conditions 
as stipulated in Ihe agreemenl. The Company's management believes that it is not piobable that this commitmeni will result in any 
material amount being paid by the Company. 

2 Lublin Stage B Project 
The Company has gramed in respect of Lublin Stage B Project (construction of Uie hotel and office area above Uie shouping cemer! a 
commitment to Klépierre (back to back with Klépierre commitment to Lublin Municipality according to wiiich Stage 8 Project shall 
commence by no later than September 30. 2009 and conclude by the end of 2011 ("Stage B Proiect"). Should the Company fail to 
comply with the linieMibie of the second stage a penalty shall be imposed thereon in the amount of PLN 2.5 million (COJ million). 
The municipality reserves also the right in this case to buy back the shopping center at cost base. 

In addition, the Company will mdoinnify Klépierre for any damage in relation to the construction of Stage B Project and will cause Stage 
B project to assume full liability *or llie (uii and timely performance of all the obligations (other tiian payment of usufruct fee) of the Joint 
Venture ("JV") agreement for the ownership lindirectlyl ofa Company registered in Lublin, Poland in favour of the municipality of Lublin 
including for damages for the failure o'. Project B Company to construct the Stage B Project in accordance with the usufruct agreement. 
The Company and the JV partner are jointly ami severally guaranlee to the Vendors obligations under the transaction agreement. 

Ttie JV partner guarantees to fhe Company's obligation under the transaction agreement related to Stage B Coinpany and/or Stage B 
Project Inciuding any liabilities to indemnify Klepieire for non-performance of Stage B Company's obligations under the usufruct agreement 
widi tlie municipality of Lublin. 

3 General liability in respect of trading property snd investment property (fisposals 
Ir. the (ratnewoi k ÜI" lhe tiinsac'ions for the sole ofthe Group's real estate assets, the Gioup has underta.<en lo indemniiy the respective 
puichasers (or any losses and costs incurred in conneclion with the sale transactions. The indeninificaliona usually include: 
;ij Indemnrfications in fespect of integrity of title on the assets and/or the shares sold (I.e. that tho assets and/or the shaies sold aie 
owned by the Group and are cleen from any encumbrances and/or mortgage and the like). Such indemnifications generally survived 
indefinitely and are caped (o Uie purchase price in each respective transaction; and (iii Indemnifications in respect of other representation 
and warranties included in the salts agreements (such as: development of the project, responsibility to defects in the developmeni 
orojecl, tax matter and others). Such indemnifications are limited in tkne (generally 3 years from signing a closing agreement) and are 
genemDy caped to 25'* to 50% of the purchase price. The Group's management estimates, based, inter alia, on a professional opinion 
and past experience, that nc signiiiiant costs will be born thereby, in respect of these indemnifications. 

Aggregate amount of the Group's cumm-lments m respect of conslnjction services and in respect of purchase of plots totalled, as of "•* 
December 31. 2008. appioximately €90 niillion. % 

C Contingent liabilHies due to logai proceedings 
On April 5.2006. the Company and El were claimed by a third party requesting the court to order the Company and El to pay the plaintiff . ^ 

^bLAU^S Mlv-

-*.* 
an amount of NIS 10.8 million (62 million) as an intermediary fee for certain sales of shopping centers in Poland and jP-
the &ech Republic. On August 31. 2006, El tiled the statements of defence and on January 25. 2007. the Company filed statements 
of defence. ;• i . 

The Company's management believes based, among others, on legal advice, that it is not probable tliat this litigation y/ill cause any •••'** 
outflow of resources to sFttle il. and therefore no provision was recorded. f"' ^ 

Tlie Company is involved 'rom time to time In litigation arising in the ordinary course of its business. Although the final outcome of each 
of these cases cannot be estimated at this time, the Company's management believes, based on legal advice, that it Is not probable 
that these litigations will cause- any outflow of resources to settle them. 
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NOTE 35 - CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS 

Financial risk management 
D Socuri t ios, guarantees and l ions undor bank l inance agreements 
1 Certain companies wiilini the Group winch are engaged in the purchase, construction or operation of shopping centers ("Pioject 

Companies') have seemed Iheir rtispiii-'live uredit facililies awatded by financing banks, in a lolal amounl of €176 iniilion (for projects 
in Romania. Lalvio. Ctuch Republic), by pruvicing the first or second ranking (fixed or (looting) charges on property owned thereby, 
including right in and lu real estate property as well as the financed projects, on goodwill and other intangible assets, on rights 
pertoining to certain contracts (including lease, operation and management agreements), on rights arising from insurance policies, 
and the like. Shares of Projecl Companies were also pledged in favour of the finandng banks. The Company guarantee fulfillment of 
one o l the project ccinp.mios' obligations under loan agreements up to an aggregate amounl of 620 millicn. 

Shareholders loans a-s w l l as any other rights and/or imerests of shareholders in and io the Projecl Companies were subordinated 
to tlie respective credit f.iciSiias. Payment is permitted to ihe shareholders (including the distribution ot dividends bu; excluding 
management fees) subjecl to fulfilling of certain preconditions. 

Certain loan agreements include a-t undeitaking to fulfill certain financial and operalional covenants tlnoughout the duration Df the 
credit, namely; complying wilh "a minimuni debt seivices cover tatio", "loan outstanding aniount' lo secured assets value ratio; 
complying with certain rustnetions on interest rates: maintaining certain cash balances tor currenl operations; mainlalning equily io 
project cost raUo and net profil to current bank's debt; occupancy percentage and others. All of the companies are in cornpliance witii 
Ihe entire loan covenants with the exception of one covenant in respect of one of the secured loan gianted. The Conipany is In 
negoliiiliun with the financing bank :r, iftspeiil cf setlling the bank requireinenl and is expected tu deposit up to €6 million as 
additional secunty for ihe loan. 

Tlie Projecl Conpanfcs undertnox not tn make any disposition in and to the secured assets, not to sell, transfer or lease any 
substantial part cf Iheii asseis without the prior consent of the financing bank. In certain events the Project Companies undertook 
nol to allow, without the tinor co'-sent of the financing bank: (i) any changes in and lo the holding slruclure o( lhe Project Companies 
nor fo allow (or any change in theii incorporation documents; (11) execuiion of any sigiiiticant aclivilies. including issuance of shaies, 
related party transaciions ard significant transactions not in the ordinary course ol business; iiii) certain changes lo the scope of the 
projecr. (ivi the assumption of cenain liabilities by the Projecl Company in favour of third parties; (v) receipt of loans bv the Project 
Company and/or the provision thereby of a guarantee to third parties; and the like. 

Alom Sziget has a bank loan (of C40 million): The Company has commitled fo repay 30% of the ouistanding loan amounl in case .Alom 
Sziget fails :o do so. 

2 Commitment In respect ol derlvativo Iransaction 
Within the framework of crost- currency interest rate swap transactions (see note 15), executed between the Company and Israeli 

, , - banks (the "Banks'!, Hie Company agreed lo pmvide the Banks with a cash collateral deposit which will be calculated in accordance 

K j : '•' wilh a specific mecliamsni provided in eacii swap transaction agreement. Accordingly, as of the balance sheel dale, the Company has 
!'''-. I' pledged, a securily deposit in the amount oi 019.6 million in respect of these swap uansaclions. 

3 Commitment In respect of structures 
In cider to secure credit lines provided to the Company for the purpose of investing the credit funds in financial structures isee note 
11). the Comiiany has provided the financing banks a pledge on the structures issued. In addition the Company also has to comply 
with certain covenants stipulated in the loan agreement. Failing to comply with the said covenants shall oblige the Company to provide 
an additional cash collateral. As of tlic balance sheet dale the Company has secured cash collaleral of €14.6 million. 

Mg>lMAXAR-S 
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NOTE 38 - SIGNIRCANT ACQUISmONS ANO EVENTS 

Joint vantuta «groemont with the controlling bidlraet shareholder 
On August 25.2008. lhe Conipany and El signed on a joint venture agreement in the framework of which. Ihe Company acquired 47.5'» 
ol El shareholding In Elbit+ l̂aza India Real Estate Holdings Umited ("EPI") In exchange ot an assignment of SO1*, of Ihe shareholders 
loans gianted by El to EPI up lo the closing date, and which totaled to €81 million. As at the closing date EPI holds plots in Bangalore 
and Chennai (see below), l'ollüwing the execution of the tiansaction Ihe Coinpany and El each hold 50% of the voting nghts in EPI and 
47.5% ol the equity nghl s. The additional 5* equily rights are held by El's Vice Chairman of the Board, which were granted to hmi wilhin 
the framework of an agreement executed in January 2008 (see note 35). The Company and El each have the righl to appoint 50% ot the 
board members in EPI. 

lr addition, the Comiiany paid El ur advance payment in the amount of €4 million ("Advance"! which is equal '.o 50% ofthe shareholders 
loan granted by B lor its investment in the Cochin Island project (see note 91. El wilt hold in trust 50« of the right in the Cochin Island 
in favour of the Company. The Company has been granted with El's corporate guarantee, which shall be exercised in the event El shall 
fall to transfer all its nghl in the Cochin Island to EPI (or alternatively to transfer 50% ot the said rights to the Company) within a period 
of one year from lhe execution of the agreement. 

The following informalion is in respecl of trading property which is held by EPI: 

Chennai 
On December 16,2007, EPI entered inlo a framework agreement, ('Framework Agreement'!, with a third party to acquire, through a Joint 
Venture Company ("jv i. uo to '35 acres ot land in the Siruserl District of Chennai. India. Under the Pamework Agreement, the JV will 
develop on ttie project rami an integictieri multi-use project. 

under the Framework Ag-eement. EPI is io hold 80% of the JV. Investments by EPI In the JV will be a combination ol investment in snares 
and convertible debentures. The total investnient that EPI is anticipated to pay under the framework Agreement in consideration for Ils 
80% holding (through tlie JV) in the project land is up to INR 4,276.8 million (€62 million), ("Purchase Pnce") assuming purchase ol all 
135 acres. Tlie projea land is to be acquired by die JV in batches subject to such land complying wilh certain regulatory requirements 
and the due diligence requirements of EPI. Tlirough lhe balance sheet date tho JV acquired approximately 52 acres ot the project land 
and a total of INR 1,642 million (€24 million) of the Purchase Price was paid by EPI. 

Bantfalora 
On March 13. 2008. EPI entereo inlo ar amended and restated share subscription and framework agreemenl, ("Framework 
Agreemenl"!, with a third party and n wholly owned Indian subsidiary of EPI ("Joinl Venture Company'), to acquire, through ihc Joint 
Venture Company, up to 'WO acres of iand in Bangalore, India ('ine Project Land'). Under the Froniework Agreement, following the 
consummation of the closing of the (i"al stage of the transaction, the Joint Venture Company will develop on llie Project Land, an 
integrated multkise proiect. 

Under the Framework Agreement, the Joinl Venture Company Is to acquire ownership and development rights in respect of up to an 
approxlmale 230 acres of the en-.ire Projea Land for a fixed amount of cash consideration. In consideration of EPI's 50% share (through 
the Joint Venture Company) in such lands. EPI will pay an aggregate of up to INR10,500 million (€154 million). 

Upon the closing ofthe fira stage of lhe transaction, which occurred on March 24,2008. the Joinl venture Company lias secured nghts 
over approximaielv 54 -jcres cf sucn 230 ncres and EPI has paid the aggregate sum of approximately INR 2.840 million (€42 million! in 
considetation of ils 50% share (Shiuugh the Jomi Venture Company) in such land. 

i s 

In addition. EPI has paic to the third parly an interest bearing advance of approximately INR 1,861.5 IË41 iniilion) on account of tlie 
future acquisition by the Jomi Venture Company of a further 35.6 acres, which land is currently controlled by the third party. Such 
advance payment is presenied in lhe balance sheet as of December 31.2008, as prepayment and other assets (see note 9). 

In respect ol up io the other approximately 210 acres of the entire project land, tne framework agreement provided that the Joint Venture 
Company will enter into joint developmeni agieements under which the Joint Venture Company will be entitled to develop the entire area 
ot such lands, tn consitletaiien. the Joinl Venture Company wilt pay between 38% and 53% of the built up area of such lands and in some 
cases, relund.iblc ileposits on account of such future consideration will also be paid. EPI's 50% sliare (through the Joint Venture 
Company) in rights under the ilevelopment ageements, will require it to Invest INR 750 million (€11 million) in order to fund its 
proportional share in such deposits. 

Undei lhe Framework Agrpenient between Die closing of the first stage (March 31, 2009) and the closing ul the final stage (June 30, 
2009) of the iransacuon. additional portions ot the Project Land will be acquired in stages through the third party's business partners 
on behalf or the Joint Venture Company and subject to certain conditions, EPI will make advances (in addition to sums already transferred 
in conneclion with the closing of Ihe first stage) on account al such acquisitions. Through the balance sheel date EPI 
has advanced an amount of approxiir-ately INR 674 million (€9 million) In order to secure acquisitions ot approximately 16 acres. Such 
advance payments ore also presented as prepayments and other assets (see note 9). 
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NOTE 36 - SIGNIFICANT ACQUISITIONS ANO EVENTS . 

Joint venture agtoomont w i t h the contro l l ing Indirect shareholder 
Winning of tender - Oream Island project in Budapest (see also no te 15] 
On July 23. 2003, a lelated entity ti) Alom Sziget Kft.. where the said related entity was (omed under consortiuni agreemenl amongst 
ilm shareholders of Alom S2ij?.e,' Kft. i i ' i which Ihe Company holds a 30% stake) signed a concession agreement with the minisiry of 
iMii i ia; ni Hungary lur :i cas.m: licentie- Mr ils planned eniertanunent and mixed use Dream Island rievolopmenl in Budapest. 

According to concession agreement, Ihc casino licence, which will be formally issued towards the opening ot the casino, will be gianted 
to the relafed entity for a penurt ol tweniy years from the date of opening ol tne casino, with a ten year extension option which vvill be 
granted (subjected lu the lulflllnieiil of certain conditions). 

Buy out o f Joint venture partnor In India 
On Septembet 29, 2008, die Company acquired the 50% interest of ils joint venture partner in its Koregaon Park projea for a tolal 
consideration of approxiniately €14 million. 

Arona P la ia - Purchase prico adjustment 
As part of the agieed purchased price adjustment mechanism agreed with UK based Active Asset Invesiment Management ("aAim';, 
the Company has lecordod .icditional revenues of 11223 million in the year 2008 oul of which C3.2 million is Cue 1.0 .1 revetsal 
of certain provisions marie in 2007, The Company received €5.6 million consideiatlon as part of the finalisation of the Arena 
Plaza iransaction. 

Sale of Pizon Plaza Project - Czech Republic 
Effective June 30. 2008. the Company sold Plzen Plaza s.r.o (the owner of the Plzen Plaza shopping center] to Klepiene. The Company 
recognized revenue in tht; amount of €61.4 million in Ihese (inancial statemenls and recmded a gain of €19.2 million. Toal cash 
consideralion amounted lo G54.6 million. 

In addition, €0.5 million was pruvided due lo uncertain amounts Plzen plaza may incur in respect of the developmeni of the shopping 
cemer. Accordingly, the purchasor withholds these amounts until the uncertainty wiil bo removed. 

Changes In global markets 
The last few months of 200S have seun extraordinary turbulence in economic and financial markels worldwide which has impacted 
considerably on activliy in real nstaie markets worldwide, with the lack of availability ot financing being a key factor behind the dramatic 
slowdown in investmem transactions. The Company will conlinue with the development of the six projects that are in construction stage 
(Casa Radio and Ciuc in Romania. Liberec in Czech Republic. Koregaon Park in India. Riga in Latvia, and Kragujevac in Serbia). The other 
pmjects are either in design phase, cr wait pennils. For all these schemes, once full pennits are obiained. start of the construction will 
depend on availability ol iufcinal financing. 

Issuance o f dob l securf t los 
For the issuance of debt refer io note 22. 

Share repurchase program 
For the share repurchase piogram and treasury shares held refei to note 24. 

Changes In omployeo Incent ive plan 
For the incentive pian ameiidinenl refer to note 24. 

NOTE 37 - RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

Related party t ransact ions 
The main shareholder of the Company holding, as of balance sheet date, 70.6% ol all issued and paid share capital of the Company as 
of balance sheet dato, i's Elbit Uiirasnund B.V. f'EUL"), incorporated in the Netherlands and the ultimate controlling party is Elbit Imaging 
("El"), which by itself owr.s O.l'K. of the Company's shares as of balance sheet date. Regarding purchase of shares by related parties 
after balance sheet date refer to note 39. El's indirect controlling shareholder is Mr Mordechay Zisser. Tlie res: of the Compan/s shares 
aie held by the public, startiiiK October 27 .2006. 

Transaciions between the Company and Its subsidiaries, which are relaisd parties ot the Company, have been eliminated on consolidation 
and are not disclosed In this note. Details of transactions between the Group and other related parties are disclosed below and also in 
note 36. in respect of the ioint venture of tfie Compony and El In India. 

The Company has six directors. The annual remuneration of the directors In 2008 amounted to €1.6 million (2007: €3.6 million) and 
the annual share based compensation expenses amounted to 64.5 million (2007: €7 million). There are no other benefits granted to 
directors. 

Information about related pditv balances as ol December 3 1 , 2007 and 2008 is disclosed in note 19. 

M 
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Trading tri ctlons 
During the year, gioup entities had tlie following trading transactions with related parties that are not members of the Gioup: 

For the year ended * . r . 1 * v-rji «'ideil 
Deoemberu, 

zoos 
COOO 

DocenHiw ,11. 
?007 

CC'OO 

Income 
Interest on shareholders loan :o El 

Costs and expenses 
Charges - El"1 

Chaimian of Board and Executive Vice Chairman of EP 
Interest on shareliolders loan from EUL 
Aviation services - Jet Link * 
Project management provisioii arid chaiges - Control Centers group''" 

1,277 1.084 

1.429 
1,038 

647 
553 

14,608 

3,355 
961 
642 
74.1 

11,846 

1 CliaflgesluFI decredsed luinVduc m '^mourscnwm dl O dyvKes J I foonectior, MThof puidtiMie trfptcgacts iu India li< itie Clrmpnriy |C1.« niili'Oii) «n tJ * «.vurw» ,11 "JOij? 
tor f w !«re«..ien; in .« i r^ ' t i t ••••rJ*... -..iwiit ol cist 'eiei lo .iota 35.2008 cnat^ee tae I-Khjaive tlreiiy oi n>an«(.enwril |B^^ I^ I I ICM iriateiy ec 4 tnlhcni a& -wll «s «.-liteget 
m ir-^jjcct oi ijctwiiies m indiii. ns AO'; HH c*tfgeii due ic liaiKiilriK at Ihe hcadiiudrten in lhe NalIi£."arKls. 

y ro. I I M opllcn » * * : v u-l r.r cutVl vim>AiriTlor of Tl Mier to note :1S Dviinrum j r the Boird 01 the CnnipAi^, Alio a aisa dv- eontnx^rjl alKiAib.3ide. ol ti»; tiitiAirite psrolt 
i'3n»i»a^ i& miyt'vvi', an .vttim r~i .ir.' o' USS^iid l.rtasand. 

i i lei I.»* «Ml r.ii.«ri» CiviU'iv . i : . , IUXIIIMKIAJ. iiwiieil i v uw uH^uld «hateticldn. nl the Cmr̂ Tany. 

NOTE 38 - OEOORAPHIC AND BUSINESS SEGMENTS 

The Group comprises following main geographical segments, whlcli are CEE and India. In presenting information on the basis of 
geographical segments, segment revenue is based on the revenue resulted from the selling of assets geographically located in the 
relevant segment, as well as the geographical location ofthe tenants. 

Business segment coniprised from coniinercial and entertainment, being the core activity of the Conipany. with increasing residential 
pari, following the joint venture with El (refer to note 36). 

A Data regarding geographical segment* 

Vkai ended Decenlie. 31 , 2008 

Revmuaw'1' 
Operating (ncome (lo**) by segment 
Sliare in tosses of associates, net 
Less - unallocated general and administrative expenses 

Rnancial income, net 

Central Eaalatn Eurape 

98,613 
32,503 

(941) 

Total 

(1,759) 

Other expenses, net 

Profit before income taxes 

98,613 
30,744 

(941) 
(12,605) 

88,088 

(2.689) 

72,597 

Income taxes 

Prom for the year 

(4,913) 

67,684 

Purchase cost of segment (tangible and intanglbto) assets 
Depreciation and amortization of segment asset» 

December 31.2008 
Total segment assets 
Investment on the equily basis 
Unallocated assets 

190,411 
5,736 

518,226 
188 

137,685 
897 

131.776 

328.096 
6,633 

650,002 
188 

308,366 

958,556 

Segment liabilities 
Llnaliocateo liabilities 

52,817 1.437 54,254 
294.771 

349,025 

'•I 
*./ 

t 

r-

1 Revcnufcs v e incios*-* of t i venuus ÏHH* rwiiinft c-! tiadfnft aropartfes. 
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NOTE 36 - GEOGRAPHIC AND BUSINESS SEGMENTS 

. t i » 

S i * 

VÜ.I. üiik.il Dccemiicf :i-.?0i!i' 

Revenues'"' 
Operating income (loss) by sogment 
Share in losses of ossociutes. net 
Less - unallocated geneial and adriinisiiative expenses 

Financial income, not 

Olher expenses.net 

Profit boforo income taxos 

CoAtr.* ClMflit. Ewoco 

509.914 
233,344 

(19) 
•;.1..472; 

509.914 
231,872 

(IS) 
(13,805) 

9.347 

(336) 

227.057 

Income taxes 

Profit for tho year 

(90) 

226.967 

Purchase cost of segment (tangible and intangible) assets 
Depreciation and amortization of segment assets 
December 31. 2007 
Total segment assets'3' 
Investment on the equity basis 
Unallocated assets 

365.198 
4,513 

591,129 
1.129 

30.931 
37 

31,190 

396.129 
4,550 

623,039 
1.129 

137,043 

761.211 

Segment liabilities 
Unallocated liabilities 

70.788 1.737 72.523 
85,217 

157.740 

l rin.-eniiAS on. iivIiiAive i»; rf*«n.ift» IICIM '•••f!:-! iy nl Liiijiri,. ijmiemas. 
y Includins trüiie .ecoivnUos due 10 ^ I I I I B 01 uuuifq. ^roi^nioi in ö lywl amount öf £260.4 miiioii 

B Data regarding business segments 
Revenues hy lïcvonücfc by 

bmlnoea markala hiisintiss Amrtat* 
Year ended ll-iir ended 

Decemher 3 1 , 2008 DMent t r 31 . 2007 
t'OOO CIXX) 

Commercial and entertainnx-nt 
Residential 
Others 

98,455 509.914 
158 

98,613 509.914 

Cominerclal and emeilainment 
Residomiiil 
Others 

Ptirchoae coat of 
aosmenl (tonflble and 

inlangiblat asaets 
Daeeml». 3 1 , 

3008 
E'OOO 

179,631 
37,173 
51,292 

328,096 

P-jthose com ol 
.fegme-,. itongible 

ÜTHJ nuwÊjlvo OtAÜlX. 
Dtcambei-ll. 

200? 
COOO 

372,142 
11.898 
12,089 

396.129 

Segment aaaet* Segmeni IK.M.1:. 
Docember 3 1 , b,;i<x.iitar 'M.. 

2008 2007 
«•000 Ciion 

Commercial and entertainment 
Residential 
Others 

495,129 
102,464 

52,409 
650,002 

592,956 
17.994 
12,089 

623.039 
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NOTE 39 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 

Bulgaria - transaction 
On February 3.2009. the Company acquired a controlling stake In a 75,000 m' projecl in Sofia, Bulgaria, iur lhe deviilopriieni of a retail 
and office convik». 

The Company acquired a 51% stake in the project from a loeal developer for a total consideration ot C'7 14 million. The consideration 
will consist of a cash payment ol C2./S million and the assumption ot €4.36 million of deb:, repiesenting 51% ol the project's debt 
liabilily. in addition tho Company w.ll istaln the right to acquire a furtiier 24% slake in the project for six months following the start ol 
construction, based on the ourreit value of the project. The local developer will retain the reniaintng slake as join! venture partners in 
the project, with die Compnny irtmaging me construction. 

Completion of share buyback program 
In the Course of January 2009, both the Company and El continued with the share buy back program (see also note 24). In the course 
of January 2009 the Company purchased 5.3 million shares in an average price of 0.6 pound per share, while El purchase 4.6 million 
shares in an overage price of 0.62 pound per shore. 

Following the above-menlioned purchase and the conclusion of the share buyback piogram, the etfective holding percentage of El in the 
Company is 73.69''-,. 

Changes in ratings of Company dabanturas 
In March 2009, Midroog Ltd.. f'Midioog"), an affiliate ot Moody's Investors Services, and S&P Vlaalot ("Maalot"). have recently conducied 
wioeranglng reviews of a number of real estate companies whose debentures are listed on the Tel Aviv Slock Exchange ("TASE"), 
Including the Company's and El's. 

As a result of diis rewiw. Midroog has informed the Company that it has decreased the "AaS/Negative" rating, for the Company's Series 
A and Series 6 OebcntfRR, which are iraded on the TASE. to "AS/Slable". 

Maalot has decrtsscrt its rating ot the Company's series A debentures fiom an ' A+,'Negative" rating, io "A/Slable" on a local scale. 

Settlement of cross currency transaction Sarles A dsbantanas 
In January 2009 the Conipany seiilad the Cross Currency transaction in respect of its series A debentures ("swap transaction'), (or a 
total proceeds of C13.1 million. In addition, the Coinpany released a long-term restricted deposit in the amount of €5.3 million, which 
served as a security far ihe swap transaction. 

Raflnanca of airplane 
In March 2009 the Coinpany received a total ainount ot US$4.7 million (€3.7 million) as a refinant.e loan in respect ot its wholly owned 
airplane. The loan was granted lor w penod of five yesrs and sears an interest of USD LIBOR +4. 

Purdu Idltlo I stake In Draam Island project, Budapest 
In March 2009, the Company, through its jointly controlled subsidiary (Ercorner! has acquired a additional 27% stake ;n Alom Szigel (see 
also note 15) (or a lotal considetation of C21.4 million .The consideralion will consist of a cash payment of €12 million and lhe 
assumption of Ê9.4 million of debt, reptesentmg 27% of the project's net debt liability. Following the tiansaction, Ercorner holds 87% ol 
tlie equity and voting nghls in Alum Sziget. 

MOTE 40 - CRITICAL ACCOUNTINQ JUDGMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY 

Management discussed with the Audit Committee the development, selection and disclosure of tlie Group's critical accounting policies 
and estimates and ttie applicaiion of ihese policies and estimates. 

A Income taxes 
Tlie Group is subject to income taxes in numerous jurisdictions. Significant judgment is reooired in deterinining the provision tor income 
taxes. There are many transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain. Tlie Group recognizes 
liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based on estimates of whetlier additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome of 
these matters is different from the amounts that were Initially recorded, such differences will impact Uie income tax and deferred tax 
provisions In the period in which such determination Is made. 

B Potential paaaltlas, guarantees Issued 
Penalties are part of die ongoing coiisuuot'on activities, and result (rom obligations the Group takes on towards third parties, such as 
banks and municipalities. The Company's managemen'. is required to provide estimations about risks evolving from potential guarantees 
given by the Company or penalties that the Company might have to pay. 

T^ M-AiA-K-^ 
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NOTE 40 - CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY 

C Expired bui lding permi ts 
The process of construclion is long, and subjecl to authorization from local authorities. It may occur lhat building permits will expire and 
will cause the Companv add.-.innnl preparailuns and costs, and can cause construclion to be delayed br abandoned. 

D Fair valua meaauremont o f dobentures 
The Company measures lhe fair value of lhe debenlures using a valuation technique done by external experts. The valuation is sensitive 
to changes in market conditions and is based un assumptions that are reasonable but can not be virtually guarameod. The Company Is 
using external experts only :n rare cases where it regards the quoied market prices as no! the best estimate of the fair value due io 
the inactivity of lhe mergel. In all other coses the Company is using lhe quoied markel prices as best estimate for tlie (air value of 
lhe debentures. 

E Fair value measurement o f der ivat ive 
The Company measures the fair value of ns derivatives using a valuation technique done ir/ external experts. Tlie valuation Is sensitive 
to changes in market ccnriition:* ano is based on assumplions that are reasonable buf can not hc virtually guaranteed. 

F Revenue recogni t ion 
Revenues from sale ot real esiate assets are recognized when all the criteria mentioned in note Slki are met. Detuniiinaiion whether 
these criteria have been met foi r;;'ioh safe Iransaction, requires a significant judgment by the Group inanagemeiil. 

Significant judgment is madn in detennination weather, as of Ihe balance sheet date, the Group has translenedto the b.iyer the 
significant risks and rewards associated lo Hie real estate assets sold. Such determination is based on an analysis of the terms 
inclutleu in the sale agreemenl executed with the buyer as well as an analysis ol uther commercial undcrsuihrlings witn the buyer in 
respect ofthe real estate solo. Generally, the sale agreement wiih the buyer is signed during lhe constructioii period and the cnnsummatlon 
ol the tiansaction is subiect to certain conditions precedents which have to be fulfilled prior to delivery. Revenue? aie. therefore, 
recognized when all t{'i'; significanl conditions precedent included in the agreement have been fulfilled by the Group and/or waived by 
the buyer prior to ihe balance slieel date. 

The delivery ol the shopping oenter lo the buyer is gEiiarally executed close lo the end of construction and to the opening of the shopping 
center to the public. As a insult, the. Group has to use estimates in order to detennine the costs and expenses required to complete lhe 
construction works which, as ol 'Jie delivery dato ; has not been completed and/or been paid In full. 

Generally, the Group is prnvidetl with a ban* guaranty (rom the buyer (orthe total estimated proceeds in order to secure the pavmenl by 
lhe buyci at delivery. Therefore, lhe Group does nol inherent any significant risks in respect of payment of the proceeds by tho buyer. 

G Valuation of share-based payments arrangements 
The Company measures lhe (air value of share-based payments using a valuation technique done by external experts. The valuation is 

fff?! relying on assumplions and eslimaliuns of key parameters such as volatility, which are changing, as maiket conditions change. The risk 
i & f } is that lhe estimated costs related io share-based payments might not be correct eventually. 

;«#; .H 
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NOTE 41 - UST OF SUBSIDIARIES AND AFFIUATES OF THE COMPANY 

During the period starting January 1.2007. the Company has ovmed the lollowing companies (all subsidiaries were 100% owned by the 
Croup at each balance sneet dale ptesented unless otheiwise indicated); 

Directly wholly owned 
Kerepesi 2 Hyperrnarte; IngBtiarifeileszTfl Kft. 

Kerepesi 3 Aruhéz Ingatlanfejiesj.d Kft. 

Kerepesi 4 Szailoda Ingailanfeilesztó Kft. 

Kerepesi 5 Irodaepület Ingatlontejieszló Kn 

HOM Ingatlanfeilesztósi es VezotiSsi Kft. rHOM"! 

Plaza Houso IngatlanfryleMtési Kit. 

Tatabénya Plaza Ingailanfcilcsztési Kft. 

Shopping center 

Shopping center 

Holder of land usage rights 

Holder of land usage rights 

ement company 

Office building 

Inactive 

Szombathely 2002 Ingntlanliasznosn.ö ês Vagyonkezelö Kft. 

Szeged 2002 IngalianhasznosiUi i i Vagyonkezelö Kft. 

Indirectly owned (or jointly ownod) 
Ercorner Kft. 

Inactive 

Inactive 

Holding company 

Alom Sziget 2004 Ingailanfejlesztö Kft 

Plasi Invest 2007 Ingat'antorgalmazo Kft. 

SBI Hungary Ingatlonforgalrnazo es Epito kft. 

Alom Szigel Entortainneri Z-i 

Alom szigel Hungary Kaszinojatek Kft. 

Pro-One Ingatianfejlesztf. Kft. 

Zyitihod Kft. 

Buszesz IMMO Zrt 

Rjntasy Pod'. Magyarors/Bg Kf, 

V convention, casino, hotel and 
entertainment center 

Holding company 

Shopping center 

Holding company 

Holding company 

Holding compnny 

Plot of land 

Plot of land 

Sold to «Aim in 2007 

Sold to flAim in 2007 

Merged into Kerepesi 5 Irodaépület 
IngaUanfejIesztd Kft. in July 2O08 

Arena extension project 

Jointly controlled (50:50 wilh 
ccinmcicial bank and holding company 

of Alom Sziget 2004 Kft. 
The Dream Island proiect - see nole 15 

Held 60% by Ercomer Kft. 

Held 70% by Plaza Cenicrs N.V. 

Jointly controlled (50:50) 
by Plasi Investmem Kft. and 

SBI Real Estate Developrient B.V. 

Inactive 

Held 49.99% by 01 Gaming Holding Ltd. 

Held 100% by Alom sziget Entertainment Zrt 

Held 50% by Alom Sziget 2004 
mgaUanfejIesztö Kit. 

Held by Pro-One Ingailanfejlesztd Kft. 

Held by Pro-One Ingatlanfejlesztö Kft. 

Held 100% by Mulan B.V. 

Directly wholly owned (or Jointly owned) 
EDP So.z.o.0. 

gkiiskoBioio Plt>.'>i So. O.I>. 

E;ytO'~ Vkv.ti So '/.'.i.o 

SjdgoEztt Plxa Sp.z.o.o. 

}t-.i'i.:ov* Sum:. Sp 7.0.:>. 

ChiXiüw Pioza Sp./ o.n. 

^ci::ei&c Pi,:K'a S-j.t.o 1:, 

Gdansk Centruir P-zia Si) ;:.O..J. 

Lublii; Or Sp.z.o.o. 

Acllwly 

Inactive 

Inactive 

Inactive 

Inactive 

Inactive 

Inactive 

Shopping center under construction 

Inactive 

Stage B - Lublin 

Gllwicc Ptei.ï Saxoo. 

Goi.:̂ v, Wirlkorioltiiu Pia;;! Sp z.o.o. 

Inactive 

Inactive 

Jointly controlled (50:50) 
with Classic Or B.V. 

Zgorzelec project 

Held 50% together with Israeli-based partner 

7>1 MJLZAJU MKH 
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NOTE 41 - LIST OF SUBSIDIARIES AND AFFIUATES OF THE COMPANV 

Grudziadz Plaza Sp.z.o.o. inactive 

fut 
f * 

3v 

Jelenta Goia Plaza Sp.z.o.o. 

Katowice Plaza Sp.z.o.o. 

Suwalki Plaza Sp.z.o.o. 

Koszalin Plaza Sp,z.o.o. 

Legnica Plaza Sp.z.o.o. 

Lodz Cenlrum Plaza Sp.z.u.u. 

Plazn Centers (Poland) Sp.z.o.o. 

Kielce Plazn Sp.z.o.o. 

Olsztyn Plazn Sp.z.o.o. 

Opole Plaza Sp.2.0.0. 

Plock Plazn Sp.z.o.o. 

Radom Plaza Sp.z.o.o. 

Rybnlk Plaza Sp.z.o.o 

Hokus Pokus Rozrywka Sp.z.o.o. 

Sosnowiec Piaza Sp.z.o.o. 

Szczecin Plaza Sp.z.o.o. 

Tarnow Plaza Sp.z.o.o. 

Torun Plaza Sp.z.0.0. 

Tychy Plaza Sp.z.o.o. 

Wloclowek Plaza Sp.z.o.o. 

Zabize Plaza Sp.z.o.o. 

Leszno Plaza Sp.z.o.o. 

Indirect ly owned (or Joint control led) 
fantasy Park Investments Sp.z.o.o. 

Fantasy Park Sp.z.o.o. 

Hokus Pokus R-ozryvvKa Sp.z.0.0. 

Movement Poland S.A 

Inactive 

Inactive 

Shopping center under construction 

Inactive 

Inactive 

Own plot of land 

Management conipany 

Shopping center 

Inactive 

Inactive 

Inactive 

Inactive 

Shopping center 

Inactive 

Shopping center 

inactive 

Inactive 

Shopping center - planning stage 

Inactive 

Inactive 

Inactive 

Shopping center - planning stage 

Inactive 

Entertaininent 

Inactive 

Shopping center 

Suwalki projecl 

.... 
Lodz project 

Kielce project 

Sold to Klépierre 2007 

Hold 50% 

Sold lo Klépierre 2007 

Torun project 

Leszno projecl 

Wholly owned by Fantasy Park Enterprises B.V. 

Wholly owned by Fantasy Park Enterprises B.V. 

Held 50% by PLA.Z.A S.V. and 50% Held by Plaza 
Centers N.V. 

Sold to Klépierre in 2007 

Directly owned 

Praha Plaza S.R.O. 

B.1 Plaza S.R.O. 

Plaza Centers Czech Republic S.R.O. 

Plzen Plaza S.R.O. 

P4 Plnza S.R.O. 

rjG Plaza S.R.O 

BYTY SN Plaza S.R.O 

Hradec Plaza S.R.O 

Plaza Housing S.R.O 

Plaza Station S.R.O 

Indirect ly owned 
Fantasy Park Czech Republic S.R.O 

Logistic center 

Shopping center 

Management company 

Shopping center 

Shopping center 

Inactive 

Inactive 

Inactive 

Plot ol land 

Inactive 

Entertainment 

—• 

• . . - - -

Wholly owned t 

Opava project 

sold to Klépierre in 2008 

Liberec pioiect 

• -

Roztoky project 

iy Fantasy Park Enterprises B.V. 
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Helios Plara S.A. 

Actvdr 

Shopping center under construction 

Renw.1... 

Helios Plaza project 

Luiv-a 

Fantasy Park Riga SIA 

Cwru* - Uhra-n^ 

PC likraino Holdings Limited 

Nourolet Enterprises Unnlted 

Tanoll Enterprises Umited 

AUMtr 

Entertainmem Held 100% by Mulan B.V. 

DlksiiB SIA 

Ihe lAmne 

Plaza Centers Ukraine Limited 

Shopping center under construction 

Atllwiy 

Management company 

Jointly controlled with an American based partner. 
Riga Plaza Project 

Renvwhs 

Held 100% by PC Ukraine Hoklings Ltd 

Adlvly 

Holding company 

Inactive 

Inactive 

nunam.! 

DiracUy ownod 

S.C, CENTRAL PLAZA S.R.L. 

AcMtp 

Inactive 

Shopping centei - pianning stage S.C. GREEN PLAZA S.R.L. 

S.C. ELITE PLAZA S.R.I. Shopping center - planning stage 

S.C. PLAZA CENTERS MANAGEMENT ROMANIA S.R.L Manageinent company 

S.C. NORTH GATE PLAZA S.R.L. 

S.C. SOUTH GATE PLAZA S.R.L 

S.C. WEST GATE PLAZA S.R.L. 

S.C. EASTERN GATE PLAZA 3.R.L. 

S.C. NORTH WEST PLAZA S R L . 

S.C. NORTH EASTERN PUVZA S.R.L. 

S.C. SOUTH WEST PLAZA S.R.L 

S.C. SOUTH EASTERN PLAZA S R._. 

S.C. WHITE PLAZA S.R 1.. 

S.C. GOLDEN PLAZA S.R.L. 

S.C. BLUE PLAZA S.R.L. 

S.C. RED PLAZA S.R.L. 

S.C. PALAZZO DUCALE S.R.L. 

S.C. MOUNTAIN GATE S R L . 

Indirectly owned (or jo in t contro l led) 
S.C. DAMBOVITA CENTER S.R.L. 

Bas Devetopment S.R.L. 

Soring Invest S.R.L. 

Sunny Invest S.R.L. 

Colorado Invest S.R.L 

Malibu Invest S.R.L. 

Adams Invest S.R.L. 

Primavera Tower S.R.L. 

Fantasy Park Romania S.R.L. 

Shopping center - under construction 

Shopping center - planning stage 

Inactive 

Inactive 

Office building ant) 
Company's Romanian headquarters 

Shopping center - planning stage 

Shopping center - under construction 

Residential project 

Residential project 

Residential project 

Residential project 

Resldentisl project 

Residential project 

Residential project 

Inactive 

lasi project 

Timisuara project 

Miercurer. Ciuc project 

Siatina project 

Shopping cenlei 

Shopping centei 

- planning stage 

- planning stage 

Inactive 

Inactive 

Inactive 

Inactive 

Inactive 

Inactive 

Hunedoara project 

Constanza project 

- - — -

Targu Mures project 

" 2 •» 
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Casa Rad'o project. 75% 
held by Dambovita Center Holdings B.V. 

Held 50% by Plttza Bas B.V. 

Held 50% by Plaza Bas B.V. 

Held 60% by Plaza Bas B.V. 

Held 50% by Plaza Bas B.v, 

Hold 25% by Plaza Bas B.V. 

Held 50% by Plaza Bas B.v. 

Held 50% by Plaza Bas B.V. 

Held 100% by Mulan B.V, 

Mgg M A Z A R S 
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Indirectly owned 

Plaza Centers Management 0.0.0. 

Plaza Centers Project 1 0.0.0. 

Plaza Centers Project 2 0.0.0. 

Aci.vil) 

Management company 

Inactive 

Inactive 

100% Held by Obuds B.V, 

100% Hold by Obuda 3.V. 

100% Held by Obuda B.V. 

f.vorua -• it.isslo 

Indirectly ovmed (or joinl coiiirolledj 

Plaza & Snegiri Ltd. Inactive 

tlütiVSTi.'. 

50% Held by Plaza Centers N.V. 

oii.rtiina M-JSnlv 

Directly owned 

Shumen Plazn E.O.O.D. Shopping cenier - under constiuction 

Plaza Centers Development F..0.O.D. Inactive 

Plaza Centers Management Bulgaria E.O.O.D. Management company 

Shumen piaza projecl 

• i f •'' 

• ' • •> i 

tlw Nntlwrlams 

Directly owned 

Plaza Centers Management 8 V. 

Plaza Centers iVenturesl B.V. 

Plaza Centeis lEstotesi B.V. 

Plaza Centers Holding E.V. 

Piaza Centers Foundations S.V. 

Plaza Centers Establishment B.V' 

S.S.S Project Management B.V, 

Plaza Centers Loglsiics E.V. 

Obuda B.V. 

Piaza-BAS 8.V. 

Plaza Centers (Enterprises) B.V. 

Plaza Dambovita Complex B.V. 

Plaza Centers Engagements B.V 

Plaza Centers Adminlatiatior.s B.V. 

Plaza Centers Connection B.V. 

Plaia-On Holding B.V. 

Plaza Centers Corporation B.V, 

Dambovita Centei Holdings B.v. 

Mulan B.V. (Fantasy Paik Enterprises B.V; 

PLA.Z.A. B.v. 

Acliv,ty 

Inactive 

Holding company - Sertjia 

Holding company - Serbia 

Holding company - Serbia 

Holding company - Serbia 

Holding conipany - Serbia 

Holding company- Serbia 

Holding company - Serbia 

Holding company - Russia 

Holding company - Romania 

Finance company 

Holding company 

Inactive 

Inactiwj 

Inactive 

Holding company - Bulgaira 

Inactive 

Centers Classic B.V. 

Holding company - Romania 

Holding company 

Holding company - Poland 

Holding company 

Holds 100% of Orchid Gioup D.0,0. 

Holds 100% ot Sevac 0.0,0, 

Holds 100% of Sek D.O.O. 

Holds 100% of SBD D.O.O. 

Holds 100% of ZSE D.O.O. 

Holds 100% of Telehold D.O.O. 

Holds 100% ot Accent D.O.O. 

Holds 100% of all Russian subsidiaries 

Held 5 1 % by Plaza Centers N Y . holds project 
conipanies in Romania. 

Holds 100% of Plaza Centers Enterprises 8.V. 

Intended for project in Bulgaria 

Holds 75% of S.C. Dambovita Centei S.R.L 

Holding company ot Fantasy Park subsidiaries 
in CEE and India 

Held 100% by Mulan B.V, Hoidl- 50% 
of Hokus Pokus Rozrywka Sp.z.o.o 

Sold In 2008 to Israeli partner In Stage 3 Lublin 

Tni.- Duloli Amium 

Dreamland N.V. 

Atvvny 

Inactive 

?>lMAXA-R-i Mfv̂  
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Cum*. - I ry t j 

Dhraetly owimd 

Elbit Ptaza India Real EsUta Ho.'dlnes Lim ;ed 

Pf, Intiia Holdings nuij:ic (;oriiir,iiy Inniied 

Indirectly owned 
Spiralco Holdings Limited 

Permindo Limiled 

Dezimark limited 

Floricil limited 

X flus limited 

Stenzo Limited 

Mercero Limited 

Ruvencio Limited 

Sortera United 

Rtjbeldore Limited 

Potwendo Umited 

Eibit India Architectvira! Services Lmtied 

Rafalmendo Limiled 

Oemiracos Limited 

Holding company 

Holding coinpany 

Holding conipany 

Holding company 

Inactive 

Inactive 

Inactive 

Inaclive 

Held 47,5% by Plaza Centers N.V, 

Held 100% hy Plaza Centers N.V. 

Holds 50% ot P - one Infrastructure 
Private Umited. Held 100% by PC India Ltd. 

Holds 100% of Anuttam Developers 
Private Lid. Held 100% by PC India Ltd. 

Held 100% by PC India Ltd. 

Held 100% by PC India Ltd. 

Holds 98% of Ximanto Developers 
India Private Limited. Held 100% by PC India Ltd 

Holds 98% of Cynsten Developers 
India Private Limitod, Held 100% by PC India Lid. 

Inactive 

Inactive 

Inactive 

Holding company 

Holding company 

Holding coinpany 

Holding company 

Holding conipany 

Holds 98% of Meranco Developers 
India Private Umited. Held 100% by PC India Ltd. 

Holds 98% of Ruvenco India Developers 
Privaie Limited. Held 100% by PC India Ltd. 

Holds 98% of Sorcym Developers India 
Privaie Umited. Held 100% by PC India Ltd. 

Holds 98% of Rebelenco India Developers 
Privaie Limited. Held 100% by PC India Ltd. 

Held 100% by Elbit India Real 
Estate Holdings umited 

Held 100% by Elbit India Real 
Estate Holdings Limited 

Held 100% by Elbit India Real 
Estate Holdings Limited 

Held 100% by Elbit India Real 
Estate Holdings Limited - * * • 

Indirectly owned through PC India Holdings Public Company limited 
Horn India infrastructure Private Limited Management company 

P - one Infrastructure Privaie 1 iiniled 

Anuttam developers pnvate Ltd. 

Atrushya developers pnvBte Ltd. 

Ajanu developeis piivuie Ltd. 

Agmesh developers private Ltd. 

Anlmlsh developers private Ltd. 

Anahat developers private Ltd. 

Apratiiath dove'opers private Ltd. 

Athang developers privaie Ltd. 

Avyang developers pnvate Ltd. 

Real Estate 

Hokfing company of 
23 subsidiaries, 

all held in connection 
with the Company's 

project In Pune India 

Owns plot of land 

Owns plot of land 

Owns plot of land 

Owns plot of land 

Owns plot of land 

Owns plot ot land 

Owns plot of land 

Owns plot of land 

Held 100% by PC India Holdings 

Kharadi and Trivandrum Projects -
Held 50% by Spiralco Ud. 

Held 100% liy (Koregaon Park Project) 

Wholly owned subsidiary of Anuttam 

Wholly owned subsidiary of Anuttam 

Wholly owned subsidiary ot Anuttam 

Wholly owned subsidiary of Anuttam 

Wholly owned subsidiary of Anuttam 

Wholly owned subsidiary of Anuttom 

Wholly owned subsidiary of Anuttam 

Wholly owned subsidiary of Anuttam 

J-A 
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Asankhya developers private Ltd. 

Apramad developeis private Ltd. 

Abhyang developers private Lid. 

Ainanya developeis private Ltd. 

Atmavan developers privaie Ltd. 

Anirutansh developers private Lid. 

Acha! developers private Ltd. 

Akhula developers private i.ld. 

Antarmukh developeis private Ltd. 

Aprameya developers private Ltd. 

Ammprabhu developers privaie Ltd. 

Ajakshya developers pr;'/ate Ltd. 

Avyaya developers private Ltd. 

Avyaja devolopei s pi ivate Ltd, 

Anantshree developers private Ltd. 

Indirect ly owned through Elbit Plaza India Re: 

Cymsten Developeis India Privaie Limited 

Sorcym Developers India Private Limited 

Meranco Developers India Private Limited 

Rebelenco India Private Limiled 

Ruvenco India Developers Private Limited 

Elbil India Real Eslate Private Limited 

Elbit India Architecturti and Design Private Limited 

Aayas Trade Services Private Linvidd 

Kadvamhra Builders Privaie, Limited 

Rafalonco India Devtilopers Private Limited 

Elbit India Builders & Deveiopers Private Limi'ed 

Fantasy Park India Entertainmem Limited 

Owns plol of land 

Owns plot of land 

Owns plot of land 

Owns plol of land 

Owns plot of land 

Owns plot of land 

Owns plol öf land 

Owns plot of (and 

Owns plot of land 

Owns plot of land 

Owns plot of land 

Owns plot, of land 

Owns plot ot land 

Owns plot of land 

Owns plot of land 

1 Estate Holdings Limited 

Inactive 

Inactive 

Inactive 

inactive 
Inactive 

Bangalore offices 

Wholly owned subsidiary of Anuttam 

Wholly owner! subsidiary of Anuttam 

Wholly owned subsidiary of Anuttam 

Wholly owned subsidiary of Anuttam 

Wholly owned subsidiary of Anu'tam 

Wholly owned subsidiary of Amittam 

Wliclly owned subsidiary of Anuttam 

Wholly owned subsidiary of Anuttam 

Wholly owned subsidiary ol Anuttam 

Wholly owned subsidiary of Anuttam 

Wholly owned subsidiary of Anuttam 

Wholly owned subsidiary of Anuttam 

Wholly owned subsidiary o( Anuttam 

Wholly owned subsidiary of Anutlam 

Wholly owned subsidiary of Anuttam 

- — - -

Held 100% by Polyvenclo Limited 

Held 100"* by Elbit India 
Architfictuinl Services Umited 

Holding company Held 50% by Elbi; India Real Eslate Holdings Umited 
Bangalore Project 

Holding company Held 80% by Elbit India Real Estate Holdings Limited 
Chennai SipCot 

Holding company Chennai TNRDC 

Inactive 

Inactive Held 99.9% bv Mulan B.V. 
Held 0 . 1 % bv BLA.Z.A B.V. 

• "11 
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Indirectly owned 
Orchid Gioup D.O.O. 

Sevac 0.0.0, 

Leisure Group D.O.O 

Sek D.O.O. 

Accent D.O.O. 

Telehold D.0.0-

ZSE D.O.O. 

SBD D.O.0. 

Linkoge D.O.O. 

Plaza Cenleis Manaeement D.O.O. 

Fantasy Park SRB D.O.O. 

Shopping center under construction 

Plot ot land 

Shopping canter under constiuction 

Shopping center under construction 

Inactive 

Inactive 

Inactive 

Inactive 

Inactive 

Inactive 

Inactive 

100X Hold by Plaza Centers (Ventures! B.V 
Belgrade Plaza Project 

100% Held by Plaza Centers (Estates) B.V. 

Sport Star Plaza Project 

100% Held by Plaza Centers Hoidinfj B.V. 
Kragujevac Project. 

100% Held by Plaza Centers Establishmeni B.V. 

100% Held by Plaza Centers Foundations B.V. 

Held 100% by Mulan BV. 

MOKKAH 

I.C.5 Plaza Centers Proclev S.R.L, 

A-Aivl» 

Inactive 

Slovfjto'i 

Plaza Ceriurs Slovak Rt public S.R.O. 

AAl'V't* 

Inactive 

t 
& 

y 
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COMPANY BALANCE SHEET 
As at Decennber 31, 2008 
After appropriation of result 

Notes 
ASSETS 
Non-current assets 
Tangible fixed assets 
Other non-current assets 
Participations 
Charges associates 
Other assets 

Total non-current assets 

CURRENT ASSETS 
Other receivables and prepayments 
Short-term deoosits and cash at bank 
Total current assets 
Total 

1 

2 
3 
4 

5 
6 

€ thousands 

599,347 
8,861 

108.285 

2008 
€ thousands € thousands 

4,441 

716.493 
720.934 

15,739 
131.455 
147.194 
868.128 

342,518 
7,564 

10,663 

2007 
€ thousands 

7,925 

360.745 
368.670 

263,280 
59.573 

322.853 
691,523 
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EQUITY AND LIABIUTIES 
For the year ended December 31, 2008 

SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 
Issued share capital 
Treasury stock 
Share premium 
Foreign currency translation reserve 
Revaluation reserve 
Other capital reserves 
Retained earninas 

PROVISIONS 
Provisions associates 
UABILITIES 
Long-term liabilities 

CURRENT LIABILITIES 
Other liabilities and accruals 
Total 

7 

8 
9 

10 
11 
12 

13 

14 

15 

2,924 
(5,469) 

248,860 
(12,176) 

20,827 
21,778 

329.778 

26,170 

216,925 

606.523 

243,095 

18.510 
868,128 

2,924 

248,860 
(1.727) 

2,995 
13,498 

336.921 

14,202 

53.821 

603.471 

68,023 

20.029 
691,523 

jM|y- | M A Z A R S 

MAZARS PAARDEKOOPER HOFFM/jfl ACCOUNTANTS N.V, 

Initialled for identification purposes only 



COMPANY PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT 
For the year ended December 31, 2008 

16 Other operating income 
Gross operating result 
General expenses 
Total operating cos ts 
Operating result 
Financial income and exppngpc JQ 

2008 2007 
Notes € thousands € thousands € th»..«nd8 ethousanrii. 

38,200 232,021 " 

17 15.214 

RESULT FROM ORDINARY ACTIVITIES 
Before taxation 
Results associates 
Income taxes 
Result after taxatifin_ 

19 
20 

38,200 

15.214 
14,393 

22,986 
• 58.621 

81,607 
(8,367) 
(5.556V 
67.684 

232.021 

14.393 
217.628 

6.911 

224.539 
2,428 

226.967 

MAZARS PAARDEKOOPER HOFFHiUffó ACCOUNTANTS N.V. 

Initialled for identification purposes only 



NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For the year ended December 31, 2008 

GENERAL 
ACTIVITIES AND OWNERSHIP 
Plaza Centers N.V. (the "Company") is a company domiciled in the The Netherlands. The 
Company is a subsidiary of Elbit Ultrasound B.V. which holds 70.6% of the Company's shares, as 
of balance sheet date. The ultimate shareholder of the Company is Elbit Imaging Limited which is 
indirectly controlled by Mr. Mordechay Zisser, a director of the Company. The Company is listed 
on the main stock exchange market ("LSE") in London, United Kingdom commencing October 27, 
2006 and starting October 19, 2007, the Compan/s shares are also listed in the Warsaw Stock 
Exchange ("WSE"). The Company owns subsidiary companies in Central and Eastern Europe 
and in India which purchase, develop, hold and sale real estate assets. 

ACCOUNTING POLICIES IN RESPECT OF THE VALUATION OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 
The Company financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the Netherlands, applying the accounting principles of the consolidated 
financial statements as set out in Artfcle 362, Sub 8 of Part 9, Book 2, of the Netherlands Civil 
Code. 

The Company financial statements are denominated in thousands of euros. 

The company income statement has been prepared in accordance with the provisions of Section 
402. Book 2, ofthe Netherlands Civil Code. 

We refer to the notes of the consolidated financial statements, unless indicated otherwise. 

FINANCIAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS 
The participating interest in which the Company is able to exert a significant influence on policy 
are included at the amount of the Group's share in the net asset value of the interests concemed. 
The net asset value is calculated according to the same policies as have been applied to these 
annual accounts. The other participating interests are stated at cost. 

Provisions have been formed for negative net asset values of the interests concemed. 

MraaAiA-^ 
ACCOUNTANTS N.V. 
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Note 1 - Tangible fixed assets 

NON-CURRENT ASSETS 
Movements in tangible fixed assets are broken down as follows: 

Other fixed 
assets 

€ thousands 
Balance as at January 1, 2008 
Actual cost airplanes 
Accumulated depreciation 

8,655 
(730) 

Actual net cost airplanes 

Cost of airplane sold 
Depreciation airplanes 2008 
Depreciation of airplane sold 

Balance as at December 31, 2008 
Actual cost airplane 
Accumulated depreciation 
Book value 

7,925 

(3.918) 
(309) 

743 

4,737 
(296) 
4.441 

Depreciation rate 5% 

The depreciation rate is based on the estimated economic useful lives of the tangible fixed assets 
concerned. The depreciation rate of the airplanes was 3.7%-5% in 2008. The Company sold on 
June 2008 the airplane for a total consideration of EUR 2.6 million and recorded a loss of EUR 
0.7 million from the selling. 

Note 2 - Participations 

Movements in participations are broken down as follows: 

2008 
f tfiousa^? 

2007 
€ thousands 

Balance as at January 1 
New investments 
Finance capitalized to investments 
Reclassified 
Translation reserve effect 
Investment disposed 
Result for the vear 

342,518 
246,947 

6,650 

(6,105) 
(1.793) 
11.130 

33,002 
325,893 

843 
(506) 
(469) 

(14,809) 
(1,436) 

Balance as at December 31 599,347 

For the detailed breakdown of participation, please refer to note 21 below. 

342.518 
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Included under this heading are the following participating interests: 
Name Registered office Share in issued 

capital as percentage 

'Kerepesi 5 Irodaépület 
Ingatlanfejlesztö Kft. 

3g<fcpe?t, Hunqgrv 100% 

HOM Ingatlanfejlesztési és Vezetési 
Kft. ("HOM") 

Budapest. Hungary 100% 

Plaza House Ingatlanfejlesztési Kft. 
Tatabénya Ptaza Ingatlanfejlesztési 
Kft. 

ïudap^st. Hupflarv 
Budapest. Hunaarv 

100% 
100% 

Szombathely 2002 Ingatlanhasznositó 
és Vagyonkezelö Kft. 

?M(fciW$t,HtingaTY 

Szeged 2002 Ingatlanhasznositó és 
Vagyonkezelö Kft 

?udape?t, Hungary 

Ercomer Kft. 
Plasi Invest 2007 Ingatlanforgalmazo 
kft 

EDP Sp.zo.d 

fefrWti HtinflafY-

Bielsko-Biala PlazaSp.zo.o 
Bytom Plaza Sp.z.o.o 
Bydgoszcz Plaza Sp.zo.o 

ïuforesl. Hunflary 

Warsaw, Poland 
Waratw, Poland 
msmMm. 
W?r?9w. Pplgpd 

Rzeszów Plaza Sp.z.o.o. 
Chorzow Plaza Sp.zo.o 
Zgorzelec Plaza Sp.z.o.o. 
Gdansk Centrum Plaza Sp.zQ.o 

Warsaw. Polagd 

Warsgw, P<?lan"<j 

Lublin Or Sp.zo.o 
Warsaw. Poland 

Gliwice Plaza Sp.z.o.o. 
Warsaw. Poland 
Warsaw. Poland 

Gorzów Wielkopolski Plaza Sp.z.o.o. 
Grudziadz Plaza Sp.zo.o 
Jelenia Gora Plaza Sp.zo.o 

Warsaw. Poland 
Warsaw. Poland 

Katowice Plaza Sp.zo.o 
Warsaw. Poland 

Suwafci Plaza Sp.zo.o 
__Wtofw.PsH9nd. 

Koszalin Plaza Sp.zo.o 
Warsaw. Poland 

Legnica Plaza Sp.zo.o 
Lodz Centrum Plaza Sp.zo.o 
Plaza Centers (Poland) Sp.z.o.o. 
Kielce Plaza Sp. z.o.o 
Olsztyn Plaza Sp.zo.o 
Opole Plaza Sp.zo.o 

Warsaw. Poland 
Warsaw. Poland 
Warsaw. Poland 
Warsaw. Poland 
Warsaw. Poland 
Warsaw. Polap^ 
Warsaw. Poland 

100% 

100% 

50% 
70% 

50% 
100% 
100% 

'"100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
50% 

f0Q%_ 
100% 

_100% 
100%" 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 

Plock Plaza Sp.zo.o 
Radom Plaza Sp.zo.o 
Hokus Pokus Rozrywka Sp. zo. o. 
Szczecin Plaza Sp.zo.o 

Warsaw. Poland 
Warsaw. Poland 

Tarnow Plaza Sp.zo.o 
Torun Plaza Sp.zo.o 
Tychy Plaza Sp.zo.o 

Warsaw. Poland 

wgrsaw. Poland 

100%_ 
l o o % 

50% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100%' 
100% 
100% 

MR!>l M-A-Z-AJB^ X J 
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Name 

Praha Plaza S.R.O. 
Bl Plaza S.R.O. 
Plaza Centers Czech Republic S.R.O. 
P4 Plaza STR-O. _ _ _ _ _ 7 
NG'piazaS.R:.6 

Registered office 

Prague. Czech Republic 
'Prague, Czech Republic, 
Prague. Czech Republic 

[PraaueTCzech Republic" 

BYTY SN Plaza S.R.O" 
PraqueLCzech Republic 

Hradec Plaza S.R.O 
Plaza Housing S.R.O 
Plaza Station S.R.O 
Helios Plaza S.A. 
SIA Diksna 
PC Ukraine Holdings Limited 

Prague. Czech Republic ~ 
Prague. Czech..RgPJibljc,. 
PraqueLCzech Republic 
Prapue. Czech Republic 
Athens^Greece 
Riga, Latvia 
Nicosia, Cyprus 

S.C. CENTRAL PLAZA SRL 
S.C. GREEN PLAZA S.R.L. 
S.C. ELITE PLAZA SRL. 
S.C. PLAZA CENTERS 
MANAGEMENT ROMANIA SRL 
S.C. NORTH GATE PLAZA SRL 
S.C. SOUTH GATE PLAZA SRL 
S.C. WEST GATE PLAZA SRL 
S.C. EASTERN GATE PLAZA SRL 
S.C. NORTH WEST PLAZA SRL 
S.C. NORTH EASTERN PLAZA SRL 
S.C. SOUTH WEST PLAZA SRL 
S.C. SOUTH EASTERN PLAZA SRL 
S.C. WHITE PLAZA SRL 
S.C. GOLDEN PLAZA SRL 
S.C. BLUE PLAZA SRL 
S.C. RED PLAZA SRL 
S.C. PALAZZO DUCALE SRL 
S.C. MOUNTAIN GATE SRL 
Plaza & Snegiri Ltd. 
Shumen Plaza E.O.O.D 
Plaza Centers Development E.O.OD 
Plaza Centers Management Bulgaria 
E.O.OD 

[Bucharest. Romania 
Bucharest. Romania 
Bucharest. Romania 
Bucharest. Romania 

Bucharest. Romania 
Bucharest. Romania 
[Bucharest. Romania 
Bucharest. Romania 
Bucharest, Romania 
IBucharest. Romania 
Bucharest. Romania 
Bucharest. Romania 
Bucharest. Romania 
Bucharest. Romania 
Bucharest. Romania 
Bucharest. Romania 
Bucharest. Romania 
Bucharest. Romania 
Nicosia, Cyprus 
[Sofia, Bulgaria 
Sofia, Bulgaria 
Sofia, Bulgaria 

Share in issued 
capital as 

percentage 
100% 
100% 
100% 

J 00%_ 
ÏÖÖ% 

_100%_ 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
50% 

100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 

100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
50% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
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Name 

Plaza Centers Management B.V. 
Plaza Centers (Ventures) B.V. 
Plaza Centers (Estates) B.V 
Plaza Centers Holding B.V 
Plaza Centers Foundations B.V 
Plaza Centers Establishment B.V 
S.S.S Project Management B.V 
Plaza Centers Logistics B.V 
Obuda B.V. 
Plaza-BAS B.V. 
Plaza Dambovita Complex B.V. 
Plaza Centers Engagements B.V 
Plaza Centers Administrations B.V 
Plaza Centers Connection B.V 
Plaza-On Holding B.V 
Plaza Centers Corporation B.V 
Dambovita Center Holdings B.V, 
Mulan B.V. 
(Fantasy Park Enterprises B.V.) 
Dreamland N.V 

Registered office 

Amsterdam, the Netfaflands 
Amsterdam, tt^ Netbarlartés 
Apiaterdam. ^ „ J j l ^ r l a n d s 
Amsterdam, the Netherlands 
Amsterdam, !toBLttetll9rland8 

Amsterdam, th^ Netheriands 
Amsterdam, the Netherjjar^s 
Amsterdam, the Njepierlanfls 
Amsterdam, the Netherlands 
Amsterdam, the Netherlands 
Amsterdam, the ^thfr ian^s 
Amsterdam, the N^herlands 

Amsterdam, the l^herlands 
Amsterdam, the Netherlands 
Amsterdam, the Netherlands 
Amsterdam, the Netherlands 
Amsterdam, the Netherlands 

Amsterdam,, tfte Netherlands 

Share in issued 
capital as 

percentage 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
51% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 

100% 

Elbit Plaza India Real Estate Holding 
Limited 
PC India Holdings Public Company 
limited 

Nicosia, Cyprus 

Nicosia, Cyprus 

I.C.S Plaza Centers Prodev SRL 
Plaza Centers Slovak Republic s.r.o 

Chishinau, Moldova 
[Bratislava, Slovakia 

47.5% 

100% 

Linkage D.O.O 
Plaza Centers Management D.O.O 

Belgrade, Serbia 
Belgrade, Serbia 

100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
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Breakdown per participation is as follows: 

Plaza House Ingatlanfejlesztési Kft. 
Kerepesi 4 Szélloda IngatlanfejIesztCE Kft. 
Kerepesi 5 Irodaépület IngatlanfejIesztCE Kft. 
Ercomer Kft. 
Szeged 2002 Ingatlanhasznositó és VagyonkezeICE Kft 
Plaza Dambovita Complex (FinCo) 
Plaza Bas B.V. 
Shumen Ltd. 
Helios Plaza S.A. 
PC India holdings Ltd. 
Plaza housing s.r.o 
Plaza station s.r.o 
Hradec Plaza s.r.o 
NG Plaza s.r.o 
BYTY SN s.r.o 
North Eastern Plaza s.r.l 
Mountain gate s.r.l 
North West Plaza s.r.l 
South Eastern Plaza s.r.l 

' South West Plaza s.r.l 
SC White Plaza s.r.l 
SC Golden Plaza s.r.l 
SC Blue Plaza s.r.l 
PC Ukraine holdings Ltd 
Wloclawek Plaza Sp.zo.o 
Bydzgodsz Plaza Sp.zo.o 
Byalistok Plaza Sp.zo.o 
Koszalyn Plaza Sp.zo.o 
Gdansk Centrum Plaza Sp.zo.o 
Plaza Centers estates B.V. 
Plaza Centers holdings B.V. 
North gate s.r.l 
South gate s.r.l 
Palazzo du Calle s.r.l 
Plock Plaza Sp. Zo.o 
Jelenia Gora Plaza Sp." Zo.o 
Gorzow wielkopolski Plaza Sp. Zo.o 
Legnica Plaza Sp. Zo.o 
Prodev s.r.l 
PCM d.o.o 
P4 Plaza S.R.O. 
B1 Plaza S.R.O. 
PCM B.V. 

Plaza Centers engagements B.V 
Plaza Centers foundations B.V 
Plaza Centers establishments B.V 
Plaza Centers corporations B.V 
Plaza Centers junctions B.V 
Plaza Centers administrations B.V 
Plaza Centers connections B.V 
SIA Diksna 
Elite residence esolanada S R I 
Total : — 

2008 
€ thousands 

369 
37 
486 

(360) 
7 

511.256 
(2,360) 
3,921 
11,705 
49,740 
2,988 

8 
8 
8 
8 
2 

6.324 
(124) 

1 
1 
1 
1 
1 

(145) 
(12) 
13 
14 
13 
12 

(1.329) 
76 

1,060 
140 
813 
14 
14 
14 
14 
10 

496 
7,295 
176 
15 
18 
18 
18 
18 
18 
18 
18 

3,649 
2.841 

599.347 

Refer also to nole 24 below for a detailed breakdown. 

2007 
€ thousands 

408 
37 

426 
754 

8 
277,263 

7 
3,050 

12,458 
31,557 
3,016 

8 
8 
8 
8 
1 

2 
14 
13 
14 
13 
12 
56 

954 
19 

2,413 

5,953 
' 236 

15 

1.340 
3.441. 

342.518 

TIT 
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Nota 3 - Charges to associates 

Name 
Green Plaza S.R.L. 
Dambovita S.R.L 
Elite Plaza S.R.L 
North gate Plaza S.R.L 
South gate Plaza S.R.L 
North west Plaza S.R.L 
Mountain gate S.R.L 
Dambovita Centers Holding B.V 
Ercomer Kft. 
Helios Plaza S A 
Suwalki Plaza Sp.zo.o 
Czestochowa Plaza Sp.zo.o. 
Olsztyn Plaza Sp.zo.o 
Plaza Centers (Poland) Sp.zo.o. 
Plaza Housing S.R.O. 
B1 Plaza S.R.O 
P4 Plaza S.R.O. 
SIA Diksna 
PC India Holdings Ltd. 
Other 

2008 

iQtiL 

101 
227 
40 
57 
26 
11 
19 
93 

827 
3.562 

86 
77 

123 
1.773 

6 
15 

116 
201 

1,386 
J l i . 

9,W 

2007 

91 
74 

625 
3,516 

48 
53 

115 
1,642 

10 
9 

85 
199 
922 

J2ê 
_L581 

Note 4 - Other assets 

Uncharged costs - Romania 
Uncharged costs - Serbia 
Uncharged costs - other projects 
Long term investments - structures 
Security deposit for SWAP and long term structures 
Perivative 

2008 
€ thousands 

IsJaL 

3,447 
939 

1,494 
47,864 
34,218 

108.?9$ 

2007 
€ thousands 

2,017 

1,116 

5.302 
_Z22ê. 
10.663 

CURRENT ASSETS 

Note 5 - Other receivables and prepayments 
2008 2008 2007 

rnPM PnionH c» -, * „ € thwymds € thoupan^ € thousand 
ODPM Poland Sp.z.o.o 399 393 
Andrassy 25 Kft 53 53 
CCBN.V .,,037 i.esi 
Jet Link Ltd. 12 16 
Astrid Plaza N.V 6 6 
Total plated parties 

2007 
€ thpwanifc 

Debtor due to selling of Irading property- aAIM 
Debtor due to selling of trading properties- Klépierre 
Interest receivable from banks 
Investment in bonds 
Advance payment in respect of property purchase 
Total 

1.507 ..£124 

1,183 
8,608 
4.441 

J&Z3i. 

254,362 
6.033 

189 
189 

-5Z2 
2(??,290 
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Note 6 - Short-term deposits and cash at bank 

Name 
Anglo Irish bank corporation Plc 
InvestKredit bank AG 
Lloids TSB 
BNP Paribas 
ING Bank 
MKB Bank 
BAWAG 
ABN-AMRO 
Fortis Bank (ESCROW account) 
Societe General (ESCROW accounl) 
Hansa Banka (Latvia) 
Union bank Ltd. (Israel) 
Bank Leumi Ltd. (Israel) 
Bank Hapoalim Ltd. 
Total 

SHAREHOLDERS* EQUITY 

Note 7 - Issued share capital 

2008 
€ thousands 

21,234 
12,430 
8,000 
8,000 
8,000 

53,357 
54 

15,031 
3,973 

— 
11 

816 
146 
403 

2007 
€ thousands 

40,685 
8,280 

— 
-
— 

2,791 
777 

17 
5,844 
1,001 

10 
10 
10 

168 
131.455 59.573 

The issued share capital can be specified as follows: 
Balance as at January 1 
Exercise - share-based olan 
Balance as at December 31 

2008 
€ thousands 

2.924 
0 

2.924 . 

2007 
€ thousands 

2,923 
1 

2.924 

a. The number of shares authorized as of December 31, 2006 was 1 billion with a EUR 0.01 par 
value. 

b. In the course ofthe 2 years ended December 31 2008 the following share capital increases 
occurred: 
1. In the course ofthe last quarter of 2007, 303,471 vested options were exercised into 57.700 
shares of EUR 0.01. 
2. In the course of the first quarter of 2008. 131,711 vested options were exercised into 27,594 
shares of EUR 0.01. 

Note 8 - Share premium 

Balance as at January 1 and December 31 

2008 2007 
€ thousands € thousands 

248.860 248.860 

Note 9 - Foreign currency translation reserve 
2008 2007 

€ thousands € thousands 
The table below presents the movements in the translation reserve: 
Balance as at January 1 (1.727) (1,895) 
Movement (10.448) 168 
Balance as at December 31 (12,175) (1,727) 

The movement concern the translation reserve resulted from the operation in India. The reserve 
is considered a legal reserve which is not distributable (if more than nil). 

TT7 
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Note 10 - Revaluation reserve 

Balance as at January 1 
Profit in the period 
Movement 
Balance as at December 31 

2008 2007 
€ thousands € thousands 

2,995 5,214 
18,095 

(263) (2.219) 
2QM7 3,995 

As of December 31, 2008 and 2007, the Company had one investment properties (Prague 3 
logistic center) which was feir valued at €13.0 million and €13.0 million respectively. The book 
value recorded in December 31. 2008 and 2007 was €9.5 million and €9.0 million respectively. 

As at December 31. 2008 the company recorded an unrealized fair value gain on derivatives 
amounting to 18 mio. This unrealized gain has been added to the capital reserves. 

The reserve is considered a legal reserve which is not distributable (if more than nil). 

Note 11 - Other capital reserves 
2008 2007 

€ thousand» € thousands 
The table below presents the movements in other capital reserve: 
Balance as at January 1 13,498 1,840 
Movement due to available for sale securities (1,120) 
MQVgment dug to shgrc w fon plan 9.400 11.658 
Balance as at Deqemby 31 21.778 13.498 

The movement concern share-based payment as a result of the Employee Share Option Plan 
which was adopted by the Company on October 26, 2006. On the same date, 26,108,602 non-
negotiable options ("Options") over Ordinary Shares have been granted, the terms and conditions 
of which (except for the exercise price) will be regulated by the Share Option Scheme. No 
Options vested at that date. Options will vest annually in three equal parts. One-third of Options 
granted to an Eligible Grantee (see below) will vest one year after the date of grant, another third 
of granted Options will vest two years after the date of grant and the last third will vest three years 
after the date of grant Options expire, unless otherwise determined by the Board, on the fifth 
anniversary of the date of grant. The total amount of options in the Share Option Plan is 
33,834,586 options. For grants, exercise and forfeiture of options in 2008, refer to other 
information below. 

Capital reserve in respect of available for sale securities relates to debt and equity securities 
purchased by the company as an investment in the second half of 2008. 

Note 12 - Retained earnings 
2008 2007 

€ thousand» € thousand» 
The table below presents the movements in the retained earnings; 
Balance as at January 1 336,921 107,735 
Profit in the period 49,589 226,967 
Dividend distributed in the period (56,995) 
Transfer from (to) revaluation reserve 263 2.219 
Balance as at December 31 329.778 336.921 

The movement is reflecting the 2008 and 2007 results, as well as the movements in revaluation 
reserve due to investment properties. The Company is not intended to declare dividend due to 
2008. 
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NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 

Note 13 - Provisions to associates 

Name 
Tatabénya Plaza Ingatlanfejlesztési Kft. 
HOM Ingatlanfejlesztési és Vezetési Kft 
Szombathely 2002 Ingatlanhasznositó és VagyonkezeICE Kft. 
Katowice Plaza Sp.zo.o 
Lodz Centrum Plaza Sp.z.o.o 
Torun Plaza Sp.zo.o 
Suwaflki Plaza Sp.zo.o 
Zgoizelec Plaza Sp.z.o.o. 
Radom Plaza Sp.zo.o 
Olsztyn Plaza Sp.zo.o 
Kielce Plaza Sp.z.o.o 
Zielona Gora Plaza Sp.z.o.o 
Bytom Plaza Sp.z.o.o 
Plaza Centers (Poland) Sp.z.o.o. 
Hokus Pokus Rozrywka Sp.z.o.o. 
Praha Plaza S.R.O. 
Plaza Centers S.R.O. 
Plasi invest Kft, 
PCM S.R.L 
Plaza Centers ventures B.V 
Dombovita Center Holding B.V 
Elbit Plaza India real estate holdings B.V 
Pilzen Plaza S.R.O. 
Dreamland N.V. 
Amanati Ltd. 
Green Plaza S.R.L. 
EDP Sp.z.o.o 
Obuda B.V. 

December 31, 
2008 

€ thousands 

December 31, 
2007 

€ thousands 

Total 

351 
1,909 
220 

2.119 
2,299 
876 
169 
489 
486 
434 
797 
524 
21 
869 

1,537 
281 

1,088 
315 
470 
422 
492 

9,061 
— 

440 
867 

(1,107) 
195 
546 

389 
930 
219 

1,954 
1,505 
553 
120 
284 
459 
260 
562 
563 
18 
191 

2,222 
827 
398 
135 
359 
810 
44 
— 

224 
91 
867 
120 
60 
38 

Note 14 - Long term liabilities 

Name 
Long-term debentures 
Long term loans - structures 
Deferred tax liability 
Total 

26.170 14.202 

December 31, December 31. 
2008 2007 

€ thousands € thousands 
175,144 
36,225 
5,556. 

53,821 

216.925 53.821 

Long-term debentures are presented at fair value. For more details refer to note 22 of the 
consolidation financial statements. For mora details on the structure loans refer to note 17 of the 
consolidation financial statements. 
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Initialled for identification purposes only 



CURRENT LIABIUTIES 

Note 15 - Other liabilities and accruals 

December 31, December 31, December 31, December 31, 
2008 2008 2007 2007 

CDPM Hungary Kft. 
C/A Elbit Imaging Ltd. 
C/A Elbit Ultrasound B.V. 
C/A Elbit Plaza India real estate holdings Ltd. 
Other small charges participations 
4E loan 
Total related oartles 

Bank loan 
Interest to pay - banks 
Suppliers 
Creditor due to selling of investment property 
Accruals 
Total 

PROFIT AND LOSS 

241 
2,598 
7,378 

280 
142 

10.639 

5.095 
534 

471 
1.771 

18.510 

241 
3,244 
6,017 

509 
10.011 

300 
696 

9.022 
20.029 

Note 16 - Other operating income 

December 31, December 31, December 31, December 31. 
2008 2008 2007 2007 

- «* 

Gain from sellina subsidiaries 
Aaim transaction 
Klépierre 2 transaction - Polish subsidiaries 
Bes Tes transaction 
Plzen transaction 
Duna Plaza Offices 
Dawnay Day transaction 
other small 
Total from sellina of subsidiaries 

Release of old suppliers to P&L 
Release of old debtor to P&L 
Release of old debtor to P&L 
Profit from subsidiaries -
Management fees on invoices 
Profit from subsidiaries -
late payment interest 
Total 

lousangs « 

22,373 
163 
298 

17.549 
. 
-

(1.765) 
38.618 

_ 
(664) 

7 

239 
39,200 

mousanas i 

203.724 
25,019 

1.707 
. 

2,471 
(400) 
f5561 

.Hiousanqs 

231.965 

51 
(238) 

9 

234 
332,021 

Concerning revenue from selling of subsidiaries we refer to note 36 of the consolidated financial 
statements 2008. 
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Note 17 - General expenses 

2008 
€ thousands 

9,070 
393 
791 

2,003 
2,609 

348 

2007 
€ thousands 

9,660 
500 
782 

2,701 
588 
162 

Salary and salary related expenses 
Management fees Elbit Medical Imaging 
Travelling expenses 
Audit, legal and consultancy expenses 
Initiation expenses 
Other expenses 
lotaL 15,214 14.393 

Note 18 - Financial income and expenses 

2008 2008 2007 2007 
€ thousands € thousands € thousands € thousands 

Interest expenses from loans participations (358) 

Total interest from related parties (358) 

Interest income from bank deposits 12,515 
Derivative 18,095 
Costs of raising bonds (1,199) 
Foreign exchange difference (148) 
aAim fine on late payment 1,984 
Income from structures and AFS financial instruments 2,491 
Devaluation os small structure (3,136) 
Available for Sale non-temporary devaluation (283) 
Interest expenses on bank loans - structures, 
Available for Sale financial instruments (1,568) 
Other bank expenses and charges (33L 

(143) 

(143) 

3,667 
1,410 
(586) 
1,303 
1.296 

(36) 
Total 58,621 6,911 

Note 19 - Results participations 

Tatabénya Plaza Ingatlanfejlesztési Kft. 
HOM Ingatlanfejlesztési és Vezetési Kft 
Plaza House Ingatlanfejlesztési Kft. 
Amanati Ltd. 
Szeged 2002 Ingatlanhasznositó és Vagyonkezelö Kft. 
Szombathely 2002 Ingatlanhasznositó és Vagyonkezelö Kft. 
Helios Plaza SA. 
Katowice Plaza Sp.z.o.o. 
Lodz Centrum Ptaza Sp.z.o.o. 
Wroclaw Plaza Sp.z.o.o. 
Suwalki Plaza Sp.z.o.o. 
Sosnowiec Plaza Sp.z.o.o. 
Zgorzelec Plaza Sp.z.o.o. 
Radom Plaza Sp.z.o.o. 
Rybnik Plaza Sp.z.o.o. 
Olsztyn Plaza Sp.z.o.o. 
Plaza Centers (Poland) South Sp.z.o.o. 
Zielona Gora Plaza Sp.z.o.o 
Bytom Plaza Sp.z.o.o. 
Wloclawek Plaza Sp.z.o.o. 
Plaza Centers (Poland) Sp.z.o.o. 
Hokus Pokus Rozrywka Sp.z.o.o. 

2008 
€ thousands 

2007 
€ thousands 

TTT 

(177,403) 
(281,505) 

(85,199) 
(5,050) 
(5,101) 
(7,913) 

(670,245) 
(206,855) 
(154,336) 

9,986 
(71,986) 

25,444 
(125,333) 

(47,628) 
57.399 
26,976 

(193.615) 
(36,494) 

(3,713) 
(26) 

(45.042) 
29,063 

M A Z A R S 

(177) 
(282) 

(85) 
(5) 
(5) 
(8) 

(670) 
(207) 
(154) 

10 
(72) 

25 
(125) 

(48) 
57 
27 

(194) 
(36) 

(4) 
-

(45) 
29 

& 
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Praha Plaza S.R.O. 
Plaza Centers S.R.O. 
B1 Plaza S.R.O. 
P4 Plaza S.R.O. 
Plaza housing S.R.O. 
Pilzen Plaza S.R.O. 
Ercorner Kft. 
Dreamland N.V. 
Centers Classic B.V. 
SIA Diksna 
Duna Plaza Irodahéz Ingalanfejleszto Kft. 
Kerepesi 3 Aruhéz Ingatlanfejlesztö Kft. 
Green Plaza S.R.L. 
Mountain gate S.R.L. 
North Eastem Plaza S.R.L 
North West Plaza S.R.L 
Plasi invest Kft. 
Kerepesi 5 Kft. 
Shumen Ltd. 
Obuda B.V. 
PC India Holdings Ltd. 
Plaza Centers venture B.V. 
Plaza Centers estates B.V. 
EDP Sp.z.o.o. 
Plaza Dambovita Complex (FinCo) 
Plaza Bas B.V. 
PCM B.V. 
PCM d.o.o 
PC Ukraine holdings Ltd. 
Dombovita Center Holding B.V. 
Plaza Centers holdings B.V 
Elbit Plaza India real estate holdings Ltd. 
PCM s.r.l. 
Elite residence esplanada S.R.L. 
North gate s.r.l. 
South gate s.r.l. 

101,383 
(215,242) 

(60) 
(285) 
(162) 

(3,320) 
(1,114) 

(349) 
— 

(322) 
— 
-

(131) 
(408) 
(749) 
(321) 
(422) 

12 
(135) 
(508) 

(1,677) 
(2,328) 
(1.827) 

(135) 
24,014 
(2,367) 

— 
(74) 

(147) 
(4,197) 

(265) 
(4,718) 

(111) 
(276) 
(170) 
(118) 

(1.600) 

101 
(215) 

— 
-
— 

(1,009) 
(94) 
460 

6,732 
(299) 

254 
(2,870) 

2,000 
— 
— 
— 

(167) 
390 

-
(54) 

(1,309) 
(957) 

38 
(60) 

3,512 
(11) 
(3) 
— 
— 

(1.402) 
-
— 

(359) 
(154) 
(83) 

3 
(47) Palazzo du Calle s.r.l. 

Note 20 - Income taxes 

Deferred tax asset - structure B devaluation 
Deferred tax asset - debentures devaluation 
Deferred tax asset - Derivative 
Deferred tax asset - Losses carry forward 

Total 

(1.6001 
(8.3671 

2008 
€ thousands 

(800) 
5,413 
5,183 

(4,240) 

5,5?6 

(47) 
2.428 

2007 
€ thousands 

-

The applicable tax rate is 25.5%. The Company is currently not subjected to corporate tax 
payments as it is enjoying participation exemption. 
The tax loss carry-forward for the Company's one tax unit is approximately €13 million as of 
December 31, 2008. 
The last filing of corporate tax retum relates to the fiscal year 2006. 

AUDIT FEES 
The total audit fees charged by the statutory auditor amount to EUR 38,000. These relate only to 
the audit of the statutory financial statements. 

M M MAZARS 

MAZARS PAARDEKOOPER HOFFMAtf«CCOUNTANTS IIV. 

Initialled for identification purposes only 



Note 21 - Participation breakdown 

Plaza House 
Ingatlanfejles 

ztési Kft. 

B1 Plaza Mountain Kerepesi 4 Kerepesi 5 
s.r.o gate s.r.l Szélloda Irodaépület 

Ingatlanfejles Ingatlanfejles 
ztfiKft. ztöKft. 

Balance as at 1 January 
2008 

Investment during the year 

408 236 37 426 

result for the year 

Selling of investment 
Translation reserve fund 
Finance capitalized 

Balance as at 31 
December 2008 

Balance as at 1 January 
2008 

Investment during the year 

result for the year 

Selling of investment 

Translation reserve fund 
Finance capitalized 
Balance as at 31 
December 2008 

(39) 

369 

Ercorner Kft. 

754 

(1.114) 

(360) 

(60) 

176 

Szeged 2002 
Ingatlanhasz 

nositó és 
Vagyonkezel 

6 Kft. 

8 

d) 

7 

6,450 

(408) 

282 

6,324 

Plaza 
Dambovita 
Complex 
(FinCo) 

277,263 

211,754 

24,014 

(1,775) 

511,256. 

-

37 

Plaza Bas 
B.V 

7 

(2,367) 

(2,360) 

12 

48 

486 

Shumen 

3.050 

1.006 

(135) 

3,921 

Balance as at 1 January 
2008 

Investment during the year 

result for the year 

Selling of investment 
Translation reserve fund 

Finance capitalized 

Helios Plaza PC India Plaza Plaza station Hradec Plaza 
_S-Ar_ holdings Ltd. housing s.r.o _ 8.r._o s-ro^ 

12,458 

(753) 

31,557 

24,729 

(1,677) 

(6,105) 

1,236 

3,016 

(162) 

134 

8 8 

Balance as at 31 
December 2008 11,705 49,740 2.988 
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Note 21 - Participation breakdown 

Balance as at 1 January 
2008 

Investment during the year 

result for the year 

Selling of investment 
Translation resen/e fund 

Finance capitalized 

PC India Plaza Plaza station Hradec Plaza NG Plaza 
JhojdinigJLtcL .houslngj*:.!-.© ^ Q J ^ P SJ^o 

31,557 

24,729 

(1.677) 

(6.105) 

1,236 

3,016 

(162) 

134 

8 8 

Balance as at 31 
December 2008 49,740 2,988 

Balance as at 1 January 
2008 

Investment during the year 

BYTYSN 
s.r.o 

P4 Plaza 
S.R.0. 

PCM d.o.o Prodev «.r.1 North 
Eastem Plaza 

s.r.l 

5,953 1 

result for the year 

Selling of investment 
Translation reserve (und 
Finance capitalized 

Balance as at 31 
December 2008 

Balance as at 1 January 
2008 

Investment during the year 
result for the year 

8 

North West 
Plaza s.r.l 

" l 

400 

(285) 

1,227 

7,295 

South 
Eastem Plaza 

s.r.l 

1 

570 

(74) 

496 

South West 
Plaza s.r.l 

1 

10 

10 

SC White 
Plaza s.r.l 

1 

520 

(749) 

230 

2 

SC Golden 
Plaza s.r.l 

1 

Selling of investment 
Translation reserve fund 
Finance capitalized 

(321) 

196 
Balance as at 31 

December 2008 i2iL 
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Note 21 - Part icipation breakdown 

Balance as at 1 January 
2008 

Investment during the year 
result for the year 

Selling of investment 
Translation reserve fund 
Finance capitalized 
Balance as at 31 
December 2008 

Balance as at 1 January 
2008 

Investment during the year 

result for the year 
Selling of investment 

Translation reserve fund 
Finance capitalized 
Balance as at 31 
December 2008 

SC Blue 
Plaza s.r.l 

1 

1 

Koszalyn 
Plaza 

Sp.z.o.o 

13 

13 

Legnica 
Plaza 

Sp.z.o.o 

PC Ukraine 
holdings Ltd 

2 

(147) 

(145) 

Gdansk 
Centrum 

Plaza 
Sp.z.o.o 

12 

12 

Gorzow 
wielkopolski 

Plaza 
Sp.z.o.o 

Wloclawek 
Plaza 

Sp.z.o.o 

14 

(26) 

(12) 

Gdinya Plaza 
Sp.z.o.o 

; 

. 

PCM B.V 

Bydzgodsz 
Plaza 

Sp.z.o.o 

13 

13 

Plock Plaza 
Sp.z.o.o 

14 

14 

Plaza 
Centers 

estates B.V 

Byalistok 
Plaza 

Sp.z.o.o 

14 

14 

Jelenia Gora 
Plaza 

Sp.z.o.o 

14 

14 

Plaza 
Centers 

holdings B.V 

Balance as at 1 January 2008 

Investment during (he year 

result for the year 

Selling of investment 
Translation reserve fund 
Finance capitalized 

15 

14 14 

56 

(1,827) 

442 

(265) 

341 
Balance as at 31 
December 2008 14 14 15 (1,329) 76 
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Note 21 - Participation breakdown 

Plaza Plaza Plaza Plaza Plaza 
Centers Centers Centers Centers Centers 

development engagements foundations establlshmen corporations 
8 B.V B.V B.V tsB.V B.V 

Balance as at 1 January 2008 

Investment during the year 

result for the year 
Selling of investment 

Translation reserve fund 
Finance capitalized 

18 

(18) 

18 18 18 

Amsterdam, April 30, 2009 
The Board of Directors 

18 

Balance as at 31 
December 2008 . 

Plaza 
Centers 

Junctions B.V 

Balance as at 1 January 2008 

Investment during the year 

result for the year 

Selling of investment 
Translation reserve fund 
Finance capitalized 

Balance as at 31 
December 2008 

Balance as at 1 January 
2008 

Investment during the year 

result fbr the year 

Selling of investment 

Translation reserve fund 

Finance capitalized 

Balance as at 31 
December 2008 

18 

18 

South gate 
s.r.l 

19 

(118) 

239 

140 

18 

Plaza 
Centers 

adminlstratio 
nsB.V 

18 

18 

Palazzo du 
Calle s.r.l 

2.413 

(1.600) 

813 

18 

Plaza 
Centers 

connections 
B.V 

18 

18 

SIA Diksna 

1.340 

1,308 

(322) 

1,323 

3,649 

18 

Elite 
residence 
esplanada 

S.R.L. 

2.441 

(276) 

676 

2,841 

Obor Plaza 
SRL 

-

-

. 

18 

North gate 
«.r.1 

954 

(170) 

276 

1.060 

Totai 

342,518 

246,947 

11.130 

(1,793) 

(6.105) 

8,650 

599,347 

Mordechay Zisser Ran Shtarkman Shimon Yitzchakl 

Marius Willem van Eibergen Santhagens Marco Habib Wichers Edward Paap 
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OTHER INFORMATION 

PROVISION IN THE ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION CONCERNING THE APPROPRIATION OF 
PROFITS 
In accordance with the Company's Articles of Association the result for the year is at the disposal 
of the Annual General Meeting of shareholders, 

APPROPRIATION OF RESULT 
It is proposed that the 2008 profit of €49.6 million will be added to the other reserves. The annual 
accounts have been prepared on the assumption that this profit appropriation will be adopted by 
the Annual General Meeting of shareholders. The Company does not intend to declare dividends 
due during 2009 from the 2008 profits. 

REMUNERATION POLICY 
Plaza Centers' remuneration policy is designed to attract, motivate and retain the high-caliber 
individuals who will enable the Company to serve the best interests of shareholders over the long 
term, through delivering a high level of corporate performance. Remuneration packages are 
aimed at balancing both short-term and long-term rewards, as well as performance and non­
performance related pay. 

The Remuneration Committee reviews base salaries annually. Increases for ali employees are 
recommended by reference to cost of living, responsibilities and market rates, and are performed 
at the same time of year. 

The Remuneration Committee believes that any director's total remuneration should aim to 
recognize his or her worth on the open market and to this end pays base salaries in line with the 
market median supplemented by a performance-related element with the capacity to provide 
more than 50% oftotal potential remuneration. 

2008 

Share 
Salary Incentive 

and fees plan1 

€'000 €'000 

Total non- Total 
performance perfonnance 

related related 
remuneration remuneration 

€'000 £200 
Chairman and executive directors 
Non-performance related remuneration 
Mr Mordechay Zisser 
Mr Ran Shtarkman 

214 
J 9 6 . 

1.370 
2,840 

1,584 
796z 

Total 610 4,210 4.820 796 
Non-executive directors 
Non-performance related remuneration 
Mr Shimon Yitzchaki 
Mr Marius van Eibergen Santhagens 
Mr Edward Paap 
Mr Marco Wichers 

315 
50 
50 
50 

315 
50 
50 
50 

Total 150 315 465 
Total - all directors 760 4.525 5.285 796 

(1) Accounting non-cash expenses recorded in the Company's income statement in connection with the 
share option plan. 
(2) Per management agreement, calculated as 0.75% of net pre-tax profits of up to €10 million, and 
thereafter 1.25% of any net pre-tax profits which exceed €10 million. 
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SERVICE ARRANGEMENTS 
The executive directors have rolling service contracts with the Company, which may be 
terminated on 12 months' and three month notice in the cases of the Chairman and the 
CEO/President respectively. 

The non-executive directors have specific terms of reference. Their letters of appointment state 
an initial 12-month period, terminable by either party on three months written notice. Save for 
payment during respective notice periods, these agreements do not provide for payment on 
termination. 

BONUSES 
The Company has a performance-linked bonus policy for senior executives and employees, 
under which up to 3% of net annual profits are set aside for allocation by the directors to 
employees on an evaluation of their individual contributions to the Company's performance. 
In addition, the Board can award ad hoc bonuses to project managers, area managers and other 
employees on the successful completion and/or opening of each project. The directors also have 
the authority to award discretionary bonuses lo outstanding employees which are not linked to the 
Company's financial results. 

SHARE OPTIONS 
The Company adopted its Share Option Scheme on October 26, 2006. At the same time, 
26,108,602 non-negotiable options over Ordinary Shares were granted, the terms and conditions 
of which (except for the exercise price) are regulated by the Share Option Scheme. Regarding 
the modification of Share Option Scheme refer to note 26 of the consolidated report. For the 
exercise and forfeiture of options refer to the table below. 

Number 
vested as at 

Number December 31, 
ofppfans 2008 

Exercise 
price of 
options 

-i 
Mr Mordechay Zisser 
Mr Ran Shtarkman 
Mr Shimon Yitzchaki 
Mr Marius van 
Eibergen Santhagens 
Mr Edward Paap 
Mr Marco Wichers 

3,907,895 
10.150,376 
1,116,541 

1,302,632 
3,383.459 

372,180 

0.52 
0.52 
0.52 

N/A 
WA 

Number of 
options as at 
December 31, 

_2008 
Total pool 
Granted 
Exercised 
Forfeited 
Left for future grant 

33,834,686 
33.827,174 

(436,182) 
(3,276,784) 

3-284.196 
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COMPANY'S OFFICES 

Plaza Centers the Netherlands 
Plaza Centers N.V. 
Keizersgracht 241,1016 EA Amsterdam 
The Netherlands 
Phone: +31 20 3449562 
Fax: +31 20 3449561 
Email; info@plazacenters.com 

Plaza Centers Hungary 
Andrassy 59, Budapest 1062 
Hungary 
Phone: +36 1 4627202 
Fax: +36 1 4627201 
Email: plazacenters@plazacenters.com 

Plaza Centers Poland 
ul. Belgijska 11/2 02-511 Warszawa 
Poland 
Phone: +48 22 542 81 00 
Fax: +48 22 542 81 02 
Email: headofrice@plazacenters.pl 
Web: www.plazacenters.pl 

Plaza Centers Czech Republic 
K Cervenemu dvoru 24 130 00 Praha 3 
Czech Republic 
Phone: +420 283 000 149 
Fax:+420 283 000 187 
Email: office@plazacenters,cz 
Web: www.plazacenters.cz 

Plaza Centers Latvia 
6 Biekensalas, 71 Mükusalas, Riga LV-1004, 
Latvia 
Phone: +371 676 33734 
Fax:+371 678 21810 
Email: ilva@rjgaplaz3.lv 
Web: www.rigaplaza.lv 

Plaza Centers Romania 
10 Gheorghe Manu St. District 1, 
Bucharest, Romania 
Phone:+40 21 315 4646 
Fax: +40 21 314 5660 
Email: office@hbu.ro 

Plaza Centers Greece 
233 Sygrou Avenue Nea Smirni Athens-171-21 
Greece 
Phone:+30 (210) 9344658 
Fax;+30 (210) 9349124 
Email; mbertou@ofennet.gr 

Plaza Centers India 
Elbit Plaza India Real Estate Private Limited, 
Embassy Icon, 7th Floor. No 3 Infantry Road, 
Bangalore 560001, Karnataka, India 
Phone: +91 80 4041 4444 
Fax: +91 80 4149 3929 
Web: www.plazacenters.in 

Plaza Centers Russian Federation 
117447, Moscow, 
Sevastopolsky Prospect, 11G, office 20 
Russia 
Phone:+7 916 900 9193 
Email: boris@plazacenters.com 

Plaza Centers Serbia 
Vladete Kovacavica street no 14, Belgrade 
Serbia 
Phone: +381 11 2647 044/067 
Fax;+381 112652 210 
E-mail: office@plazacenters.rs 

Plaza Centers Bulgaria 
53-55,Totleben Blvrd 1606 Sofia 
Bulgaria 
Phone: +359 2 851 89 84, +359 2 951 57 54 
Fax: +359 2 954 03 31 
E-mail; office.bulgaria@plazacenters,com 

Plaza Centers Ukraine 
38B, Saksaganskogo St., Kiev 01033 
Ukraine 
Phone: +380(93)6911770 
E-mail: info@plazacenters.com.ua 
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ADVISORS 

Financial advisors and stock brokers 
UBS Investment Bank 
2 Finsbury Avenue 
London EC2M2PP 
UK 
Web: www.ubs.com 

Principal Auditor 
KPMG Hungaria kft 
Véci üt 99 
H-1139 Budapest 
Web: www.kpmg.hu 

Dutch statutory Auditor 
Mazars Paardekooper Hoffman Accountants N.V. 
Mazars Tower - Delflandlaan 1 
POBox 7266 
1077 JG Amsterdam 
Web: www.mazars.nl 

Corporate solicitors in the UK 
Berwin Leighton Paisner LLP 
Adelaide House 
London Bridge 
London EC4R 9HA 
UK 
Web: www.blplaw.com 
White & Case LLP 
5 Old Broad Street 
London EC2N1DW 
Web: www.whitecase.com/london 

Corporate legal counsel in the Netherlands 
Buren van Velzen Guelen 
Johan de Wittlann 15, 2517 JR 
The Hague 
The Netherlands 
P.O. Box18511 
2502 EM The Hague 
The Netherlands 
Web: www.bwg.nl 

Corporate legal counsel In Poland 
Weil, Gotshal & Manges LLP 
Warsaw Financial Center 
ul. Emillii Plateer 53 
Warsaw 00-113 
Poland 
Web: www.weil.com/warsaw 

Registrar 
Capita Registrars 
The Registry 
34 Beckenham Road 
Beckenham 
KentBR34TU 
UK 
Web: www.capitaregistrars.com 

Investor relations 
FD 
Holbom Gate 
26 Southampton Buildings 
London WC2A1PB 
UK 
Web: www.fd.com 
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